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P R O C E E D I N G S

MR. FOLIO:  All right.  Well good morning, everyone. 

This is a transcribed interview of George Kent, being

conducted by the Senate Committee on Homeland Security and

Governmental Affairs and the Senate Committee on Finance. 

This interview was requested by Chairman Ron Johnson and

Chairman Charles Grassley, as part of the Committees'

investigation of whether there are any actual or apparent

conflicts of interest or any other wrongdoing with regard to

the Obama administration's Ukraine policy or Burisma

holdings, as well as related matters.

On April 30, 2020, Chairmen Grassley and Johnson

requested Mr. Kent's appearance for a voluntary transcribed

interview.  

Mr. Kent, my name is Joseph Folio.  I am the Chief

Counsel for the Homeland Security Committee.  I am now going

to introduce additional members of Chairman Johnson's staff

in the room with me, and then I will ask staff for the other

members to introduce themselves.

Sitting with me is Scott Wittmann, Lydia Westlake,

Sarah Smerling, and Will Sacripanti.  We are joined also

virtually by our colleague, Brian Downey.  All those folks

are members of Chairman Johnson's staff.

I will now ask Chairman Grassley's staff to jump in.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Hi, Mr. Kent.  My name is Josh Flynn-
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Brown.  I am Deputy Chief Investigative Counsel for Chairman

Grassley.  I am also joined here by my colleague, Quinton

Brady.

MR. FOLIO:  Now I will ask Zack--

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, we've lost your audio.

MR. FOLIO:  Can you hear me now?

MR. SCHRAM:  Yeah.  

MR. FOLIO:  Zack, do you want to go ahead and introduce

yourself and the rest of the staff?

MR. SCHRAM:  I am Zack Schram, Chief Counsel for the

Ranking Member staff, Homeland Security Governmental Affairs

Committee.  I am joined by Alan Kahn, our Deputy Chief

Counsel, Soumyalatha Dayananda, Senior Counsel, and Roy

Awabdeh, Senior Counsel.

Just a word of introduction for us.  Mr. Kent, I just

want to make clear we appreciate you being here.  This

investigation is not keeping with the nonpartisan traditions

and practices of our committees.  As the Ranking Members

have said publicly, we believe this investigation advances

Russian disinformation and election interference efforts. 

We should not facilitate foreign interference in our 2020

election.  

I will note also that we are conducting this interview

remotely, because we are in the midst of a global pandemic

that has created an extraordinary public health crisis in
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the United States.  The Homeland Security and Governmental

Affairs Committee has jurisdiction over pandemic

preparedness and response.  Ranking Member Peters believe

this investigation is a misuse of Committee resources that

does not advance the health, safety, or economic security of

Americans consistent with our Committee's mission.

Our participation today is not an endorsement of this

investigation.  Minority staff have a right and a

responsibility to be here.  We will do our best to ensure

that you are treated fairly, that the record is accurate and

complete, and that the national security interest of the

United States is protected.

MR. FOLIO:  All right, Dan or Dave, would you like to

introduce staff from Ranking Member Wyden's office?

MR. GOSHORN:  I'm Dan Goshorn.  I'm Senior

Investigative Counsel for Senator Wyden on the Finance

Committee minority staff.  I am joined today by our Chief

Investigator, Dave Berick, and two additional investigators

from the Finance minority staff, Josh Health and Michael

Osborn-Grosso.  Thank you for being here.

MR. FOLIO:  All right.  Thank you.  Just a quick word

in response to what Zack Schram read into the record.  We

should probably submit prepared statements to make this more

efficient.  But just for the record we have addressed all of

the points raised by Zack.  Chairman Johnson as [inaudible--
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audio difficulties] in one of his many hearings on the

pandemic and preparedness for the pandemic, as well as

[inaudible--audio difficulties].

Turning back to the interview, I am now going to

explain how the interview will proceed.  The Federal Rules

of Civil Procedure do not apply to any of the--

MR. HARTMAN:  Excuse me for one second.  Joe?

MR. FOLIO:  Yeah.

MR. HARTMANN:  Is anybody from State on?

MR. JOHNSON:  Cliff Johnson.  Hi.  This is Cliff

Johnson from State, and I've also got a colleague, Priya

Bhanu, who I think is listed as an attendee, but ideally

could also be included as a panelist.  Thanks.

MR. HARTMAN:  Thank you.

MR. FOLIO:  Thanks for the reminder, Barry.  And Barry,

I will have a spot for you when you need it to introduce

yourself.

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, I am still having trouble hearing

you.  I'm sorry.

MR. FOLIO:  Okay.  I'll speak a little louder.  Maybe

that's part of the problem?

MR. SCHRAM:  The distance from the microphone?

MR. FOLIO:  I'm not sure if it could be mine.

MR. HARTMAN:  You're going in and out.

MR. KENT:  Is anyone speaking?
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MR. FOLIO:  No.

MR. KENT:  Oh.  

MR. FOLIO:  I think mine is as loud as it is able to

go.

MR. KENT:  Mr. Folio, I don't think the folks can hear

you.

[Inaudible--audio difficulties.]

MR. KENT:  I do.

MR. FOLIO:  I just asked Will to take a look in the

system and see--can you hear me now, Mr. Kent?

MR. KENT:  Now it's clear.

MR. FOLIO:  Great.  All right.  We'll just walk you

through some of the introductory remarks about this

interview.  Again, the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure do

not apply to any of the Committees' investigative activities

including transcribed interviews.  

Mr. Kent, the way questioning will proceed is that we

will alternate between majority and minority staff, each

taking one-hour turns.  The majority staff will begin. 

We'll proceed for one hour, and then the minority staff will

have an hour to ask questions as well.  And we will rotate

back and forth until there are no more questions.

We will also ask you, at the end of each hour, if you

would like to take a break.

During the interview we will do our best to limit the
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number of people who are asking questions during any given

hour.  That said, from time to time, individuals may have

follow-up or clarifying questions that may be helpful, so

you may hear from others around the table.  We will ask

everyone to take their time to ensure that their camera

activates and that people can hear them and folks aren't

talking over one another.

Ms. Irene Gray is the reporter on the line as well. 

She is going to treat a verbatim record of what we discuss

today.  With that in mind, as I am sure you are familiar,

please respond to questions verbally, because Ms. Gray

cannot properly record nonverbal responses.  Do you

understand that?

MR. KENT:  I understand.  

MR. FOLIO:  We encourage witnesses that appear before

the Committee to freely consult with counsel.  Do you have

counsel present with you today?

MR. KENT:  I do.

MR. FOLIO:  Would counsel please state their names for

the record?

MR. HARTMAN:  This is Barry Hartman, K&L Gates.

MR. WRIGHT:  This is Andy Wright with K&L Gates.

MR. FOLIO:  Thank you.

MR. HARTMAN:  Joe, just one thing, quickly.  Because of

these audio problems, every time I take my computer off mute
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we hear terrible echoes.  And I was just going to ask you to

please make sure everybody speaks as loudly as possible,

because the audio situation is [inaudible--audio

difficulties.]

MR. KENT:  When you talk, I will mute.  Yeah.  Well, if

I mute then I lose the sound feed.  Yeah, the feed goes off

when I hit mute.

MR. HARTMAN:  George tells me that when he mutes the

sound goes off and he can't hear.

Let's do our best.  I just wanted to raise that.

MR. FOLIO:  Thank you.  We are going to be a well-oiled

machine in about 30 minutes.  Just wait.

All right, Mr. Kent, we want your answers to our

questions to be the most complete and truthful as possible. 

We are going to take our time.  If you have any questions

about what we are asking or if you do not understand them we

are happy to clarify.  Do you understand?

MR. KENT:  I understand.

MR. FOLIO:  This interview is unclassified, so if the

questions call for any information that you know to

implicate classified national security information please

state that for the record, as well as the reason you

understand it to be classified.  And once you have

clarified, to the extent possible, please respond with as

much unclassified information as you are able to.  And if we
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need to have a classified session in one form or another

later, we can arrange for that.  Do you understand?

MR. KENT:  I understand.

MR. FOLIO:  It is the Committee's practice to honor

valid common law privilege claims as an accommodation to a

witness.  When those claims are made in good faith and

accompanied by a sufficient explanation so the Committees

can evaluate the claim.  When deciding whether to honor a

privilege, the Committee will weigh its need for the

information against any legitimate basis for withholding it.

This interview today is occurring without prejudice to

any future discussion of the Committees, and we reserve the

right to request your participation in future interviews or

compel testimony.

Mr. Kent, if you need to take a break, other than the

breaks we will offer at the end of each hour, please let us

know.  

Mr. Kent, you are required to answer questions before

Congress truthfully.  Do you understand that?

MR. KENT:  I understand.

MR. FOLIO:  This also applies to questions posed by

congressional staff in an interview.  Specifically, 18

U.S.C. Section 1001 makes it a crime to make any materially

false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or

representations in the course of a congressional
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investigation.  This statute applies to your statements in

this interview.  Do you understand that?

MR. KENT:  I understand.

MR. FOLIO:  Is there any reason that you are unable to

provide us today with truthful answers to our questions?

MR. KENT:  None whatsoever.

MR. FOLIO:  Thank you.  Finally, we ask that you not

speak about what we discuss in this interview with anyone

else outside of who is in the room today in order to

preserve the integrity of our interview.  We also ask that

you don't make any copies or photographs of exhibits that

you will be shown today.  Do you understand and agree to

those terms?

MR. KENT:  I understand.

MR. FOLIO:  Do you have any questions before we begin?

MR. HARTMAN:  Joe, one last thing.  I understand that

we will get a copy of the transcript and you will provide an

errata sheet, which is particularly important, I think,

given our audio situation.

MR. FOLIO:  Correct.

MR. HARTMAN:  George, Mr. Kent, does have an opening

statement he would like to give at the appropriate time.

MR. FOLIO:  Unless anyone objects I'm happy to let Mr.

Kent provide that statement now.  Is that okay with you,

Zack?
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MR. SCHRAM:  Yes.  Absolutely, Joe.  I would just ask

also, with respect to advance review of the transcript that

the minority be included.

MR. FOLIO:  Understood.

MR. KENT:  Good, well again, good morning.  My name is

George Kent, and I am Deputy Assistant Secretary of State

for Eastern Europe and the Caucasus.  I am appearing here

voluntarily in connection with the State Department's

cooperation with the Committees.

As occurred last fall, I appear as a career nonpartisan

professional foreign service officer of more than 28 years'

experience, and a fact witness ready to answer all of your

questions about the events and individuals related to this

inquiry, to the best of my ability and recollection, subject

to the limits place on me by law in this process.  

Relevant to some of the topics to be discussed today, I

was previously the Senior Anticorruption Coordinator for the

State Department's European Bureau from 2014 to 2015, and

the Deputy Chief of Mission of our Embassy in Kiev, Ukraine

from 2015 to 2018.

I would like to begin with some opening comments on

those issues that bring me before you today, centered around

U.S. foreign policy towards Ukraine and the issues raised in

the Committee letter of April 30, 2020.

U.S. efforts to counter corruption in Ukraine focus on
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building institutional capacity so that the Ukrainian

government has the ability to go after corruption and

effectively investigate, prosecute, and judge alleged

criminal activities using appropriate institutional

mechanisms, that is, to create and follow the rule of law. 

My exposure to the pervasive and longstanding problem of

corruption in Ukraine included a situation involving the NAG

company, Burisma.  The primary concern of the U.S.

Government since 2014 was Burisma's owner, Mykola

Zlochevsky, whose frozen assets abroad we had attempt to

recover on Ukraine's behalf.

In early 2015, I raised questions with the Deputy

Prosecutor General about why the investigation of Mr.

Zlochevsky had been terminated, based on our belief that

prosecutors had accepted bribes to close the case.  Later I

became aware that Hunter Biden was on the board of Burisma.  

Soon after that, in a briefing call with the National

Security staff in the Office of the Vice President on other

matters, in February 2015, I raised my concern that Hunter

Biden's status as a board member could create the perception

of a conflict of interest.  Let me be clear, however, I did

not witness any effort by any U.S. official to shield

Burisma from scrutiny.  In fact, I, and other U.S.

officials, consistently advocated reconstituting a scuttled

investigation of Zlochevsky, Burisma's founder, as well as
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holding the corrupt prosecutors who had closed the case to

account.

There have been recent efforts by Ukrainians to share

information and accusations about U.S. persons, programs,

and policies.  We all need to be very careful in considering

those sources and their motivations.  I, and many others,

believe some of these individuals are corrupt, some have a

track record of lying, and some are known to be advancing

Russia's agenda.

For the past six years since Ukraine's 2014 Revolution

of Dignity, there has been broad bipartisan support in both

Houses of Congress to the tune of more than $4.3 billion of

appropriated assistance to support Ukraine as a free and

vibrant U.S. partner.  That support in Congress has been

joined by U.S. officials in the Executive branch over two

administration, one Democrat and one Republican, to support

Ukraine in its fight for the cause of freedom.  This support

has also included its rebirth as a country free from Russian

dominion and the warped legacy of Soviet institutions and

post-Soviet behavior.  

The battle against corruption and for the rule of law

has been waged nearly as fiercely as the fighting in the

trenches of Eastern Ukraine and is equally important if

Ukraine is to prosper.  The United States has actively

support both efforts.
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The United States has clear national interest at stake

in Ukraine, and the way we have defined our national

interests broadly in Europe for the past 75 years.  U.S.

leadership furthered our sided policies in postwar Europe

like the Marshall Plan, the creation of NATO, the greatest

alliance in history, and the creation of a rules-based

international order.  Europe's security and prosperity

contributed to our security and prosperity.  In the same

way, Ukraine's security and prosperity contributes to our

security and prosperity.  

Support of Ukraine's success also fits squarely into

our strategy for Central and Eastern Europe since the fall

of the Berlin Wall 31 years ago.  A Europe truly whole,

free, and at peace, our strategic aim for the entirety of my

foreign service career, is not possible without a Ukraine

whole, free, and at peace, including Crimea and Donbass,

Ukrainian territories currently occupied by Russia.

The current administration's national security strategy

focuses on great power competition with rivals, such as

Russia and China, and the need to compete for positive

influence.  This applies directly to our approach in

Ukraine.  Ukraine has been on the front lines not just of

Russia's conventional war in eastern Ukraine since 2014, and

its broader campaign of malign influence, but of the greater

geopolitical challenges now facing the United States.
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Looking back specifically as our programs and policies

from 2014 to 2016, and the specific questions posed in

Chairman Johnson's and Grassley's April 30th letter to

Secretary Pompeo, inviting me to appear for this transcribed

interview, I would highlight the centrality of the

anticorruption efforts that Ukrainian citizens demanded

after the 2014 Revolution of Dignity, and 27 years of grand

theft and nonaccountability for Ukrainians in office and

with access to state resources.

One of the first requests by the new Ukrainian

government in the spring of 2014, was to recover some of the

billions of stolen assets that had been laundered abroad by

members of the former Yanukovich regime, many of whom fled

to Moscow in 2014.  In response, the U.S. Attorney General

worked with his Ukraine counterpart and the World Bank to

launch a stolen assets recovery, or StAR, initiative, in

London in May 2014.

The first asset recovery case worked trilaterally by

law enforcement officials from Ukraine, the United Kingdom,

and the United States involved $23 million frozen in the

United Kingdom at the request of the UK Serious Fraud

Office, or SFO, assets of former Minister of Ecology Mykola

Zlochevsky.  In his capacity as Minister of Ecology from

2010 to 2012, Zlochevsky ordered multiple licenses for

natural gas exploration to a number of shell companies
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consolidated in Burisma holdings that he owned.  Burisma is

currently the largest private producer of gas in Ukraine. 

The gas sector has been one of, if not the primary source of

corruption for Ukraine's political elite, dating from

independence in the 1990s.

After six months of hard work by the FBI, the British

SFO, and Ukrainian law enforcement, the Ukrainian Prosecutor

General's Office unexpectedly closed the money-laundering

case against Zlochevsky in December 2014.  Loches's lawyers

presented the letter to a UK judge, who ordered the funds

unfrozen before the SFO and FBI could react.

On February 3, 2015, while I was in Ukraine as Acting

Deputy Chief of Mission, I confronted the First Deputy

Prosecutor General, Anatoliy Danylenko, demanding to know

who had paid the bribe and how much it was.  I also demanded

that the case against Zlochevsky be resumed.

Throughout 2015 and 2016, U.S. officials, particularly

those at the U.S. Embassy in Kiev, consistently pressed

Ukrainian officials to hold Zlochevsky to account and made

clear our negative view about Burisma.  

There were other examples of the U.S. Government

raising questions about Zlochevsky and Burisma.  Then

Ambassador Geoff Pyatt delivered a blistering public speech

in Odessa in September of 2015, when anticorruption efforts

seemed to lag, specifically citing the lack of action
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against Zlochevsky.

In addition, in August of 2016, I learned that an

implementer of a USAID municipal energy foreign project had

signed a public-private partnership memorandum of

understanding with Loches's company, Burisma, to promote

clean energy through the awarding of prizes.  I forced

suspension of the agreement, given Zlochevsky and Burisma's

reputation and the moral hazard of association.

Shortly after my February 2015 meeting at the

Prosecutor General's headquarters about the closure of the

case against Zlochevsky, I became aware that Hunter Biden

had joined the board of Burisma in 2014.  As I testified in

the House soon after that, in a briefing call with the

National Security staff in the Office of the Vice President

on other issues, I raised my concern about Hunter Biden's

status as a board member of Burisma.  Burisma's owner was a

poster child for corrupt behavior, and Hunter Biden's

position on the board could create the perception of a

conflict of interest at the time when Vice President Biden

was leading the policy charge, pushing President Poroshenko

and Prime Minister Yatsenyuk to take more decisive

anticorruption action.

As I testified last fall, however, at no time did I

witness any efforts by any U.S. official to shield Burisma

from scrutiny, and in fact, quite the opposite.  I, and
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other U.S. officials, consistently advocated reconstituting

the scuttled investigation of Zlochevsky, Burisma's founder,

as well as holding the corrupt prosecutors who had closed

the case against him to account.  Ambassador Pyatt, the

Embassy's economic section, and I shared our concern

regarding Zlochevsky and Burisma's reputation and less-than-

stellar business practices widely, including with U.S.

officials in Washington, think tankers who follow Ukraine,

other American officials at the Embassy who did not have the

background awareness that we did, and publicly.

I am not aware of any occasion in which then Vice

President Biden raised Burisma with Ukrainian officials.  I

am not aware of any wrongdoing by Hunter Biden or the other

international members of the Burisma board, which included

the former President of Poland, Aleksander Kwasniewski, and

Cofer Black, a long-time CIA official and one-time

counterterrorism coordination at the State Department during

the George W. Bush administration.

During the first week of September 2016, I met with

then Prosecutor General Yuriy Lutsenko, at his request. 

Lutsenko wished to discuss his desire to travel to the

United States in late September 2016, and have high-level

meetings both with U.S. Government officials and with

persons working for the Clinton campaign.  He said that the

trip had been proposed to him by Blue Star Strategies,
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working with a former Department of Justice official then at

the law firm Cravath.  I raised several concerns about the

proposed trip, including timing and interlocuters.  I also

reiterated our view that his office should be prosecuting

Zlochevsky.  Lutsenko changed his mind and delayed travel

plans until after the U.S. election.

On September 6, I took a call from someone I had never

talked to previously, Sally Painter, Chief Operating Officer

of Blue Star Strategies, regarding Lutsenko's proposed trip

to the United States.  Ms. Painter accused me of ruining

Blue Star's business model and of damaging relations with

Lutsenko.  I corrected her mischaracterization of my advice

to Lutsenko.  I memorialized that communication and shared

it with Ambassador Yovanovitch and the State Department.

U.S. efforts to counter corruption in Ukraine have

focused on building institutional capacity so that the

Ukrainian government has the ability to go after corruption

and effectively investigate, prosecute, and judge alleged

criminal activities using appropriate institutional

mechanisms, that is, to create and follow the rule of law.

As I testified last fall, at the heart of the mandate

for change in Ukraine's Revolution of Dignity was a thirst

for justice, because there could not be dignity without

justice.  Without a reformed judicial sector that delivers

justice with integrity for all, Ukrainian society will
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remain unsettled.  Foreign investors, including U.S.

companies, will not bring the investment needed to ensure

Ukraine's long-term prosperity.  

Reform of the prosecutorial service, therefore, is and

remains a key to Ukraine's escape from its Soviet past,

since the General Prosecutor's Office, along with the

security services known by various names over the decades,

but most infamously as the KGB, were a key instrument of

state oppression against its citizens.  Post-independence,

the prosecutorial system became more of a protection racket

and a self-enrichment mechanism.  This is why the principal

promotion of the rule of law and institutional integrity has

been so necessary to our strategy for a successful Ukraine.

President Poroshenko knew Ukraine needed a reformed

General Prosecutor's Office.  He dismissed his first general

prosecutor, Yarema, whose team had failed to bring a single

prosecution over a seven-month period, and which allegedly

took a bribe from Zlochevsky to close the case against him

and collapse our effort to recover the $23 million frozen in

the United Kingdom.

In February 2015, Poroshenko appointed, in his place, a

long-time friend and former Deputy Prosecutor General,

Viktor Shokin, and asked us to help Shokin and his team

reform the General Prosecutor's Office, in the same way we

had launched, successfully, police reform with the patrol
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police.  As a result, we concentrated staff and resources

into this effort, focusing on a new Internal Affairs Unit to

investigate and take down corrupt prosecutors. 

Unfortunately, Shokin scuttled what was to be the

proof-of-concept test case in the summer of 2015.  The

Internal Affairs Unit arrested two prosecutors for extortion

and bribe-taking in what became known as the Diamond

Prosecutor Affair.

Rather than back the U.S.-supported anticorruption

investigators, however, Shokin undermined their efforts and

then destroyed the careers of everyone associated with the

case.  Shokin demanded that everyone, even those in agencies

not under his prosecutorial purview, be dismissed.  It was

our view that Shokin took these actions out of loyalty to

the prosecutor at the center of the scandal, who was his

former driver.  President Poroshenko acquiesced.  

The housecleaning shocked Ukrainian society. 

Ukrainians we out into the streets.  The calls for Shokin's

dismissal did not start with the U.S. Government.  Rather,

they started in Ukrainian society, outraged at Shokin's

misconduct, and disappointed by Poroshenko's protection of a

prosecutor protecting corrupt friends and persecuting honest

anticorruption officials.  By protecting Shokin for months,

in the face of subsequent popular discontent, President

Poroshenko suffered a steep drop in his levels of popular
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support, from 55 percent initially to the low 20 percents,

never to recover.

For our part, the United States had a fiduciary

responsibility to the American taxpayer to account for our

resources wisely.  The corrupt prosecutors under Yarema had

wasted our money and effort in killing the case against

Zlochevsky in December 2014, and we did not forget.  Shokin

had wasted our money and effort in undermining the wider

prosecution project of prosecutorial reform, by declaring

war on all of those associated with the Diamond Prosecutor

case.  We again took a stand on principle, and in defense of

anticorruption policies and programs that Ukraine needed to

succeed.  If Ukraine were to succeed, Shokin had to go.

We joined the calls from Ukrainian society and then its

Parliament for Shokin's dismissal, not just rhetorically but

by using the leverage we had given, we had, given the

resources we brought to bear to support Ukraine.

The roiling controversy over Shokin came to a head in

late 2015.  At that time, we were discussing conditionality

for the third of three $1 billion sovereign loan guarantees

that we had extended to Ukraine--2014, 2015, and then 2016--

to allow Ukraine to borrow in the market and ensure

financial liquidity and stability.

There are, and always have been conditions placed on

sovereign loan guarantees for Ukraine.  Conditions have
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included anticorruption reforms as well as meeting larger

macroeconomic stability goals and social safety nets.  The

International Monetary Fund does the same with its much

larger program of loans.  Congress and the Executive branch

work together to put conditionality on some security

assistance in the Ukraine Security Assistance Initiative, or

USIAI, in the defense budget.

As I testified last fall, I cannot pinpoint who, in the

U.S. Government, first proposed adding Shokin's dismissal as

a condition for the third and final sovereign loan

guarantee, but I believe the recommendation came from the

U.S. Embassy in Kiev.  Shokin's removal was discussed in the

interagency process in Washington, and ultimately conveyed

by Vice President Biden to President Poroshenko.  Ukraine's

parliament the Verkhovna Rada, ultimately voted to dismiss

Shokin as Prosecutor General on March 29, 2016.

Since Shokin's dismissal, a number of Ukrainians have

participated in a disinformation campaign against U.S.

persons, policies, and programs that might distort the

Committees' consideration of the topics under inquiry.  I am

also concerned that some of their activities could be

exploited to advance a Russian agenda.  

As I testified in the House, in January 2019, I was

involved in discussions relating to a denial of visa for

Shokin, who sought to come to the United States to share his

Page 27

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



28

accusations against U.S. officials and programs.  His U.S.

visa had expired, however, and the U.S. Embassy declined to

issue another visa, given his record of corruption.  The

State Department backed the Embassy in January 2019, when

Rudy Giuliani called the State Department and the White

House, seeking a visa for Shokin.

Later in 2019, Shokin also swore a false affidavit in

support of a corrupt Russian-affiliated gas oligarch, Dmytro

Firtash, in which Shokin misrepresented the basis for his

own removal from office.

Another Ukrainian, Andreii Derkach, has also been

advancing false allegations.  Derkach is a member of the

Ukrainian Parliament who graduated from the KGB Academy in

Russia after the fall of the Soviet Union, and has been

known throughout his career to promote Moscow's interests in

Ukraine.  Derkach claimed that there were billions of

dollars in unaccounted-for assistance from the United

States, and started attacking U.S. anticorruption programs,

implementation organizations, and U.S. Government officials

by name.  Media outlets and bots controlled by Russian or

pro-Russian Ukrainians had been amplifying his messages in

Ukrainian, Russian, and English.

I am concerned that these unsubstantiated allegations

have also been amplified by some Americans.  For example, in

a July 10th YouTube video, Rudy Giuliani broadcast a litany
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of Derkach's allegations about the alleged misuse or

nonaccountability of U.S. assistance.  He added those to the

bogus claims by former Prosecutor General Lutsenko about

U.S. prosecutorial assistance that were used in the 2019

campaign against then U.S. Ambassador Yovanovitch.

I raise these concluding issues out of respect for the

Committees' obligation to obtain reliable and credible

information necessary for sound and informed public policy

decision-making and to defend our democratic institutions.

Regarding my interview, I will do my best to answer all

of your questions today, but please note that these

questions will involve issues, conversations, and documents

that spanned a number of years.  I may be limited by two

additional considerations.  As Mr. Folio mentioned, first,

if I am asked a question today that I may believe implicates

classified information I will respectfully decline to answer

in this unclassified form.  And second, consistent with my

House testimony, I am not prepared to discuss the

intelligence community.

And with that I stand ready to answer your questions.

MR. FOLIO:  Mr. Kent, thank you for the opening

statement.  For the minority's benefit I will start the

clock, and the majority will begin it's one-hour

questioning.

Mr. Kent, I just want to begin by emphasizing what you
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said at the end of your opening statement, and what Chairman

Johnson has repeated several times, that the goal of this

inquiry, although other people are very quick to

characterize it, is to understand the facts and nothing

more, to understand what happened and did not happen, to

understand if there was any wrongdoing, or if there was not,

so people can get answers and we can move forward, and that

is precisely why we have asked for records from, among other

places, the State Department, the National Archives, and why

we were hoping to speak with current and former U.S.

administration officials like yourself.

So we very much thank you for being here today.  You

have what we believe to be invaluable insight on these

issues and how they unfolded over the years.

One of the other things I'll just note for the record,

you know, part of the reason why we're here is because these

issues fall squarely within the jurisdiction of the Homeland

Security and Governmental Affairs Committee.  People often

show off after they hear "homeland security," but the

governmental affairs part is important.

Senate Resolution 70 talks about what this Committee's

jurisdiction is, and if we could just quote from it briefly,

the jurisdiction includes, quote, "The Committee is

authorized to study or investigate the efficiency and

economy of operations of all branches of the government,
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including the possible existence of fraud, corruption, or

unethical practices and conflicts of interest," and that's

precisely what brings us here today.

I noticed your prior statement in which you repeated

today that there cannot be dignity without justice, and you

also touched on but you've mentioned previously the

importance of having a principal promotion of the rule of

law and why it's important to institutional integrity and

necessary to the United States strategy of having a

successful Ukraine.  And I think that is what our inquiry is

getting at.  We do not believe that conflicts of interest

issues are black and white.  That is why the law focuses on

appearances of conflicts of interest, to understand and try

and prevent conflicts that could undermine, even subtly, the

policy decisions that are so important to the United States

and its foreign partners, like Ukraine.

Mr. Kent, so I'm assuming in the course of your work on

Ukraine, which is quite extensive, that you've met Chairman

Johnson?

MR. KENT:  I have.

MR. FOLIO:  In what context have you met Chairman

Johnson?

MR. KENT:  To the best of my recollection, I was at the

Embassy on at least one of his visits to Ukraine, and just--

and you probably have better details about when he was in
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Ukraine.  I was there from starting January 2015 through

August of 2018, with some breaks.  And then I had a very

chance encounter walking of the National Security Council

with our Ambassador to Moldova, Dereck Hogan, and we just

stopped and shook his hand.  But I think substantively, the

point of contact would have been during one of his visits,

presuming he visited between 2015 and 2018.

MR. FOLIO:  Yeah, I think that's right, and, of course,

we do have that pretty detailed information.  I think he

made seven trips to Ukraine since April of 2011, and in, I

think, the time period you identified he made three trips.

Of course, assuming you're aware that he is the

Chairman of the Senate Foreign Relations Subcommittee on

Europe and Regional Security Cooperation?

MR. KENT:  Correct.

MR. FOLIO:  And are you aware that in that capacity he

has held several hearings on Ukraine, Russia, and Russia's

disinformation efforts to undermine Ukraine and U.S. policy

towards Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  Yes.

MR. FOLIO:  Are you aware--I'm assuming you're

certainly aware of the policy issue, but just generally the

policy issue and Chairman Johnson's support during your time

working in Ukraine, for providing lethal defensive aid to

Ukraine?
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MR. KENT:  I am.

MR. FOLIO:  Could you briefly describe the debate at

the time that you were there and the decision not to provide

it, and when that changed?

MR. KENT:  As I recall, the question at issue was

whether provision of lethal assistance in the 2015-2016

period would be an escalatory step or a step of deterrence

from more Russian action, and that was the basis of the

policy debate.  

MR. FOLIO:  And at that time, was lethal defensive aid

provided?

MR. KENT:  At the time, U.S. assistance was not used to

provide lethal aid.  The State Department did issue export

licenses for sniper rifles that were procured commercially. 

So it would be--it's actually correct to assert that U.S.

assistance, security assistance, was not used to provide

lethal assistance, but it would be accurate also to say that

the State Department licensed the commercial sale of lethal

equipment.

MR. FOLIO:  And did that policy change over time?

MR. KENT:  That policy changed in late 2017, after a

policy review by the new administration, current

administration.

MR. FOLIO:  And that policy change allowed for the

provision of lethal defensive weaponry?
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MR. KENT:  That policy change allowed for us to use

U.S. security assistance to provide lethal defensive

equipment.  Correct.

MR. FOLIO:  And with regard to Members of Congress

visiting Ukraine during this time, are you aware of certain

Members of Congress being blacklisted by Russia for their

trips to and work with Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  I am aware that there was at least one trip

when Russia declined to issue visas to Members of Congress,

yes.

MR. FOLIO:  Are you aware that in 2019, that list was

expanded to include both Chairman Johnson and Senator

Murphy?

MR. KENT:  I do recall reading that, yes.

MR. FOLIO:  So I guess rounding out our conversation on

U.S.-Ukraine policy, in your opening statement you addressed

the time period that we're focused on, 2014 to 2016, there

were three rounds of U.S. loan guarantees.  Can you explain

what role U.S. loan guarantees played in U.S.-Ukraine policy

and in Ukraine policy, in general, so how they used the

money?

MR. KENT:  The former Ukrainian government under then

President Yanukovich looted the treasury.  They left not

only the foreign reserves almost at zero, not able to cover

more than a couple of weeks of imports but also the treasury
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that would be used to pay for salaries and government

activities.  And so Ukraine was perilously on the edge of

default at the same time they were being invaded by the

Russian army.  And their ability to go into the market and

secure financing was limited, given the state of finances.  

So what is known as concessionary loans--that would

include the IMF package, that would include U.S. sovereign

loan guarantees--were critical to get Ukraine through those

early years until they could--the new government could

restore macroeconomic stability as well as prudent financial

management.

So that is why, in those first three years, 2014, 2015,

and 2016, the U.S. administration took the step to offer

sovereign loan guarantees to allow them to borrow in the

market at concessionary rates.  

After that point, they recovered their own--because of

their own good macroeconomic policies, enough that they did

not need our concessionary support, loan support, and they

could then borrow in the markets directly.

MR. FOLIO:  Was that after the loan guarantee in 2016,

that occurred?

MR. KENT:  Right.  So that--essentially, the new

government came in in 2014.  In addition to the government

there was wholesale changeover in the leadership of the

National Bank, and so institutions started working the way
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they should.  Central Bank, National Bank cleaned up the

financial banking sector, which was in awful shape.  They

targeted inflation, they targeted floating exchange rate,

and the Finance Ministry also had excellent managers of

finances.  So the combination of a good stewardship of key

institutions allowed Ukraine then to move forward without

seeking additional concessionary loan support from the U.S.

Government.

MR. FOLIO:  In your opening statement you mentioned

that as part of providing these loan guarantees the U.S.

would place conditions on--that they wanted to assure

themselves that we--we wanted to assure ourselves that it

was filled prior to giving the guarantee.  Can you describe

the general thought behind the conditions and then provide

some examples or descriptions of the conditions that the

U.S. Government would evaluate before deciding to provide

those guarantees?

MR. KENT:  The conditions to explain a little bit of

the mechanisms, at the time USAID had the lead on drafting

the language for the signing of loan guarantees.  I believe

that function has now shifted to Development and Finance

Corporation that was stood up last year.  But that's why

there was an interagency process between, you know, various

parts of the U.S. Government, the State Department having a

strong lead voice, but ultimately very closely working hand-
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in-glove with USAID, because they were the ones, at the

time, in those years, that actually wrote and signed the

document.

We chose a series of issues that we felt were important

for Ukraine, and as I mentioned before, there was a--because

anticorruption issues were at the heart of what Ukraine

needed to address for them to be successful institutionally

and economically, there were a number of anticorruption

provisions that included issues like better governance at

the state-owned gas company, Naftogaz, which previously was

used as a corrupt mechanism.  Up to 8 percent of the GDP was

lost through mismanagement of that one state-owned

enterprise.  So cleaning that up was essentially a bonus of

8 percent of the entire economy.

One of--I can't remember which of the three years--one

of the requirements was to establish an investigate an OIG,

internal affairs investigator general at the Prosecutor

General's Office.  That got into our disagreements, to put

it mildly, with Mr. Shokin.  Some of them had to do with

macroeconomic competency and targeting, and others had to do

with social safety nets, because there was this massive

devaluation of the Ukrainian currency, the hryvnia, and that

hit the most vulnerable populations extremely hard, because

the devaluation went from essentially 8 hryvnas to the

dollar to over 30 to the dollar, so a four-times
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devaluation.  So their purchasing power shrunk greatly for

costs of items that were imported, and so there were real

concerns about the average Ukrainian.

So I would say social safety net issues, macroeconomic,

stewardship issues, policy issues, and anticorruption

measures including specific benchmarks for certain

institutions were the types of conditions in order to extend

the sovereign loan guarantee.  And if you had--I know you--

I've read and heard that you've accessed or made requests

for archives, those interagency meetings are generally

memorialized with a statement of conclusions.  I do not have

those before me.  I don't have access to them at this point,

and so I can't tell you exactly which specific conditions

were in each of those three years.  But those are the three

baskets, or four baskets of issues, and the Prosecutor

General's inspector general unit I can tell you was a

specific issue for one of the loan guarantees.

MR. FOLIO:  And when you're comparing those three or

four baskets, how do they compare or stack up against each

other?

MR. KENT:  Well, it wasn't--I mean, it was up to us to

set our priorities.  So it was--we chose elements of each of

those general areas.  So it was not either/or.  It was, you

know, I would say--and again, I don't want to characterize

the specifics, but my guess would be roughly half a dozen
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specific benchmarks for each of the sovereign loan

guarantees.

MR. FOLIO:  And now when you say you were "setting up"

what the conditions were, can you tell us which agencies had

input in identifying, just establishing the conditions that

would be evaluated for loan guarantees, how that was

resolved interagency?

MR. KENT:  I would say, in general, the key, lead

agency, there was discussion mainly between the State

Department, USAID, and the U.S. Embassy, since the Embassy

had the repository of knowledge of what was most important

in real time, and events were changing quite rapidly in

Ukraine at this point.  The NSC has a statutory

responsibility for coordinating policy, and so certainly

when we would have been discussing these issues in the

interagency process, the NSC would have also had a voice.

But I would say, in general, USAID and State Department

and the Embassy had the most back-and-forth conversations

about this.

MR. FOLIO:  And so I'm going to talk a little bit about

how the interagency work with the NSC, there were a variety

of public comments, and we can introduce a document for the

record, which I guess we will mark as Exhibit 1, a news

article, and it's entitled--Will, will you pull that up?--

it's a news article from April 2014, which we're showing
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simply for the first sentence, which identifies, in April

2014, that Vice President Joe Biden had become the public

face of the administration's handling of Ukraine and working

to reassure Kiev and try to talk tough with Russia.

[Kent Exhibit No. 1 was marked

for identification.]

MR. FOLIO:  Mr. Kent, we're happy to let you read the

whole news article if that would be helpful.  It's only two

pages.  But we just wanted to talk about high-level as to

the interagency and Vice President Biden's role.  Let us

know what you need to do to answer the questions.

MR. HARTMAN:  Joe, this is Barry.  Just very quickly,

as you know we saw documents from the State Department and

we were given more documents last night by, I forget which

it was.  And this is not a document he's seen before.  You

know, Mr. Kent wants to answer and we want to be as helpful

as we can, and he'll read it.  But, you know, it's a very

difficult situation to throw things at him and then ask him

questions about news articles.  He'll read it but we're just

concerned about it.  That's all.

MR. FOLIO:  Understood, and again, the sole purpose for

which we are presenting this is just as an example, at least

the public perception of Vice President Biden's role in

being the "face" of the policy.  So this is not something we

are diving in depth into.
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MR. HARTMAN:  I understand.  The other problem is, of

course, when I look at it I can't scroll down to read the

rest of the article.  How do we do that?

MR. FOLIO:  Sorry.  I should have flagged this.  It's

not the most smooth, but if you just ask us to scroll down

we can do that for you.

MR. KENT:  Okay.  Well, if you're asking me just to

assess the first sentence, then I guess I don't need to read

the two pages.  But, you know, what's your question again?

MR. FOLIO:  My question is simply you said that the

agencies most focused on understanding, developing,

determining whether the conditions were met were State,

USAID, and the Embassy, and then you said there was some

coordination with the National Security Council.  So I guess

I want to understand, my first question is, was the

interagency process to establish these conditions and

determine whether they were met run out of the National

Security Council?

MR. KENT:  Well, that's a--oh, I would like to point

out that your questions were not coterminous.  We were

talking about a sovereign loan guarantee process, and then

you're asking me to react to a sentence which says, "Vice

President Joe Biden had become the public face of the

administration's handling Ukraine, working to reassure Kiev

and to talk tough with Russia."
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I would say yes, he was the public face because he

visited six times, but we were talking about a working-level

interagency process.

MR. FOLIO:  Right.  No, thank you.  We just want to

understand the process.

MR. GOSHORN:  Joe, sorry to interrupt.  Joe, before you

move away, it sounds like you're about to move away from

this document.  Did you identify what this is from?  I

haven't seen it either.  Where was this published?

MR. FOLIO:  It's an article in the Washington Examiner.

MR. GOSHORN:  Okay.  Thank you.

MR. FOLIO:  So, Mr. Kent, I want to understand.  So as

far as--what types of issues would make it to the

interagency?  Was it the establishment of the conditions

because it crossed agencies?  Was it determination of

whether conditions had been met?  Or was it only if there

were disagreements?

MR. KENT:  I would say two things.  First of all, I'm

on the record in my testimony last fall saying in the last

year of the administration President Obama had delegated

lead authority to try to resolve two issues, or take the

lead on two issues, Ukraine and Cyprus, to Vice President

Biden.  So again, I think there should be no question that

Vice President Biden was the public face of our handling of

Ukraine policy.
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In terms of the interagency conversation, I would just

say that--at the time, as Deputy Chief of Mission in the

Embassy in Ukraine, my responsibility was for carrying out

our policies and programs in Ukraine, and providing my

advice.  I was not a participant of the interagency process

and the details.  That's why we have a State Department. 

There were some videoconferences, but just to be very clear,

I wasn't in my current position.  My current position, I

have responsibility for engaging with other parts of the

U.S. Government in Washington on an as-needed daily basis.

But, you know, you've got me in a period of time where

I have addressed these issues in Washington, as a

policymaker, my current job, as well as being at an Embassy. 

And so I cannot tell you specifically, because in the

majority of this time frame I was in Kiev, not Washington.

MR. FOLIO:  So is it fair to say that you were sharing

your view with your agency, i.e., the Embassy, and then it

sounds like you were not regularly involved in the

interagency process to sort out issues at that level?

MR. KENT:  I would say this, that the lead voice of the

Embassy in engaging interagency process was Ambassador Geoff

Pyatt, and he had a very active dialogue, including with

Senators Johnson and Murphy, and everyone else who came to

Ukraine, as well as administration officials.  My job, as

the Deputy Chief of Mission, was to make the Embassy
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enterprise run like a train, while he, the Ambassador, did

what Ambassadors are supposed to do.  So, you know, it's a

delineation of responsibilities and who does what.

MR. FOLIO:  Understood.  

So I'd like to talk about your time as the Senior

Anticorruption Coordinator in the State Department's

European Bureau.  I believe it was from 2014 to 2015.  I

think you said it was during this time that you addressed

the role of Burisma in Ukraine society, and the U.S.

Government came to its view of Burisma.  Can you just make

clear, when did the U.S. Government make its assessment

about Burisma and its potential involvement in the

corruption, and how did it come to that view?

MR. KENT:  I'd like to correct your sort of

characterization of when I learned and what I did.  My role

in Washington as the Senior Anticorruption Coordinator was

to work with several dozen U.S. Embassies across Europe and

Eastern Europe to form and build out anticorruption

strategies, country-specific strategies.  The detail that I

later became aware of with Zlochevsky and Burisma really

started, or did start when I arrived in Kiev, first in an

acting capacity as Acting Deputy Chief of Mission, in

January of 2015, and our Department of Justice

representative at the Embassy asked for me to go in, as a

higher-ranking official, and ask why did the case against
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Zlochevsky get turned down.  And just like any good lawyer

and former Federal prosecutor, he gave me a brief, and

that's what I learned.  So it was based on an assessment by

our law enforcement and justice officials at the Embassy. 

For me that started January 2015.

MR. FOLIO:  And that was just after the case had been--

the case in the United Kingdom against Burisma had been

dismissed.

MR. KENT:  Right.  And our issues was not the dismissal

of the case in the UK per se.  I was going in to demand to

know answers why prosecutors in Ukraine had shut the money-

laundering case, and then the same day they shut the case,

the Prosecutor General's Office issued a letter to

Zlochevsky's lawyer, which was then presented to the British

judge before the UK and U.S. law enforcement community could

react.

So our focus, at the Embassy in Kiev, was on our

concerns that Ukrainian prosecutors had acted not only

against the interests of Ukraine but actually, then, we had

a fiduciary interest because we had spent hundreds of

thousands of dollars trying to set up mechanisms that would

allow Ukraine to recover stolen assets.

MR. FOLIO:  So prior to this January 2015 meeting, what

awareness, if any, did you have of Burisma corruption in the

Ukraine?
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MR. KENT:  I do not believe that I was aware of the

specifics before I came to Kiev.

MR. FOLIO:  You arrived in January 2015.  The DOJ

representative provides you with what you described as a

brief, and that's where you started to learn the details

about Burisma and the possible corruption issues involving

them.  Is that correct?

MR. KENT:  Correct. 

MR. FOLIO:  When you were presented with that material,

what was your understanding of the U.S. position with regard

to Burisma?  Was it a State Department position?  A DOJ

position?  And how well-considered was it?

MR. KENT:  Our concern was about Mykola Zlochevsky, the

former minister who had awarded himself gas licenses and

then engaged in what we believed to be money-laundering. 

Our focus was on the person.

MR. FOLIO:  And the way you described it in your

statement was it seemed, from the U.S. Government's

perspective, that this person may have basically absconded

with money that rightfully belonged to the Ukrainian people,

and our efforts were focused on trying to return that.

MR. KENT:  The Ukrainian government had made a general

request, help us recover billions of dollars of stolen

assets.  Again, they were broke, the money had been stolen,

and so they asked for help.  And so we established a
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mechanism, and the first early harvest case, based on

information that the UK Serious Fraud Office already had in

hand, happened to be money in a bank account controlled by

Mykola Zlochevsky.  So the case was against Zlochevsky, the

person.

MR. FOLIO:  What U.S. agencies were focused on this

issue at the time, other than yourself?  You said the DOJ

person.  Were there other U.S. Government agencies that you

worked with at this time to understand and advance the U.S.

interest in the Burisma case?

MR. KENT:  Again, to be specific, the case was against

Mykola Zlochevsky, who happens to be the owner of Burisma. 

The FBI had the lead, as a law enforcement matter.  FBI was

working with the Serious Fraud Office in the UK and

Ukrainian law enforcement.  At overseas embassies, the FBI

is known as legal attaché.  So there was a legal attaché,

FBI agent, and he had the lead.  The Department of Justice

representative was from a program called OPDAT.  That's

Overseas Prosecutorial Development and Advisory and

Training.  And he was the individual who accompanied me to

the meeting at the Prosecutor General's Office in February

of 2015, to demand to know what had happened, why did they

close the case.

MR. FOLIO:  And I think you said in your opening

statement that the case had been the product of six months
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of hard work from the FBI.  So when you appeared in January

2015, what was your understanding of the work that had gone

into the case up until that point in time?

MR. KENT:  Our law enforcement team was confident that,

in working with UK and Ukrainian counterparts on this case,

had built an argument that there had been money-laundering. 

And that's why when the case was shut peremptorily, in

December, as the holiday season was beginning, there was a

sense of "Why did you waste our time and money?  Why did you

do this?"  

And I should just be specifically.  Normally, law

enforcement is law enforcement.  It's unusual when diplomats

are brought in to follow up in diplomatic channels to figure

out what went wrong in a law enforcement case.  The reason

why is because there was a presumption that there had been

political interference, and that then brought it into a

level of engagement that the Legat, the legal attaché FBI,

normally didn't do.  And that's why they asked me, as number

two in the Embassy, to go in and raise it with the number

two prosecutor in the country.

MR. FOLIO:  And I know we've touched on this, but

because it involves some moving parts I just want to make

sure the record is clear.  So what was your understanding of

the status of the case against Mr. Zlochevsky written at the

time?  What was that court waiting for?
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MR. KENT:  Again, I was working as a diplomat in

Ukraine.  Our focus was what had gone wrong in Ukraine. 

What I was told by our law enforcement and DOJ

representatives was based on the Ukrainian's Prosecutor

General's Office, closing the case against Zlochevsky, the

person, and then referring it back to the Ministry of

Interior and police to be re-examined as a case against the

ministry that he headed, that the letter to that effect, no

open criminal case against Zlochevsky, was used by his

lawyers, presented to the judge, and he then lifted the

freeze and the money was immediately transferred out of the

country.

So my focus was not on what happened to the UK other

than the fact that a letter from the Ukraine Prosecutor

General's Office had been provided to Zlochevsky's lawyers,

and that had gone to the UK judge.  My focus was trying to

track down what had gone wrong in Ukraine and to try to

hold, on demand, that those that had presumably taken abroad

be held to account.  Because that was the effort that we had

wasted six months, money, time, and effort to help Ukraine

on its established priority, which was to get millions if

not billions of dollars back that had been looted and stolen

by the previous government.

MR. FOLIO:  We are going to ask Will to pull up a

document that we will enter as Exhibit 2.  This is a
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document, Mr. Kent, that we will probably address a few

different times today, but Exhibit 2 is a September 6, 2016,

email that you sent to Bridget Brink, Jorgan Andrews, and

Ambassador Yovanovitch, about your call with Ms. Painter at

Blue Star. 

[Kent Exhibit No. 2 was marked

for identification.]

MR. FOLIO:  I believe you're familiar with this.  Let

us known if you would like to review the entire email, but I

just wanted to focus, at this moment, in particular, on the

paragraph on page--Bates number 346.

MR. HARTMAN:  Thank you.

MR. SCHRAM:  Just nothing that these records haven't

been identified in advance for--as far as, you know, for the

witness, but certainly not for the minority.  So just give

us a moment to find it in our hard copy material as well.

Can you repeat the Bates number?

MR. FOLIO:  We're looking at page 346, but I believe

the Bates begins at 345 and it goes until 347.  It's a

three-page email from Mr. Kent.

MR. SCHRAM:  And what's the date of that email?

MR. FOLIO:  September 6, 2016.

MR. SCHRAM:  Okay.

MR. FOLIO:  And, Mr. Kent, if you want to get a head

start we are going to ask you to focus on page 346,
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specifically the paragraph at the bottom that you have

described as Footnote 2.

[Pause.]

MR. FOLIO:  So, Mr. Kent, in this paragraph you wrote,

quote, "Zlochevsky was viewed as corrupt not just in Ukraine

but by the USG/FBI, that he almost certainly had paid a

bribe to the PGO office, Yarema team, to have them close a

case against Zlochevsky in December of 2014, and issue a

letter to that effect, as Zlochevsky's lawyer, who flipped

it to a UK judge who unfroze assets that the FBI and MI5 had

spent months trying to make a case for asset repatriation. 

The first, and so far only possible case in an effort we

collectively had spent hundreds of thousands of dollars."

So, Mr. Kent, is this email a representation of what

you've just described to us, with regard to your work at the

U.S. Embassy in Ukraine on Burisma, and the corruption case

there, and the related case in the United Kingdom?

MR. KENT:  Yes.  I would just--you know, in my email I

had misidentified which British agency.  The agency is the

Serious Fraud Office, SFO, as opposed to MI5, which is the

domestic equivalent of FBI.  So they had a separate

anticorruption agency.  So my email--this particular email

misidentifies the UK partner to the FBI in the case.

MR. FOLIO:  And what officials in the Ukraine viewed

Mr. Zlochevsky as corrupt?
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MR. KENT:  To be honest, I cannot answer that question,

because specifically about this case, again, the FBI was

working with its partners.  I came in, handed the brief,

delivered the stern request, and questioned the Deputy

Prosecutor General.  But the FBI has a number of, I would

say, partners, and I don't know which one, which law

enforcement entity was working this particular case.

MR. FOLIO:  And so based on this email, are there any

other reasons that we haven't already talked about that you

would like to explain, or are able to explain how the U.S.

Government came to its position about Mr. Zlochevsky, his

involvement in corruption?

MR. KENT:  The only other element that I would mention,

since you have it in the documents that you requested from

the State Department, was there is a series of documents

internal to the Embassy discussing the company's reputation

and its business practices, in which members of our economic

section confirmed, as I mentioned in my opening statements,

about Burisma's reputation in the business.  But that was

continuing contemporaneously until 2016.

MR. FOLIO:  Now I'm going to ask Will to pull up a

document we're going to mark as Exhibit 3.  

[Kent Exhibit No. 3 was marked

for identification.]

MR. FOLIO:  This is an email--I'm sorry.  This is an
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email chain, the most recent of which was November 22, 2016. 

The Bates numbering is 479 through 481.

Mr. Kent, we're going to turn to the bottom of page--

we'll show you 481, the end of the email, but it's just a

signature block, and then we'll ask Will to stop at the

bottom of page 480.

[Pause.]

MR. HARTMAN:  I'm sorry.  Josh or Joe, you faded out

for a moment.  What did you want him to direct his attention

to?

MR. FOLIO:  I just wanted to show him here at the

bottom of the email chain, specifically this is an email

from Geysha Gonzalez to Jorgan Andrews, and the subject line

is "Meeting Request from Ambassador Herbst."

MR. HARTMAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

MR. FOLIO:  And the email request is that "Ambassador

Herbst was wondering if you might have some time to meet

tomorrow to chat about Ukraine in general, but also Mr.

Mykola Zlochevsky, who owns Burisma, one of Ukraine's most

significant natural gas producers."

Mr. Kent, who is Mr. John Herbst, Ambassador Herbst?

MR. KENT:  John Herbst was Ambassador to Ukraine from

2003 to 2006.  I worked for him from 2004 to 2006, when I

was at the Embassy in Kiev the first time.  After he

retired, I can't remember which year he joined the Atlantic
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Council, and currently heads its Eurasia program.

MR. FOLIO:  Will, if you could please scroll up. 

You're not copied on that original email, the email to the

recipients who were redacted.  Mr. Andrews asks, "What do we

know about Burisma, Zlochevsky?  Should I accept this

meeting or beg off?"

The email gets forwarded two more times--one, two,

three--four more times, and then eventually it involves you,

and you're made aware of the request of Ambassador Herbst to

chat about Ukraine and Mr. Zlochevsky.  

At the top, the final email, "Meet with Herbst to talk

about Zlochevsky, okay.  Meet with Zlochevsky, no, not under

any circumstances.  

Why did you direct Mr. Andrews and others not to meet

with Mr. Zlochevsky under any circumstances?

MR. KENT:  If I can go back to the bottom of the email

chain, this exchange was predicated on, I would say, unclear

grammar in the original request.  Scroll up one more screen.

You have additional--there is additional clarity.  I

don't know what the number of the email, but as part of this

cluster of emails.  What Ms. Gonzalez, who I suspect may

have been an intern or an associate, she should have--to be

clear, I would have--to chat about Ukraine in general but

also about Zlochevsky.  One of the subsequent emails

contemporaneous to that time indicate that he doesn't have a
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visa to come to the United States, and that it was just a

matter of Herbst wanting to talk about Ukraine in general,

and about Zlochevsky.  But when I answered, it was not clear

to any of us, based on the back-and-forth, if this was a

request for a meeting with Herbst or a meeting with

Zlochevsky.  So I was just trying to be very clear.  You can

always talk to former Ambassador Herbst.  Don't talk to

Zlochevsky.  And you saw the other--the third line I wrote.

MR. FOLIO:  That third email seems to be a quote from a

New York Times article that relays many of the concerns that

we've discussed about Burisma, its involvement in the London

case, and the freezing of $23 million.

MR. KENT:  And it refers to the speech that I mentioned

in my opening comments, that Ambassador Pyatt made in Odessa

in 2015.

MR. FOLIO:  Yes.  Sorry.  One second, please.

[Pause.]

MR. FOLIO:  So, Mr. Kent, in the email that includes

the quoting of The New York Times article, in the record it

says "Ambassador Pyatt's speech."  The paragraph beginning,

the title that then here it talks about the refusal by the

Ukrainian Prosecutor General's Office to cooperate was the

target of the stinging attack by the American Ambassador to

Ukraine, Geoffrey R. Pyatt, who called out Burisma's owner

by name in his speech.
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What was the failure to cooperate by the Ukrainian

Prosecutor General's Office?

MR. KENT:  I'm going to talk about facts, not what some

unnamed U.S.--or, sorry--New York Times journalist may or

may not have written.  I mean, that's what they wrote but I

don't know who the writer is.

The Prosecutor General's Office, at the time of the

speech, was led by Viktor Shokin, who had disrupted the

Diamond Prosecutors case against his former driver and his

former secretary, who was the wife of the former driver, and

destroyed and fired everybody who had been stood up to find

corrupt prosecutors.  And so the lack of cooperation, in a

speech delivered in September of 2015, was squarely about

Viktor Shokin, and as one of the examples of their inability

to do what Ukraine needed, Ambassador Pyatt also raised the

case of Zlochevsky.

MR. FOLIO:  At the top of the email, I know you said

there was some confusion about what Ambassador Herbst's

request was.  But even if there was a misunderstanding, why

was it your position that no one should meet with Mr.

Zlochevsky under any circumstances?

MR. KENT:  He was a corrupt Ukrainian oligarch, and I,

frankly, don't see the policy interest in having U.S.

officials meet with corrupt businessmen.

Our time is valuable, and we're dealing with a lot of
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policy issues, a lot of program issues, and just because

someone wants to talk to us doesn't mean that we have to or

should talk to them.  And so since it seemed to be a lack of

clarity on the part of some officials in Washington about

what the company and the businessman represented, I was

trying to offer very clear advice.

MR. FOLIO:  Sure.  And at the same time, the U.S. is

also advocating an anticorruption position.  So would it be

inconsistent for the United States to be advocating for that

position and then, at the same time, meeting with officials

who are suspected of corruption?

MR. KENT:  That is the basis of my advice.

MR. FOLIO:  One more document, the U.S. Government's

general perception of Burisma around this time.  We're going

to it as Exhibit 4, and pull it up.

[Kent Exhibit No. 4 was marked

for identification.]

MR. FOLIO:  The Bates numbers on this page are 1205

through 1207--I'm sorry, 1208.

And, Mr. Kent, this is the draft of a briefing

checklist for Ambassador Yovanovitch's meeting with Karen

Tramontano from Blue Star Strategies.  If you turn to the

last page, there's just a block that says it was approved by

you, Deputy Chief of Mission Kent.  That means you approved

this memo that went out to the Ambassador?

Page 57

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



58

MR. KENT:  That's one of the joys of being a Deputy. 

The paper goes through you to the boss, and so yes, it would

have been drafted and cleared in other parts of the Embassy

and then come to me before being passed to the Ambassador,

before for a meeting.

MR. FOLIO:  Could we just focus for a second on the

bottom of page 1206.

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, can you just give us a moment to find

a hard copy?

MR. FOLIO:  Sure, Zack.

MR. SCHRAM:  Could you repeat the date of the memo,

please?

MR. FOLIO:  The memo is dated December 8, 2016.  It is

attached to an email chain, the latest in time of which is

December 6, 2016.

MR. SCHRAM:  Got it.  Thank you.

MR. FOLIO:  So, Mr. Kent, the bottom of that page, the

second bullet point reads, in part, "We have extensive

concerns about corruption in Ukraine and we believe that Mr.

Zlochevsky is an example.  If you would like to clear his

name he should return to the Ukraine to face the charges

against him."

I think we've addressed this.  You've explained to us

previously your understanding of why Mr. Zlochevsky was an

example of the extensive concerns about corruption in the
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Ukraine.  Is there anything you haven't explained to us, as

to the basis for that opinion?

MR. KENT:  Nothing.  No additional information that I

can think of.

MR. FOLIO:  How well-known was this opinion in the

Embassy at the time?

MR. KENT:  Which opinion?

MR. FOLIO:  The opinion that Mr. Zlochevsky, that there

were extensive concerns about corruption in Ukraine and Mr.

Zlochevsky was an example of that concern?

MR. KENT:  I would say after we suspended the

cooperative agreement that a part--an implementer of USAID

had had with Mr. Zlochevsky's company, Burisma, they were

more widely known than they had been before.  So by this

point, and keep in mind, you know, we just shifted forward

ahead a year, it's a different corrupt prosecutor, Lutsenko,

it's a different ambassador, Yovanovitch instead of Pyatt. 

The economic section officials who knew the business

community the best were the same, and some of the USAID and

other folks may have shifted.  

But I would say at this point, we're now talking

December 16, that knowledge was sufficiently known at the

Embassy.

MR. FOLIO:  Now, Mr. Kent, to the specific USAID

program that we've talked about, and I will ask Will to pull
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up what we'll mark as Exhibit 5.

[Kent Exhibit No. 5 was marked

for identification.]

MR. FOLIO:  Exhibit 5 is Bates numbered 357 through

364.  It is a series of emails attached to the end of the

emails, a memorandum of understanding between Burisma and

the Municipal Energy Reform Project.  And we're going to

take these in parts, but I'd like to focus on the emails to

begin.

Looking at page 358, it actually begins with an email,

and I'm not sure the source, if it's a listserv, but it's

some sort of email with the subject line, Addressing FBI

American grants go to Yanukovich's, quote/unquote, and

against the Ukrainian Army.  And this is sent I think

broadly, but you respond, in the middle of page 358, on July

27, 2016, and you describe it as "a nasty smear."

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, same request.  Can you give us a

moment to pull up the hard copy?

MR. FOLIO:  Sure.  Let us know when you're ready, Zack.

MR. SCHRAM:  Even if these have been identified as soon

as this morning it would have given us an opportunity to be

able to follow along.

MR. FOLIO:  Sorry about that.

MR. GOSHORN:  Joe, can you repeat the Bates number of

the document you're looking at here?
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MR. FOLIO:  The Bates page is 357, the last three

numbers.

MR. GOSHORN:  All right.  Thank you.

[Pause.]

MR. GOSHORN:  Okay, Joe.

MR. FOLIO:  Mr. Kent, it's a forward of something

written by a person named Tetiana Chornovol, that you are

responding to.  Who is Tetiana Chornovol?

MR. KENT:  She, before the Revolution of Dignity, was a

journalist.  She was beaten up by Yanukovich's goons

December of 2013.  That made her name and reputation.  She

became a member of Parliament in the elections in 2014.  Her

husband volunteered and was killed on the front fighting the

Russians, and as you can see from my comment, she was then

reputed to have become the partner of one of the corrupt

figures in the party of Prime Minister Yatsenyuk.  

So other journalists did not consider her a good

investigative journalist.  That's how her reputation was

made.  So that's the background of those different

particular word clusters.

So she was--but as a--she was, as a former journalist,

and as MP, she was essentially going on the attack against

U.S., in part because she was the lover of a very corrupt

politician, and we were pressuring him as well.  And so this

was a sort of tit-for-tat attack that she smeared a number
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of people.  She went against, you know, young reformers,

that's your optimists.  Kasko was one of the reformers'

deputy prosecutor generals that we worked with under Shokin,

that was then fired by Shokin, and then when I say 

potentially the USAID, because she made the, oh, by the way,

whatever is in the text, alleging that there was

cooperation.  

And so if you go--yeah, so on page 360, at the end,

look at the accidence of coincidence, the website of Burisma

Holdings, the partner of a list of events of the Ukrainian

Office of USAID, and she said--so that was my question to

the then Acting USAID Mission Director in country.  Per our

background, did Burisma ever cosponsor a USAID activity, as

alleged, because that was news to me.  So that's why I asked

the question to the U.S. Government official who was--he was

normally the deputy in the mission, and in summer transition

season the new mission director had not yet arrived.

MR. FOLIO:  Why were you concerned about that?

MR. KENT:  Well, if someone makes an allegation about

U.S. programs, I want to know, from the inside, whether

there's any truth to it.

MR. FOLIO:  And just on the face of the allegation, if

a USAID program was linked to Burisma, is that something

that would at least initially draw your concern?

MR. KENT:  That's why I asked the question, and you
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have the series of emails.  That's what happened after.

MR. FOLIO:  So at the end of that forward, when you

asked the question, you also wrote, to remind someone who

joined the Burisma team is Hunter Biden.  Zlochevsky is the

corrupt ex-Minister of Ecology whose frozen assets were

released by GPO perfidy in December 2014.  

Why did you include that in your foreword?

MR. KENT:  This was a summer transition.  I wanted

people who might be responding to my inquiry to understand

the context of the inquiry.

MR. FOLIO:  Why did you flag the fact that Hunter Biden

is part of the Burisma team?

MR. KENT:  I was giving people what I felt were

relevant details of why the U.S. should care about the

allegation of a person, an MP, Tetiana Chornovol, who

oftentimes attached us.

MR. FOLIO:  So I understand the concern that USAID may

be partnering with a company that, as we just discussed at

length, that the U.S. Embassy and others view as corrupt. 

But what's the significance of flagging for your team during

the transition period that Hunter Biden is part of the

Burisma team?  Why does that matter?

MR. KENT:  I was providing context, details, because I

had more awareness of dynamics with this company than other

people did.  As I mentioned in my opening statement, the
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economics section, Ambassador Pyatt and I, and at this point

we're in the last--actually, Ambassador Pyatt would have

left.  I was probably the chargé when I wrote this email. 

We had more detailed knowledge than others in the Embassy

did.  And so I was just sharing knowledge.

MR. FOLIO:  What effect did Hunter Biden have on the

balance that you just described?

MR. KENT:  Zero.  Nothing.

MR. FOLIO:  They why did you flag Hunter Biden as

opposed to any other prominent board member of Burisma?

MR. KENT:  I put that information out there as context. 

At the same time I asked if it was true and made sure that

there was no cooperation with Burisma.

MR. FOLIO:  Right.  No, I understand, and I'm not

trying to be tricky here.  I just want to understand that it

seems, from your including this in the email, that this was

at least significant enough that you wanted to make sure

that your new team and staff were aware of the situation, I

think as anyone would want their staff to be aware of all

the facts.  Right?

MR. KENT:  I'm somebody whose philosophy is to share

information so that other people are fully informed, and

that's what I was doing.  Nothing more.

MR. FOLIO:  I think the initial response from your

colleagues was that there was no cooperation, but then your
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colleagues corrected, turning back to page 357, the top

email on 12 August 2016.  And in that first paragraph your

colleagues write, "I was just informed today that we have

been working with Burisma through our Municipal Energy

Reform Program since October of 2014," and they attached the

MOU.

So what was your understanding of the collaboration

between the Municipal Energy Reform Program, also known as

MERP, and Burisma?

MR. KENT:  Based on not just the MOU but then,

subsequently, I think there are other additional emails on

this issue, it became clear that in 2015 there had been some

sort of prize contest where a grant, or awards had been

given to people who came up with the best ideas for

promoting clean energy, and that in 2016, they were on the

verge of running and announcing a second round of this

contest in September 2016.

So on two occasions, 2015 and 2016, they were running

contests, basically PR contests, for coming up with the best

ideas for promoting clean energy.

MR. FOLIO:  So at the end of that email, from the

redacted sender, the sender wrote, "I imagined you'd like to

discuss this further, so please advise and I'll set this

up."

From your perspective, why do you think that person was
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imagining or guessing that this is something you would want

to discuss with them?

MR. KENT:  Based on my initial question, since I raised

it and said, "Did they ever co-sponsor an activity?" and

initially he said he didn't think so and then he said, "Oh,

well maybe they did," he understood the context.  I wouldn't

have asked the question if I wasn't then interested in

having a further conversation, which we subsequently did.

MR. FOLIO:  Right.  So was this the initiation, or the

initial recognition of we have a partnership here that we

want to make sure we understand whether or not it makes

sense they continue?

MR. KENT:  If you notice, he sent the email at 4:47 on

a Friday afternoon, and so at that point, in August, in the

summertime, not a time to be calling interagency meetings. 

So if you continue on in the sequence of emails you'll see

the next day, a Saturday, in the middle of August, there was

additional commentary.  And I wrote, "To respond on Monday,"

not to be a hard boss who is asking people to be working on

a Saturday in the middle of August.  And then we had the

meeting at the beginning of the next work week.

MR. FOLIO:  I think our time for the majority

questioning is just about over.  I just want to look to my

colleagues to see if they had any questions.

MR. HARTMAN:  Jon?
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MR. FOLIO:  I think we're okay on--

MR. HARTMAN:  Jon?

MR. FOLIO:  --so we're concluding.

MR. HARTMAN:  This is Barry.  Is possible to just take

a break?  Among other things we're spilling off the server

and we have to reconnect.

MR. FOLIO:  A perfect time for a break.  Zack, assuming

you're going to initiate?  It's 11:24 on my clock.  What

times would you like us to be back?

MR. SCHRAM:  Five minutes?  11:30?

MR. FOLIO:  Barry, is that enough time for you?

MR. HARTMAN:  Well, we'll try to make it enough time.

MR. SCHRAM:  Let's call it 10.

MR. HARTMAN:  We'll try to make it enough time.  I

mean, I need to find an IT person to see if we can get

connected back up again.

MR. SCHRAM:  Let's call it 10 minutes and we'll be back

at 11:35.

MR. HARTMAN:  Okay.  And I'll ask your IT person to

stay on if they can.

MR. SCHRAM:  Thank you.

MR. FOLIO:  All right.  Thank you.

[Recess.] 

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, thank you again for your time

and your testimony.  We very much appreciate the service
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that you have performed for this country over your

distinguished career and for the sacrifices that you make. 

One question, it would be helpful to have a written

copy of your statement that we could refer to during this

interview, if that's available and if there are no

objections.  Is that something your lawyers could send to

counsel?

MR. HARTMAN:  I don't know if you can hear me.  It was

a rough-written statement.  If we can clean it up a little

bit we'll be happy to share it.

MR. SCHRAM:  Okay.

MR. HARTMAN:  Since we didn't have a lot of time.

MR. SCHRAM:  So I'll note that the majority's

characterization of the scope of this investigation at the

beginning of this interview was--included a few more

conjunctions than the scope as defined in the letter, which-

-the April 30, 2020 letter, that has led to your testimony. 

So I just want to repeat what the scope of the investigation

was, according to the letter that has led to your testimony.

The letter says, "As we explained to you"--it's to

Secretary Pompeo--"as we explained to you in our letter of

6/20/19, The Committee on Homeland Security and Governmental

Affairs and the Committee on Finance continue to examine

potential conflicts of interest relating to the Obama

administration's policy decisions with respect to Ukraine
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and Burisma Holdings."

Mr. Kent, was the foreign policy that Vice President

Biden pursued in Ukraine intended to advance the interests

of the United States of America?

MR. KENT:  It was.

MR. SCHRAM:  Are narratives that suggest otherwise

false?

MR. KENT:  As I've testified, I know of no facts to

support those claims.

MR. SCHRAM:  Did a conflict of interest influence Obama

administration policy decisions with respect to Ukraine and

Burisma Holdings?

MR. KENT:  In my view, no.

MR. SCHRAM:  Was the foreign policy pursued by Vice

President Biden in Ukraine corrupt?

MR. KENT:  The foreign policy that Vice President Biden

helped advance was to counter corruption.

MR. SCHRAM:  Did Vice President Biden alter United

States Government foreign policy concerning Ukraine to

assist his son?

MR. KENT:  I have no evidence to suggest that, no.

MR. SCHRAM:  As you have previously testified to, did

you witness any efforts by any U.S. official to shield

Burisma from scrutiny?

MR. KENT:  As I said in my opening statement and
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repeated, no.

MR. SCHRAM:  Was the U.S. Government position

advocating for the removal of Prosecutor General Shokin part

of an effort to stop an investigation into Burisma?

MR. KENT:  No.

MR. SCHRAM:  At the time that the Obama administration,

including Vice President Biden, was pushing for the removal

of Prosecutor General Shokin, was there an active

investigation into Burisma?

MR. KENT:  Investigation by whom?

MR. SCHRAM:  By the Prosecutor General's Office.

MR. KENT:  Well, as I testified last fall, I did not

and do not have awareness of all the cases that may or may

not be opened by Prosecutors General in Ukraine.  I don't

have the basis to answer that question definitively.

MR. SCHRAM:  Were you aware of any?

MR. KENT:  I was not aware of any serious effort to

prosecute Zlochevsky after the case that led to the freezing

of his assets was dismissed.  However, I was aware that a

case that was opened under Prosecutor General Lutsenko was

settled as a back tax case rather than a money-laundering

case, and payment was made and Zlochevsky was allowed to

return to the country, and I testified to that last fall.

MR. SCHRAM:  And so what is the implication of that,

with respect to the Shokin-led Prosecutor General's Office
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and its efforts to prosecute corruption with respect to

Burisma or Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  Well, again, there is, unfortunately, a

series of corrupt, ineffective Prosecutors General, and just

to be very clear about the timeline, in January/February

2015, when, allegedly, the case against him for money-

laundering was closed, the Prosecutor General was Yarema. 

The next Prosecutor General, from February 10, 2016, to

March 29--sorry--February 10, 2015, to March 29, 2016, was

Shokin.  Yuri Lutsenko was Prosecutor General later that

spring in 2016 until 2019, and there was a case, under

Lutsenko, that was opened and then shut, and was downgraded. 

I don't know what the original cause was, case.  We didn't

see.  It's a Ukrainian Prosecutor General's case.  But it

was settled as a failure to pay taxes.  So fine paid, and at

that point, then, Zlochevsky returned to Ukraine from his

residence in Monaco, where he had been for several years.

So your question specifically was that middle period,

and I don't have information to be able to give you an

accurate answer.  I have more information under Yarema and

under Lutsenko.  I can assess that Viktor Shokin did not

seriously advance any case of corruption against any known

corrupt individual during his tenure.

MR. SCHRAM:  With respect to Shokin, was it your view,

at the time, that his removal would increase or decrease the
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likelihood that Burisma or Zlochevsky would be investigated

for corruption?

MR. KENT:  That was not a factor that we were

considering, because we were considering the case, the issue

of prosecutorial reform, systemic reform.  That principally

was our focus, because he had wasted hundreds of thousands

of U.S. tax dollars by destroying the capacity that we had

helped stand up to go after corrupt prosecutors.  So we were

considering the merits of Shokin as corrupt prosecutor who

was preventing reform.

MR. SCHRAM:  So it was your view at the time that

removing Shokin would advance the reform effort that the

United States Government was pursuing.

MR. KENT:  That was the position of the United States

Government.

MR. SCHRAM:  So was the policy advocating for the

dismissal of Prosecutor General Shokin formulated by Vice

President Biden in an effort to assist his son?

MR. KENT:  No.

MR. SCHRAM:  You spoke about this in your opening, but

if you might expand on it.  Whose idea was it to condition

foreign aid, in part, on the removal of Prosecutor General

Shokin?

MR. KENT:  To the best of my recollection, because

again we're talking about discussions that would have
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happened four and a half years ago, and I've not been shown

any documents to refresh my memory, it would have been a

suggestion from the U.S. Embassy in Kiev to Washington,

discussed in Washington among those involved in Ukraine

policy, and then a suggestion made that it be part of what

Vice President Biden said to President Poroshenko.

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, you testified at a 10-hour

deposition and a day-long impeachment inquiry about this

topic and related matters.  Is anything that you have said

today different or new?

MR. KENT:  Some of the conversations we had in the last

hour referenced documents, emails that I either wrote or

received, that I did not address in my 10 hours of

testimony, to the best of recollection of what exactly is on

355 pages of text.

MR. SCHRAM:  But it's fair to say that the general--is

it fair to say that your general views on how policy towards

Ukraine during the relevant time period was developed and

advanced and executed remain the same?

MR. KENT:  Yes, they remain the same.

MR. SCHRAM:  Are you aware of any credible new

information concerning Joe Biden's role in Ukraine policy

that has emerged since you testified before the House?

MR. KENT:  No, I am not. 

MR. SCHRAM:  You spoke, in the last hour, about the
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importance of evaluating the value of our diplomats' time

with respect to who they meet with and how they spend that

time, and I regret that we are using your time to rehash

topics that you have already covered.

Is it in the national interest of the United States to

promote the false narrative that the Obama administration

policy in Ukraine was corrupt?

MR. KENT:  I'm going to decline to answer that.  That

doesn't touch on U.S. foreign policy.  That's my job.  I'm a

non--to be clear, as I said in the beginning, I'm a

nonpartisan career public servant.

MR. SCHRAM:  Let me try to rephrase that.  So you are a

nonpartisan career public servant, which we fully respect,

and you spoke in your opening about the interests of

Ukrainians, some of whom you said are corrupt, lying, and/or

advancing Russian disinformation efforts.  

So you've also testified today that the narrative that

the Obama administration policy in Ukraine was corrupt, that

that narrative is false.  So just, in general, with respect

to promoting that false narrative, is that not a foreign

policy matter?  Doesn't that affect the national interest

with respect to U.S. priorities in Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  Well, what I would say is this, that--and I

can tie it back to the document that we were just discussing

before the break--there are a number of Ukrainians who have

Page 74

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



75

attacked a number of American officials and programs and

policies, for a variety of reasons.  And so it is in our

national interest to push back against false narratives and

disinformation.

MR. SCHRAM:  Including the false narrative and the

disinformation that Joe Biden changed U.S. policy in Ukraine

to benefit his son?

MR. KENT:  Based on my knowledge of working on Ukraine,

I do not known of any fact to support that position.

MR. SCHRAM:  Can you speak to the origins of that

narrative?

MR. KENT:  I cannot.  I have not made that accusation,

and to the best of my knowledge it did not originate in

Ukraine, where I was during those activities.

MR. SCHRAM:  Can you elaborate on why, to the best of

your knowledge, it didn't originate in Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  Well, at the time I was in Ukraine,

monitoring the Ukrainian media, and I did not see that

narrative emerge, to the best of my recollection.  Again,

you know, we just looked at a document and I was asked about

my reaction.  There was an MP.  She was the lover of a very

corrupt politician that we were putting pressure on, and she

made accusations against our programming and our activities,

not just having to do with Burisma but also about defense

industry, because her lover was engaged in corrupt schemes
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in the defense industry, and we were putting a lot of money

into defense.

So when, you know, even if I think they're liars or

corrupt or acting in Russia's behalf, when people make

accusations about our programming I am going to ask our team

to make sure that there's no basis for making that

assertion.  And so, you know, that was my job in Ukraine, to

counter Ukrainian and Russian disinformation about our

programs and our policies.

MR. SCHRAM:  So you mentioned Russian disinformation

with respect to our programs and our policies.  Can you

expand on that?  What is the purpose--what is the motive

behind Russian disinformation with respect to our programs

and policies in Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  I believe Russia wants Ukraine as a project

to fail, and I believe that President Putin and many of his

circle don't accept Ukraine as an independent nation,

separate from a greater Russia.  And, therefore, they seek

to divide Ukraine as a country, to turn it against each

other.  They seek to delegitimize Ukrainian individuals and

organizations that want to lead Ukraine in a more pro-

Western orientation, and they will come after the U.S. and

try to discredit our programs and our Ukrainian partners. 

And as an example, in the era of COVID, Senator Lugar,

working with Senator Sam Nunn, set up the Lugar program
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countering weapons of mass destruction.  There are these so-

called Lugar Labs in Georgia and Ukraine and other

countries, and the Russians have been alleging that COVID

was created and distributed from the so-called Lugar Labs,

including the one in Ukraine.  So that is a strand of

Russian disinformation targeting the population of Ukraine

but also intended to discredit our efforts, and, in fact,

our wise investment over the last 15 years in helping other

countries be prepared to counter biological threats.  And,

in fact, they're being used in countries like Ukraine and

Georgia to help counter COVID.

MR. SCHRAM:  Can you talk about how Russia uses proxies

in Ukraine to advance its disinformation efforts?

MR. KENT:  The main Russian proxy in Ukraine is a

politician named Viktor Medvedchuk.  He spent five years in

Russia between 2014 and 2019.  Putin is the godfather of his

daughter.  The former Prime Minister of Russia, Dmitri

Medvedev, Medvedev's wife is the godmother of Medvedchuk's

daughter.  Medvedchuk was a KGB lawyer in the 1970s.  He

sent his client--a famous Ukrainian poet named Vasyl Stus,

actually asked the judge to send his client to the Gulag,

where Stus became the last known political prisoner,

dissident, to die on a hunger strike during Mikhail

Gorbachev's period.  

So that's what we're talking about, somebody who was a

Page 77

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



78

KGB asset in the '70s.  While he was in Russia for five

years he was given access to a lot of credit.  He's bought

up a swath of the Ukrainian media environment, and returned

last year and is now an active politician and elected member

of Parliament.  So he is the main agent of Russia's

influence within Ukraine.  

There is an entire gas lobby, so-called gas lobby, I

referenced earlier as the sort of original sin of the

Ukrainian political class, who got rich based on trading

Russian gas.  The most famous of those members of gas lobby

is Dmytro Firtash.  He is currently fighting extradition

from Austria.  He was indicted in a court in Chicago in

2014, and he is hopefully on his last round of appeals.  I

reference that because Viktor Shokin filed the false

affidavits, swore a false affidavit last year.

We have then, most currently, Andrei Derkach, who is a

member of Parliament, that I mentioned in my opening

statement, and he's made a series of allegations over the

last year about U.S. programs, policies, and persons.

MR. SCHRAM:  And what leads you to believe that that's

based on, or part of Russian disinformation, with respect to

Mr. Derkach's efforts?

MR. KENT:  I will decline to answer that question in

this context, and suggest that those people who have

intelligence or security clearances can ask for a briefing.
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I will say that I've made my comments that I made

earlier based on reading information available on the

internet.

MR. SCHRAM:  Okay.  We'll go over this in some detail

later, but are you aware that the Ranking Members have been

repeatedly requesting defensive briefings on these matters

since December?

MR. KENT:  I believe my counsel was given a copy of a

letter either this morning or late last night.  Before then

I was not aware, no.

MR. SCHRAM:  And that as of today, the Members have not

been briefed on that subject.

MR. KENT:  I'm not a member of the intelligence

community so I have nothing to say to that.

MR. SCHRAM:  Okay.  Who is Andrii Telizhenko?

MR. KENT:  He is a young Ukrainian.  To the best of my

knowledge I have met him twice.  He worked for the

Prosecutor General in early 2015, so the first time I met

him was in the Office of the Prosecutor General in that

meeting that I referenced.  And he then was assigned to the

Ukrainian Embassy for roughly, I don't know, less than a

year, and I believe I met him at a diplomatic reception in

the basement of the Ukrainian Embassy here in Washington.

And after he went back to Ukraine he continued to work

for several either current or former, at that point,
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prosecutors, and eventually became a friend with the former

mayor of New York.

MR. SCHRAM:  I'm sorry.  I missed the last part of that

testimony.  He became a friend--oh, of the--

MR. KENT:  He appears in a number of the former mayor

of New York's videos, Mr. Giuliani's videos.

MR. SCHRAM:  Understood.  You said when he worked for

the Prosecutor General's Office, when you met him initially

in Ukraine, which Prosecutor General was it at that time?

MR. KENT:  He was an assistant to the top Prosecutor

General, Yarema.  That was 2014-2015.

MR. SCHRAM:  Do you have reason to believe that we

should be skeptical of his public claims with respect to

America's programs and policies in Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  I do.

MR. SCHRAM:  Why?

MR. KENT:  I believe that he has a track record of

misrepresenting facts.

MR. SCHRAM:  Can you elaborate?

MR. KENT:  Well, a number of examples.  I will give

one.  In late May of this year, he went on national TV on a

Friday evening talk show on the country's top-rated TV

channel and claimed that I controlled Ukraine by talking to

the Deputy Prime Minister several times a week--sorry, the

Deputy Foreign Minister several times a week.  And he named
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the individual, Deputy Foreign Minister Yenin, whom I have

spoken to exactly once in the last two years.  That is a

non-truth.

MR. SCHRAM:  In your testimony you spoke of some

Ukrainians--some Ukrainian actors being corrupt, some being

liars, and some advancing Russian disinformation.  Which

category does Mr. Telizhenko fit into?

MR. KENT:  I would put him in the category of liar.

MR. SCHRAM:  Do you have reason to believe he falls

into any of the other categories?

MR. KENT:  I would stick to him as a liar.

MR. SCHRAM:  And what are the purpose of his lies?

MR. KENT:  You would have to ask him.

I will say that, specifically, he did try to meet with

me when he came back to Ukraine after leaving the Embassy,

and our political section recommended against.  They met him

at their level and they found him unreliable, dubious

honesty, and they said that the leadership of the Embassy

should not be exposed and engaged to people like that.  So I

took the good advice of the political section and I did not

meet with him again in Ukraine.

MR. SCHRAM:  Are you familiar with the public reporting

that Mr. Telizhenko has amplified disinformation theories

such as Ukraine interfering in the 2016 election?

MR. KENT:  I am familiar that he has made such
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allegations, yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  And that he has made the allegation that

Hunter Biden's position on Burisma impacted U.S. foreign

policy?

MR. KENT:  I'm not aware of every allegation he has

made, but as I said, since I assessed him to be a liar a

number of years ago I generally discount what he says.

MR. SCHRAM:  Are you aware that after Mr. Telizhenko

began promoting his conspiracy theory about Ukraine election

interference that he met with Chairman Johnson on or about

July 15, 2019?

MR. KENT:  I'm not aware of that.

MR. SCHRAM:  Are you aware that days after the

announcement of the impeachment inquiry, Chairmen Johnson

and Grassley wrote a letter to Attorney General Barr

regarding, quote, "brazen efforts by the Democratic National

Committee and Hillary Clinton campaign to use the government

of Ukraine to undermine the Trump campaign," and that letter

relied on Andrii Telizhenko as the source?

MR. KENT:  I'm not aware of that.  I have not read that

letter.

MR. SCHRAM:  Let's--Roy, do you have presenter

authorities?

MR. AWABDEH:  Yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  So let's mark that letter as Exhibit A. 
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[Kent Exhibit A was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, please take as much time as you

would like to review it.

MR. HARTMAN:  I'm sorry.  Is this the letter that was

sent last night?

MR. SCHRAM:  Yes.

MR. HARTMAN:  I'm sorry.  Tell us the date of that one

again.

MR. SCHRAM:  September 27, 2019.  And majority staff

should have been provided to you as well, I believe, in

previous communication.

MR. HARTMAN:  Are you calling this Exhibit 6 or Exhibit

A?

MR. SCHRAM:  Exhibit A.

MR. HARTMAN:  Thank you.

[Pause.]

MR. SCHRAM:  Please just let me know when you've had a

moment to review it.

[Pause.]

MR. KENT:  It's a long letter with a lot to unpack.  Do

you have a specific question?

MR. SCHRAM:  Sure.  You'll note that the block quote in

that letter is from Mr. Telizhenko, and that the Chairman

relied on that quote, alleging brazen efforts by the
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Democratic National Committee and Hillary Clinton campaign

to use the government of Ukraine.  You've testified that Mr.

Telizhenko is a liar.  I'll just ask the question directly. 

Did the government of Ukraine work with the Democratic Party

to interfere in the 2016 election?

MR. KENT:  I have no knowledge and information to

suggest that the government of Ukraine worked with a

campaign, no.

MR. SCHRAM:  Is it in the Russian interest to promote

that narrative?

MR. KENT:  It is in the Russian interest to distract us

from their ow actions, yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  Can you elaborate?

MR. KENT:  Well, I think I would, at this point,

reference what Fiona Hill testified to, because she was the

National Intelligence Officer for Russia and was in much

better position to do so.  And what she said in her

testimony, and I quote, "The Russians thrive on

misinformation and disinformation, and I want to say that's

that I, Fiona Hill, went into the administration when asked

by General Flynn, we are in perils of democracy because

other people are interfering here.  The Russians were who

attacked us in 2016, and now they're writing the script for

others to do the same," end quote.

MR. SCHRAM:  And in your view, is Mr. Telizhenko
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reading from that script?

MR. KENT:  I have no knowledge or information to

suggest that he is carrying out a plan from Moscow.

MR. SCHRAM:  His statement block-quoted in the letter

from the Chairmen, is that not consistent with the

disinformation that you just quoted Ms. Hill raising concern

about?

MR. KENT:  It may be consistent but that doesn't mean

that it is directed.

MR. SCHRAM:  Sure.  My question is not limited to

whether or not it is directed, but certainly advocating the

same message as Mr. Telizhenko has here, advocating it to

Members of the U.S. Senate, where it has then been block-

quoted and put into a letter to the Attorney General, that's

certainly an amplification of that message, whether or not

it is directed.  Correct?

MR. KENT:  I would repeat my admonition and advice to

members of the Committee that I made in my opening

statement, that we should be very careful about relying on

any information coming from Ukrainians who are seeking to

attack or provide information about U.S. persons, programs,

and policies.

MR. SCHRAM:  Understood.  

This letter also says, quote, "new information,"

unquote, has surfaced that raises question, quote, "conflict
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with Biden's narrative," unquote, that his actions in

Ukraine had nothing to do with his son's connection to

Burisma.  Roy, if you don't mind scrolling to that place in

the letter.

[Pause.]

MR. SCHRAM:  It's on the bottom of page 3.

So just, yeah, directing your attention to the last

full paragraph, "The article also reports that Ukrainian

prosecutors have unsuccessfully been trying to get

information to Justice Department officials since the summer

of 2018, possibly including 'hundreds of pages of never-

released memos and documents... [that] conflict with Biden's

narrative' that his actions in Ukraine had nothing to do

with his son's connections to Burisma."

Are you aware of any new information that raises

questions with respect to the conduct of Vice President

Biden in advancing the foreign policy of the United States

with respect to Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  I am not aware of any such information.

MR. SCHRAM:  Should we be concerned that promoting that

narrative without merit could amplify Russian disinformation

efforts aimed at impacting the 2020 presidential election?

MR. KENT:  Since we don't know if such information

exists or what the alleged information is, I would not

comment on that.  I would just say that I note that the
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article being described is by John Solomon, and John Solomon

participated in a campaign of lies and smears in the spring

of 2019, that was used as a predicate trigger to dismiss our

ambassador, Ambassador Yovanovitch.  So I think Mr.

Solomon's credibility on the topic of Ukraine is very low,

and, in fact, the articles that were written in The Hill,

The Hill did an investigation and distanced themselves from

his reporting and removed it from their website.

MR. SCHRAM:  Do you have a view with respect to the

purpose of Solomon's reporting?

MR. KENT:  I do not.

MR. SCHRAM:  Only of its consequence.  Do you have a

view of its consequence?

MR. KENT:  When I have read his reportings about

Ukraine I have seen lack of facts and assertions that are

not backed up by facts.

MR. SCHRAM:  And did Solomon's reporting, along with

the statements of Mr. Telizhenko that the Chairmen have

relied on to both amplify the narrative that Ukraine

interfered in the 2016 election and that the policy pursued

by Vice President Biden in Ukraine was corrupt?

MR. KENT:  I would not recommend anybody rely on the

views of Telizhenko and Solomon to make an assessment about

our policy or actions in Ukraine.

MR. SCHRAM:  I'd like to turn your attention to another
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letter, written by the Chairmen.  I'd like to mark it as

Exhibit B.  It is a November 6, 2019, letter to Secretary

Pompeo, that requests the release of documents related to

Hunter Biden and Burisma.

[Kent Exhibit B was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  I have provided a copy of that letter to

your counsel.  Please take as long as you want to

familiarize yourself with it.

[Pause.]

MR. HARTMAN:  Zack, I assume you understand it's a

five-page, single-spaced letter.  It's going to take a

little time to digest it.

MR. SCHRAM:  Sure.  Take your time.

[Pause.]

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, I bring this one to your

attention just to help establish the timeline.  I won't ask

you direct questions about the contents, so keep that in

mind as you review it.

[Pause.]

MR. SCHRAM:  So the point is just to show you that this

is a letter in early November, again advancing the theory

that the Vice President's actions in Ukraine were corrupt,

was followed by a letter on November 21, 2019, that I'll

mark as Exhibit C, which has also been provided to your
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counsel.

[Kent Exhibit C was marked for

identification.]

MR. KENT:  So no question about the November 6th letter

you're just bringing--

MR. SCHRAM:  No question about the content.  I just

want you to have the full context as we move forward.

So with respect to this letter, Mr. Kent, I will again

ask you about the sources of the information relied on to

advance the narrative that you testified today for which

there is no evidence to support.  The second full paragraph

starts with the words "According to Andrii Telizhenko," and

you've testified extensively with respect to his credibility

and that he is a liar.  And the vast majority of the

articles relied on in the footnotes of this letter, if you

turn your attention to the first footnote, who is the author

of the article that this letter relies on?

MR. KENT:  The articles by John Solomon in The Hill.

MR. SCHRAM:  So this is another example of the letters

that, from the basis of this investigation relying on

information from Andrii Telizhenko, who you testified is a

known liar, and relying almost entirely on the reporting of

John Solomon, which you have also just testified to as a

known liar and his reporting has been discredited.

MR. KENT:  I think the way I--I did not call Solomon a
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liar.  What I said was his articles were fact-free and made

assertions that were not backed by facts.

MR. SCHRAM:  Understood.

MR. KENT:  The other thing is that while I may know,

based on, you know, character assessments by a number of

people, they may be making assertions about incidents,

alleged incidents about which I don't have independent and

specific knowledge.

MR. SCHRAM:  Understood.  

Mr. Kent, are you aware that the first subpoena sought

in this matter was a subpoena of Andrii Telizhenko?

MR. KENT:  I read in the media this spring an account,

a claim that he had been subpoenaed, but that doesn't mean

he was subpoenaed.  I read a media account this spring

related to that issue, yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  Are you aware that this--that the Chairmen

scheduled a vote to authorize a subpoena of Andrii

Telizhenko?

MR. KENT:  I was not aware of that.  No, sir.

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, I'll stop here.

MR. GOSHORN:  Zack, this is Dan.  I would like to ask

two follow-up questions if I may.  Is that okay?  Are we

good on time?

MR. SCHRAM:  Of course.  Yeah, we're good on time.

MR. GOSHORN:  Mr. Kent, just to remind you, my name is
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Dan Goshorn.  I work with the minority staff of the Finance

Committee.  And I just wanted to put a little finer point on

two questions, some questions Zack asked you at the

beginning of the round.  So he asked you whether there was

any indication of--I forget exactly how he said it--of

corrupt influence on Ukraine policy by Vice President Biden,

and I wanted to ask something a little more specific.

Is there any indication that the event that led to the

dismissal of charges against Zlochevsky in 2014, was the

result of corrupt efforts by Biden or the U.S. Government?

MR. KENT:  None whatsoever.

MR. GOSHORN:  You said you spoke to Ukrainian

prosecutors about the case in January 2015 or early 2015?

MR. KENT:  February 2015, yes.

MR. GOSHORN:  February 2015.  Did they indicate that

the dismissal of charges was at the direction of Vice

President Biden or the U.S. Government?

MR. KENT:  No, they did not.

MR. GOSHORN:  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank you.

MR. FOLIO:  Mr. Kent, this is Joe Folio.  So I think it

was just a little under an hour with the minority.  Would

you like us to take a five-minute break at this point in

time, or would you like the majority to start?

MR. KENT:  So I would ask--it's now 12:25 by my watch. 

That was a brisk 45-minute session.  Lunch?  What's your
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plans?  I mean, if we're--this is generally when I usually

have lunch, but I don't know.  Obviously there are 20 people

on the screen here.  So what's your game plan for the day?

MR. FOLIO:  Unless others object I think now is a fine

time to have lunch.

MR. KENT:  Okay.  What time would you then propose we

make sure we're back online?

MR. FOLIO:  I don't know if folks are wandering out. 

Is noon too soon?  Is 1:00 too soon?  Perhaps we should say

1:15?  We'll start back at 1:15?

MR. KENT:  One, 1:15, whichever.  Give us the time.

MR. HARTMAN:  Give us the time.

MR. GOSHORN:  Let's say 1:15.

MR. FOLIO:  Okay.  One o'clock it is.

MR. GOSHORN:  No.  1:15.

MR. KENT:  If we start at 1 we end earlier.  I'm in

favor of ending early.  So 1 works for me, but there are 20

people online.

MR. HARTMAN:  We'll be back at 1 but we'll see everyone

else at 1:15.

MR. SACRIPANTI:  Although I hesitate to do it I'm

inclined to think we may sign off and sign back on, because

I'm not sure if the mic-muting mechanisms are--

MR. FOLIO:  Will is strongly advising against that.

MR. HARTMAN:  All right.  We'll go to another room.
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MR. FOLIO:  All right.  Thank you.  See you in a bit.

[Recess.]
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AFTERNOON SESSION

[1:16 p.m.]

MR. FOLIO:  All right.  Let's go back on the record.

Mr. Kent, before we turn our attention to the next area

of interest, the USAID project with Burisma, we just wanted

to address a few issues raised by the minority.  Most of

what you spoke about with them was them reading things into

the record.  Unfortunately, I think it provided a grossly

inaccurate assessment or description of our investigation. 

Our investigation is focused almost entirely on U.S.

Government agencies, U.S. Government employees, current and

former, like yourself, as well as U.S. companies like Blue

Star Strategies.  But as they say, when the only tool you

have is a hammer--

So the minority spent a fair amount of time talking

about Mr. Telizhenko, and I would like to ask you follow-up

questions on that point.

Mr. Kent, were you aware that Andrii Telizhenko, after

he left the Ukrainian Embassy in the United States, worked

for Blue Star Strategies for 13 months?

MR. KENT:  I eventually became aware of that when I

read information that was in the media.  I was not aware of

that when he came back to Ukraine.

MR. FOLIO:  And were you aware of that during any of

your interactions with Blue Star Strategies?
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MR. KENT:  No.

MR. FOLIO:  Do you know Elisabeth Zentos, a State

Department employee who was on detail to National Security

Council staff?

MR. KENT:  I do know her, yes.

MR. FOLIO:  Were you aware that she attended at least

one meeting at the White House with Andrii Telizhenko?

MR. KENT:  I read so in the media, yes.

MR. FOLIO:  Are you aware that she met Mr. Telizhenko

for coffee or drinks at least a half a dozen times outside

of the White House?

MR. KENT:  I--we're probably talking about a period of

time when I was at--if you want to give me the time frame--

how about this.  When was this?  Because I presume I may

have been in Kiev as opposed to Washington, but the answer

is no.

MR. FOLIO:  And with regard to the letter from Chairman

Johnson and Chairman Grassley, that the minority displayed

for you, I would first like to point out that what Mr.

Schram was reading into the record was not Chairman Grassley

or Chairman Johnson talking about their interactions with

Mr. Telizhenko but rather referring to reporting that quoted

Mr. Telizhenko.  And similar to that, I'd like to enter into

the record what we will identify as Exhibit 6, and I will

ask Will to put this on the screen.
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[Kent Exhibit No. 6 was marked

for identification.]

MR. FOLIO:  This is a Politico article written by

Kenneth Vogel and David Stern on January 11, 2017.  The

title of the article is "Ukrainian efforts to sabotage Trump

backfire."  Before we turn to the article, Mr. Kent, my

question for you is, were you aware that Mr. Telizhenko had

contact while he was at the Ukrainian Embassy with a DNC

contractor by the name of Alexandra Chalupa?

MR. KENT:  Steve Castor, the minority counsel, asked me

extensive questions about this article.  The answer is I was

not aware--I was not aware of his claims and I don't know

what--as I've said, Telizhenko is a documented liar.  Just

because he claims something doesn't mean it's true.  But I

was not aware that he claimed that he had met with her, no.

MR. FOLIO:  I'm going to ask Will to please scroll to

the second page of this article, third paragraph, beginning

"A Ukrainian."

MR. HARTMAN:  If I can just, just for one second, I'm

trying to find a copy of this article in what you've given

us, and maybe I'm missing it.

MR. FOLIO:  I can email you.  One second.

[Pause.]

MR. FOLIO:  I'd just like to highlight a few parts of

this article, and then one question for you at the end, Mr.
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Kent.

So if you can scroll up please, Will.

So that first paragraph at the top reads, on page 2 of

the article, "A Ukrainian-American operative who was

consulting for the Democratic National Committee met with

top officials in the Ukrainian Embassy in Washington in an

effort to expose ties between Trump, top campaign aide Paul

Manafort and Russia, according to people with direct

knowledge of the situation."

Will, will you please just scroll down to the fourth

page, the paragraph beginning "Manafort's work."

This paragraph reads, "Manafort's work for Yanukovych

caught the attention of a veteran Democratic operative named

Alexandra Chalupa, who had worked in the White House Office

of Public Liaison during the Clinton administration. 

Chalupa went on to work as a staffer, then as a consultant

for the Democratic National Committee.  The DNC paid her

$412,000 from 2004 to June of 2016, according to Federal

Election Commission records, though she was also paid by

other clients during this time, including Democratic

campaigns and the DNC's arm for engaging expatriate

Democrats around the world."

Will, if you will please scroll to the fifth page, the

paragraph beginning "She said."

"She said she shared her concern with Ukraine's
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ambassador to the U.S., Valeriy Chaly, and one of his top

aides, Oksana Shulyar, during a March 2016 meeting at the

Ukrainian Embassy."

Skipping down, the article continues, "That all started

to change four days after Chalupa's meeting at the Embassy,

when nit was reported that Trump had in fact hired Manafort,

suggesting that Chalupa may have been on to something.  She

quickly found herself in high demand.  The day after

Manafort's hiring was revealed, she briefed the DNC's

communications staff on Manafort, Trump, and their ties to

Russia, according to an operative familiar with the

situation.

"A former DNC staffer described the exchange as a 'an

informal conversation,' saying 'briefing' makes it sound way

too formal,' and adding, 'We were not directing nor driving

her work on this.'  Yet, the former DNC staffer and the

operative familiar with the situation agreed with the DNC's

encouragement, Chalupa asked Embassy staff to try to arrange

an interview in which Poroshenko might discuss Manafort's

ties to Yanukovych.

"While the embassy declined that request, officials

there became 'helpful' in Chalupa's efforts, she said,

explaining that she traded information and leads with them. 

'If I asked a question, they would provide guidance, or if

there was someone I needed to follow up with.'  But she
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stressed, 'There were no documents given, nothing like

that.'"

Mr. Kent, I'll just first note that these are not

statements of Andrii Telizhenko.  These are statements of

Ms. Chalupa.  Some might actually call them admissions.  Do

you find it odd that an employee of the Democratic National

Committee is knocking on foreign embassy doors during a

presidential election, asking for help?

MR. KENT:  I'm going to decline to answer that

question.  It is irrelevant to the purpose of our

conversation here.  And I have no position to make any

judgment on it whatsoever.

MR. FOLIO:  Scroll down to page 7 please, Will, the

paragraph beginning, "Chalupa confirmed."

I'll just read this paragraph.  "Chalupa confirmed

that, a week after Manafort's hiring was announced, she

discussed the possibility of a congressional investigation

with a foreign policy legislative assistant in the office of

Rep. Marcy Kaptur, who co-chairs the Congressional Ukrainian

Caucus.  But, Chalupa said, 'It didn't go anywhere.'

"Asked about the effort, the Kaptur legislative

assistant called it a 'touchy subject' in an internal email

to colleagues that was accidentally forwarded to Politico."

Page 8, Will, please, the paragraph beginning, "In the

email."
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"In the email, which was sent in early May to then-DNC

communications director Luis Miranda, Chalupa noted that she

had extended an invitation to the Library of Congress forum

to veteran Washington investigative reporter Michael

Isikoff.  Two days before the event, he had published a

story for Yahoo News revealing the unraveling of a $26

million deal with Manafort and a Russian oligarch related to

a telecommunications venture in Ukraine.  And Chalupa wrote

in the email she'd been 'working with for the past few

weeks' with Isikoff 'and connected him to the Ukrainians' at

the event."

To the next paragraph, Chalupa says she "further

indicated in her hacked May email to the DNC that she had

additional sensitive information about Manafort that she

intended to share 'offline' with Miranda and DNCN research

director Lauren Dillon, including 'a big Trump component you

and Lauren need to be aware of that will hit in the next few

weeks and something I'm working on you should be aware of.'"

Mr. Kent, so just to recap, with regard to Mr.

Telizhenko, he had contact with DNC operatives who were

actively seeking foreign assistance in the 2016 election. 

He had meetings at the White House, had several off-campus

meetings with National Security Council staff, and he worked

for 13 months for Democratic consulting firm, Blue Star

Strategies, that was lobbying the U.S. Government at the
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highest levels.  And I think you said you were unaware of

all three, and I just want to make sure that's correct;

right?

MR. KENT:  I was aware that he was working at the

Ukrainian Embassy.  I met him in the basement, as I

testified.  I was not aware of his activities prior to his

return to Ukraine, when he did seek to meet with me, and on

the advice of our political section I declined to do so.

MR. FOLIO:  Okay.  I'm going to turn the questioning

over to my colleague, Scott Wittman, who is going to address

the USAID program, market program, with you.  Thank you.

MR. WITTMANN:  Hi, Mr. Kent.  My name is Scott

Wittmann.  Thank you for your time today.  

Let's go to Exhibit 7.  The Bates numbers for this

exhibit are 472 to 478.

[Kent Exhibit No. 7 was marked

for identification.]

MR. WITTMANN:  And, Mr. Kent, just let me know whenever

you're ready.

MR. KENT:  I have the document in front of me.

MR. WITTMANN:  I'm sorry.  I'm just working on my audio

over here.  Did you say that you're ready?

MR. KENT:  I have the document in front of me, yes.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  On Bates 473, please Will, you

respond to an earlier email chain that we talked about
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previously.  This is August 13, 2016.  You changed the

subject line of the previous email to read "USAID

Cooperation with Burisma "Cornovol allegations) - should we

have a policy of avoiding cooperation with the morally

compromised?"

Did you view the U.S. cooperation with Burisma as

"cooperation with the morally compromised"?

MR. KENT:  I changed the subject line in two respects. 

Again, this was a Saturday morning, sorry, afternoon, so I

said non response until Monday.  And then I was asking a

question to multiple members of multiple sections in the

Embassy, as a matter of principle about our engagement.  And

if you read through, I reference a series of companies,

media properties, talk about their ownership, and lay out

some of the issues that we, as what's known as a country

team--whether that's the public affairs section that deals

with media, our USAID section, our law enforcements section,

our FBI representative, our DOJ representative--there are a

wide range of individuals that--it's a difficult issue in

countries where media ownership is oftentimes by oligarchs

or companies don't necessarily have a clear beneficial owner

known to everyone.

And so I wanted to introduce this topic for discussion

at our next staff meeting, which occurred the next week.  So

I introduced the subject in a question that was not
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specifically related to Burisma, because we had an

allegation that we had not yet sorted.  And then if you

notice, I seek counsel from parts of the Embassy that, at

that point, would have had perhaps more direct knowledge.  I

ask our economic section specifically how, in the past, how

had we treated Burisma.  And then the wider collective to

talk about h ow we dealt with companies that were owned by

known corrupt individuals.  I gave a citation from my

experience in Thailand prior.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.  At the time you sent this

email, before you received those responses, did you view

U.S. cooperation with Burisma as cooperation with the

morally compromised?

MR. KENT:  As soon as I learned of the connection, in

my own mind I was planning on eventually reaching where we

reached after four or five days of deliberation, which is to

end the cooperation.  That said, as a leader of a team, it's

better--and actually wise--to seek everybody's input before

a final decision.  So that is why I asked for people's views

and why we waited until a meeting where we could discuss it

I person, when the decision to suspend the program was

taken.

MR. WITTMANN:  You wrote, quote, "The proliferation of

Ukrainian companies clearly, and not so clearly,

owned/controlled by odious oligarchs or those who outright
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stole assets and absconded, like Zlochevsky, is likely a

long one."  What did you mean by "odious oligarchs"?

MR. KENT:  That is, in shorthand, alliteratively

describing the economic power, political structure of

Ukraine for much of the last three decades.  People who

enrich themselves largely by stealing state assets or

monetizing access to cash flows controlled by state

enterprises.  Those are the so-called oligarchs.  And many

of them then left.  Like Zlochevsky at the time, to the best

of my knowledge, was in Monaco.  The list of such people is

quite long in Ukraine, and so that was what I meant by that.

MR. WITTMANN:  Sure.  And just to be clear, did you

consider Mr. Zlochevsky an odious oligarch?

MR. KENT:  I did.

MR. WITTMANN:  And was he one of those examples who

outright stole assets and absconded?

MR. KENT:  Well, he awarded himself gas exploration

licenses when he was the minister controlling the issuance

of those licenses.  He was engaged in what we decided,

determined, was money-laundering, and he left to Monaco.  So

that's the abscond.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.  In the email you also

wrote, "There is, however, a moral hazard associated with

publicly associating/promoting our assistance projects with

companies/individuals seen in Ukrainian society as
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corrupt/compromised."  Did you believe there was a moral

hazard if the U.S. collaborated with Burisma?

MR. KENT:  I did, and ultimately, as I testified, and

also as, I think, other emails show, that was the primary

concern I had with any sort of public-private partnership. 

And promoting clean energy, which is part of the U.S. policy

agenda in Ukraine, there was a moral hazard association.

MR. WITTMANN:  In this email you also wrote, quote,

"For ECON, how have we traditionally treated/engaged

Burisma, given the Zlochevsky connection, but also perhaps

U.S. involvement beyond Hunter Biden," end quote.  What is

ECON?

MR. KENT:  Economic section of the Embassy.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  And did ECON or any of your

colleagues respond to this question?

MR. KENT:  I believe there are other emails that were

provided to the Committees that include responses subsequent

to 3:26 on Saturday, August 15th.

MR. WITTMANN:  You mentioned that you had continued

conversations about this topic.  Was ECON involved in those

conversations?

MR. KENT:  They were, and as I said in my opening

statement, those that had an understanding of the concerns

about Burisma and Zlochevsky, including Ambassador Pyatt,

the economic section and I, and we shared our concerns with
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others, including people in the Embassy who may not have

known the background, and as this whole exchange goes, in

August 2016, the summer of 2016, what I and the ECON section

knew was not widely shared by managers at USAID initially

until we shared our concerns.

MR. WITTMANN:  I want to turn it over to my colleague,

Brian Downey.  Mr. Downey, is your mic on?

MR. DOWNEY:  Yeah.  Thanks, Scott.  Mr. Kent, following

up on Mr. Wittmann's questions on the MERP, is this the

program that you eventually shut down or scuttled?

MR. KENT:  To be clear, I shut down the public-private

partnership awarding of clean energy-related prizes.  The

Municipal Energy Reform Project, which is a--was a USAID

energy-related project, that continued.  But the minor

public-private partnership awarding process, in conjunction

with Burisma, that ended.

MR. DOWNEY:  So on either of those two issues, on the

public-private award issue and the MERP, that, as you just

said continued, did you raise any of these concerns outside

of Embassy Kiev?

MR. KENT:  To my mind there was no need to.  Honestly,

I don't know the answer of whether that internal Embassy

communication was sent back to Washington.  Given the large

amount of assistance that was going to Ukraine, when you

have, get down to program implementation, that is an issue
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largely done at the Embassy country team level.

MR. DOWNEY:  Understood.  Was there any discussion from

your desk or ECON or anyone in Kiev that concerns that are

put forth by yourself and others on the USAID and the

public-private rewards program, that these two issues maybe

should be sent to the State Department Inspector General's

Office or the USAID's Inspector General's Office for review?

MR. KENT:  We made an executive decision to end a

program that had not been initiated by USAID but by an

implementer who was implementing a program, a sectoral

program.  They had wide latitude to move forward on the ways

and activities to achieve the purposes of the program

itself, but when USAID management, mission management in

Kiev and the Embassy leadership, were made aware of a

specific element of the activity, there was enough directed

authority within the USAID mission that they were able to

tell the implementer, "Shut this down.  This isn't going to

happen," and that was the end of it.

MR. DOWNEY:  You're speaking about the public-private

rewards, or MERP?

MR. KENT:  I'm talking about the public-private

rewards, which I think, according to this email, involved a

total prize of $7,500 in awards that were being provided by

Burisma.  It did not involve, I think somewhere here it

says, U.S. Government resources.  We felt that we ended an
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issue to avoid the potential of moral hazard for the Embassy

and USAID.

MR. DOWNEY:  So specifically on the MERP issue,

yourself and others at the Embassy at Kiev did not raise

concerns with the Inspector General for the State Department

nor the Inspector General for the USAID?

MR. KENT:  I don't see--I'm not sure what the grounds

of your questioning are.  There was no conduct by a member

of USAID or the State Department involved.

MR. DOWNEY:  But the party that was involved in the MOU

was Burisma, no?

MR. KENT:  The two parties to the MOU were Burisma and

the implementer.  That's the USAID word for contractor,

something research associate.  So that explains why the

acting Mission Director, initially when I asked the

question, was not aware of any activity, and when he

probably sent an information request to all the

implementers, then he learned that there was one activity.

MR. DOWNEY:  Understood.  Scott, I'll send it back to

you.  Thank you.

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you, Mr. Downey.  I'm going to

turn it over now to Josh.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Mr. Kent, can you hear me okay?

MR. KENT:  I can.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Great.  So just a couple of quick
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follow-up questions here.  I just to be clear about your

testimony today.  Do you agree that Burisma has a reputation

for engaging in corrupt activity?

MR. KENT:  I think that--to be clear, my knowledge was

that Mykola Zlochevsky was a minister engaged in corrupt

activity as minister.  Burisma had a reputation for not

being a clean corporate player in the gas sector.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  So you would agree that its owner has

a reputation for engaging in corrupt activity, Burisma's

owner?

MR. KENT:  That is what I have testified to, yes.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Thank you.  Hunter Biden had no

particular expertise in Ukraine prior to working on

Burisma's board.  He had no particular expertise in natural

gas.  Yet he was paid approximately $80,000 a month to be on

the board.  He was paid that sum while his father was the

public face of the Obama administration's Ukraine policy and

when Burisma was under investigation.

In light of Burisma and its owner's reputation for

corruption, and the fact this company was under

investigation by Ukrainian authorities at the time Biden was

on the board--Hunter Biden was on the board--do you agree

that it appears Burisma hired Hunter Biden in an attempt to

inoculate them from political and legal risk?

MR. KENT:  I have no information to suggest that, and
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as I testified under oath last fall, that's a question you

would need to ask Mr. Zlochevsky, why they hired people.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  If you were advising Hunter Biden,

would you have advised him against becoming a board member

for Burisma while his father was involved in the Obama

administration's Ukraine policy?

MR. KENT:  I would have advised any American not to get

on the board of Zlochevsky's company.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Do you view his board membership as

creating a potential conflict of interest in light of his

father's role with Ukraine policy?

MR. KENT:  I have testified that it would create the

perception of a conflict of interest, yes.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  And Mr. Kent, are you aware of any

other corrupt activities relating to Zlochevsky's companies

other than Burisma, or is your knowledge based simply

squared with Burisma?

MR. KENT:  As I have testified and just said several

minutes ago, our focus was on his corrupt acts as minister

when he abused the office to award national gas exploration

contracts to companies that he controlled through shell

companies.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Did the company Brociti Investments,

B as in bravo-r-o-c-i-t-I, ever come up?

MR. KENT:  This is when I have to say that I was an
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executive in the Embassy.  I was not the energy officer and

I do not have a chart of all the shell companies that may

have been part of Burisma Holdings.  So I cannot answer that

question.

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you, Josh.  We are going to turn

to Exhibit 8.  This is Bates numbers 505 to 508.

[Kent Exhibit No. 8 was marked

for identification.]

MR. WITTMANN:  And whenever you're ready, Mr. Kent.

MR. KENT:  I have it in front of me.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  Specifically on page number 506--

Will, if you don't mind?--this is an email dated August 31,

2016.  In this email chain, you asked your colleagues with

regards to potentially co-branding USAID and Burisma how

much, quote, "'know your partner' due diligence was done

before this public-private partnership was launched in the

spring?  Zlochevsky as a corrupt mal actor was a 2014 story;

his control of Burisma and the very sticky wicket of the

Hunter Biden connection on Burisma's board was circulating

in 2015."

Mr. Kent, why did you ask your colleague about the

extent to which they did due diligence regarding Burisma

before the launch of a partnership?

MR. KENT:  I think as has been clear from my testimony

I didn't think the U.S. Government should have anything to
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do with Zlochevsky or Burisma.  So having reached that

conclusion in February of 2015, a year and a half later I

was dealing with a part of the Embassy that had not

seemingly been aware of concerns.  And so I was asking them

again, without forming a snap judgment, whether they had

done any review before moving forward with the project.

MR. WITTMANN:  To what extent had they done review?

MR. KENT:  I think this gets into how we administer

programs, keeping in mind we had hundreds of millions of

dollars of assistance, and, you know, on any given day if

dozens at least multiple events happening.  We're talking

about one specific USAID program, not their only program. 

It was something that was being implemented by a contractor,

which had reached an agreement to do some sort of public-

private partnership with a Ukrainian company.  

So then my question was to the USAID direct hire

managers whether, when this event, whenever it was, which I

didn't know exactly when they might have started it, had

anyone on the USAID staff done due diligence.  That was my

question to them.

MR. WITTMANN:  Do you recall if they had done--did they

tell you whether or not they had conducted due diligence?

MR. KENT:  Looking at date timestamp, I sent this email

at 10 p.m., which gives you an indication of the sort of

hours that we did.  My substantive emails oftentimes went to
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staff past midnight.  You won't be shocked to learn that I

oftentimes did not get any reponses until our in-face, face-

to-face morning meeting the next day.

So this particular exchange, the responses came from

the economic section the next morning at 7:00, and then the

top email you see that I sent was reference before the

morning meeting, that if I didn't raise it I asked a

colleague to make sure that we raised it so that the meeting

would not conclude without us having had the conversation

and the decision being made.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  Going back to that same email on

Bates 506, why was Hunter Biden's connection on Burisma's

board a, quote, "very stickit wicket"--I'm sorry, a "very

sticky wicket"?

MR. KENT:  I think all U.S. Government officials need

to be aware of all the factors involved in an issue.  This

was an issue that I felt needed to be shut down, but I also

wanted people to be aware.  Even as we were going to shut

down something, that there was the possibility of names

being shared.  

You have other emails indicating that the Embassy's

economic section had heard that Burisma, the word going

around town, was saying they had a relationship with the

Embassy, and I just wanted to make sure everyone understood

names that might be tossed around by people but that we were
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moving forward with the decision that was appropriate.

MR. WITTMANN:  What made Hunter Biden's role on the

board something that you needed to flag for your colleagues,

and describe it as a "very sticky wicket"?

MR. KENT:  As I've testified, and as I alerted the

staff of the Office of the Vice President in February 2015,

my concern had been that there could be the perception of a

possible conflict of interest.

MR. WITTMANN:  So that concern was raised in February

2015.  This is now August 2016.  You still have that

concern?

MR. KENT:  Well, that is why I was raising it with

people working for USAID who evidently did not have a

situational awareness of this--the reputation of Burisma. 

And I was--again, I'm an info sharer.  I think people need

to know everything that they're dealing with.  And this was

still moving to within 12 hours of a decision to pull the

plug on the program.

MR. WITTMANN:  Was there a reason why you only

mentioned Hunter Biden's connection on the board and not

other board members in this email, for the situational

awareness of your colleagues?

MR. KENT:  At the time, at this point, in August of

2016, the one American that I was aware of that was on the

board was Hunter Biden.  I believe at the time I wouldn't
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have been aware that Aleksander Kwasniewski, the former

President of Poland, was on the board, but he's a Pole.

MR. WITTMANN:  When did you become aware of Cofer Black

joining Burisma's board?

MR. KENT:  I believe he joined in 2017, but I couldn't

be certain of that.

MR. WITTMANN:  Did the fact that Hunter Biden's father

was Vice President at the time factor into your decision to

raise this particular point to your colleagues, calling

Hunter Biden's connection on the board a "very sticky

wicket"?

MR. KENT:  What are you trying to ask me?  I was within

12 hours of shutting down the program.  Hunter Biden's

position on the board had zero impact on the proper

decisions from the U.S. Embassy.  I'm not clear on what

question you're trying to ask.

MR. WITTMANN:  The question is the fact that Hunter

Biden's father was Vice President at the time, did that

factor into your decision to raise the point to your

colleagues, in, you know, as you mentioned, open sharing,

trying to get as much information and situational awareness

out on the table, did that factor into the fact that you

flagged for your colleagues that Hunter Biden had a

connection to Burisma's board and that that was a "very

sticky wicket"?
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MR. KENT:  Hunter Biden was on the board but that was

irrelevant to the decision that the U.S. Embassy needed to

take, which was to break any relationship between a USAID

clean energy promotion program and Burisma.

MR. WITTMANN:  In that same email, you asked ECON

whether there would be a, quote, "guilt by association risk

with public partnering with Burisma."  What did you mean by

"guilt by association"?

MR. KENT:  As I mentioned before, it was the economic

section that had shared the Ukrainian business community,

and particularly those working in energy, still felt that

Burisma was not a clean player in the section, and for the

Embassy to partner with a company with that reputation would

potentially undermine the perceptions of the integrity of

our promotion of certain principles and policies.

MR. WITTMANN:  In that same email you wrote, quote,

"There is always the Washington Post test of foreign service

decision-making, as in would we want an article on the front

page of The Washington Post (and in this the Kiev Post, and

on Facebook page of"--and my apologies of I mispronounce

these names--"of Sergiy Leschenko and Mustafa Nayyem)

commenting about this public private partnership with

Burisma, the link to Hunter Biden, and the link to

Zlochevsky, who almost certainly paid off the PGO in

December 2014 (I had the then First deputy Prosecutor
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General Danylenko tell me the bribe was $7 million) to have

the case against him closed and his $23 million in assets

frozen in the UK unfrozen?"

Were you concerned about a potential story about a

partnership with Burisma that would touch on the issues you

listed, including the link to Hunter Biden and Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  No, but it's known as "The Washington Post

sniff test."  They tell us that in our first week of the

foreign service, and it's a guide, if you have any question

about what something you're going to do makes sense, if your

own moral compass has some wiggle room, thinking about what

you would do if it was written about on the front page of

The Washington Post is a good way to remind you of whether

it would make sense or not.  That whole paragraph is a

rhetorical question.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.  So what was the concern

about a potential article?  What specifically were you

concerned that an article would say, that wouldn't pass that

test, or that would potentially make you feel like this

isn't going to pass the test?

MR. KENT:  At this point I've already made the decision

that we're going to shut this down, but I'm asking the other

elements of the Embassy to weigh in, in case there are other

views.  In the next paragraph it says "PA"--that's public

affairs.  So I brought in USAID, which oversees the
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management of the program; the economic section, which is

responsible for contacts to business and has their ears to

the ground; public affairs section, which is responsible for

public messaging; and our legal and law enforcement

community, which was involved in trying to return the frozen

assets.  So this was a whole-of-country team, whole-of-U.S.

Government discussion, at least giving people the

opportunity to weigh in before the next morning, when I was

going to shut down the program.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood, and this might go into what

you just said.  But from your perspective, would a U.S.

partnership with Burisma pass The Washington Post test of

foreign policy decision-making?

MR. KENT:  It didn't pass my sniff test and that's why

I shut it down.

MR. WITTMANN:  On 505, Bates number 505 of this same

document, or this same record, in further discussions about

the potential partnership between MERP and Burisma, on

September 1, 2016, your colleague wrote, quote, "USG

cooperation on the project would make us look bad," end

quote.

Why would U.S. cooperation on the project with Burisma

make us look bad?

MR. KENT:  This is the moral hazard argument I have

described, "moral hazard" being my term.  The term of the
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offer would just look bad.

MR. WITTMANN:  Your colleague also wrote, "not to

mention the MPs on the Energy Committee and others would

wonder how we speak about anticorruption but work with those

that were associated with corrupt practices."

Why would this have been a problem for U.S.

anticorruption measures in Ukraine, this potential

association?

MR. KENT:  As I have said several times in the last 10

minutes, Burisma did not have a good reputation among those

working in the energy sector.  We were promoting not just

clean energy from a technical perspective but

anticorruption, clean corporate business practices.  And if

we were going to walk the walk, we needed to model that

behavior we were advocating.

MR. WITTMANN:  In that same September 1, 2016, email

chain, one of your colleagues wrote that, quote, "There is a

clear link between the company and its primary owner. 

Zlochevsky is working very hard to clean up and 'Westernize'

his image by hiring D.C. lobbyists and stacking the board

with prominent people.  From the rumors that we hear in the

energy sector there is no sense that Burisma has changed how

it conducts its business.  We have also heard that they have

used the U.S. Embassy name to try to influence business

transactions.  Hard to prove but certainly concerning."
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Did you agree with this individual's assertion that

Zlochevsky was trying to clean up his image by stacking

Burisma's board with prominent people?

MR. KENT:  I took on board his overall advice, which

you didn't read his last sentence:  "I fall on the side of

not having anything to do with a company to avoid

undermining our broader efforts to promote transparency and

anticorruption."

MR. WITTMANN:  Yes.

MR. KENT:  So that, again, that's--this is the--his

counsel fell in line with my own assessments, and that's why

I responded, "Thanks."  And if hadn't raised it the next

morning or later that morning that he should, you know,

bring it up and I would follow through.

MR. WITTMANN:  Gotcha.  With this specific part of this

counsel relating to the assertion that Zlochevsky was trying

to clean up his image by stacking the board with prominent

people, did you, at the time, agree with that?

MR. KENT:  Well, as I said, at the time I knew that

Hunter Biden and the former President of Poland was on the

board.  I would count President Kwasniewski as someone with

prominent name recognition, yes.

MR. WITTMANN:  How did having those individuals on

Burisma's board assist Zlochevsky and his company?

MR. KENT:  You would have to ask him.  It's obviously
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made no difference in how the U.S. Government and the U.S.

Embassy addressed the issues related to both the company and

the owner.

MR. WITTMANN:  I'm going to turn it over to Josh.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Regarding your answer there, I mean,

do you have any opinion on that, given your expertise with

being in Ukraine?  I mean, what kind of effect it would have

on the ground and in political circles, with respect to them

being on the board?

MR. KENT:  What do you mean?

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Well, you have politically connected

individuals.  I'm wondering if you have, based on your

expertise, being in Ukraine, in the field, would them being

on the board have any effect on the politics within that

country or even in the United States?

MR. KENT:  I can only speak to what I know, and that

was how the U.S. Embassy looked at both owner and company,

and I think I've been quite explicit, repeatedly, about

that, especially in the last half hour.

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you, Josh.  Going back to this

email, how did you evaluate your colleague's assessment

that, quote, "There is no sense that Burisma has changed how

it conducts business"?

MR. KENT:  Well, again, I'm not the energy sector

expert, was not at the Embassy, nor was I even the economics
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counsel--head of the whole economics--but this was the

assessment and advice of those whose job it was to have that

more granular knowledge.  And so I relied on the assessment

of the Embassy staff who were the experts in the matter.

MR. WITTMANN:  What about the suggestion that Burisma,

quote, "used the U.S. Embassy name to try and influence

business transactions."  Were you aware of this?

MR. KENT:  I had not heard that, but that, in fact, was

one of the driving factors that, when I learned of this

program I shut it down.

MR. WITTMANN:  Did you--were you provided more

information and details about how--about this allegation?

MR. KENT:  What do you mean?

MR. WITTMANN:  Well, you said this was--that that fact

was one of the reasons that led to you wanting to take the

program down.  I'm just wondering if you were given more

information about the suggestion that Burisma used the U.S.

Embassy name.

MR. KENT:  No.  I mean, this is an email--I'm just

looking at the timing.  It was--he was writing the email

half an hour before the morning meeting started.  So again,

I had already made up my mind we were going to shut it down,

so this is not a matter of me reading this email that was

sent at 7:46 a.m. before an 8:15 morning meeting that I

would change my view.  I agreed with the advice, and we then

Page 122

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



123

moved forward with the decision.

MR. WITTMANN:  So just so I understand, other than

what's in this email, were there any other discussions about

instances where Burisma was using the U.S. Embassy name to

try to influence business transactions?

MR. KENT:  Well, the only connection was this program.

Based on the article that we were talking about half an hour

ago, the allegations from the member of Parliament, she

claimed that there was a reference on the Burisma website,

and that when she raised it they removed it from the

website.  So that, we've got in the documents that they, I

guess, had posted something on the website specifically

about this public-private partnership, and that's the

program that I shut down.

So I did not--as far as I know, that's what I had asked

the initial question, that's what started this entire email

exchange.  I was asking all parts of the Embassy, where

there any contacts, where there any programs?  It turned out

there was one and we shut it down.

MR. WITTMANN:  Besides that article and this email,

were there any other--did you have any other information or

received any other briefings about Burisma using the U.S.

Embassy name to try to influence business transactions?

MR. KENT:  I did not have any additional information,

and again, given our position on Burisma and Zlochevsky it
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was hard to believe that people would take that at face

value.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  At the top of this email, on

September 1, 2016, you wrote, "My intent is to pull the plug

on this program so no further harm is done."  This, to

confirm, was this referencing to end the partnership when

you said "pulling the plug"?

MR. KENT:  The public-private contest with awards being

given for good ideas on clean energy.  Correct.

MR. WITTMANN:  What was the harm that you made

reference to?  You said "no further harm done."  Were you

referencing harm that had been done?

MR. KENT:  I think the--I meant by the association that

the previous year, as it turned out, in 2015, there had been

a set of awards given by this program implementer, that had

been funded by Burisma.  They were planning another set of

awards, a second set of awards in mid-September, so two

weeks after this discussion.  We pulled the plug and there

was no second.  So there had been something that was done in

2015, that none of us were aware of.  When it became--when

we were made aware of those facts, and that there was a plan

for a second round of awards, that had been announced, we

pulled the plug and it just did not happen.

MR. WITTMANN:  And when you said that the events that

occurred in 2015 "none of us were aware of it," do you mean
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that you weren't aware of it, or that other people at the

Embassy weren't aware of it?  I mean, people must have had

awareness of it.  Correct?

MR. KENT:  Well, I'm not making an assertion of every

individual who was in the chain of command.  When I asked

the initial question, going back to the same emails that

we've been looking at the last half hour, the initial answer

by the acting head of the USAID mission was he was not aware

of any connection between USAID programs and Burisma.  He

then came back to me and said, "It turns out there is one."

So his first email shows that he, as a manager, did

not--was not aware that there had been any connection, even

though a year prior there had been this award ceremony. 

Again, a blip in a line of hundreds of actions being done,

but we were targeting in on this one issue, again to avoid

any hint of moral hazard.

MR. WITTMANN:  So this email was sent on September 1,

2016.  When did you, as you said, pull the plug on the

partnership?  When did that actually occur?

MR. KENT:  We had a staff meeting that morning and I

made very clear, if you will, what the military calls

"commander intent" that this needed to stop.  And at this

point we had a new Mission Director at USAID who had just

arrived, and so she carried that decision, so-called front

office decision, forward, and they cancelled the award
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ceremony.

MR. WITTMANN:  When you issued the order to pull the

plug, did you receive any pushback from anybody in your

office or any other office?

MR. KENT:  I think one of the other documents that's

been provided to the Committee indicates that there was one

USAID official who thought that cancelling an announced

ceremony and contest carried a potential cost, and maybe it

would be good if we just didn't do it in the future.  And I

disagreed and said, no, we're going to pull the plug now.

MR. WITTMANN:  At the staff meeting, when you made the

announcement, did you receive any pushback, or did anyone

else raise concerns?

MR. KENT:  No.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.

I'd like to turn it back over to Mr. Downey.

MR. DOWNEY:  Mr. Kent, you've met with Vice President

Biden's staff on Ukraine issues.  Correct?

MR. KENT:  I'm trying to think.  Almost all of our

communication was over sort of secure coms when I was at the

Embassy in Kiev.  I am not actually sure if and when we

would have met in person.  

So I communicated but I'm actually--I was not present

when Vice President Biden came in a visit in December of

2015.  Ambassador Pyatt allowed me to go home for
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Thanksgiving.  My family was still in the U.S.  So I was not

in country when Biden and his staff visited, so my contact

and exchanges with his staff would have been done by email

and telephone.

MR. DOWNEY:  So you raised concerns to the Vice

President's staff.  I think you said that earlier in this

interview.  Is that correct?

MR. KENT:  That's correct.  That was a phone call in

February 2015.

MR. DOWNEY:  Do you know what day on February it

occurred?

MR. KENT:  I do not know.

MR. DOWNEY:  Can you be more specific on what you

raised concerns about?

MR. KENT:  As I testified both last fall and I

mentioned earlier today, it came subsequent to my meeting on

February 3rd.  I departed country back to the United States

on February 14th, so it would have been in that period of

time.  It was a conversation in the Ambassador's office, and

I suspect somebody from the Vice President's staff called

out to ask a question to the Ambassador.  He was not there,

so I walked across the hall and I answered the phone and

answered the question about some other issue.  And since I

had somebody who worked for the Vice President, whose name

honestly I cannot remember because it was not scheduled and
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they weren't looking to talk to me, I said, "By the way,

since I have you on the phone, I've got an issue that I

would like to raise with you."  And so that was the context,

in a conversation that happened somewhere between February

4th and February 14th, 2015.

MR. DOWNEY:  So what did you raise to this Vice

President's staffer?  What issues?

MR. KENT:  I said that I had learned that Hunter Biden

had been appointed to a board of this company, that I had

just raised U.S. concerns about the owner of the company,

who we believed had been engaged in money-laundering, and,

as I've testified, I thought that created the perception of

a possible conflict of interest.

MR. DOWNEY:  On this phone call with the Vice

President's staffer, this occurred in February 2015. 

Correct?

MR. KENT:  Correct.

MR. DOWNEY:  When did you learn about the alleged bribe

that Yarema's PGO took?

MR. KENT:  I arrived in Kiev in mid to late January. 

At that point there had been no contact at a high level

between the Embassy staff and the Prosecutor General's

Office, subsequent to us learning the money-laundering case

against Zlochevsky had been closed.  And so the Department

of Justice resident legal advisor asked if I would request a

Page 128

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



129

meeting at a high level to raise this issue.  And that is

what Ambassadors and Deputy Chiefs of Mission do.

So we--he could not get a meeting so we requested and

got and got an appointment with the First Deputy Prosecutor

General, number two prosecutor in the country at the time,

Anatoliy Danylenko.

MR. DOWNEY:  So my question is, did you tell the

staffer for Vice President Biden about the alleged bribe to

Yarema connected to Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  I can't remember--to be perfectly honest, I

don't remember who I spoke to.  I don't know why he or she

called out to talk to Ambassador Pyatt, and I don't know

what else I may have told them and all the context.  I'm

sure I gave context for why I was raising it and how I

learned it.  But the bottom line was, I said I believe that

this creates the perception of a potential conflict of

interest, given Vice President Biden's role and his very

strong advocacy for anticorruption action, and that I

thought that someone needed to talk to Hunter Biden, and he

should be stepped down from the board of Burisma.

MR. DOWNEY:  As you--I don't want to mischaracterize

your testimony, Mr. Kent, but you did tell us, I believe

that you have the--you overshare things, which always is the

good and bad, depending on what the issue is.  But something

about Yarema's office accepting a bribe connected to
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Zlochevsky, I would just assume, talking with you for how

many hours now, that you may, probably would bring that up

with people higher up the food chain our government.   That

information, and that allegation seems to be fairly serious.

MR. KENT:  Well, it is serious, and I had the second-

highest Deputy--Prosecutor General in the country.  When I

asked the question, "How much was the bribe and who took

it?" he laughed and said, "That's exactly what President

Poroshenko asked us last week."  And I said, "So what did

you tell the President?" and he said, "Seven million dollars

and last May, before we came into office."  And I said,

"Nice try, but the letter that someone--some prosecutor in

your office wrote was signed in late December, six months

after you all came into office."

Now this is a conversation on February 3rd.  Within the

week, the entire team was dismissed, and on February 10th,

President Poroshenko appointed Viktor Shokin as Prosecutor

General.  So I was speaking to somebody who, within a week,

was out of office, and so was Yarema, and so was Yarema's

special assistant, Andre Telizhenko.

MR. DOWNEY:  Understood.  I know our time is ending

here so real quick, Mr. Kent, as soon as you learned about

this allegation of the $7 million Yarema bribe, did you

report that to your resident legal advisor and, in essence,

the Federal Bureau of Investigation?
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MR. KENT:  The resident legal advisor was in the

meeting with me and was the note-taker.

MR. DOWNEY:  Do you know if the resident legal advisor

got that information to the FBI after your meeting?

MR. KENT:  Yes.

MR. DOWNEY:  Thank you.

MR. KENT:  Are we getting close to our break, maybe? 

It's been an hour.

MR. FOLIO:  I think this is the end of our hour so it's

a perfect time for a break.  My watch says 2:17.  Should we

take 8 minutes and be back at 2:25?  Does that work for

everyone?

MR. KENT:  Sure.

MR. FOLIO:  Zach, good for you?

MR. SCHRAM:  Yes.

[Recess.]

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, are you ready?

MR. KENT:  I am ready.

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, we have just spent a significant

amount of time, or the majority has, but a significant

amount of time delving into what you described as a

perception of a possible conflict of interest.  And the

Committees spent a rather significant amount of resources

and taxpayer money during a pandemic to investigate, again,

a perception of a potential conflict of interest, not to
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mention the resources, sir, that you have incurred, both

with respect to your time and your money.  I'm sure

testifying before Congress was not your favorite part of

your portfolio, something you unfortunately had to do a lot

of lately.

And not to belabor it, but this keeps coming up, you

testified in the last hour that Hunter Biden's role on the

board had zero impact on the decision of the Embassy, and

that Hunter Biden's role was irrelevant.  And you know that

because you were one of the decision-makers.  Correct?

MR. KENT:  That's correct.

MR. SCHRAM:  And you advised the Embassy on the

decisions with respect to America's policy in Ukraine.  You

executed the decisions with respect to America's foreign

policy in the Ukraine.  You advised the Ambassador, and you

worked with the Vice President's Office as well on those

decisions.

MR. KENT:  That's correct.

MR. SCHRAM:  And again, on that basis, you know, for a

fact, that Hunter Biden's role on the board had zero impact

on the decisions of the Embassy.

MR. KENT:  To the best of my experience and knowledge

that is correct.

MR. SCHRAM:  Over the last hour, the majority tried to

use evidence that you shut down a public-private partnership
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with Burisma as evidence of--they tried to use the fact that

you shut down the public-private partnership with Burisma as

some kind of evidence of corruption.  Not just corruption of

Burisma but the majority is trying to impute that corruption

to Hunter Biden and to the Vice President.  And they have

portrayed your shutting it down as reflecting something

nefarious about the Vice President. 

But you were working in the foreign service as a part

of the Obama administration, a career foreign service

official--officer, rather. As part of the Obama

administration, you were working for an Ambassador who was

appointed by the President, and working on foreign policy,

as you've testified, that involved the Vice President's

Office, and you shut down that program, the public-private

partnership with Burisma.  Correct?

MR. KENT:  Correct.  We made that decision, as we were

just discussing, at the beginning of September 2016.

MR. SCHRAM:  And remind me, what was the value of

Burisma's contribution to that program?

MR. KENT:  I believe one of the emails indicates the

prizes that they had proposed for the two years totaled

$7,500.

MR. SCHRAM:  So over $7,500.  You intervened and shut

it down because you didn't want the U.S. mission in Ukraine,

or United States generally, to be associated with Burisma.

Page 133

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



134

MR. KENT:  Correct.  

MR. SCHRAM:  You acted with integrity to prevent the

perception of official favor for Burisma.

MR. KENT:  I acted to prevent the perception that the

U.S. Government had anything to do with Burisma.

MR. SCHRAM:  This is a clear demonstration of your

integrity and of the integrity of our foreign service and of

the integrity of the Obama foreign policy--Obama

administration foreign policy.

Now one concern of the Ranking Members, and it's

regrettable that you've been drawn into this, is that this

is transparently a partisan political attack on the

Democratic candidate for President just months before an

election.  And I regret that you, a distinguished,

nonpartisan foreign service officer, has to sit through it.

But the concern of the Ranking Members is not just that

this is playing politics, but it's that this has put the

Committee in a position of advancing a Russian

disinformation effort that is part of an attack on the

integrity of our election, and it is one that advances

Russian interests, in Ukraine and in Europe, against the

national security interests of the United States.

And I'm not asking for you to comment on that.  Just

expressing that I regret that you've been drawn into it.

But to that point, I would like to refer you now to
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letters that were provided to your counsel last night, and

that were provided to the majority previously.  And I

believe we are on Exhibit D.  Marking as Exhibit D, a letter

from Ranking Members Peters, Wyden, and Feinstein to

Chairman Graham, Johnson, and Grassley.

[Kent Exhibit D was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  I'll give you a moment, Roy, to pull it

up, and, Mr. Kent, to review it.

MR. KENT:  December 17, 2019?

MR. SCHRAM:  Correct.  And in the second full

paragraph, the Ranking Members write, "Allegations of

Ukrainian interference in the 2016 election are part of a

Russian disinformation campaign.  Dr. Fiona Hill, the former

head of Russia and Ukraine policy for the National Security

Council and formerly the top analyst for Russia at the

National Intelligence Council, testified to Congress, with

regard to these allegations: 'This is a fictional narrative

that is being perpetrated and propagated by the Russian

security services themselves.'

"And Assistant Secretary of State George Kent testified

that there is no evidence 'whatsoever' of wrongdoing by Vice

President Biden.  Consequently, we do not see a basis for an

investigation by three major Senate Committees into these

discredited allegations and believe that doing so could
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advance the Russian disinformation and election interference

efforts.  We should not facilitate foreign interference in

our 2020 election."

Marking as Exhibit E, a letter dated February 27, 2020,

also provided to your counsel and previously to the

majority, from Ranking Members Peters to Chairman Johnson.

[Kent Exhibit E was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  This letter was written in response to the

Chairman's notice of a subpoena of Andrii Telizhenko, who

you testified as being a known liar, and Senator Peters

wrote, "I warned when this investigation began that '[w]e

should not facilitate foreign interference in our 2020

election.'  I remain concerned that the United States Senate

and this Committee could be used to further disinformation

efforts by Russian or other actors.  Because these efforts

pose a threat to our national security, I have asked for the

Committee to receive defensive briefings, specifically

regarding Mr. Telizhenko, from relevant intelligence

community and law enforcement officials, to ensure the

Senate is not allowed to advance any disinformation

campaigns."

Marking as Exhibit F, a letter of March 17, 2020, from

Ranking Member Peters to Chairman Johnson, with respect to

another subpoena by Senator Johnson, for the same
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information sought in the aborted attempt to subpoena Andrii

Telizhenko, this time of Blue Star Strategies.

[Kent Exhibit F was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  And in the second full paragraph, Ranking

Member Peters writes, "The subpoena request is inappropriate

for a number of reasons:  you have not fully pursued

voluntary production of these records; you have not

scheduled the intelligence briefings you agreed to; you risk

continuing to amplify foreign election interference efforts;

and your own public comments acknowledge that your

investigation is at least partially targeted at influencing

voters, 'if I were a Democrat primary voter, I'd want these

questions satisfactorily answered before I cast my final

vote.'"

I will note that the questions in this case have been

satisfactorily answered, by you today, by you in your

previous testimony, by the public record, and by the

documents in the Committee's possession.

Marking as Exhibit G, a letter from Ranking Members

Peters and Wyden to Chairmen Johnson and Grassley, on July

16, 2020.

[Kent Exhibit G was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  This is now roughly seven months after the
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first--the Ranking Members formally raised concerns about

the disinformation effort.  It is also months after the

original staff-level and then member-level requests for

briefings on these matters.

The first paragraph states, "We reiterate our request

for a briefing from Members of our Committees from the

Federal Bureau of Investigation's Foreign Influence Task

Force and relevant Intelligence Community members related to

your ongoing investigation.  Two weeks ago, The Washington

Post reported that 'a Ukrainian lawmaker who was once

affiliated with a pro-Russian political party and has with

Giuliani released 10 edited snippets of what appeared to be

Joe Biden's official vice presidential phone calls in 2016,

with Petro Poroshenko."  The Post reported that this

lawmaker 'studied under the KGB in Moscow in the early

1990s' and that these efforts suggest a new push by foreign

forces to sway American voters in the run-up to the 2020

election.'"

Mr. Kent, although it doesn't name him, can you tell by

the description who is referred to in that paragraph?

MR. KENT:  The released snippets of conversation were

released at a series of press conferences in May, June, and

July, led by Andrii Derkach, and flanked by a corrupt former

deputy prosecutor named Konstiantyn Kulyk.

MR. SCHRAM:  With respect to the May press conference
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you just referenced, are you aware that it occurred on May

19th?

MR. KENT:  May 19th, May 20th.  I would have probably

said the 20th, but if you have reason to believe it was the

19th, I accept that.

MR. SCHRAM:  In fact, it was hours before the

Committee's markup of the Blue Star subpoena.  The tapes

were released hours before the Committee was called to vote

on advancing a subpoena for unauthorizing a subpoena tied to

the very allegations related to the information sought from

Blue Star Strategies and promoted by Mr. Derkach and Mr.

Telizhenko and others.

Mr. Kent, one more letter I'd like to bring to your

attention.  So among the documents in the Committee's

possession and the documents that the majority have referred

to in the development of its investigation, are documents

from the Executive Office of the President during the Obama

administration.  Now those documents were requested by the

Chairman from the Archivist of the United States, but they

had not been scheduled for release, so they required the

consent of the former Obama administration for their

release.

Marking as Exhibit, I believe we're on H, a March 13,

2020, letter from Anita Decker Breckenridge, records

representative to President Obama.  

Page 139

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



140

[Kent Exhibit H was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  And drawing your attention to the third

full paragraph.  The letter states, "President Obama has

consistently supported the nonpartisan administration of

presidential records and the commitment to transparency core

to NARA's mission.  However, the current request is not a

proper use of the limited NARA exceptions.  It arises out of

efforts by some, actively supported by Russia, to shift the

blame for Russian interference in the 2016 election to

Ukraine," and it refers, again, to Ms. Hill--or Dr. Hill's,

I believe, testimony, quote, "'Based on the questions I have

heard, some of you on this committee appear to believe that

Russia and its security services did not conduct a campaign

against our country and that, perhaps, somehow, for some

reason, Ukraine did.  This is a fictional narrative that is

being perpetrated and propagated by the Russian security

services themselves.'"

It goes on, referencing David Hale testimony before the

Senate Foreign Relations Committee on December 3, 2019,

quote, "I have seen no credible evidence about these

allegations of Ukraine."

The final paragraph of the letter, in its decision to

permit this Committee to have access to the records, states,

"Nevertheless, in the interest of countering the
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misinformation campaign underlying this request, we are

prepared on this occasion to provide the Committees access

to the records responsive to this request.  In doing so, we

emphasize that abuse of the special access process strikes

at the heart of presidential confidentiality interests and

undermines the statutory framework and norms that govern

access to presidential records."

Mr. Kent, based on everything that we've discussed so

far concerning the sources of information behind some of the

requests, particularly Mr. Telizhenko, and the concerns

raised by the Ranking Members with respect to

disinformation, do you think that a briefing from the FBI's

Foreign Influence Task Force and the relevant members of the

intelligence community would be helpful for members of the

Committee to understand the relevant national security

risks?

MR. KENT:  I do have to say, I'm very respectful of

congressional prerogatives to obtain information.  I'm here

voluntary because I recognize oversight responsibilities. 

But I'm not here to critique how members conduct their

inquiries.  I will leave that to the two parties, the

majority and the minority, to discuss.  I'm here as a fact

witness, so I will stay on that point of view.

MR. SCHRAM:  Very diplomatic.  As not just a fact

witness, you're also an expert witness.  Is that correct? 
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You're an expert on Ukraine and Russia's disinformation

efforts in the region.

MR. KENT:  I think many people would say that I have

deep experience in those areas, yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  So based on your knowledge of Russian

disinformation efforts in the region, would it be prudent,

for anyone pursuing these issues, to obtain the relevant

information and to receive briefings from the experts in the

administration, in this administration, with respect to

foreign influence?

MR. KENT:  Again, I can testify to policy and to the

facts as I have known them.  As I suggested in my opening

comments, certain issues related to the intelligence

community should be addressed in other venues.

MR. SCHRAM:  The letter marked as Exhibit I--pardon me,

is it G, the July 16th?  Yes--refers to The Post's

reporting.  So I'd like to enter that article that it refers

to into the record.  This is a July 1, 2020, article in The

Washington Post, entitled "Hunt for Biden tapes in Ukraine

by Trump allies revives prospect of foreign interference." 

And again, this was provided to your counsel in advance of

the interview and to the majority.

And it's a long article and we won't read the whole

thing.  Just very quickly, on page 2 of the PDF, the second

paragraph--that's the paragraph that was cited in the
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letter, as you said it refers to Mr. Derkach.

On the following page, page 3, the last paragraph--and

you mentioned former Mayor Giuliani and part of his efforts.

That paragraph states, "Both Giuliani and Lev Parnas, a

Ukrainian American businessman who served as his fixer in

Ukraine, confirmed that they sought tapes of Biden last

year.  Giuliani said he received assistance in his pursuit

from a source within the State Department, who he claimed

pointed him to the dates of certain conversations between

Biden and Poroshenko by accessing an official U.S.

Government archive."

Mr. Kent, you are currently an official at the State

Department.  Is that an appropriate action by a State

Department employee, to access a U.S. official government

archive to provide information to outside parties, in this

case a personal representative of the President and a

Ukrainian American businessman?

MR. KENT:  I would say that when I read that in The

Washington Post it raised my eyebrows.  I have no knowledge

that that actually occurred.  I've talked about Ukrainians

who don't always tell the truth.  I will just say that I

don't know that that happened, but I would say that that

would be a matter for diplomatic security to investigate in

the State Department.  But I have no basis to judge whether

it happened.  I certainly would not have provided that
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information.

MR. SCHRAM:  Understood.  If true, why would that be

something that would be a matter for diplomatic security to

investigate?

MR. KENT:  It's the responsibility of diplomatic

security, in terms of inappropriate provision of information

in government hands.

MR. SCHRAM:  And as described, you would regard it as

inappropriate provision of government information.

MR. KENT:  I have no factual basis to assert that it

actually happened.  What we have is a claim by somebody who

I testified publicly last year was engaged in smear campaign

full of lies against our then-Ambassador.

MR. SCHRAM:  Moving on, on page 9 of the PDF--on page 9

we learn of a number of Ukrainians who have come in this

investigation.  We've spoken already of Derkach.  The second

paragraph says, "In addition to Derkach"--but I'll start

above that for context.

"Ukrainians with a variety of competing political and

personal agendas have claimed to be releasing or publicizing

the Biden taps, moves critics say align with both Russia's

and Trump's interests.

"In addition to Derkach, they include former Ukrainian

prosecutor Konstiantyn Kulyk"--and who is Mr. Kulyk?

MR. KENT:  He is what I referred to as a corrupt former
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deputy prosecutor who appear before Derkach during the press

conferences.  That was he, Konstiantyn Kulyk, known to be

associated and under control of Kolomoyskyi, a billionaire

corrupt oligarch.

MR. SCHRAM:  The paragraph continues, "former Ukrainian

diplomat Andrii Telizhenko," who we have spoken about at

length, "and the Ukrainian gas tycoon and former lawmaker

Oleksandr Onyshchenko, who have all interacted with Giuliani

or his associates.  Some have promised more leaks are coming

to help Trump later in the year."

Who is Mr. Onyshchenko?

MR. KENT:  Oleksandr Onyshchenko, aka Kadyrov, which

was his birth name, is a former lawmaker, and his father ran

the jail system in Soviet Uzbekistan, brutally.  He

allegedly also had roots in the KGB system, as Derkach did,

and was a classic Ukrainian politician/businessman, and he

eventually fled Ukraine.  And I would suggest, as you pursue

intelligence briefings, that you ask about Onyshchenko,

including--along with Derkach.

MR. SCHRAM:  Thank you.  I'm being reminded to enter

this as an exhibit.  If I haven't already said so, this will

be Exhibit H--I.  I am being corrected.  I, Exhibit I.

[Kent Exhibit I was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  Continuing with the article, "'This summer
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there will be more release of conversations, with full

transcripts,' said Telizhenko, who said he speaks regularly

with Giuliani in between aiding various Ukrainian tycoons,

some of them with Russian interests.  Telizhenko said he is

working independently from Derkach, noting, 'I am going to

release everything all together when the time is right.'

"Onyshchenko told The Post that the tapes that have

been released are his, part of a cache he said he obtained

from Poroshenko aides."

And I pause there to ask your view on the meaning and

implication of recordings between an American Vice President

and a Ukrainian President being released illicitly.

MR. KENT:  I do not know the provenance of the selected

recordings that have been released.  I would say that, to

the best of my knowledge from having received Britain

summaries, that they would track with conversations that did

happen between Vice President Biden and then-President

Poroshenko.

I will say that I have warned an advisor to President

Zelensky, because President Zelensky himself said, in his

May 21st press conference, that they understood that more

tapes would be coming out, that even if the tapes released

so far seemed to comport in the era of deep fakes that we

all needed to be very careful in listening to breaking

alleged tape recordings that they actually represented
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actual conversations.  

I would also say that Onyshchenko was an aide to

Poroshenko for several years.  When he left, allegedly he

had been taping conversations in Poroshenko's office for a

long time, and some congressional delegations--I don't know

if this happened to Senator Johnson or not--but for over a

year no one was allowed to wear a watch into Poroshenko's

office.  And the same place where we had to drop off cell

phones, we had to take off watches.  And so we were telling

people that they needed to leave their watches in the

Embassy cars, and, in fact, one time Will Hurd, the

Congressman from Texas who is a former CIA officer, he

collected all the Congressmen's offices and ran back down to

the car so no one left their watch in the box under the

control of the Ukrainian presidential staff.

And the reason, for over a year everyone was forced to

take their watches off is because allegedly there had been

tapes--Onyshchenko allegedly had made tapes wearing a luxury

watch that had a taping capability of conversations that

Poroshenko had made.

So that's just a little bit of background about taping. 

I would not dispute the fact that Onyshchenko may have had

access to conversations with Poroshenko, and he was known to

be a go-between between Poroshenko and Ukrainian politicians

for several years before they had a falling out and he fled
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the country.

MR. SCHRAM:  Is releasing tapes of high-level

conversations, in this case between a Vice President and a

President, for lack of a better word, is that kosher?  Is

that an ordinary part of the diplomatic process?

MR. KENT:  In my experience, both sides generally try

to release a statement or summary of the conversation, but

it's highly unusual to have tapes released of the actual

conversation.

MR. SCHRAM:  Do you think that represents malign

efforts?

MR. KENT:  I think the general assessment is that it

was done with an intent to embarrass.

MR. SCHRAM:  And to embarrass whom and for what--and

toward what end?

MR. KENT:  I think the campaigns, both last year,

spearheaded by former Prosecutor General Lutsenko and this

year, led by people like Derkach, Kulyk, and Onyshchenko

have multiple targets, both Ukrainian and American.

MR. SCHRAM:  And is one of those targets former Vice

President Biden?

MR. KENT:  That would apparently be the case, but I

would add also that in the Ukrainian context the primary

target recipient is probably Zelensky, but the target is

Poroshenko.
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MR. SCHRAM:  Understood.  Continuing in the article,

"Onyshchenko told The Post that the tapes that have been

released are his, part of a cache he said he obtained from

Poroshenko aides.

"He told the Russian state news service Sputnik in late

May that his lawyers and Giuliani's team had 'exchanged

hundreds of emails,' and that he has handed over materials

about Biden, which he said Trump's allies will make use of

in the fall.

"'because of the coronavirus, they are waiting,'

Onyshchenko told Sputnik.  'But in September, closer to the

elections, they will begin to use them more.'  He told The

Post the materials"--I will pause here to save Joe the

effort to intervene, that I am not reading this as a comment

on what the Committee has or has not done, only reporting

about what Onyshchenko claims.

Joe?

MR. FOLIO:  Yeah.  Thanks for that clarification, Zack,

and when this came up previously, we just made that point

because we thought it was unfair to read something into the

record where we had told the minority in confidence what the

answer was.  I think we--our press release is now public,

and because of this news and people running with it, we sort

of made clear that we never requested or received that

information.  So that's not in the record.  Thank you.
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MR. SCHRAM:  "'But in September, closer to the

elections, they will begin to use them more.'  He told The

Post the materials were being given to the Republican-led

Senate Homeland Security Committee, which is pursuing an

inquiry into Biden's activities in Ukraine."

Mr. Kent, with respect to Andrii Derkach, I'd like to

turn your attention to a document that he released, and

given your descriptions of him, I think I want to be clear

that by introducing this into the record we are in no way

endorsing it but rather trying to expose it.

This is a chart.  We will mark it as Exhibit J, if I

can do the alphabet successfully. 

[Kent Exhibit J was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  It's been provided to your counsel and

provided to the majority this morning.

It is extremely--

MR. KENT:  I saw it when he released it in June,

because I'm on it.

MR. SCHRAM:  That's a perfect segue.  Can you tell us a

bit about its release and what your impressions were?

MR. KENT:  I think--I believe this was June--I don't

know if it was the 22nd, 23rd, whenever his conference was. 

He held a press conference in Ukraine, flanked by

Konstiantyn Kulyk, the aforementioned corrupt former deputy
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prosecutor who is allied with oligarch Kolomoyskyi.  And it

is Andrii Derkach's delusional chart of how, I will say

informally, Joe Biden, George Soros, and George Kent control

Ukraine.  And I only say that with partial sarcasm, because

the chart is very difficult to read, but if you see, up on

the upper left-hand corner, he lists his line-up of alleged

Ukrainian heroes, accusers of international corruption in

Ukraine.  And it starts with himself, Andrii Derkach.  I'm

not sure who the second person is.  I don't have a version

blown up.

MR. SCHRAM:  We'll zoom in for you.

MR. KENT:  The second person, oh, Alexander Debinski. 

He fits in my category of liars.  He is an experienced

journalist working for Kolomoyskyi, the corrupt oligarch. 

He, along with Telizhenko, on national TV claimed I control

Ukraine by talking to the deputy foreign minister several

times a week.  That's absurd because there's no foreign

ministry in the world that controls the country.

The next person is Viktor Shokin--we talked about him--

Yuri Lutsenko, Konstiantyn Kulyk--we talked about him--

Telizhenko;  Nalyvaichenko, former head of the Security

Service; Volodymyr Boiko, who I think is just a blogger; and

then Andriy Artemenko, another corrupt former MP who had his

citizenship stripped, his Canadian citizenship.  He changed

his name to Andy Victor Kuchma, and he filed a FERA
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representation form representing Andrii Derkach's interests

here in the United States on July 8.

MR. SCHRAM:  So pausing there for a moment, so I

understand this correctly, this is, in Derkach's view,

representing who he sees to be the good guys in Ukraine, the

people who are actually pursuing corruption.  Is that a

fair, if somewhat juvenile, interpretation?

MR. KENT:  That would be an interpretation of this

piece of disinformation, yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  But you disagree with that assessment. 

Why?

MR. KENT:  Well, what you have on the screen there are

a bunch of combination, as I describe, people who lie,

people who are corrupt, people who advance Russia's

interests, and some who do all three.

MR. SCHRAM:  Switching to the other side of this

document, well, pausing first in the middle, you mentioned

the conspiracy theory that it's all just controlled by Vice

President Biden and George Soros, this part of the chart,

and then on the right side of the chart, in this green box,

is Derkach's view of good guys, "Accusers of International

Corruption in the USA."  I'm not going to ask you to read

this or go through it, but I will just point out that the

first photograph is Rudy Giuliani, the second is Bill Barr,

the third is Secretary of State Pompeo, and in the middle we
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have the three chairmen leading this investigation, Chairman

Graham, Chairman Johnson, and Chairman Grassley.  To be more

accurate, the specific investigation that you are testifying

in response to is just led by Johnson and Grassley.  Graham

has his own and different investigations.

Where do you appear in this chart?

MR. KENT:  I'm in the center as the coordinator or as

the Ukrainian-Russian term "curator" of the U.S.

Government's efforts to reform the Prosecutor General's

Office and carry out U.S. policy in Ukraine.

MR. SCHRAM:  And why would Mr. Derkach depict you in

this fashion?

MR. KENT:  It goes back to my role as the Senior

Anticorruption Coordinator, my role in advancing

anticorruption activities and rule-of-law programming.  And

just to point out, there are five local Ukrainian members of

our staff of the Embassy in Ukraine two rows below me, and

those are the local Ukrainian employees of the Embassy who'd

worked directly with Ukrainian law enforcement and Ukrainian

justice sector entities to forward reform policies.  So in

addition to three Ambassadors, me and a retired FBI agent,

they've listed and named, with photos, five Ukrainians who

work at our Embassy, promoting systemic institutional

reform.

MR. KENT:  The second blue column is entitled "Shokin's
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Legal Cases."  Can you help us understand what's depicted in

this column?

MR. GOSHORN:  Zack, this is Dan.  I'm sorry to

interrupt.  Mr. Kent, when you pointed out that there were

five Ukrainian nationals who worked at the Embassy, depicted

on the chart, do you think their depiction on this chart,

you know, endangers them?

MR. KENT:  I was--the first email I wrote after I saw

this chart was actually to them, expressing concern and

asking how they were feeling about having somebody who was a

member of Parliament and a known advancer of Russia's

interests put their photos and names out in the public

domain.  Two of their names had been outed by Derkach in a

press conference late last year, either in October or

November, so it was not new for two of them.  This was the

first time that they had pictures associated with that.  

Their spirits were high and they said they were, you

know, in a way, honored to be called out by a corrupted jerk

like that, and they were continuing to fight to make Ukraine

a better country.

MR. GOSHORN:  But you reached out to them because you

were concerned that they were listed on this document.  Is

that correct?

MR. KENT:  Correct.  I mean, I think for high-ranking

U.S. officials who are taking on corrupt influences, as I
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testified last year, it's not a surprise when corrupt

foreigners come after us, because we're going to after

undermining their interests.  It's different for, in this

case, nationals who work for us to get called out by name. 

We have diplomatic immunity.  They have to go back to their

homes every night. 

And I would point out one of the names in that box,

next to Karen Greenaway, the retired FBI agent, it says

"Members of the board at Shabunin's AntAC.  Shabunin is the

Director of the Anticorruption Center of Ukraine, and his

house was torched by arson the other night, two nights ago. 

Fortunately, he was staying at his mother's or mother-in-

law's.  But he has two young kids, and someone actually

burned his house down.

So the events of this week, if you look at the

headlines from Ukraine yesterday, they were dominated by an

arson attack against his house.  President Zelensky actually

issued a long Facebook message about this dangerous signal

that was sent.

So Ukrainians who take on corrupt interests do bring

risk to themselves and their families.  So that's why I was

concerned that Derkach was putting the names and faces of

our local Ukrainian employees at our embassy.

MR. GOSHORN:  Thank you for that.

MR. SCHRAM:  Returning to the chart, Mr. Kent, can you
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just--can you help us understand what it alleges?  So the

first column is Burisma.  Why don't you just start there and

very briefly just go through the columns.

MR. KENT:  Okay.  Several caveats here.  What you're

asking me to interpret is a master chart of disinformation

and malign influence.  So it doesn't mean anything on this

chart is real.  And going back to your original, or your

previous quote from the article in The Washington Post of

what Onyshchenko said, the master, if you will, craft of

creating disinformation is you take certain information that

may be true, fact that people know are true, and then you

sprinkle in the disinformation.  So that's the approach.

So the people on this chart are true, they exist, but

any assertion of their roles or what they do could well be

false, mixed in with the truth.  And so what this is is

click-bait for people who are looking for information to

fill in conspiracy theories.

So with that context, the first column, Burisma.  We've

been talking about that, and it lists some of the people we

talked about, other people we didn't.  The guy, Andriy

Kicha, I think may have been arrested this month for trying

to try to give another bribe to close another case against

Zlochevsky.  So that's the first chart.

The second chart, "Shokin's Legal Cases."  He wasn't

fired at Biden's request.  He was dismissed by the RADA, but
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in any case we've talked through the thought process.  What

the U.S. did was threaten to withhold a sovereign loan

guarantee.

MR. SCHRAM:  So I understand this column, in this case

Derkach is alleging that Shokin--and correct me if I'm

wrong, please--Shokin was actively pursuing corruption,

including corruption at Burisma, including corruption tied

to Hunter Biden, and that he was fired at Vice President

Biden's request.  That's what Derkach is--

MR. KENT:  I don't--yeah, I honestly--I--well, I won't

say exactly how I became aware of this.  Should I tell him

or no?

MR. HARTMAN:  Can we just take a quick--want to hold on

for a minute?

MR. KENT:  Yeah.

[Pause.]

MR. KENT:  I'm back.  Yeah, so I learned of this

because of a social media Facebook post of a high school

classmate of mine, and I just followed the links and found

the case.

So again, just because Andrii Derkach put it on a piece

of paper or on a chart, that's difficult to read on Google

Docs, doesn't mean that it actually is true.  So what he's

tried to do is create a chart with lots of lines of effort,

with alleged facts, some of which may be true, most of which
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probably are not, to try to convince people that there's

something there there, when there's nothing there, or

there's very little there.  

So that, you know, so it says "Shokin's Cases."  Again,

you've got Andrii Derkach asserting that Shokin had cases

open.  There are lots of, quote/unquote "investigations"

that get opened in Ukraine.  Oftentimes they're used to

extort money from people to have them shut down again. 

That's why I assessed prosecutorial service as a protection

racket and a self-enrichment device.

So I honestly don't know if there was ever a legitimate

case.  There may have been a case opened but I have no

knowledge, no facts to assess.

So that's--you know, again, I don't think I should go

through the individual tics because all this is is spaghetti

up on the wall to see what will stick.  That's a second

point of effort.

MR. SCHRAM:  And let's talk about some of the other

individuals depicted here.  This chart depicts Amos

Hochstein.  Who is Mr. Hochstein?

MR. KENT:  Mr. Hochstein, in the Obama administration,

at least the second term, was the Assistant Secretary for

Energy in the State Department.

MR. SCHRAM:  And why has he been included by Mr.

Derkach?
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MR. KENT:  Honestly, I can't--again, I have assessed

the whole chart as a master work in disinformation by Mr.

Derkach.  I honestly don't know why Mr. Derkach would

include him, although I think it's well-known that

Hochstein, maybe in the past, worked for Biden.  They

certainly have an association.  

But there's NABU.  That's the National Anticorruption

Bureau.  The next column is "Reforming the Prosecutor's

Office."  The next column is "International Technical

Assistance," and, you know, as I testified in my opening

statement, $4.3 billion of appropriated assistance.  Looks

like Derkach may have picked and chosen a number of

programs.  Whether those are actual programs, actual

amounts, or actual implementers, you know, that would have

to be investigated.  I don't know.

The next column, "Natfogaz," that is the state-owned

gas company.  When I referred to an 8 percent GDP gap loss

through corruption, that was that company, Naftogaz.  So I

think most experts would say--are people there?  I've just

lost much of the pictures.

MR. SCHRAM:  We're here.

MR. KENT:  Okay.  So after the Revolution of Dignity,

probably the two greatest anticorruption achievements were

having a competent, honest national bank, central bank,

cleaning up the corrupt banks, and getting competent
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management at Naftogaz and closing an 8 percent GDP hole. 

And just by making it break even, they basically saved 8

percent of their GDP reducing theft.

The next one, "Domestic Government Loan Bonds," I

honestly couldn't give you any more detail on that except

there always are schemes--no, that's financial markets,

people looking to short the market or make money off bond

trading. 

And then the last three columns, it looks like it says

"International Corruption."  I'm not sure what that is. 

You'd have to zoom in and see what the allegation is.  I'm

sure it's nothing actual.  Then there's the "Poroshenko

Tapes."  That gets into what he has been releasing in drips

and drabs.  And then the last box says "Supervisory Boards,"

and, you know, the chart I have printed out doesn't have

high enough resolution to show what's there, but there may

be allegations that certain people are on certain boards.

So that's the chart, and again, I think if you look

down the other layers, what Derkach has done in the last,

starting late last fall, or around the time of the

impeachment hearings, he starting having press conferences,

filing legal complaints, which is his right as a member of

Parliament, and opening up alleged investigations, or

demanding that courts and law enforcement open up

investigations on programs and decisions related to these
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lines of efforts.  And I think what he has done is

memorialize, in the lower parts of each column, what he has

done, and suggested if people want more information they can

click and find all the false additional disinformation that

he's put on--he sort of populated on the Web in the last 8

or 10 months.

So this has been a long-term disinformation,

misinformation effort on the part of Mr. Derkach and his

associates.

MR. SCHRAM:  You called it disinformation.  You called

it misinformation.  Would you also call it conspiracy

theory?

MR. KENT:  I'm not going to--I've used the terms that I

feel comfortable with in how we work as diplomats.  I will

leave the legalese to the lawyers.

MR. SCHRAM:  Fair enough.  So we were just discussing

Mr. Hochstein, and you'll note that he's included in this

chart.  Are you aware that he is also a witness to this

investigation, that the majority has called him as a witness

to this investigation?

MR. KENT:  One of the letters that either the majority

or minority entered into evidence in this hearing mentioned

his name.  That was the first time I read his name

associated with this inquiry was today.

MR. SCHRAM:  You'll see Victoria Nuland is on this
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chart.  Do you know who Ms. Nuland is?

MR. KENT:  She was the former Assistant Secretary of

the European Bureau, and so I, through several layers, I've

reported to her during the time of her job as Assistant

Secretary, yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  And are you aware that at the Chairman's

initiation, and on a party line vote, the Committee has

authorized a subpoena for the testimony of Ms. Nuland

related to allegations of corruption with respect to Burisma

and Vice President Biden?

MR. KENT:  That's the first I've heard of that,

although in the same document that was introduced this

morning that mentioned Hochstein also had her name listed. 

So this is all new to me.  I had not been aware of that

before this morning.

MR. SCHRAM:  And you've seen that Ambassador Pyatt is

also on this chart?

MR. KENT:  Yes.  I worked for him for a year and a half

in Kiev.  He is now our Ambassador to Greece.

MR. SCHRAM:  And you are aware that Ambassador Pyatt

has also been asked to testify by the majority with respect

to this investigation?

MR. KENT:  His name was on the letter of April 30th,

that our congressional liaison provided to me.

MR. SCHRAM:  In the last hour with the majority you
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spent some time talking about the moral hazard of

association.  Would you regard it as a moral hazard to

associate with Mr. Derkach?

MR. KENT:  I would advise everyone to steer clear of

Mr. Derkach, yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  Would that include steering clear of his

allegations?

MR. KENT:  Yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  Would you regard it as a moral hazard to

associated with Mr. Telizhenko?

MR. KENT:  Yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  Would you advise that everyone steer clear

of Mr. Telizhenko?

MR. KENT:  I would.

MR. SCHRAM:  And would that include his allegations?

MR. KENT:  Again, based on my personal experience and

seeing what he says and does, I don't think he is a reliable

witness or interlocutor.

MR. SCHRAM:  Would you regard it as a moral hazard to

associate with Mr. Onyshchenko?

MR. KENT:  I definitely would, yes.

MR. SCHRAM:  And would you regard it as a moral hazard

to advance his allegations?

MR. KENT:  I would simply say anything he says cannot

be considered credible and has to be considered as having
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other motives.

MR. SCHRAM:  Would advancing the allegations of Mr.

Telizhenko, Mr. Derkach, Mr. Onyshchenko be in the United

States' national interest?

MR. KENT:  As I mentioned in my opening statement, I

think all of us who take an oath to protect and defend the

Constitution of the United States need to be very careful in

how we treat any information or allegations that come from

any of these individuals.

MR. SCHRAM:  With that I'd like to ask Dan Goshorn if

he has any questions.

MR. GOSHORN:  Yeah.  I just wanted to ask one follow-up

about that chart.  You don't need to pull it back up, I

don't think.  But just to summarize, would you say that

Derkach--that his reason for creating that chart and making

it public, was it to fight corruption in Ukraine or to

advance his own corrupt interests?

MR. KENT:  I do not want to try to get into the mind of

Mr. Derkach.  I would just say that I wouldn't treat this as

a serious document, and I would treat it for what I believe

it to be is a part of his campaign to try to influence

perceptions of people inside Ukraine as well as in the

United States.

MR. GOSHORN:  Thank you.  I've lost track of time. 

Where are we?
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MR. SCHRAM:  A few more minutes.

MR. GOSHORN:  A few more?  Okay.

MR. FOLIO:  One more minute.

MR. GOSHORN:  One more minute.  Well, I have one more

question.  Just like in a hearing I'll ask a long question,

and since I start before it ends.

So this morning you were asked about the provision of

lethal aid to Ukraine, and can you, I guess, explain your

understanding of the United States' position?  And what I'm

interested in knowing, in particular, about the provision of

lethal aid to Ukraine is what was the position of our allies

in Europe about whether that was appropriate at the time?

MR. KENT:  I believe that Angela Merkel is on the

record as having thought that provision of lethal aid was a

bad idea.  I also think the Secretary of State, the

Secretary of Defense, the Chairman of Joint Chiefs under the

Obama administration testified, when asked before Congress,

their personal opinion that we should provide lethal aid. 

It was the position of the National Security Advisor, Susan

Rice, and President Barack Obama that we should not.

I, along with most people that I know of in the State

Department, were in favor of lethal aid during the previous

administration, and endorsed the decision in the current

administration to provide it.

MR. GOSHORN:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's it for me, Joe.
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MR. FOLIO:  Great.  Mr. Kent, we've been going for an

hour.  It's 3:25.  Would you like to take a brief break?

MR. KENT:  I'm actually okay now.  Let me ask my two

colleagues here.  I would say at this point I'm ready to

power through.  I may have to ask for a bathroom break

before we get to the end of the hour, but at this point I

would say let's keep on going.

MR. FOLIO:  Okay.  Hearing no other objections, we will

do that.

So I'm going to hand the proverbial microphone back to

Mr. Wittmann.  I just wanted to clarify a few points. 

First, we in the majority had not seen that chart until it

was provided by the minority this morning, but I will note

given the minority's stated concerns about disinformation it

is curious that they have now formally entered it into a

congressional record, along with numerous press reports and

statements, numerous Ukrainians'.  I think that Mr. Kent has

questioned their veracity.  So I think there's only one part

of this investigation that's entering what people have

described as disinformation into the record.

With regard to Mr. Telizhenko, I'm not sure if you're

aware, Mr. Kent, but Chairman Johnson sought to subpoena Mr.

Telizhenko's records only for the 13 months that he was

working for Blue Star Strategies, which we thought, and

Chairman Johnson thought was extraordinarily interesting
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that he was working for that company that had contacts at

the highest levels of the Obama administration for 13

months.  But there was not bipartisan support for

understanding what he was doing there, and, in fact, there's

been much resistance to understanding what he did for that

firm without any clear explanation.

On the--continuing the subpoena process, so for Ms.

Victoria Nuland, the Committee has not authorized a subpoena

for Ms. Nuland or for anyone else with regard to the Ukraine

investigation.  I think Mr. Schram misspoke.  The Committee

has authorized a subpoena with regard to Ms. Nuland for the

Russia investigation, specifically with regard to her

involvement in the State Department accepting information

from Christopher Steel and others that were advanced as part

of the FBI investigation, Crossfire Hurricane.

And finally, with regard to the briefings that you were

asked about, for the record, the Committee has received

FBI's final guidance as to it position on what we should and

should not be doing in this investigation, and the minority

knows exactly where the requests for a member briefing

stand.  

And given all of that, we look forward to returning the

conversation, Mr. Kent, to your emails and your policy

decisions, and--

MR. SCHRAM:  Sorry, Joe.  I'm not sure I understood
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you.  You said the FBI has given us their final guidance?

MR. FOLIO:  So, I mean, I just didn't want to make that

public and I don't want to make it public in the record. 

But there was a request as to particular individuals,

whether or not the Committee should receive documents, which

have talked to them, and the FBI gave its answer to the

Committee during the staff briefing.  And then you and I,

Zack, have both followed up with the FBI, as well as members

of the intelligence community, and requested additional

briefing, and I think it's clear to us what those answers

are and where they stand.

But again--

MR. SCHRAM:  I guess I don't agree to the last part,

but neither--I don't agree that it's either final nor clear. 

But I agree we don't have to have this conversation on the

record.

MR. FOLIO:  And I'm going to turn it back over to Mr.

Wittmann, who will return to your emails, Mr. Kent.  Thank

you.

MR. WITTMANN:  Hi, Mr. Kent.  We're going to go to

Exhibit 9, and actually I'm going to switch my mic over.

MR. KENT:  Can you give us a Bates number?

MR. WITTMANN:  Happy to do that.  It is Bates numbers

369 to 376, and this is a long email chain, and my questions

about this record are only going to be on Bates number 373. 
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And just let me know whenever you're ready, Mr. Kent.

[Kent Exhibit No. 9 was marked

for identification.]

MR. KENT:  I have 373 in front of me.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  On August 29, 2016, you emailed

John Herbst and William Taylor, a message that included a

schedule regarding Mr. Yarema's visit to Washington, D.C.,

in September 2016.  That schedule is on 374, Bates number

374.  And the center of that schedule that you forwarded is-

-the center of the schedule is Mr. Andii Telizhenko.

In your email you wrote about Mr. Yarema and the

closing of the case against Mr. Zlochevsky.  According to

your email, you called it, quote, "a gross miscarriage of

justice that undermined months of U.S. assistance," end

quote.  In that email you also mentioned that Mr.

Zlochevsky, quote, "put Hunter Biden on the board of his

energy company," end quote, and that quote appears on 374,

at the top.

Mr. Kent, why did you mention that Mr. Zlochevsky put

Hunter Biden on Burisma's board, in this email to Mr. Herbst

and Mr. Taylor?

MR. KENT:  Well, again, this is, I think, the third or

fourth time I have been asked the question.  I tend to want

to, when I have a conversation with people to make sure that

they are aware of all the facts, and this was obviously a
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fact in play with this set of issues.  So it's the same

question and the same answer, perhaps slightly different

worded, that--that's one of the angles of the Zlochevsky

Burisma cluster that those of us who were representing U.S.

Government interests were dealing with in 2015-2016.

MR. WITTMANN:  You noted, and rightly so, that we've

asked the question multiple times, but only because the

point has been raised different times in these emails.  So

that's why we just want to keep asking you every time.

MR. KENT:  Well, as I said in my opening statement,

those of us who knew the issue well at the Embassy--

Ambassador Pyatt, the economic section, and I--essentially

engaged in what ended up being a two-year campaign of

education of people in Washington, in the think tank

community, and when I mentioned that in my opening statement

this is what I was specifically referring to, Taylor and

Herbst, representing USIP and the Atlantic Council.  The

rest of the Embassy, we went through that last time with

USAID, who was not aware of it, and then publicly that was

in reference to Ambassador Pyatt's blistering speech in

Odessa in September 2015, when he called out both Shokin and

mentioned the lack of activity against Zlochevsky.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.  And in just a few more

questions we're going to talk about that speech very

shortly.  But before we get there, in February 2015, Viktor
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Shokin became the Prosecutor General following Yarema.  Is

that correct?

MR. KENT:  Correct.  I think I said February 10th, to

the best of my knowledge.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  What was your perspective of Mr.

Shokin at the beginning of his tenure at the Prosecutor

General's Office?

MR. KENT:  Initially we didn't know that much about

him.  His previous tenure as Deputy Prosecutor General was

quite early.  I think it may have been through the 2002-ish

period.  I arrived first in Ukraine in 2004, for my first

tour, so I was not there when he was in office.  But I

immediately Ukrainians what they thought, and I would say

that the response was mixed.  It wasn't overwhelmingly

negative.  They said that he had a very close association

with Poroshenko, which was, in some ways important, trust in

the President.  He had potentially possibly been helpful in

early stages of the investigation of the murder of the

country's leading journalist in 2000, Georgiy Gongadze. 

And so that was the potential positive, and then the

rest was going to be proven in action once he was in office.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  During Shokin's tenure at the

PGO, were you ever made aware of individuals in the

Prosecutor General's Office accepting bribes?

MR. KENT:  Well, as I've testified, I, and many other
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people who have spent time, considered the whole

prosecutorial system a protection racket and self-enrichment

mechanism.  When I went into the Prosecutor General's Office

for the first time, on February 3, 2015, the Embassy car was

directed to go into the underground parking garage, because

there was no public parking on--we would've had to park

illegally in front of the Prosecutor General's Office, which

obviously is not something you want to do, for appearance

purposes.

I was impressed, would be a diplomatic word, at the

late-model SUVs, I would say the starting price $100,000 and

up, cars being driven by Prosecutors General whose salaries,

nominally, were only $1,000 or 2 a month.  So I think it was

a widespread assumption and the cars that they were driving

were a confirmation that Prosecutors General were living

well beyond their means of a public sector salary.

MR. WITTMANN:  Were you aware of whether Mr. Zlochevsky

attempted to bribe, or bribed, individuals in Mr. Shokin's

office?

MR. KENT:  The previous set of Prosecutors General, and

keeping in mind that I had a conversation a week before

Shokin became Prosecutor General, I had the second-highest

ranking prosecutor in the country claim to me that

Zlochevsky or his agents had paid a bribe of $7 million.  To

be honest, the period when we're working with Shokin, at the
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request of President Poroshenko, was to try to replicate

institutional reform, and what Poroshenko did was he brought

in a Georgian, David Sakvarelydze, who had been a Deputy

Prosecutor General in Georgia, I believe, as a second

reformer to another named Vitaly Kasco.  And those were the

two people that our Department of Justice and FBI elements

of the Embassy worked with to do what Poroshenko asked us to

do, which is help reform the prosecutorial service under

Shokin.

So that was the agenda.  That was the request.  And

that was our main focus starting probably in March through

the summer.

MR. WITTMANN:  So given all of those efforts, were you

ever made aware of anyone under Shokin's--in Shokin's

office, under his leadership, specifically accepting bribes

from Mr. Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  I had no knowledge, nor was that a focus of

our efforts with Shokin's team, and ultimately had nothing

to do with the reasons why we backed his removal.

MR. WITTMANN:  So just to be clear, under Mr. Yarema's

tenure you were made aware of people in the PGO accepting

bribes from Mr. Zlochevsky, but under Mr. Shokin's tenure

you had no knowledge or information that individuals that

were working for him, for Mr. Shokin, accepted bribes from

Mr. Zlochevsky?
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MR. KENT:  What I'm aware of is that U.S. officials

pressed Ukrainian officials to reopen the case and fix the

mistake, including prosecuting the corrupt prosecutors that

shut down the case, based on both the presumption, the

suspension, and the acknowledgement of the second-highest

ranking prosecutor in the country that a bribe had been paid

to shut the case against Zlochevsky.  

So we pressed that point, but that wasn't the focus of

our systemic reform efforts that we were asked to help by

the President of Ukraine, Poroshenko, nor was it related to

why we became disenchanted with Shokin.

MR. WITTMANN:  Did anyone in Shokin's office, during or

after Mr. Shokin's time as Prosecutor General, ever inform

you that anyone in that office had accepted a bribe from Mr.

Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  Mr. Shokin did not like us.  He did not want

to meet with us.  And I only saw him in person once, and

that was unexpected and unplanned.  So he tried to avoid us

like the plague, and particularly after he destroyed the

Diamond Prosecutors case and essentially put another six

months of U.S. Government effort to waste.

MR. WITTMANN:  Just so I'm clear, is it fair to say

that the answer to that question is no, that no one under

Shokin, or Shokin himself, ever informed you of anyone in

that office accepting a bribe from Mr. Zlochevsky?
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MR. KENT:  Well, I would say that I think I mentioned

before that we later heard from somebody in the Prosecutor

General's Office.  I cannot say exactly when that was.  It

could have been during the time that Shokin was the

Prosecutor General, but would not have been from Shokin or

one of his allies.  Of the individuals, the prosecutors who

allegedly shut the case against Zlochevsky in December 2014,

that would have happened prior to Shokin coming into office. 

It would not have been about a bribe that Zlochevsky

allegedly paid to a prosecutor when Shokin was Prosecutor

General.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.  For the people that had

allegedly accepted that bribe, those individuals in the

PGO's office, whatever happened to those people?  Were they

dismissed?  Did they remain on staff?

MR. KENT:  There was a new institution stood up, based

on Ukrainian law, called the National Bureau of

Investigation, that took over the investigatory role of the

prosecutorial service, and unlike other new law enforcement

entities that had a transparent competition process, the two

individuals, as head of the Economic Crimes Unit in the

Prosecutor General's Office, Roman Truba and a woman named

Olha Varchenko were appointed the new heads of that

organization.  And because of their association with

shutting the case against Zlochevsky, the FBI and the
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Embassy refused to have anything to do with them, nor would

we train and help support the development of that entity.

MR. WITTMANN:  Was that entity contained within the PGO

or was that separate?

MR. KENT:  It was a separate new organization.

MR. WITTMANN:  So would it be fair to say that the

individuals that were associated with accepting the bribe

were no longer in the PGO's office?

MR. KENT:  That's correct.  I honestly do not know the

date when the State Bureau of Investigation was stood up. 

They did not owe allegiance to either Yarema or to Shokin. 

They had different lines of authority, in terms of political

cover. 

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  I want to turn to the speech that

Ambassador Pyatt made that you had previously referenced, on

September 24, 2015.  It sounds like you're familiar with

this speech, given that you've referenced it already.  What

was the purpose of Ambassador Pyatt giving this speech?

MR. KENT:  I will a couple of things.  One, I wasn't in

country when he gave the speech.  I did a one-month study of

Ukrainian.  But when I arrived in October, a month later, it

was still reverberating.  It probably is the single most, if

you will, in terms of a speech that made an impact and took

notice.  

Because we--this was in the context it was after the
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Diamond Prosecutor Affair, and it was after the failure of

action all throughout 2016 to advance the cause of

anticorruption systemic reform, or in cases.  And so I don't

remember--it was in Odessa, so it wasn't in Kiev.  It was

some sort of forum.  Pyatt was invited to speak and the

decision was made to discuss the theme of the failure of

anticorruption action.  

And so that is why it is a touchstone speech, because

normally, I would say in diplomatic practice, you advocate

privately and not shame publicly.  But in certain occasions,

after extensive effort, sometimes the private cajoling then

becomes a public message.  And so Ambassador Pyatt and the

Embassy team decided that was the moment.  Enough was at

risk that we wanted to go public and to raise our concerns. 

So it wasn't just Ukrainian officials but the entire country

heard how concerned we were.

MR. WITTMANN:  And was this speech vetted by other

senior officials at the State Department?

MR. KENT:  Speeches by Ambassadors in country are the

prerogative of the Ambassador.  Normally when Ambassadors

seek to place op-eds or talk to international media--CNN,

Fox News--those requests would go through the State

Department Press Office.  But Ambassadors speaking in

country to an in-country forum, that's his prerogative as

the President's personal representative in country to make
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that decision.

MR. WITTMANN:  Do you know if this speech was vetted by

Vice President Biden's office?

MR. KENT:  I cannot answer that question, but I would

say that would not be normal.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  You mentioned that this speech

touched on concerns about the anticorruption agenda in

Ukraine.  Was one of the goals of this speech to criticize

Mr. Shokin?

MR. KENT:  That arguably was one of the main thrusts of

the speech, yes, because we had identified him as a--as I

mentioned in my opening remarks--as a chief impediment to a

critical goal, and we had a fiduciary responsibility, having

spent hundreds of thousands of dollars that were then

wasted, and because the success of Ukraine was in our

success, that a corrupt Prosecutor General who was not just

preventing progress in his own organization but was going

after people in other organizations, that this was

containing the damage.

MR. WITTMANN:  The speech, based on public reporting--

we don't have a copy of it in front of us--but just based on

public reporting, the speech appears to talk about the

Zlochevsky case and the results of what happened because of

the situation in the Prosecutor General's Office.  Is that

your recollection of what Ambassador Pyatt spoke about in
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the speech?

MR. KENT:  Yes, with the caveat that this was a speech

delivered in September of 2016.  I read it in October of

2016, and haven't actually read it now for close to four

years.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.  Would you say that the goal

of this speech, another goal of this speech was to put Mr.

Shokin on notice to take action to take on corruption inside

and outside of the PGO's office?

MR. KENT:  I think to be honest, at this point we had

written him off.  We were putting Poroshenko on notice and

calling Shokin out publicly.

MR. WITTMANN:  And just for the record, the speech was

in September 2015.  Correct?

MR. KENT:  Correct.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  I'd like to turn to Exhibit 10.

[Kent Exhibit No. 10 was

marked for identification.]

MR. WITTMANN:  Mr. Kent, this is an article regarding a

news report indicating, on February 2, 2016, that Prosecutor

General Shokin's office had filed a petition to seize

property belonging to Mr. Zlochevsky.  At this time, were

you aware of the actions taken by Mr. Shokin's office

against Mr. Zlochevsky?

MR. HARTMAN:  Just one second.  I'm not sure we have
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that document.

MR. KENT:  It's on the screen for me.

MR. HARTMAN:  It's on the screen but I don't think we

have a copy.  Is that correct?

MR. WITTMANN:  Mr. Folio just emailed the document.

MR. HARTMAN:  Well, I guess there's too many pages and

I think Mr. Kent should probably have a chance to at least

take a look at the entire thing.  Unless the question

doesn't require it, in which case I suppose you can ask.

MR. WITTMANN:  So the text on the document is only on

the first page, and I think the first paragraph that's on

the screen will probably be our substance at first.

MR. HARTMAN:  Go ahead with your question.

MR. WITTMANN:  Sure.

MR. HARTMAN:  Go ahead with your question.

MR. WITTMANN:  Sure.  At the time, on February 2016,

Mr. Kent, were you aware of the actions taken by Mr.

Shokin's office against Mr. Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  I was not.  I went back to Washington from

Thanksgiving Day until March 23rd, to do another three and a

half months of Ukrainian training.  So I was here at

Arlington studying Ukrainian in February.  So no, I was not

aware of this particular action, based on what I'm reading

right now is a wire service report, which has claim of the

Prosecutor General's Office.
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MR. WITTMANN:  Were you--when did you become aware of

the actions of Mr. Shokin's office against Mr. Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  I mean, you're showing me a document which

is--the headline says the court seizes the property.  Then

the text says it's being seized according to the Prosecutor

General's Office.  What I will say is that, you know, this

is a--I believe Mr. Shokin may have been on sick leave at

this particular moment, because he only came back to the

office for several weeks in March of 2016, and then he was

dismissed at the end of March.

So again, I'm reading this as a claim of the Ukrainian

authorities.

MR. HARTMAN:  Can we just take a break for one second?

MR. WITTMANN:  Sure.

MR. HARTMAN:  Can we break for one second?

MR. WITTMANN:  Go ahead and take the break.

[Pause.]

MR. HARTMAN:  Hi.  So I'm sorry for that delay. 

Obviously we want to sit here quietly and let you ask

whatever you need to ask to do your job, and we do not want

to interfere with that.  But, you know, to put up a thing

that he hasn't seen and ask him about the factual basis for

it is just not a particularly reliable way.  We haven't

talked to him about it.  We don't know what it is.  We don't

know whether he even heard of these circumstances even
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occurring.  So we just want to be careful about that.  We

don't want to stop you.  It's really problematic to ask

about facts in an article that he's never seen before, that

he doesn't know anything about, and sort of ramble about it.

MR. GOSHORN:  Scott?

MR. HARTMAN:  It's a concern of ours.  We don't want to

mislead you.  We don't want to give bad information.  But I

just want to express that concern.

MR. GOSHORN:  Scott Wittmann, are you back?

MR. KENT:  And to summarize, I was not in Ukraine in

February.  I was studying Ukrainian in Arlington, Virginia,

and was not aware of this claim by the Prosecutor's Office

in February of 2016, at the time.

MR. GOSHORN:  So just--I want to raise a point about

this article you raised.  This is the subject of a

Washington Post Fact Checker story.  It was rated four

Pinocchios for those who keep track of such a thing.  

The raid actually took place in 2015, in February of

2015, and there was a kind of complex legal maneuvering

going on in Ukraine, which I don't understand where the raid

occurred, and then it was unwound and then reinstated.  And

I believe this article that you just posted, Scott, refers

to the reinstatement but not the actual raid on Zlochevsky's

assets.

MR. HARTMAN:  I can't--you know, we're here with Mr.
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Kent and he's trying to help you out, and it's just a very

awkward situation when she's shown that.  And I'm not saying

if it's true or not true.

MR. GOSHORN:  I'm happy to circulate a link to the Fact

Checker story I'm discussing.  Maybe I have my facts wrong,

but that's my understanding.  I'm happy to circulate that to

everybody right now.

MR. DOWNEY:  So, Mr. Kent, this is Brian Downey.  So

your time in Ukraine or outside of Ukraine, back in

Arlington, you're not aware of Viktor Shokin's office ever

conducting a raid on Mr. Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  I have no factual basis based on information

or my personal experience to make an assessment of that

claim or question.

MR. DOWNEY:  And Mr. Goshorn's point about The

Washington Post article saying that the raid, if it did

occur, may have occurred February of 2015, in February of

2015, who was the Prosecutor General of Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  Well, it was Yarema until February 9th, and

it started, on February 10th, being named Viktor Shokin.

MR. DOWNEY:  Would it be common for you, as DCM, to

come back after your training in March of 2016, to not know

that a raid might have occurred on Mr. Zlochevsky by the

PGO's office?

MR. KENT:  The presumption behind that question is that
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the U.S. Government knows everything that happens everywhere

in the world.  That's just not true.  That's Hollywood.  So

no, I do not--I mean, it's a country of 40 million people

that was in a war with Russia, and the answer is no, the

U.S. Ambassador and the DCM do not know what 25,000

prosecutors and 180,000 police officer are doing on a daily

basis in Ukraine.

MR. DOWNEY:  Did anyone within the PGO, Mr. Lutsenko,

who succeeded Mr. Shokin, ever describe to you that the

PGO's office raided Mr. Zlochevsky's property in prior

years?

MR. KENT:  What Mr. Lutsenko claimed, and did, was

settle the charges against Zlochevsky, downgrade it from

money-laundering to nonpayment of taxes, and accept a

settlement and a payment that allowed Mr. Zlochevsky to

return to Ukraine after that payment was made.

MR. DOWNEY:  And during that time under Mr. Lutsenko,

we, the U.S. Government, had, I think, Mr. Vitvitsky

embedded in the PGO's office.  Did he ever brief you that

any type of raid occurred on Mr. Zlochevsky's property?

MR. KENT:  Mr. Vitvitsky, former New Jersey prosecutor

who also served as a resident legal advisor in Ukraine from

2007 to 2009, was a capacity-building advisor for Lutsenko

in late 2016 and late 2017.  We kept up a dialogue both by

email and meetings.  I believe one of his emails to me is

Page 184

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



185

part of the records collection.  I do not recall him ever

raising that issue with me, no.  But I'm not ruling out that

we had a conversation.  I do not recall any such

conversation.

MR. DOWNEY:  Scott?

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you.  What, if any, knowledge or

information did you have about actions Mr. Shokin may have

taken against Mr. Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  We had a lot of knowledge of the actions

that Mr. Shokin took and things that he didn't take.  Among

the things that he did was in destroying the internal

inspection unit that was supported with U.S. taxpayer

dollars.  He wiretapped illegally the houses of the

individuals.  His agents threatened to plant drugs on them. 

They threatened the parents of those individuals.  He fired

them.  He transferred them.  He threatened civil society

members.  He forced the resignation of members of other

organizations.  He appointed his first ex-wife's relatives

as prosecutors in regional positions known to be corrupt. 

He prevented the prosecution of his former driver in the

infamous Diamond Prosecutor case.  That's what we knew Mr.

Shokin did.

What he didn't do was prosecute members of the old

order who had stolen money from Ukraine.  He did not

prosecute the police who shot the demonstrators, the
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Heavenly 100 on Maidan and Berkut.  And so, as I testified

last fall, he protected the corrupt, he disrupted

prosecutions of those who had committed crimes, and he

persecuted those who were fighting corruption.  So that was

our summary assessment of the one-year tenure of Mr. Shokin

as Prosecutor General of the country.

MR. WITTMANN:  And what was your summary assessment of

actions that Mr. Shokin's office took against Mr.

Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  As I've said, I was not aware of actions

that he took against Mr. Zlochevsky.

MR. WITTMANN:  During your time as DCM, could you

describe the change in position of the view of Mr. Shokin,

from when he became Prosecutor General until when he was

dismissed?

MR. KENT:  Right.  So when he came in, in February, we

were asked by President Poroshenko to work with him and a

staff, and specifically, as I mentioned, with this new

Deputy Prosecutor General, David Sakvarelydze, to stand up

an internal affairs unit to go after corruption inside the

Prosecutor General's service.  So it was delegated

authority, you know, Shokin was the main man.  He told us,

actually, he didn't have time to meet with us because he was

busy preparing cases against the policemen who had shot the

protestors on the Maidan, a case that he never brought to
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court.

So he delegated to us to meet with these two Deputy

Prosecutor Generals, Sakvarelydze and Kasco.  They set up

the Internal Affairs Unit.  The first two cases, proof of

concept case, there was one that was known as the Poltava

case and the other was the Diamond Prosecutors Affair.  I

think Mr. Shokin must have been on leave at the time of the

first case, Poltava.  It was a raid against a corrupt

prosecutor.  It was done with legal wiretap authorities.  '

There are so many corrupt prosecutors that when the

unit moved in they were talking to the then-Acting, a guy

named Hulser, to inform him.  He then called out to Poltava

to warn the corrupt judge about the prosecutor.  But there

were so many of them that he warned the wrong corrupt

prosecutor.

So that case went forward, and then almost immediately,

perhaps the next week, the so-called Diamond Prosecutor case

went forward.  And so in that period of June-July, our first

two test cases, having spent three months hiring, training

up, finding test cases, by the end of July the relationship

had soured and it went downhill from there.

And that's when the society protests started.  That's

when we were having difficult discussions about what would

come next on the internal inspectorate unit, because it was

set up informally but there needed to be a formal change
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regulation, signed by Shokin, to establish the new unit, and

he was resisting doing so.  We had a former resident legal

advisor who was an inspector within the Department of

Justice, Rob Storch, come out, and he worked on a draft

regulation that were asking Shokin to sign.  Shokin refused

to sign that.  

And so that was the difficult relations that we had

with Shokin in his final months.

MR. WITTMANN:  So just to track, just to make sure I

understand, this is June-July 2015, and now are we getting

closer to the fall, around the time that Ambassador Pyatt

gave his speech in 2016?

MR. KENT:  The honeymoon ended in the summer over the

Poltava and Diamond Prosecutor cases, and then it was

September when Ambassador Pyatt gave his public speech.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.  Thank you.

MR. DOWNEY:  Hey Scott, real quick.

MR. WITTMANN:  Sure.

MR. DOWNEY:  Mr. Kent, I think you mentioned Rob

Storch.  Could you just repeat what he did, or his

involvement?

MR. KENT:  He had served at the same time as Bohdan

Vitvitsky.  We signed what's known as a threshold agreement

of the Millennial Challenge Corporation.  They weren't,

because of the corruption, in the system, assessed in the
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system under the Millennial Challenge Corporation's scoring. 

They weren't eligible for a compact, but there's something

called a threshold program which usually tries to help get a

country to the point when they're eligible for a big

compact.  It oftentimes focuses on anticorruption.  And we

used some of those resources to bring two prosecutors to

advise the government of Ukraine on changes to get them

qualified.  And the two prosecutors, I was not in Ukraine at

that point but in 2007-2009, the two were Bohdan Vitvitsky

and Rob Storch.

So he had worked in Ukraine for two years.  He knew the

system well.  He, at the time, was at the Department of

Justice in an inspector general capacity, and so it was--he

knew the country well and he knew the topic well, and so he

was a perfect expert to come in and try to help the

Ukrainians as he had done for two years, a decade earlier,

to improve their legislation.  So that was why,

specifically, we reached back to him to help.

MR. DOWNEY:  Thank you.

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you, Brian.  

Vice President Biden publicly claimed that he

threatened to withhold $1 billion in U.S. loan guarantees

unless Ukraine President Poroshenko fired Viktor Shokin. 

Did the U.S. Government officially link $1 billion of loan

guarantees to the termination of Mr. Shokin?
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MR. KENT:  The message was conveyed, and I testified to

this last fall, that in addition to the other conditions

that we had discussed for the next and third loan guarantee

that dismissal of Shokin as a Prosecutor General would be

required before we would move forward with the sovereign

loan guarantee, correct.

MR. WITTMANN:  And for the record, could you please--so

a couple of things.  First, when did Vice President Biden

make this claim to Mr. Poroshenko?

MR. KENT:  I believe, but I'm not entirely sure, that

it was during his visit in December of 2015.

MR. WITTMANN:  Okay.  And for the record, could you

please state the specific reasons as to why the United

States Government officially linked the $1 billion of loan

guarantees with one of the conditions being the firing of

Mr. Shokin?

MR. KENT:  I believe I covered that at length in my

opening statement.  We had been asked by the President of

Ukraine, Poroshenko, to help reform the prosecutor's

service.  The prosecutorial service is key to the post-

Soviet institutional structure that Ukraine and other

countries inherited, where state authorities were used to

oppress the people rather than serve the people.  The KGB

and the prosecutorial services were the two key instruments,

and if those two institutions are not reformed, these
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countries will not succeed.  So this was both at the request

of the President and in our analytical assessment what

Ukraine needed to succeed.

We proceed at the request of the Ukrainian President,

and our efforts were stymied by Shokin, and not only did he

prevent reform, he went after reformers, and in so doing

undermined U.S. resources and efforts.

MR. WITTMANN:  Whose idea was it to link the loan

guarantees to the firing of Mr. Shokin?

MR. KENT:  As I said in my opening statement, and

repeated, as well as in my testimony last fall, to the best

of my knowledge this was an idea that started at the

Embassy, because we knew the situation on the ground the

best.  We raised it with Washington, it was discussed in the

interagency, and then it was presented to the Office of the

Vice President ahead of his trip as something he should

raise with President Poroshenko.

MR. WITTMANN:  And when you say that the idea started

at the Embassy, where in the Embassy did it start?

MR. KENT:  Well, I think, again, going back to

Ambassador Pyatt's September speech, even if we had people

writing a draft of that speech, Ambassador Pyatt very much

agreed and honed that position.  So that was the position of

the Ambassador.  It was the position of the country team. 

There was no disagreement among all those who were working,
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whether it was our operational law enforcement

representative; the Legat, FBI'; the capacity-building

representative of the Department of Justice, so-called

resident legal advisor; the capacity-building program under

the State Department known as INL, International Narcotics

and Law Enforcement; or the front, the Deputy Chief of

Mission and the Ambassador.

MR. WITTMANN:  So would you say that Ambassador Pyatt

was the starting point for wanting to make this connection

between the loan guarantee and Mr. Shokin?

MR. KENT:  The Ambassador was the head of the country

team and it would be his voice that would be conveyed in

interagency discussions in Washington.

MR. WITTMANN:  And who did this information go to in

the Vice President's Office?

MR. KENT:  To be honest, I do not know the full

structure of who was staffing the Vice President at this

particular moment in time, which was late 2015, so I cannot

tell you for certain.  I think the starting point for any

U.S. Embassy is actually the State Department, and that

would be the European Bureau, that at the time was headed by

Assistant Secretary Victoria Nuland.  The Deputy Assistant

Secretary in charge of policy towards Ukraine, my

predecessor, was Bridget Brink.  And so those would be the

policymakers working closely with U.S. Embassy on our policy
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toward Ukraine, and then engaging the people who work at

both the National Security Council and the Office of Vice

President.  And I will say, having sat in Washington, as

well as having served in Ukraine, generally the State

Department asks embassies to go through the State Department

rather than having direct engagement.

MR. WITTMANN:  And just so I have an understanding of

the time frame of when this information was conveyed, do you

know at what point in time the information went from the

Embassy to the State Department to the Vice President's

office?

MR. KENT:  Our view about Viktor Shokin's role in being

a hurdle to reform and sort of wasting our programming

certainly were well known.  We would have conveyed them back

to Washington.  We obviously did so.  The Ambassador did so

in September in a public speech.  

I think the issue of gathering information and

recommendations for the Vice President's eventual visit is a

process that everyone who has staffed a principal is

probably well aware.  And so the Vice President's staff

would reach out, work with the National Security Council. 

They would reach out to all agencies for suggestions,

including to the State Department but not exclusively, and

then information and suggestions would be fed through the

process, to determine the paperwork for a visit.
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MR. WITTMANN:  Mr. Downey, do you have questions?

MR. DOWNEY:  Yes.  Mr. Kent, so as you're describing

the to Mr. Wittmann the process by which the Embassy in Kiev

decided that Shokin was a hurdle to reform, how did you

know, or how did the Embassy discuss, well, if we get rid of

Shokin we don't know who we're dealing with next, who would

take that post.  They could be worse than Shokin.  They

could be worse than Yarema.

So can you walk us through how--I mean, that doesn't

seem like a light decision to think that we should remove

Shokin when they could put in someone--the Ukrainians could

put in someone that's 10 times more corrupt, right?  So

could you walk us through that process of how--I mean,

you're kind of dealing with a bad hand here.  How do you

decide if it's time for Shokin and we're going to take a

chance with the next guy in the chair?

MR. KENT:  Well, to be clear, we didn't remove Shokin. 

The Ukrainian Parliament voted to remove him, because in

their constitutional process that's--they appoint, and it's

nominated by their President but it's appointed by a vote,

similar to our approval process in the Senate, and then

removed, unlike our process, removed by another vote by

their Parliament.  

The issue was that we were not going to spend

additional U.S. taxpayer dollars, having seen our previous
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taxpayer dollars wasted by Viktor Shokin.  And so the issue

was, we took a stand for the integrity of our programs and

our fiduciary responsibility for prudent use of U.S.

taxpayer dollars.

Now, the question is a fair one, and it was raised by

some people, including the then Prime Minister of Ukraine. 

But that's--our responsibility is not to determine who is

the next Prosecutor General.  It is to state the principles

and basis on which we are prepared to work with Ukrainian

officials in a whole host of areas. That includes

prosecutorial reform.  It included customs reform.  And

Ambassadors Pyatt and Yovanovitch, and I, willingly shut

down U.S. programs when there wasn't political will to go

forward.

When, later on, Lutsenko stopped reforming, we shut

down our prosecutorial systems program entirely, which, in

part, led to him claiming, "Where's the money?" as he did

last year.

When the customs system was being run by a corrupt head

of customs named Roman Nasirov, we returned $2 million to

the U.S. Treasury, and that's very unusual for any of you

who have dealt with embassies in the Executive branch, to

return money to the U.S. Treasury.  Because we wanted to

send a signal to people in Washington as well as to the

Ukrainians that in any particular area, if they were not
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wiling to do what the country needed, and we had agreed upon

would be the purpose of the program, that we would do our

fiduciary responsible to the American taxpayer and end a

program.

So those were the terms of our willingness to

cooperate.  Who was going to be appointed by Poroshenko,

that's his prerogative, constitutionally, in Ukraine, to

appoint a Prosecutor General.  And so his choice, after

Shokin was dismissed, was Yuriy Lutsenko, a politician

without a law degree or any experience.  He had been

Minister of Interior.  We had worked with him as a

politician.  But that was a decision that Poroshenko made

because he wanted somebody that he, quote/unquote, "could

trust."

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you.  If Mr. Shokin was not

dismissed, would the United States have withheld $1 billion

in U.S. loan guarantees?

MR. KENT:  We made clear that in the absence of the

dismissal of Shokin that we would not be prepared to extend

another loan guarantee.  That's correct.

MR. FOLIO:  Hi, Mr. Kent.  I'm going to jump back in

here.  We're going to switch topics, but I have one last

question on this last line of questioning before I do.  We

discussed--you discussed Ambassador Pyatt's September of

2015 speech, during which, among other topics, he criticized
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Mr. Zlochevsky.  Did Vice President Biden ever publicly

criticize Mr. Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  I honestly--Presidents and Vice Presidents

give a lot of public remarks.  I can't answer that question. 

I don't know.

MR. FOLIO:  Hypothetically, would Vice President Biden

have been in a position to have criticized Mr. Zlochevsky?

MR. KENT:  I'm here as a fact witness and I don't want

to answer a hypothetical.  Honestly, I can't.  I just don't

know.

MR. FOLIO:  I guess from your perspective as DCM in

Ukraine, we've seen lots of emails where you've described,

you know, issues with the anticorruption message.  How would

a message from Vice President Biden criticizing Mr.

Zlochevsky have been received, in light of the fact that his

son was sitting on Mr. Zlochevsky's company's board?

MR. KENT:  Again, you're asking me to answer a

hypothetical.  I'm happy to answer any fact-based question

about what happened, or involvement, but I honestly don't--I

don't see the purpose in asking a hypothetical.  Again, my

concerns were clear.

MR. FOLIO:  I'd like to enter what we'll mark--

actually, before we do that, switching gears a little bit,

are you familiar with the U.S. consulting firm, Blue Star

Strategies?
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MR. KENT:  I became aware of it in 2016.

MR. FOLIO:  And when did you first become aware of Blue

Star Strategies?

MR. KENT:  I received a call from--I will say that

having read the documents that were provided to the

Committee, I was copied on an email in November 2015.  But

my focus was not on the mention of Blue Star Strategies.  So

the--at the time, the first time it was who they were was

raised to me was by our former Assistant Secretary for

European Affairs, Dan Fried, who reached out to me in the

summer of 2016, asking if I would be willing to talk to a

former colleague who had worked on Central Europe with him,

Sally Painter.  And so that was the first time the name

registered with me.

MR. FOLIO:  And we have that email.  I'll ask Will to

pull it up and we'll mark it as Exhibit 11.

[Kent Exhibit No. 11 was

marked for identification.]

MR. KENT:  Do you have a document number for us?

MR. FOLIO:  Bates number 12460.  Mr. Kent, that email

from Ms. Painter to yourself, is that the connection through

Dan Fried that you were just referencing?

MR. KENT:  Hold on a second.  Okay, 1246 for me is a

reference to a document by Taras Kuzio.  Could you give us

maybe another document, at the bottom of the page,
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reference?  That doesn't work with us.

MR. FOLIO:  12460.  1-2-4-6-0.

MR. KENT:  1-2-4-6-0?  Do we have that many documents?

MR. FOLIO:  Pages.

MR. KENT:  To be honest, my documents don't go that

high.  The highest one I have is 4761, unless someone--maybe

else--

[Simultaneous discussion.]

MR. FOLIO:  If you wouldn't mind taking a lot at the

screen, I just wanted to--this seems to be the email you

were referencing.  If you're able to just review it on the

screen and let us know if that's right.

MR. KENT:  So I don't have an email address that starts

GPKent, so she sent an email to a non-functional email

address.  I've never seen this.

MR. FOLIO:  Okay.

MR. KENT:  My email is KentGP@state.gov, and it's quite

possible that she miswrote my email address, and therefore I

never received it.

MR. FOLIO:  Understood.  Let me move to another

document we will enter as Exhibit 12.  The Bates numbers for

this document are 1256 through 1258.

[Kent Exhibit No. 12 was

marked for identification.]

MR. KENT:  We have that.
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MR. FOLIO:  If we could start at the bottom, please,

Will, page 1258.  This is an email chain that you added to

later, but the initial email is from Mr. Bohdan Vitvitsky,

and I think you described him previously as an OPDAT U.S.

Department of Justice prosecutor, working in Ukraine.  Is

that correct?

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, can you give us a moment to locate it

as well?

MR. FOLIO:  Sure.

MR. HARTMAN:  And just so we're here on the record, the

last thing that you presented, the last one, I think you

called it Exhibit 11--

MR. FOLIO:  Correct.

MR. HARTMAN:  --the one that we--that has the wrong

email address on it, I believe.

MR. KENT:  We don't have it.

MR. HARTMAN:  We don't have that at all.  I guess if

you want to make it part of the record you can, but we

don't--we haven't seen it, we don't know what it is.  And

maybe we don't need it--

MR. FOLIO:  Sounds like it was a missed connection,

which I think will actually be addressed in the near future.

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, we can't see the Bates number on this

one.

MR. FOLIO:  It is 1256 through 1258.

Page 200

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



201

MR. HARTMAN:  1256?

MR. KENT:  If I can just clarify the question, the last

question that was raised, Bohdan Vitvitsky was a New Jersey

prosecutor who came to the Ukraine for two years, 2007 to

2009, on a threshold program.  In 2016, he was brought back

as an advisor to Lutsenko on a contract via IDLO.  IDLO is

the International Development of Law Association.  It is a

UN-affiliated organization based in Rome, and it was one of

our justice sector program implementers.  And so they

contracted for his advisory services, and so he was back in

Ukraine. 

So former Department of Justice 2007 to 2009, brought

back 10 years later as an advisor via IDLO.

MR. FOLIO:  So in this email, I'd like to focus you on

the second paragraph.  And it is informing the recipient,

which is not you yet.  But he says that--Mr. Lutsenko said

that he had been--

MR. HARTMAN:  Is somebody talking?

MR. FOLIO:  I'm sorry?

MR. HARTMAN:  You faded out on us, I think.

MR. FOLIO:  Oh, I'm sorry.  So the second paragraph of

the email is Mr. Lutsenko recounting a conversation he had

with--

MR. KENT:  We can't hear you.

MR. HARTMAN:  Again, Joe, you're fading out on us.
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Sorry.

MR. FOLIO:  I'd just ask to focus your attention on the

second paragraph of the email.  Mr. Vitvitsky is recounting

his conversation with Mr. Lutsenko.  And in that second

paragraph, Mr. Vitvitsky writes that Lutsenko said "he had

been invited yesterday by people from D.C. to come there to

meet some Hillary people and some official people.  I was

rather taken aback by our lack of coordination. The two

people about whom he was referring are Karen Tramontano and

John Buretta  (I'm translating from Ukrainian, so spellings

might not be 100% accurate).  My Q, question, is, what the

blazes?  Does our right hand speak with our left hand?"

So, Mr. Kent, you were eventually forwarded this email. 

What did you understand Mr. Vitvitsky's concern to be?

MR. KENT:  I believe there are--let me see if it's this

email chain or a different one.  Ah, so later on, if you

move on page 1257, and again, the email chain is in reverse

chronological order, Vitvitsky offers his comment that

"Respectfully, meetings with Department of Justice brass

need to be a bennie"--meaning a benefit--"that we guard very

jealously."

So without being able to put words in Bohdan's mouth,

because he's not here, he thought--what I think is what he

thought, is that he thought that there was an effort to

reach out and offer this meeting.  What actually was the
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case was that a lawyer for Cravath, which represents

Zlochevsky in the United States, John Buretta being the

former DOJ official, he, along with Karen Tramontano, the

CEO of Blue Star Strategies, had come in and had a meeting

with Lutsenko to talk about a possible visit to the United

States.  The U.S. Government was not offering anything.

Now, separate from that, there is an email--let's see.

Somewhere, because I read the email, it said the State

Department provided, that I was a record-keeper for, there

is a reference, and it doesn't look like it's in this

particular email, but that our resident legal advisor, who

was the capacity-building advisor representing DOJ, OPDAT--

that's the Jeff on page 1256--he heard from Bruce Swartz,

the DAG for international cooperation, that John Buretta had

reached out.

So it wasn't left hand, right hand of the U.S.

Government, it was a former DOJ official working for a

private law firm that had reached out to the Department of

Justice, asking a willingness to meet.  And so it wasn't a

matter of lack of coordination.  It was a private law firm

trying to get a meeting for a foreign official without the

request having gone through either the U.S. Embassy in Kiev

or the Ukrainian Embassy in Washington.  And I immediately

reached out in one of the other emails, not this one, I

guess, related to the DCM and the Ukrainian Embassy in Kiev,
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Oksana Shulyar, and she confirmed that they had not heard

from Lutsenko's office about this meeting.

MR. FOLIO:  From your perspective, is that a problem

that private individuals were attempting to schedule

meetings outside of the channels of the State Department and

the Embassy?

MR. KENT:  My advice to Lutsenko--and it talks about a

meeting, which I eventually had--is that government-to-

government meetings should be arranged by embassies, the

Ukrainian Embassy and our Embassy in Kiev.  What government

officials want to do outside of official meetings is their

business.  But if he wants to meet with a Department of

Justice official, he should be asking our Embassy--we have a

representative at the Embassy--and he should send a message

to their Embassy in Washington to reach out here, rather

than working with a third party to meet with the U.S.

Government.

MR. FOLIO:  And why is that, or would you prefer that?

MR. KENT:  That's what the purpose of government

representations abroad are.  I mean, the U.S. Government

pays money for officials to work overseas.  The Ukrainian

government has an Embassy to do the same thing.  That's the

purpose and function of those embassies, to promote

government-to-government contacts and relations.

MR. FOLIO:  When Mr. Vitvitsky wrote that "this is a
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bennie that we guard very jealously," I think you explained

what you thought him to mean.  But did you share in that

view, that setting up a meeting between the Prosecutor

General and high-ranking Department of Justice officials is

something that U.S. Government, in general, should, quote

"guard very jealously"?

MR. KENT:  It was the considered opinion of those who

are on that email, which include me, the Department of

Justice resident legal advisor, the FBI representative, and

the head of our capacity-building element, the INL chief,

that Lutsenko had not done enough in terms of advancing

reform to justify meeting with the Attorney General.

MR. FOLIO:  So from Lutsenko's perspective, or how

you're viewing Lutsenko's perspective, is this a valuable

thing for him to have, a meeting with the Attorney General

or high-ranking officials in the Department of Justice?

MR. KENT:  I think all foreign officials like to have

meetings with their U.S. counterparts, because it increases

their standing at home.

MR. FOLIO:  Were meetings like this one of the ways

that you attempted to maintain leverage over foreign

partners?

MR. KENT:  Yes, and the other issue I would say is that

it doesn't mean that we were preventing or recommending

against a trip per se, but given the level of reform and
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action that Lutsenko had carried out to date, Bruce Swartz

is as high an official at the Department of Justice that any

of us at the Embassy would have recommended Lutsenko

meeting.

MR. FOLIO:  And when you say "given his reform to

date," do you mean a lack thereof?

MR. KENT:  Lack thereof, yes.

MR. FOLIO:  You responded, in between these emails,

"Oof.  Blue Star again."  What did you mean when you wrote

"oof"?

MR. KENT:  Well, I think at this point Blue Star

started coming up frequently, and we've got multiple email

lines, and I can't remember exactly which other element came

up.  But this is an email from the 31st of August, and we're

getting close to the September 6th conversation I had with

Sally Painter.

MR. FOLIO:  Right.  We'll get to that next.  I just

think at this point in time, you know, what your perspective

is, you know, DCM, U.S. Embassy in Ukraine, and you see this

private third party trying to arrange high-level meetings

without your awareness.

MR. KENT:  Right.  I think at that point I was aware

that Blue Star Strategies had a relationship that was

unclear to me with Zlochevsky.

MR. FOLIO:  Was that frustrating to you?
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MR. KENT:  My understanding is that if somebody wants

to represent somebody on a contractual basis and meets the

legal norms in their countries, that's a matter of private

business and enterprise.  I, as a U.S. Government official,

have a fiduciary responsibility for our programming as well

as an oversight and appropriate relationship with whom U.S.

Government officials, who reported to me at the Embassy,

would engage.  So--

MR. FOLIO:  Were you frustrated that this private third

party was going--basically cutting you all out of the loop?

MR. KENT:  It wasn't a matter of frustration.  I mean,

I will say that there is a long history of Ukrainian

politicians and parties engaging lobbyists to gain access,

and, in fact, some of the other documents that the State

Department provided include three from an academic named

Taras Kuzio, who maps the long record of Ukrainians, parties

and individuals, who have entered into relationships with

lobbyists in the U.S.

MR. FOLIO:  Does that complicate your work as the

representative of the United States Government in the

Embassy, in trying to ensure conditions and achieve other

policy goals?

MR. KENT:  I think it's a reality.  You know, there's

the version of international relations people learn in grad

school and then there's the reality.  And I think the
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reality is not just in Ukraine that you have these agents of

influence.  I also served in Thailand, and Thaksin

Shinawatra, the Prime Minister, he also engaged in private

channels, non-U.S. Government channels, to try to send

messages to Washington.

So I would say that's how governments and prime

ministers the world over work.  And so people who reach a

certain level understand that.

MR. FOLIO:  Does that make your job easier or harder?

MR. KENT:  It depends.  Sometimes it does make it

easier and sometimes it makes it harder.

MR. FOLIO:  How about here?

MR. KENT:  Well, I mean, again, my message to Lutsenko

when I met him one-on-one was, you want to meet with U.S.

Government officials?  Come to us.  Go to your Embassy. 

What you do outside of meeting with U.S. Government

officials, that's your time, your business.  That's

oftentimes how it's run.

MR. FOLIO:  Will, if we could please scroll up to page

1257?

In your FYI paragraph, you wrote, "I SMSed Lutsenko

last night--"

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, we can't hear you unless you're

facing straight at your microphone.

MR. FOLIO:  In that paragraph you wrote, "I SMSed
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Lutsenko last night after consults with Jeff and Johannes to

ask what was up with the trip, was it true he was using a

third-hand rather than working through the Ukrainian Embassy

and our Embassy, which was the proper path in my view.  I

also (as agreed with Jeff) Facebook messaged"--Facebook

messaged--"The Ukrainian Washington Embassy DCM." 

So, Mr. Kent, does that email response reflect what you

just told us, how you responded to Mr. Lutsenko [inaudible--

audio difficulties] parties?

MR. KENT:  Right.  So, yes.  So Jeff and Johannes, that

the DOJ resident legal advisor and the FBI Legat. 

MR. FOLIO:  So from the perspective of Prosecutor

General Lutsenko, what would be his view of Blue Star

facilitating these meetings with U.S. officials?

MR. KENT:  You're asking me to answer for somebody, a

Ukrainian official.

MR. FOLIO:  I'm asking your perspective as the DCM, as

to, you know, you've expressed opinions that you'd prefer

that he would go directly through you.  You saw Mr.

Vitvitsky's line that this was a "bennie that the U.S.

Government should guard jealously."  So I'm just wondering,

based on your experience in these situations, but

specifically in the Ukrainian government, would Mr. Lutsenko

view Blue Star favorably for providing him this access that

he has not received, and your opinion has not earned, at
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this point in time?

MR. KENT:  Again, as I said in my opening statement, my

comments, and in this conversation I guess we're getting to,

with Lutsenko, I raised issues of timing and interlocuters

with him.  But, you know, people are, again, big boys and

girls, and sometimes they--you give them the best advice and

then they make their own decisions.

MR. FOLIO:  I'm going to ask Will if he can please pull

up what we previously marked as Exhibit 2.  This was 345

through 347.  This was the September 2016 email Mr. Kent

sent internally after his phone call with Sally Painter from

Blue Star.

So, Mr. Kent, this is email that you sent then was to

Bridget Brink, Jorgan Andrews, and copies to Ambassador

Yovanovitch.  The subject line is "Bullying, threatening

call by Blue Star's Sally Painter (re Lutsenko)."

Why did you send this email to these particular

individuals?

MR. KENT:  Well, Bridget Brink was my predecessor in

the current job I have, Deputy Assistant Secretary

responsible for policy in Georgia and Ukraine.  Jorgan

Andrews was the Office Director of Eastern Europe, another

senior official, and then, obviously, the Ambassador being

copied.

Generally, as I started with my opening statement,

Page 210

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



211

there is bipartisan consensus about our policy towards

Ukraine and the need to be helpful.  This was a very

contentious, accusatory conversation, and I just thought

given the nature of the conversation it was important to

inform the officials in Washington that worked directly on

Ukraine that that conversation did happen.

MR. FOLIO:  If we can scroll up please, Will, to page

345.  So the second paragraph, Mr. Kent, you wrote, "Painter

adopted a hostile, aggressive tone from the outside, and was

rude and accusatory throughout."

MR. KENT:  That should have been "outset," is what I

meant.  That could have been an auto-correct.

MR. FOLIO:  I should have auto-corrected for you. 

sorry.  "It was unlike any conversation I have had in my 24+

years in the foreign service, and completely inappropriate

on her part.  She ended the conversation by saying that she

would take it up the 'The Under Secretary.' (No further

information)"

Why was this phone call so unlike any conversation you

had in your entire foreign service career?

MR. KENT:  I had never talked to her, and there was no

effort to start with an introduction.  It was just a bull

rush of accusations that were not factually based.  It's an

odd way to start a relationship.  That's how I would put it.

MR. FOLIO:  And of what was Ms. Painter accusing you?
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MR. KENT:  Of ruining their business model.

MR. FOLIO:  And how did you allegedly do that?

MR. KENT:  She was not completely clear, but it had to

do with Lutsenko's check.

MR. FOLIO:  So looking at that first paragraph, you

wrote, "Nearly simultaneous her boss, Karen Tramontano,

called on the other line asking to talk to the Ambassador,"

who you noted then is out for the rest of the day.  What did

you take it to be on the phone call that was, you said,

highly accusatory, and then Ms. Painter's colleague was, at

the same time, trying to reach the Ambassador?  How did you

interpret that?

MR. KENT:  Walking up the ladder.  So--

MR. FOLIO:  At the same time?

MR. KENT:  As it turned out, yeah, that's why we

oftentimes don't give out our direct lines, and certainly

these are people that we--I had not ever talked to.  So they

called in and got patched into our secretaries.  I was in

the office, Ambassador Yovanovitch was not, so I took the

call from Painter.

MR. FOLIO:  Around this time, did Karen Tramontano

connect with Ambassador Yovanovitch?

MR. KENT:  I'm not aware that they had a conversation

that day.  Honestly, I don't know.  They obviously

eventually did have a meeting--this is 6 September, so three
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months later in December, as a document that we discussed

earlier indicated.  They may well have connected later that

week.  I just don't remember.

MR. FOLIO:  You wrote in the email that Ms. Painter

accused you of damaging, quote, "her firm's reputation to

Lutsenko and allegedly told them, Lutsenko, not to have

anything to do with them"--Blue Star--"(for the record: I

did not tell him that.  Full stop.)"

MR. KENT:  Right.

MR. FOLIO:  What did you put--did you clarify with Ms.

Painter exactly what you said with Mr. Lutsenko?

MR. KENT:  As the email indicates, after she ranted for

at least five minutes, I didn't hang up on her but I told

her I would have every right to do so, and offered her a

chance to reset and start the conversation that she should

have started with, since we had never talked to each other. 

And then when she demanded to know exactly what I told

Lutsenko, I told her that was a privileged conversation

between two governments and I wasn't about to share the

contents, but that she had mischaracterized what I had told

Lutsenko.

MR. FOLIO:  I think before you said it wasn't clear,

but is Ms. Painter referring to the conversation we looked

at a minute ago, when you found out that people were trying

to arrange a meeting for Lutsenko with the Department of
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Justice and you became aware of that?

MR. KENT:  Yes.  I mean, I had--you know, the previous

email, I believe, mentioned that Lutsenko had asked to see

me one-on-one.  So we had a meeting, and then several days

later this conversation occurred.

MR. FOLIO:  And I think you testified earlier that Mr.

Lutsenko, after your conversation, ended up postponing his

trip until after the election.  Correct?

MR. KENT:  That's correct.

MR. FOLIO:  So do you think that's what Ms. Painter was

referring to?

MR. KENT:  She was referring to the fact that from--I

could gather from her comments that there had been a

communication with Lutsenko, and he said he was not coming

to the United States.

MR. FOLIO:  In that longer paragraph that begins "I

wasn't able"--if you could scroll down a little bit, Will,

please--you wrote that Ms. Painter made a reference to,

quote, "'not representing Nikolai in the U.S.' (I presume

this is Zlochevsky), 'because he has legal representation in

the U.S. or Burisma.'"  

What did you understand that to mean, that she was not

representing him in the U.S.?

MR. KENT:  I understood this to mean that she did not

have an obligation to register as a fair agent.

Page 214

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



215

MR. FOLIO:  Foreign agent's registration?

MR. KENT:  Correct.

MR. FOLIO:  You went on to write that "she had

represented Yushchenko's interests in the U.S. for five

years, and knew what was legal and what was not, and when it

was required to register."  Who is Yuschenko?

MR. KENT:  He was the President of Ukraine from 2005 to

2010.

MR. FOLIO:  She also mentioned that "she was on the

board of the Atlantic Council, and on a pro bono basis had

been happy to arrange something with John Herbst (i.e., for

Lutsenko to speak), and that they also had offered a private

dinner for Lutsenko that she and her partner, Tramontano,

would have hosted for Lutsenko at no cost, to invite various

people, important people, including Melanne Veveer, who was

by the way close to former Secretary Clinton."

So why was Ms. Painter telling you all this?

MR. KENT:  Namedropping is something that lobbyists

oftentimes engage in.

MR. FOLIO:  What did you make of her telling that part

of the trip was for Mr. Lutsenko to meet with people who

were close to former Secretary Clinton?

MR. KENT:  Well, Melanne Veveer is a Ukrainian

American, and so she is somebody who is interested in

Ukraine relations.  But I believe this conversation I had
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came a week after Bohdan Vitvitsky had heard directly from

Lutsenko that he was interested in going to the U.S., had

been invited to go to the U.S. to talk to Clinton's people

and U.S. Government officials.  And that came after he,

Lutsenko, had a meeting with Karen Tramontano, and John

Buretta of the law firm Cravath.

MR. FOLIO:  And this, of course, was when Ms. Clinton

was running for President.

MR. KENT:  This conversation, yes, was happening in

September of 2016.

MR. FOLIO:  So in addition to offering meetings with

high-ranking Justice officials that Mr. Lutsenko is not

getting through the Embassy, they also appeared to be

offering meetings with high-ranking people close to then

candidate Clinton.  Correct?

MR. KENT:  That is what she was suggesting, yes.

MR. FOLIO:  And from your perspective, again,

recognizing that you deal with Prosecutor General Lutsenko,

you have your own requests of him, policies that you're

seeking to pursue in coordination with him.  How did you

view this private third party offering not only government

meetings but meetings with presidential candidates at the

time?

MR. KENT:  Well, again, my role as a U.S. Government

official, if a foreign government official wants to come to
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the United States, in terms of meeting government officials,

it's better to go through embassies.  I asked Lutsenko what

else did he want to do, and he said, "I'd like to talk to

think tanks."  And I said, "Well, the week, sir, that you're

planning to go is the week of the U.N. General Assembly, and

all the main think tanks are not going to be in Washington. 

They'll be up in New York, so there will be no one to see

and host you and give you a platform to talk to opinion

makers in Washington."

I said, "What else do you want to do?"  He says, "Oh,

what I really want to do is meet John Podesta, because he's

running the campaign and he might be the next chief of

staff."  And I said, "Well, maybe it's better to wait until

after the election."

MR. FOLIO:  If we could scroll down to page 346

[inaudible--audio difficulties.]

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, let me just interject.  I believe

you're over the hour.  Do you have a sense of how much

longer you're going this round?

MR. FOLIO:  So I can ask one more question.  We have,

well, we have a handful of questions about this email, and

then a little bit longer.  So we're happy to--maybe if I can

ask one more question, we can take a break, and then hand it

back to you, Zack?

MR. SCHRAM:  We're in no rush to cut you off, if you're
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interested in finishing this line of questioning so that

it's easier for the witness to follow in one thread, if it's

a reasonable amount of overage.

MR. FOLIO:  I prefer to finish this email and then we

can transition.

MR. SCHRAM:  Does that work for the witness?

MR. KENT:  That's fine.  I mean, I avoided the bathroom

break an hour and 20 minutes ago.  I'll need one in the next

5 to 10 minutes.

MR. FOLIO:  That's a good call.

During the phone call with Ms. Painter, did you ever

discuss Mr. Zlochevsky and his links to corruption?

MR. KENT:  The topic of the conversation was about

Lutsenko.  It was--Painter was the one who raised, and

didn't even use the name Zlochevsky, she used the Russian

version of his first name, Nikolai.  We refer to him as

Mykola.  That's the Ukrainian version.  So I didn't respond

to that, because my focus was the Prosecutor General.  That

was actually what the initial part of her request/accusation

was about.  So no, she put it in the conversation and I did

not respond to that.  I focused on Lutsenko.

MR. FOLIO:  During the phone call, did Ms. Painter ever

raise Hunter Biden's role on Burisma's board?

MR. KENT:  To the best of my knowledge she did not, and

as you've seen, I've been actually quite scrupulous in
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mentioning Hunter Biden in a number of emails.  So if she

had mentioned his name I suspect I would have noted that

down.

MR. FOLIO:  You noted that Ms. Painter said that,

quote, "you would have to answer if you, I, damaged the

reputation of her company."  What did you understand her to

be conveying to you with that statement?

MR. KENT:  That's a bully boy rush, and she--this was

an initial call.  She was trying to catch me off-guard, and

I think I've got a documented record of when bullies try to

run over me I push back hard.

MR. FOLIO:  So can you focus on Footnote 2 at the

bottom of page 346 please?

In Footnote 2 you wrote that "When Dan Fried called me

in the summer, asking if I would be willing to talk to

Painter, the subject was Zlochevsky, and allegedly the bad

reputational deal he was getting.  I warned Dan this was a

sticky wicket, that Zlochevsky was viewed as corrupt, not

just in Ukraine but by the USG/FBI, that he almost certainly

had paid a bribe to the PGO office (Yarema team) to have

them close a case against Zlochevsky in December 2014 and

issue a letter to that effect to Zlochevsky's lawyer, who

flipped it to a UK judge, who unfroze the assets that the

FBI and"--I think you corrected it, SFO=="had spent months

trying to make a case for asset repatriation, the first and
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so far only possible case in an effort we collectively have

spent hundreds of thousands of dollars.

"Furthermore, the presence of Hunter Biden on the

Burisma board was very awkward for all U.S. officials

pushing an anticorruption agenda in Ukraine.  Dan then said,

'Sally's apparently been asked to gather information in an

attempt to convince Hunter to sever the relationship.'

Mr. Kent, when you wrote that "the presence of Hunter

Biden on the Burisma board was very awkward for all U.S.

officials pushing an anticorruption agenda in Ukraine," what

did you mean by that?

MR. KENT:  I meant that people who talk the talk need

to walk the walk, and for the U.S. Government, collectively,

when we talk about the need to have high standards of

integrity, again, as I've said, the presence of him on the

board created the perception of a potential conflict of

interest.  And so, you know, whether it's in media or

governmental programs, perceptions matter oftentimes as much

as reality, and so that was my best assessment, which I

repeated, not just I but Ambassador Pyatt and the economic

section, to whomever we talked to--think-tankers like Dan

Fried, U.S. Government in Washington, other parts of the

U.S. Embassy, and mentioning publicly.

MR. FOLIO:  And you mentioned it a little earlier, but

that's a theme that we've seen is that through of course of
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several emails over several months you are repeatedly

reminding people of Mr. Hunter Biden's position on the board

and that people should be aware of it as they're making

policy decisions such as ending the USAID MERP relationship

with Burisma, or lobbyists trying to arrange meetings with

U.S. officials.  So it seems like this is something you're

asking your staff to account for, or at least be prepared to

address if pushed on it.  Right?

MR. KENT:  For me it's preparing everybody for "what

about-ism," because we're pushing what's right, and we do

what's right, and we have to be prepared for people who are

critics, are opponents, to say, "Well, what about?  What

about Hunter Biden?"  

So there was no time, as I've testified, that the U.S.

Government, the U.S. Embassy ever made a decision about

Zlochevsky or Burisma where we took the presence of a

private citizen on the board into account.  We made the

decision on the merits.  But others might think otherwise. 

And so everyone needed to be aware of what we were dealing

with as we made the right decisions.

MR. FOLIO:  Right.  And we understand you've said that

several times.  I think what we're noticing, when we've

talked about how valuable your time is and the time of your

colleagues is that the time that you all spend thinking

about that issue, anticipating that issue, and protecting
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against the "what about-ism" that you mentioned. 

So did any Ukrainian officials ever raise that with

you, the "what about-ism," "What about Hunter Biden?" in

response to you trying to advance the anticorruption agenda?

MR. KENT:  I cannot recall anybody raising Hunter

Biden.  We've talked earlier about somebody who became a

critic of U.S. positions and programs, Tetiana Chornovol,

who raised the Burisma-USAID connection.  And so that is an

example of why it's better--it was better not to have any

question or reason for others to criticize us.

MR. FOLIO:  Are you aware of anyone else at the U.S.

Embassy receiving "what about-isms" with regard to Hunter

Biden as they were trying to advance the U.S. anticorruption

agenda in Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  I am not aware.

MR. FOLIO:  You mentioned that you raised the issue in

early 2015, when you became aware of it, with the Vice

President's staff.  Did you raise Hunter Biden's board

position at any other time while you were at the Embassy in

Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  Not with other officials.  Again, I

registered my concern directly with the Office of the Vice

President.  This was not an issue of policy.  It was an

issue of a relative.  And again, it was not an issue of a

mistake or something that involved U.S. policy or U.S.
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programs.  It involved perceptions.

MR. FOLIO:  Did any other U.S. officials raise concern

about Hunter Biden's position on the board of Burisma?

MR. KENT:  Honestly, I cannot--I can say what I raised,

but I don't know.

MR. FOLIO:  How did you interpret Dan Fried telling you

that, he wrote in Footnote 2, "Sally's apparently been asked

to gather information in an attempt to convince Hunter to

sever the relationship"?

MR. KENT:  I interpreted that as what Sally Painter had

told Dan Fried.

MR. FOLIO:  That part of the purpose she was reaching

out was to--I guess I'm just trying to understand if she is

representing the interests of the firm, and we've seen

documents that her position is the firm is not corrupt.  I'm

trying to square that with what Dan Fried told you, that

she's trying to convince Hunter to step down.

MR. KENT:  As I said, it is what it is.  You know, I

wrote I heard from Dan, which I understood to be what Sally

told Dan.  I've had one conversation with Sally Painter. 

This memorialized it.  I have been in her presence maybe

three, four, maybe five times at other group events that

were organized by other organizations that we both happened

to attend.  But this was the only time that we had a

conversation.  It was unscheduled.  She reached out to me. 

Page 223

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



224

I have not sought any other further contact, nor has she or

Ms. Tramontano reached out to me to have a second

conversation.

MR. FOLIO:  Just one second, please.

[Pause.]

MR. FOLIO:  Just two more questions, Mr. Kent, and then

we'll take a break.  So I just wanted to be sure we

understood about the sentence when you said that "Hunter

Biden's position on the Burisma board was very awkward for

all U.S. officials pushing an anticorruption agenda in

Ukraine."  Did you mean all officials at the U.S. Embassy,

U.S. officials back in D.C.?  What's the scope of officials

you were referring to when you wrote that?

MR. KENT:  Well, keeping in mind this is an email I

wrote four years ago, I would say officials in Ukraine,

those of us who were on the front lines engaging Ukrainians

daily.

MR. FOLIO:  And I think Brian had one question, one

last question for you before we take a break. 

MR. DOWNEY:  Mr. Kent, you know, or you you've worked

with Elisabeth Zentos of the USC.  Correct?

MR. KENT:  We've known each other for a number of

years.  We've never, to the best of my knowledge, worked in

the same place at the same time, but we've often worked on

the same issues from afar.  And so we know each other fairly 
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well.

MR. DOWNEY:  So two quick questions.  Did you ever

discuss with her the information about the Yarema bribe that

you learned about?

MR. KENT:  I can't recall.  What I'm trying to remember

is where she was when that happened.  She was at our

Embassy, and then she, I believe, may have gone directly

from the Embassy to the National Security Council, and then

she went into language training.  But I don't have the dates

when she was at the National Security Council.  So,

honestly, I just can't remember.

MR. DOWNEY:  Did you discuss your concerns that you've

mentioned in many of your emails about Hunter Biden serving

on the Burisma board?  Did you discuss that with Elisabeth

Zentos?

MR. KENT:  I don't think I would have necessarily had

that conversation, no.

MR. DOWNEY:  Why not?

MR. KENT:  She didn't work in the Office of the Vice

President and this is not an issue of government policy or

programs.  It's about an issue of the appearance of a family

member of the Vice President.  She did not work for the Vice

President.

MR. DOWNEY:  Would members that work on the NSC with

Ukrainian corruption, would you have discussed your concerns
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about Hunter Biden serving on the board of Burisma with

those individuals?

MR. KENT:  To be clear, as I mentioned in my testimony,

I came out for a temporary--I was acting DCM for three weeks

in this period, and then I went back to the United States to

resume my previous responsibilities.  And I raised it with

the Office of Vice President, and that was, as I testified

last fall, what I thought was the relevant authority,

because this was not an issue of programs and policies of

the U.S. Government.  This was an issue of the Vice

President's family.

MR. DOWNEY:  So after you raised it with the Vice

President's office did you hear anything back from the Vice

President's office?

MR. KENT:  Not after that conversation, no.

MR. DOWNEY:  Why do you think that--why do you think

you didn't hear back from them?

MR. KENT:  Well, again, I was only in Kiev through

February 14th and then I came back to the U.S. and resumed a

regional job that was not directly in the line of

determining our policy to Ukraine.

MR. DOWNEY:  Did you make a memo of your conversation

with the Vice President's office?  You write very long

emails.  I might as well ask.

MR. KENT:  I did not, and there was a question along
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that line last fall I think Mr. Castor may have asked.  And

I explained the intense operating environment.  That was

when the Russians were invading with full armored brigades. 

They were seizing territory around Debaltseve in violation

of the Minsk accords, which had just been agreed upon.  

At the time, Ambassador Pyatt was working 20-hour days. 

His emails started between 4:58 and 5:01 in the morning and

they ended between 12:59 and 1:01 in the morning.  So he had

an internal clock and he was nonstop.  

The Embassy had expanded from 150 Americans to 250

Americans.  We were trying to oversee and appropriately

administer a massive surge in U.S. assistance that went from

$130 million of programming a year up to $700 million of

programming.  Something came across my Transcom.  I raised

it with the appropriate authority and I went back to do my

job.

MR. DOWNEY:  Thank you.

MR. FOLIO:  All right.  Let's take a break now.  During

the break we will review how much we have left.  I think my

preview at this point is we have three more documents, just

to finish this thread.  But we'll take a look and see how we

can trim down things.

MR. HARTMAN:  Great.  Thank you.

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, just to clarify, you said three more

documents to finish of this thread, and then how many
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additional threads?

MR. FOLIO:  This is our final thread.  Thank you.

MR. SCHRAM:  Okay.  Can we take 10 now?

MR. FOLIO:  Sure.  5:15?

MR. SCHRAM:  Yep.

[Recess.]

MR. FOLIO:  So we're going to enter into the record

what is Exhibit 13 for us.

[Kent Exhibit No. 13 was

marked for identification.]

MR. FOLIO:  The Bates number of this document is 348. 

Scroll to the bottom please, Will.  

So this is an email from someone at Cravath, a U.S. law

farm, to Ambassador Yovanovitch, carbon copying John

Buretta, the attorney.  It's addressed to Ambassador

Yovanovitch.  Subject line, "Letter from John Buretta."  

Please scroll up.

Ambassador Yovanovitch emails you, Mr. Kent, saying,

"What is this about?"  You respond, "This is further to the

Blue Star effort to rehabilitate the reputation of their

non-client in the U.S., Former Ministry of Ecology

Zlochevsky, who clearly has retained the services of a blue

chip law firm (Cravath) and his energy company Burisma,

which in turn as Hunter Biden on its board."

Mr. Kent, what did you mean when you said further
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rehabilitate?  What other steps had they taken to date?

MR. KENT:  Further to, meaning continuation of.  The

date of this email is Thursday, 15 September, so it's nine

days after the previous email that we just were talking

about, when I talked about the conversation I had with Sally

Painter.  So, if you will, a week and a half later, Cravath

reaches out to Ambassador, directly to her email.  And so

she asks, "What is this about?"

And so I'm explaining that this is continuing the Blue

Star effort regarding Burisma.  And the reason why I put

"non-client" is because I was just repeating what Sally

Painter claimed to me, which is that they did not have a

representational relationship that required them to

register.

But I said Zlochevsky, who retained the services of

Cravath, so that is, in my mind, self-evident.  You have a

lawyer--this is also--John Buretta was the lawyer listed in

the email that Bohdan Vitvitsky had sent to me several weeks

prior, at the end of August, indicating that the two people

that had met with Lutsenko, according to Lutsenko telling

Vitvitsky, were Buretta and Tramontano.

MR. FOLIO:  Did you speak with Ambassador Yovanovitch

about this letter?

MR. KENT:  Well, again, I can't--given the full press

of business, I can't remember exactly everything that may
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have happened, but what I state here is that she should sit

down--keep in mind, she just arrived at post, so this is her

first couple of weeks in Ukraine as Ambassador.  So I

suggested that she sit down with the Legat, the

representative of the FBI, and the resident legal advisor,

and the representative of the Department of Justice, on the

background of the Zlochevsky case.  

So that was my recommendation.  If she wanted to know

what it was about, she should hear what the U.S. law

enforcement community thinks before she further engages the

paid legal counsel of the individual in question.

MR. FOLIO:  And you suggested that so she could

separate what was the U.S. position on this set of

circumstances as opposed to paid legal counsel.  What were

you referring to when you said "the U.S. position on this

set of circumstances"?

MR. KENT:  Well, I have never had an exchange of views

with John Buretta, but, yeah, my understanding was he was

being paid to represent the interests and the views of Mr.

Zlochevsky.  And the U.S. Government, particularly law

enforcement community, had a different opinion based on

their efforts to recover the money-laundered frozen assets.

So this is part of getting a new Ambassador up to speed

with the details of an issue that had occurred several years

prior, but then we were now dealing with the consequences,
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keeping in mind that the initial action was in 2014, and we

were now in late 2016.

MR. FOLIO:  Did you review the letter that was attached

to this email?

MR. KENT:  We received it late yesterday, and it's a

30-page combination of a lawyer assertion and the, I think,

a UK court judgement.

MR. FOLIO:  And just to keep the record clean, we'll

enter this into the record as Exhibit 14.

[Kent Exhibit No. 14 was

marked for identification.]

MR. HARTMAN:  And just so you know, it is correct as

George described it, except there's also a list of 101

exhibits included.

MR. FOLIO:  Right.  The Bates number, if we have that

is Bates 4854 through 4884.  And if you have it, Mr. Kent,

I'm just going to ask you a few questions about the cover

letter from Mr. Buretta, not the whole 101 exhibits.

MR. HARTMAN:  I'm sorry.  Would you repeat your Bates

number?

MR. FOLIO:  4854--

MR. KENT:  Yeah.  We don't have that.

MR. HARTMAN:  What we have is 06615.

MR. FOLIO:  Will, will put it up on the screen for us

and we can make sure, it's the same letter.  I'm sure it is.
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Do you have the letter in front of you, Mr. Kent, or

are you waiting for it on screen?

MR. KENT:  I presume it's the same letter but I'm

waiting to see.  Yes, that's the letter we have, September

15, 2016.

MR. HARTMAN:  Scroll up just a little bit, or down just

a little bit.

MR. FOLIO:  Down to that first paragraph, please, Will?

MR. HARTMAN:  Yes.  It appears to be the same one that

we have as Bates number 06615.

MR. FOLIO:  Okay.  Mr. Kent, I'd just like to focus

your attention on that first paragraph.  Specifically, Mr.

Buretta wrote that a court in Kiev, quote, "came to the

conclusion that Mr. Zlochevsky is a witness, not a suspect,

in a criminal proceeding, and that no further criminal

procedural measures should be taken against him.  The Court

also ordered the Prosecutor General's Office to remove Mr.

Zlochevsky's name from the wanted list, due to a lack of

evidence."

Mr. Kent, were you aware of this court ruling?

MR. KENT:  Not before the paid legal counsel of

Zlochevsky and company sent this letter to the Ambassador.

MR. FOLIO:  And given the history of Mr. Zlochevsky

being in and out of investigation and in and out of court

cases, how did the department, or how did you view this news
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that yet another court was reportedly clearing Mr.

Zlochevsky in a criminal proceeding?

MR. KENT:  Well, I think you have my email reaction.

MR. FOLIO:  Are you referring to the email we just

looked at or something else?

MR. KENT:  No.  The next email probably.

No, we may have looked at it earlier today, but I have

topper on top of reference and I reference a decision by a

corrupt court about a connected oligarch.  So it's somewhere

in there.  I don't know which email it is but you've got it.

MR. FOLIO:  Would you mind just summarizing for us?

MR. KENT:  Well, I mean, the Pechersk court is one of

the two or three most corrupt courts in Ukraine, and many of

the corrupt perversions in the rule of law in Ukraine come

out of that court.  It's known to be packed with judges that

are bought agents of oligarchs.  So nothing surprises me

coming out of the court of Pechersk.

MR. FOLIO:  In that second paragraph of the Cravath

letter--Will, if you could scroll down just a little bit,

please--the last sentence reads--Mr. Buretta is writing to

Ambassador Yovanovitch, quote, "Burisma's board of directors

is comprised of, among others, prominent and experienced and

U.S. and European advisers who likewise are committed to

sustainable energy production and legal compliance."

Who did you understand to be the "prominent and
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experience advisers" on the board?

MR. KENT:  Well, you're asking at that time, in

September 2016?

MR. FOLIO:  Yes.

MR. KENT:  To be honest, I wasn't looking to parse a

legal letter from Cravath.  As you saw my reaction to the

Ambassador, she needed to talk to our FBI and DOJ

representatives about the case.

I want to point out, in the first paragraph, when it

refers to they've directed that he's a suspect, not a

criminal in a proceeding, that essentially tracks with what

I described in January of 2015, a year and a half earlier,

that there had been a case again him that was shut by a

corrupt prosecutor, allegedly a bribe paid, $7 million,

according to the second-highest prosecutor in the country,

and the case was then directed to become a case against the

ministry, not the minister.  And so that would track what

this assertion that he was no longer the suspect but a

witness.

MR. FOLIO:  What you're describing is two different

decisions that just had similar modus operandi?

MR. KENT:  That's how money often works in the

Ukrainian justice system, yes.  I generally try not to waste

my time and the time of my superiors on parsing information

that likely comes out of a corrupt process.  My advice was
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that she should talk to our lead FBI representative and our

Department of Justice rep.

MR. FOLIO:  And just looking at this letter today,

based on everything we've reviewed, would you agree that

what Mr. Buretta was referring to, "prominent, experienced

advisers of Burisma's board," he is likely referring to,

among others, Hunter Biden?

MR. KENT:  I'm not going to speculate.  I mean, it was

a public--I don't know if it was a publicly listed company

but it had a website with the board of directors.  He didn't

list the names.  He just claimed that they had experienced

U.S. and European advisors.

MR. FOLIO:  We're going to flip to a document that we

already entered into the record.  It was previously entered

as Exhibit 4, Bates number 1205.  This seems to be the

briefing checklist for Ambassador Yovanovitch.

MR. HARTMAN:  Joe, just a reminder again, when you turn

your head we can't hear you. I know that's hard because of

your documents.

MR. FOLIO:  Sorry.  I will do better.

So, Mr. Kent, this is a briefing checklist in

preparation for Ambassador Yovanovitch's meeting with Ms.

Karen Tramontano from Blue Star Strategies.  Who requested

the meeting between the Ambassador and Karen Tramontano from

Blue Star Strategies?
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MR. KENT:  I believe you have other emails which

indicate that Blue Star Strategies reached out for a meeting

with the Ambassador.

MR. FOLIO:  And why did the Ambassador take this

meeting?

MR. KENT:  I would say that as a general rule, U.S.

diplomats, when approached by U.S. business, will give any

U.S. business at least one hearing.

MR. FOLIO:  Did you attend the meeting between the

Ambassador and Karen Tramontano?

MR. KENT:  I did not.

MR. FOLIO:  So the memo states, focusing on page 1206,

your advice was that "You should hear Tramontano out on

Zlochevsky's situation but not suggest we will change our

posture on his case."

So just to confirm, the posture on his case, was that

the position of the Embassy and the U.S. Government that

we've discussed throughout this interview about Mr.

Zlochevsky and his links to corruption?

MR. KENT:  Correct.  Yes.

MR. FOLIO:  Do you know if Hunter Biden came up as a

topic of conversation in this meeting?

MR. KENT:  I don't know.

MR. FOLIO:  Did Ambassador Yovanovitch ever raise the

issue with you about the presence of Hunter Biden on the
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Burisma board being very awkward for all U.S. officials

pushing anticorruption agenda, both on the September 16,

that we looked at a couple of minutes ago?

MR. KENT:  Honestly, I can't tell you that for certain. 

She had just arrived, and so it was more we, who were there,

briefing her and giving her our advice, rather than the

other way around.

I think my views on the matter were very clear, and

given the nature of my conversation with Ms. Painter, I

think both the Ambassador and I felt it wise that we avoid

any further engagement between me and representatives of

Blue Star Strategies.

MR. FOLIO:  Turning to page 1207, the second page of

that draft memo, is that where you discuss--the memo

discusses Burisma and USAID--is that a reflection of what we

discussed previously, your decision to pull the plug on the

USAID MERP relationship with Burisma?

MR. KENT:  Yes, and essentially what this describes is

the exit strategy.  We pulled the plug.  We said we would be

open to other possible ideas, but we had no intention of

doing anything else.

MR. FOLIO:  So--

MR. KENT:  As the briefing memo says, "While keeping

the lines of communication open we do not intend to pursue

any joint cooperation with Burisma."
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MR. FOLIO:  And just to reiterate what we discussed

previously, you made the decision to shut down the program

that basically amounted to about $7,500 that Burisma had

provided for prizes in a journalism contest.  Is that right?

MR. KENT:  Correct.

MR. FOLIO:  So even though it was a small amount, you

thought it was that detrimental to have a United States

agency linked to Burisma.

MR. KENT:  When you're promoting principle to any

corruption action you have to be very by-the-book, and you

have to be prepared for criticism.  And so, yes, we were

limiting any possible exposure or any basis for anyone to

question our motives for pursuing the anticorruption agenda.

MR. FOLIO:  So I think something similar could be said

then, if $7,500 a month be sufficient to pull the plug in

cooperation with Burisma, $80,000 a month looks a whole lot

worse, doesn't it?

MR. KENT:  What are you referring to?

MR. FOLIO:  I'm referring to the amount of money that

Burisma was paying Hunter Biden, Devon Archer, and others to

serve on their board.

MR. KENT:  Again, I think that's a question to pose to

Mr. Zlochevsky.  As a U.S. Government official, I had

purview over the acts, programs, and engagements of the U.S.

Government.  I don't have oversight or a voice into how
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private companies govern their affairs.

MR. FOLIO:  So I just want to make sure we cover this,

in the memo we just talk about Zlochevsky's official U.S.

representative, John Buretta, had, quote, "sent a letter in

September asking that the Embassy reconsider its position on

him."  Do you understand that to refer to their efforts to

rehabilitate his relationship, as you've described in a

prior email?

MR. KENT:  That was the previous exhibit we discussed,

the September 15th email that Mr. Buretta sent to Ambassador

Yovanovitch.

MR. FOLIO:  So in the letter from Mr. Buretta, he

brought to the Ambassador's attention, and your attention,

the closure of the case against Burisma.  How did you assess

Prosecutor General Lutsenko at that time seeing yet another

case that apparently was letting Mr. Zlochevsky go?

MR. KENT:  When I referred to Mr. Lutsenko and his team

settling a case, or downgrading it from money-laundering to

tax evasion and then setting with a payment of back taxes

and a fine, I believe that decision happened after the

moment we're discussing.  There are two other emails that

you have, provided by the State Department, that reference a

press account from December 29th.  I don't know if you're

going to bring those up.  But in terms of sequential order,

the engagement with Buretta, his letter was in September,
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the meeting with Ambassador Yovanovitch and Karen Tramontano

that we're just talking about is December 8th, and then word

of a settlement of the case came later, at the end of

December, beginning of January.

MR. FOLIO:  So it seems that in 2014 the Ukrainian

court is investigating Burisma, the British court is

investigating Burisma, through 2015, through 2016, and

across three different Prosecutors General.  It doesn't

appear that anyone is able to hold Mr. Zlochevsky

responsible for the money-laundering crimes he's been

accused of.  Is that right?

MR. KENT:  It is accurate to say that no Ukrainian

Prosecutor General took a case into Ukrainian courts and saw

it to conclusion against Zlochevsky.

MR. FOLIO:  Just turning to our last document for this

one.  We're going to mark this Exhibit 14.

MR. HARTMAN:  I think it's 15, isn't it, Joe?

MR. FOLIO:  Is it 15?  I stand corrected.

[Kent Exhibit No. 15 was

marked for identification.]

MR. KENT:  Yeah, this is the email I was trying to

characterize from memory that's from January of 2017.

MR. FOLIO:  Oh, sorry.

MR. KENT:  Do you have the Bates number?

MR. FOLIO:  Bates number is 27-- [inaudible--audio
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difficulties].

MR. KENT:  Speak into the mic.

MR. FOLIO:  2768 through 2770.

MR. KENT:  Yeah.  About 10 minutes ago when I was

referring to an email that I knew I had written and that you

had, this was the email.

MR. FOLIO:  Okay.  Great.  So this is a January 13th,

starting from the beginning of the chain, the email starting

on 2769 going to 2770, this is a January 13, 2017, email

from Ambassador John Herbst to you, Subject line "Heads Up." 

And he writes, "George, I wanted you to know before it

becomes public that the Atlantic Council decided to accept

support for its program from Burisma.  We looked at the

matter closely and weighed it for over a month.  Information

provided to us by a Cravath lawyer for Burisma in the London

case was an important factor, although some uneasiness

remains.  Happy to discuss when I am next your way."

Why was Ambassador Herbst informing you, or giving you

a heads up about this decision?

MR. KENT:  Well, as you can see in the email, that I

then forwarded to the Ambassador and another member of

staff, he had come to Kiev the previous fall, and I believe

there are other emails that were provided that referenced

that in September, and talked through looking from my
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background, understanding how the U.S. Government viewed

Burisma and Zlochevsky.  And I was very clear, as I think

I've been today, when asked what exactly the U.S.

Government, the Embassy, I, the FBI, others thought, and as

I note to the Ambassador at the time, he didn't make mention

of the possibility of Zlochevsky sponsoring Atlantic Council

programming.

But I think that's why he owed--he felt that he wanted

to give me a heads up, because he'd asked for my best

advice, I'd given him my advice, which basically said stay

away, and ultimately he chose to make a different decision.

MR. FOLIO:  So in the grand scheme of think tanks and

foreign relations, what does it mean that the Atlantic

Council took program support from a company?

MR. KENT:  Well, I would say if you look at the

effectiveness in terms of voice on policy, vis-à-vis

Ukraine, the Atlantic Council is arguably the most active. 

And I've never worked in a think tank, the way I've never

worked at a university and I've never worked at a lobbying

firm, but I think the challenge for any outfit is what's

your business model?  Where is the money coming from?  And,

you know, some universities have big endowment.  Some

foundations do.  Others don't and they need basically to

fund their operations.

And so I think I make reference to whom the funders of
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the Atlantic Council robust Ukraine program, which I find

very helpful in terms of policy efficacy, it's funded by the

Ukraine's richest person, Rinat Akhmetov, one of the other

billionaires, Victor Pinchuk, and then they added Zlochevsky

and Burisma as a sponsor.  So that was a decision that

Ambassador Herbst and the Atlantic Council board made to

keep their programming going.

MR. FOLIO:  And what did you mean by that by saying

it's funded by, and then you have a whole list, and you list

those three names?  What was the message you seemed to be

implicitly conveying to Ambassador Herbst?

MR. KENT:  Well, I'm reminding the Ambassador, again,

you know, this is still early days that these are the people

that the program is funded by.

MR. FOLIO:  So we've talked a lot about the reputation

of Zlochevsky and Burisma.  What was the reputation of

Akhmetov?

MR. KENT:  Well, he was the richest--is still the

richest man in the country.  He, I would say, had a very

mixed reputation early in his career.  That would be very

polite.  And he was already the richest man in 2004, when

Ambassador Herbst was Ambassador, and after the Orange

Revolution, which ushered in a new government, Viktor

Yushchenko, the two richest people in the country at the

time were Akhmetov and Pinchuk.  And Ambassador Herbst's
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recommendations to both of them at the time, having made

money under the old regime, was "Start giving it away.  Do

something for the country.  You've made your billions.  Now

give it back to the people.  Set up a foundation.  Do

something that helps the country."

And so that was the advice, and they actually took his

advice to varying degrees, Victor Pinchuk immediately. 

Akhmetov, it took him the better part of a decade.

MR. FOLIO:  And what was Mr. Pinchuk's reputation?

MR. KENT:  He was the son-in-law of the second

President, President Kuchma, the one who was President when

the country's leading investigative journalist was killed. 

He gained access to state resources because his father-in-

law was President of the country.  And then he--you know, he

runs a diverse business empire.  He seems to be cashing out

currently, but he had businesses, everything from media to

steel pipes, and was also a big sponsor of modern art.

MR. FOLIO:  Would it be helpful to these individuals or

companies, reputationally, to be seen as a funder of

Atlantic Council programming?

MR. KENT:  Well, I think that it would be fair to say

that when the Atlantic Council need to put together a panel

of experts on any particular given topic then that

oftentimes some of the experts might be affiliated with

individuals.  For instance, Akhmetov's chief government
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relations person is a Scottish chap named Jock Mendoza-

Wilson.  And so he sometimes shows up on Atlantic Council

platforms.

MR. FOLIO:  So is it literally giving them a seat at

the table?

MR. KENT:  I think that's--in the case of having Jock

Mendoza-Wilson, the only reason that he would be given a

seat at the table is because he represents Akhmetov's

corporate empires as sort of government relations

representative.

MR. FOLIO:  And with regard to Mr. Zlochevsky, this is

a seat at the table that he was refused not too long ago,

based on his reputation.  Is that right?

MR. KENT:  It was a refusal of the U.S. Government to

engage him or his company.  That's correct.

MR. FOLIO:  And it was a refusal from the Atlantic

Council, based, in part, on the U.S. Government's position

about Mr. Zlochevsky, right?

MR. KENT:  Well, Ambassador Herbst asked for my

opinion.  He did not indicate to me at the time, as I note,

that the Atlantic Council was considering an offer of

funding.  What this is is the heads up that he sent to me

Friday the 13th, in January of 2017, subsequent to a

conversation that we'd had in September, three months prior.

MR. FOLIO:  And you said also that he had made no
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mention of this as a possibility.  So this was--was this

surprising to you to see this change from the Atlantic

Council to go from refusing their money, or Mr. Zlochevsky's

money, to accepting his money?

MR. KENT:  To be clear, I never said that the Atlantic

Council refused his money.  I was not aware that there was a

money on offer.  I think my interpretation, John felt so

obliged to inform me because he'd asked for my opinion, I

had, under no uncertain terms, expressed my opinion, and

implicit in that is that he ignored my advice to stay away,

and accepted support for their programming.

MR. FOLIO:  Give us just one second.

[Pause.]

MR. FOLIO:  Mr. Kent, I think Scott Wittmann has one

question for you and then we'll turn it back over them.

MR. WITTMANN:  Hi, Mr. Kent.  I just wanted to clarify

one--sorry about the echo--I just wanted to clarify one

document that we had previously talked about earlier.  It

was Exhibit 10, and it was an article regarding the seizure

of property belonging to ex-Minister Zlochevsky in Ukraine. 

We just wanted to make clear that while the article was

published on February 2, 2016, there is no mention in this

article that the seizure of property occurred on February 2,

2016.  Instead, the article states that the PGO clarified

that the court satisfied the petition to arrest the property
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of the ex-Minister, Zlochevsky, that that petition was

satisfied on February 2, 2016.

So just to make sure that the record is clear, we just

wanted to give you the chance again to state whether or not

you were aware of any seizure of Mr. Zlochevsky's property,

either during this time period of February 2016 or

beforehand.

MR. KENT:  Okay.  Well, we're back to the document

where the question was asked, and I stated that I was

neither in Ukraine nor aware at the time.  What you showed

me was a press statement by the Prosecutor General's Office

making a claim.  I don't take that as evidence.  I take it

as a statement from an office of someone who is going to be

dismissed by Parliament, which in several weeks.  And then

what we were just talking about, that same document, the

previous document, was discussing how claims against

Zlochevsky had been lifted and had been satisfied by a

settlement which had been reached. 

So I think there's a lot of smoke and mirrors.  There

was a legitimate case that froze $23 million of assets in

the UK in 2014.  That seizure, that freeze in the UK was

lifted in part because of a decision by the Prosecutor

General to close the case against him, end of December 2014. 

And then there's smoke and mirrors all the way through

December, January 2017, when we have this document, that
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under Lutsenko there was a settlement reached, payment made,

and at that point, in 2017, Zlochevsky returned to Ukraine

and resumed openly being a businessman running his company.

So to restate, while I was studying Ukrainian in the

United States I was not aware of a press release of the

Prosecutor General, who was getting ready to be fired, no.

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you.

MR. HARTMAN:  Just to make sure one thing is clear. 

The last document that you just had up, the 9/25/15 article-

-

MR. WITTMANN:  Yes. Yes, sir.

MR. HARTMAN:  --did you make that an exhibit?

MR. WITTMANN:  That document was not made an exhibit.

MR. HARTMAN:  Okay.  I just wanted to make it clear,

because obviously we hadn't seen it.

MR. WITTMANN:  Yes.  That was a--this is the document

we were referencing, the current one that's up.  The other

one that came up before this was not an exhibit.

MR. HARTMAN:  Okay.  That was a mistake.  This is the

one, which has been made an exhibit, I think.

MR. WITTMANN:  Correct.  Yes, sir.

MR. HARTMAN:  And this is the one that we talked about

before that we didn't have.  Okay.

MR. WITTMANN:  Yes, sir.

MR. HARTMAN:  Thank you.
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MR. WITTMANN:  And thank you, Mr. Kent, for the

clarification.  Zack?

MR. SCHRAM:  Scott, was that for me?  I stepped out.

MR. WITTMANN:  Sure.  No problem.  Sorry to catch you

off-guard.  Go ahead.

MR. SCHRAM:  Oh, great.  Dan had the opening questions

for this round.

MR. GOSHORN:  Will, can you give Roy the control to

present documents, please?

MR. SACRIPANTI:  It's inbound.

MR. GOSHORN:  So, Mr. Kent, I just want to quote the

loop on what we're just talking about right here, and since

I mentioned it during the majority's time I would like to

put into the record, I think we're on Exhibit K, The

Washington Post Fact Checker article I referenced.  

[Kent Exhibit K was marked for

identification.]

MR. GOSHORN:  And I don't know if I actually have a

question for you but I just want it to be on the record, so

it's clear if someone is reviewing the transcript.

MR. HARTMAN:  Again, that's--we just received that by

email during the course of the testimony.  We haven't really

examined it.  But we just want to state that for the record.

MR. GOSHORN:  Yeah.  I totally understand.

Roy, can you scroll down a bit?  There's a section
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that's called "The Facts" and it's the fourth paragraph is

the first one I want to point out.  Again, this article is

discussing the claim that there was a raid on Zlochevsky's

house in February 2016, and the allegation is that this raid

coincided with several phone calls between Vice President

Biden and President Poroshenko.  In this article it

summarizes the inaccuracies with that fact pattern.

So, Roy, I think you actually--keep going a little bit,

please.  Keep going.  So stop right there.

Just to highlight, "Nevertheless, on February 2, 2015"-

-so this would be the time Yarema was Prosecutor General. 

Is that correct, Mr. Kent?

MR. KENT:  That's correct.  That was the day before I

met his deputy to talk about the closed case.

MR. GOSHORN:  So "the Prosecutor General's Office

seized personal property attributed to Zlochevsky but

legally owned by his family, including a mansion, a luxury

care and plots of land, according to AntAC.  The court order

was not published, but journalists eventually exposed what

had happened later in 2015."

And then, Roy, if you keep scrolling down.  Stop right

there, please.

So you can see the paragraph at the top of the screen

that says, "So, on December 25, 2015, the seizure was

cancelled.  But the court order was not published until
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January 27, 2016, and it prompted a public outcry."

Mr. Kent, can you speak to this claim that it prompted

a public outcry?  Was the investigation of Zlochevsky and

the actions of the Prosecutor General's Office something

that was followed by the Ukrainian public?

MR. KENT:  Hold on one minute, please.  I'm just trying

to read--

[Pause.]

MR. GOSHORN:  I'm sorry.  You're welcome to take as

much time as you want to read this article, but I just want

to be respectful of your time as well.

MR. KENT:  Yeah.  You're asking me to try to process

information and assess claims by a variety of partners.  I

guess the only thing I would say is prompting a public

outcry, Ukrainians aren't happy when it seems like the court

and Prosecutor General's Office are cancelling seizures of

actions against presumed corrupt individuals.  And so

that's, I think, that line.  AntAC, again, is the

Anticorruption Action Center, the executive director of

whose house was burned yesterday.  And I think they would

assess the public outcry.  That's all I would say.

This is all inside baseball.  I have no way or reason

to assess, and that's all I would say about that.

MR. GOSHORN:  Okay.  And then it says, to finish that

paragraph, "The PGO scrambled to get it reinstated, and the
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order was published on February 4, 2016."  

And then, just for the record, Roy, can you scroll all

the way to the bottom?  Stop right there.

This is the highly scientific Pinocchios rating, and I

just want to point out, for the record, that The Washington

Post rated this Four Pinocchios.

So, Mr. Kent, moving on, we spent a lot of time earlier

today discussing how the policy was created regarding Mr.

Shokin, the fact that he was corrupt and the fact that, you

know, his removal and the continued reform of the Prosecutor

General's Office was going to be necessary before the U.S.

could guarantee another loan guarantee.  And I wanted to ask

you some questions, and given your expertise, you know, what

documents you believe, or know or believe exist to

memorialize the U.S. Government's actions on this matter?

I believe you said before that the process was a

suggestion from Kiev and that it was discussed in Washington

and kind of percolated up to the Vice President from there.

What documents or memoranda or talking points do you think

may have been created as this process unfolded?

MR. KENT:  Well again, you're asking me a question

about this period of time where I was blissfully learning

Ukrainian language as opposed to being an officer, so for

several months I was not directly in the chain of

communication or decisions.  But as I've testified, I
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believe the idea would be conveyed from the Embassy,

discussed and conveyed in the Embassy, conveyed almost

certainly by Ambassador Pyatt to the State Department,

Assistant Secretary Victoria Nuland, and then there would be

interagency meetings, which are normally memorialized in

statements of conclusions, depending on the level of the

meetings.  

And then there may or may not have been some of the

trip paper prepared, and as any of us who have been involved

in preparing trips for principles, you've got paper that can

be tasked weeks in advance, and then oftentimes there are

trip meetings and oral briefings, where things are

oftentimes shaded and finally put into final, and then there

are actually new developments.  And so at a certain point

there would have been a trip briefing before the Vice

President's trip to Ukraine, or any commentary, and that's

when I think those ideas would have been agreed to be part

of his pitch to President Poroshenko.

MR. GOSHORN:  Would you characterize, you know, a

decision of this magnitude--I know you said you were

learning Ukrainian at the time, but a decision of this

magnitude as to conditions necessary for the loan guarantee,

would that be something that was well documented at the

State Department?

MR. KENT:  Well, again, I've described to you the
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extent I understand a process when I was not part of that

process, having been involved up until Thanksgiving, and

then sort of returning in March for the rest of the year.

I certainly supported--I supported that policy.  I

probably was part of oral discussions at the Embassy before

I left, and that's why I assert that the idea came from the

Embassy.  But I cannot point to specific documents on the

Washington side.  And because I was not a Federal record-

keeper on any of those documents, they were not provided to

me before this hearing and I cannot assert to you, you know,

what may or may not be in the, you know, statements of

conclusions and other documents from the Office of the Vice

President.

MR. GOSHORN:  Okay.

So Ranking Member Wyden, in particular, has written a

number of letters to Secretary Pompeo, you know, expressing

concern that he--that the Committees may be acting on an

incomplete record of documents, with regard to the matters

at issue here.

So I wanted to draw your attention to the requests that

we're working off of here, and get your expert opinion as to

whether they, you know, fully encapsulate the matter at

hand.

Roy, actually, not that document.  Could you go back

to--is it Exhibit B, the 9/27/2019 letter from the Chairmen
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to Secretary Pompeo.

MR. KENT:  11/6?

MR. GOSHORN:  That one.  Yeah.  B.  That's the one. 

November 6th.  Sorry.

And so I know we've discussed this already today and I

don't want to go through the factual allegations again.  I

just want to turn your attention to page 4, the actual

document requests.  But you're welcome to, of course, take

as much time as you need to refresh your recollection on the

document.

MR. KENT:  And the first time I saw this document was

yesterday so it's not matter of refreshing a recollection

that I never had.  So if you have a question, if you'd ask

it I can try to answer it or say I have no basis--

MR. GOSHORN:  Sure.  Well, to start I'd like to--you

know, you've spent all day discussing with us what we think

our concerns were on this investigation, and so I want to

turn your attention to Point 2 here, and it's a request for

"All State Department records relating to Burisma Holdings,

Rosemont Seneca Partners, Rosemont Seneca Bohai LLC,

Rosemont Capital, and Blue Star Strategies."

So on the request for documents relating to Burisma

Holdings, in particular, do you think requesting documents

related to Burisma is sufficient to understanding the U.S.

Government's policy with regard to the removal of Shokin?
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MR. KENT:  I will just repeat what I've tried to say,

both last fall and today.  U.S. Government's interest was in

Zlochevsky, the corrupt minister, who enriched and then

probably engaged in money-laundering.  People keep asking

about Burisma, the company, but our concern was the behavior

of the corrupt Ukrainian.

MR. GOSHORN:  And so you think that documents related

to Zlochevsky better highlight--

MR. KENT:  Well, I'm talking about the substance.  I

guess you're asking about the documents.  I'm--

MR. GOSHORN:  We want to know where we should be

looking, and we want to make sure we have a complete record

and we're not making decisions and conclusions based on an

incomplete record.  And I know you're an expert.  You've

worked at the State Department a long time, and you know

this issue, in particular, very well.  And, you know, to the

extent you can help us, it would be--

MR. HARTMAN:  Can you hold on?  Hold on for one minute.

MR. GOSHORN:  Sure.

[Pause.]

MR. HARTMAN:  We're trying to make sure George can

answer, is equipped to answer.  But the truth is, I think,

and George can comment on this, that, you know, the

custodian of records of the State Department would be the

one who would be able to answer questions about what State
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Department record exist on this, I think.  I don't know if

George can add anything to that, but I'm not sure how he's

equipped to decide what records you should be asking for to

cover a particular issue when he's not the custodian of

records.  George?

MR. FOLIO:  And if I could just interject, just for the

record and for your situational awareness, you know, there

is a separate Grassley-Johnson request for all the documents

relevant to the firing of Mr. Shokin, which I believe the

State Department is processing.

MR. GOSHORN:  I'm sorry, Joe.  I couldn't hear you. 

What was that?

MR. FOLIO:  Insofar as your request, is this going to

cover all the documents relevant to the decision to fire

then Prosecutor General Shokin?  There is an outstanding

Johnson-Grassley request for that information that the State

Department is processing.

MR. GOSHORN:  Is there an outstanding--there is not an

outstanding request for documents related to Zlochevsky,

though, are there?

MR. FOLIO:  I think this is probably a better

conversation to have offline or with the State Department. 

But I think the State Department's position is they are

always keeping an eye out for responsive documents.

MR. GOSHORN:  Yeah.  Well, I just wanted to, I guess,
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note for the record then, if we can't move forward here. 

The letter to the State Department, initial request letter,

that is presumably about assembling the facts necessary to

understand why Shokin was removed does not ask for documents

related to Shokin.  It does not ask for documents related to

Zlochevsky.  It does not ask for meeting records related to

the U.S. policymakers' decisions to advance that policy. 

Those requests weren't made until April 30th of the next

year, after Senator Wyden twice requested, actually, those

documents.

So we don't have to belabor this any further.  I just--

if the witness isn't comfortable with speaking about what

documents may exist, I don't want to try to force him to. 

So with that I can pass it over to Zack.

MR. HARTMAN:  We should be clear, if you want to ask

him about what documents he has, that he is aware of, his

own documents, obviously you can ask that and he'll answer

as best he can and tell you what he did to identify those in

the past.

MR. GOSHORN:  Yeah, Joe, you're showing me a document

from April 30, 2020.  I'm discussing the request on November

6, 2019, and, you know, those are the only documents we've

received so far from the State Department, documents

responsive to this request.  So if your position is that you

need the documents from that April 30th request to accurate,
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you know, conduct this investigation, I think we agree, and

I think we spent a lot of time questioning the witness with

an incomplete record today.

MR. FOLIO:  My position is I want to be respectful of

Mr. Kent's time.  I don't think he's in a position to answer

State Department custodial records, and I think he provided

helpful answers today about his understanding of the firing

of Mr. Shokin.

MR. GOSHORN:  Yeah, and I just hope, Mr. Kent, that we

don't have to ask you to come back when we get more relevant

documents on this matter.

So, Zack, I'm all done.

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, thank you very much.  You are a

very patient man and we appreciate your patience with the

Committee.  I just have a few more questions.

The majority raised Blue Star Strategies in the last

round of questions.  On March 3, 2020, Chairman Johnson

stated during an interview on Fox News that the U.S.

consulting firm representing Burisma was, quote, "basically

using Hunter Biden's name to strong arm the State Department

to curry benefits for a corrupt Ukrainian oil company."

Mr. Kent, was the State Department successfully strong-

armed?

MR. KENT:  I think the conversations we've had today

indicate that the State Department had a strong position
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that Zlochevsky was corrupt and we shouldn't have anything

to do with his company, Burisma.

MR. SCHRAM:  And your opinion on that matter was not

changed by Blue Star Strategies?

MR. KENT:  It was not.

MR. SCHRAM:  And the U.S. Government's position with

respect to Burisma was not changed because of Blue Star

Strategies?

MR. KENT:  That is correct.

MR. SCHRAM:  Marking as Exhibit--what do we have now? 

L--marking as Exhibit L, and this is not something that was

previously provided but it's a public record and I just have

a brief question about a sentence in it.  This is the

December 3, 2019, letter from Chairmen Johnson and Grassley

to Karen Tramontano.

[Kent Exhibit L was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  And I'd just draw your attention to the

second sentence in the opening paragraph, because the

majority's definition of this investigation has changed a

little bit over time.  And the question posed in the second,

or the purpose identified in the second sentence reads, "In

addition, the Committees are reviewing whether Hunter Biden

or his associates had any role in the formulation of the

Obama administration's policies with respect to Ukraine."
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So let's, for the last time this evening, put that to

bed.  Did Hunter Biden or his associates have a role in the

formulation of the Obama administration's policies with

respect to Ukraine?

MR. KENT:  To the best of my knowledge, no.

MR. SCHRAM:  That's the same answer that you gave this

morning.  It's the same answer you gave last fall.  It's the

answer that is available to anyone with access to the public

record.  It is the answer that is confirmed by the

documents, all of the documents in the Committee's

possession.

MR. DOWNEY:  Zack, real quick, is there--does that

document have letterhead on it, our letter?

MR. SCHRAM:  I've printed up a copy from an email just

now--that's a good question.  Can we pull the final version? 

So it's on your website and I'll read it off the website and

we'll make sure that the letterhead version goes into the

record.  Brian, thank you for identifying, just to confirm

I'm reading aloud.  [inaudible--audio difficulties].

MR. DOWNEY:  We can't hear you, Zack.

MR. SCHRAM:  So the language is the same as the

official version that's on the Committee's website.  We'll

make sure that we enter the one with the letterhead into the

record.

Brian, does that satisfy your question?
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MR. DOWNEY:  Yeah.  Thanks.

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, you were asked about, on several

occasions, whether Hunter Biden's name was raised in the

context of this or that decision of the Obama

administration, and each time you said no.  In fact, the

people raising Hunter Biden's name, besides the majority on

the Committee, are the people we've discussed earlier, like

Andrii Telizhenko, Andrii Derkach, Onyshchenko.  They've

been doing so publicly, in the press, and seemingly tied to

step taken by this Committee.

Does Mr. Telizhenko, Mr. Derkach, and Mr. Onyshchenko,

do those individuals have the American national security

interests at heart?

MR. KENT:  They are not U.S. nationals and I can't say

their actions support U.S. policy.

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, are you familiar with the Kyiv

Security Forum?

MR. KENT:  Yes.  It's a forum that's established by

former Prime Minister Yatsenyuk.

MR. SCHRAM:  Can you provide a little more context?  Is

it, for example, pro-Western?

MR. KENT:  Former Prime Minister Yatsenyuk is a pro-

Western figure.  Usually they have an annual conference,

usually in April.  It was virtual this year.  And he

promotes Ukraine's Euro-Atlantic integration, both on
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economic structures, and he's also a proponent of Ukraine

joining NATO.  So it oftentimes focuses on security issues

from a very pro-Western perspective.

MR. SCHRAM:  The majority asks about the perspective in

Ukraine about Hunter Biden being on the board of Burisma. 

We have, in our possession, and I am entering it as Exhibit

M, a statement on the Ukrainian American Strategic

Partnership from the Kyiv Security Forum, with many

signatories, that expresses a view about the Committees'

investigation.

[Kent Exhibit M was marked for

identification.]

MR. SCHRAM:  This was released--it says, according to

this letter it was signed on May 22-23.  As a reminder, this

Committee marked up and voted on the subpoena of Blue Star

Strategies on May 20th, and on May 19th, Andrii Derkach

released recordings of conversations between Vice President

Biden, President Poroshenko, and made many allegations,

including some related to the subject of the majority

investigation.

I draw your attention to the fourth--fifth, rather--

fifth paragraph, short paragraph in this letter, which

reads, "We call on American leaders to distinguish between

the position of new Ukraine, which stands for the unity of

the West and acts to unite democracies around the world, and
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those forces that seek to turn the political developments in

our country into a toxic narrative to sow discord among our

partners.  

"We oppose the dishonest attempts to use the political

controversies in the United States.  We do not choose any

side, but support each of them in the same way that they

together help Ukraine's independence.

"We call on America's leaders to distinguish between

the position of our nation from the actions of politicians

instigated by Moscow."

I just offer you an opportunity to opine on this

letter, if you're interested.

MR. KENT:  I'll just say two things.  Again, this is in

accord--this is former Prime Minister Yatsenyuk's vehicle. 

His long-time foreign policy advisor, Danylo Lubkivsky, a

former Deputy Foreign Minister, showed me, as I recall, this

statement after they issued it, and it was directly in

response to Derkach's release of the first batch of tapes,

as you mentioned, several days earlier.

MR. SCHRAM:  Mr. Kent, when you were asked, for it must

have been the 100th time this afternoon, about the influence

of Hunter Biden's role on the board of Burisma with respect

to the formulation of Obama administration policy, you said,

at one point, "We were pushing what's right, doing what's

right."  Who is the "we" in that sentence?
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MR. KENT:  U.S. Government and, I would say, Ukrainian

civil society.

MR. SCHRAM:  And the U.S. Government would include, of

course, you, the Ambassadors you worked for.  Would it also

include the Vice President, Vice President Biden?

MR. KENT:  I would say it would include, as I started

my opening comments, it would include officials of both

administrations, the current one and the previous one, and

it would include people of Congress, Members of Congress,

particularly appropriators, who have supported Ukraine with

very generous resources.  And I would say, as a member of

the administration, Congress has appropriated above the

administration requests consistently since 2014, for which

Ukrainians and those of us working on Ukraine are very

grateful.

MR. SCHRAM:  Finally, just to respond to the majority's

point, based on our consistent concerns about this

investigation using this disinformation, the majority

observed that minority introduced into the record what, Mr.

Kent, you identified as disinformation with respect to the

Derkach chart.  I would just add that the minority

introduced that into the record to provide the witness the

opportunity to critique it, to identify it, to call it out

as disinformation.  This record is rife with disinformation

that the majority has entered into the record, but not to
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critique it, rather to lend it credibility and to provide as

the platform of the United States Senate.

 Mr. Kent, we very much appreciate your time and your

service to this country.  Thank you for your participation

today.

MR. KENT:  Thank you for the invitation.

[Pause.]

MR. WITTMANN:  Hi, Mr. Kent.  We're almost done, I

promise, and thank you again for your time.

I'd like to go to Exhibit 16, please.  This is a

December 8, 2015, New York Times article, written by James

Risen, entitled "Joe Biden, his son, and the case against a

Ukrainian oligarch."

[Kent Exhibit No. 16 was

marked for identification.]

MR. WITTMANN:  I'm trying to get it on the screen right

now.

MR. HARTMAN:  And again, Scott, just for the record--

MR. WITTMANN:  Sure.

MR. HARTMAN:  --this is not something we've seen, I

think.  Correct?

MR. WITTMANN:  That is correct, unless you read the

article when it was published, which actually is going to be

our question, Mr. Kent, for you, and perhaps you can comment

on that, if you're familiar with it, just by the title of
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it.  But I'll wait until you have it in front of you to ask

it.  Just let me know whenever you're ready.

MR. KENT:  It's on my screen.  I'll tell you when I--

[Pause.]

MR. KENT:  Okay.  Okay.  Yeah, you can page down the

next screen.

[Pause.]

MR. KENT:  Okay.

[Pause.]

MR. KENT:  Okay.

[Pause.]

MR. KENT:  Okay.

MR. WITTMANN:  Mr. Kent, do you remember whether you

saw this article when it was published?

MR. KENT:  I don't recall, honestly.  I will say that

at the time I did not have a subscription to The New York

Times, electronically.

MR. WITTMANN:  Noted.  Did this article ever come up in

any discussions regarding Hunter Biden's role on Burisma's

board?

MR. KENT:  Discussions between whom?

MR. WITTMANN:  Sure.  Discussions between you and your

colleagues, any time that you had raised concerns about

Hunter Biden's role on Burisma's board?

MR. KENT:  I would say that this article accurately
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reflects things that I've said multiple times today about

the--how the case against him was closed, and why, and the

U.S. Government's concerns about it.  It quotes Geoff

Pyatt's speech, which I had referred to.  So we don't need

The New York Times to report what we are saying.  We know

what we're saying and what our positions are.

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you.

Were you aware of a Ukrainian delegation meeting with

U.S. officials in Washington, D.C. between January 18th and

January 23rd, 2016?

MR. KENT:  Again, that was the period of time, this

three-and-a-half-month period where I was learning

Ukrainian, so I was in Arlington but not going to work at

the State Department.  I believe, however, I was aware that

the delegation was coming to Washington, which is different

than a meeting that you're asking about.

MR. WITTMANN:  And what was your awareness of the

delegation coming to Washington?  What was the time period

for that?

MR. KENT:  Perhaps coterminous.  I think the--based on

the reporting that has been in the press, this was a

delegation that involved--first of all, I was accompanied by

our Department of Justice representative, whose job it was

to build capacity in the justice system.  He brought the

heads of two new organization, with whom we worked closely,
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the head of the National Anticorruption Bureau and the

special anticorruption prosecutor, as well as the reformist

Deputy Prosecutor General.  And so this was part of our

effort to build capacity to address corruption.  As I said

in my opening comments, the need was to investigate,

prosecute, and then bring--render justice to corrupt

individuals.  And these three individuals played key roles

in those attempted efforts to build an anticorruption

ecosystem that was effective.

MR. WITTMANN:  Do you know who that delegation met

with?

MR. KENT:  I do not.  I was aware that this trip was in

planning, and that sort of trip makes sense, and we were

trying to foster interagency cooperation.  But beyond that,

the details I don't know.

MR. WITTMANN:  Do you know whether Mr. Telizhenko

attended any of the meetings with that delegation?

MR. KENT:  There are press reports but I do not have

any contemporary knowledge of who was in what meetings.

MR. WITTMANN:  Were you aware of any meetings occurring

between U.S. officials and Ukrainian officials that included

discussions about the Prosecutor General Office's

investigation, or lack thereof, of Burisma?

MR. KENT:  Can you restate the question clearly,

please?
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MR. WITTMANN:  Sure.  Did you have any--were you aware

of any meetings between U.S. officials and Ukrainian

officials that included discussions about the PGO's

investigation, or lack of investigation, into Burisma?

MR. KENT:  On this trip?

MR. WITTMANN:  No.  General question.

MR. KENT:  I've referred--yes, because multiple times

today I've described my meetings, where I raised, "Why

aren't you prosecuting Zlochevsky?"

MR. WITTMANN:  You raised that to Ukrainian officials?

MR. KENT:  As I've said today, I raised it with the

First Deputy Prosecutor General Danylenko on February 3,

2015.  As I've also said today, I raised with Prosecutor

General Yuri Lutsenko on or about the 1st of September,

2016.  So over a span of a year and a half with multiple

Prosecutors General I raised, "Why aren't you prosecuting

Mykola Zlochevsky?"

MR. WITTMANN:  Did you ever raise--in addition to you

raising that issue, were you aware of any of your colleagues

raising that similar issue to Ukrainian officials?

MR. KENT:  Yes.  Ambassador Pyatt almost certainly did

it.  He did it--we don't say things in public like he did

without raising it repeatedly in private.  But I can't give

you dates.  I can just tell you he did it.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.
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MR. KENT:  He probably did it with the President of the

country.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.  Did you ever raise this

issue to Mr. Shokin or anyone in Mr. Shokin's office?

MR. KENT:  As I testified before, I never scheduled a

meeting with Shokin.  He didn't want to meet with us.  And

the one chance encounter I had was a Kabuki drama, where he

tried to make the appearance of agreeing to establish an

inspector general unit.  So the answer, in short is no, I

did not raise it with Shokin, but our position was clear.

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you.  

Based on public reporting, Vice President Joe Biden and

Ukrainian President Petro Poroshenko had numerous phone

calls.  Did you or any State Department officials join these

phone calls?

MR. KENT:  It is possible that Ambassador Pyatt was on

some of the calls.  I can't give you a straight yes or no

answer, but I believe that's true.  I think it's possible.

MR. WITTMANN:  Understood.  Thank you.

Were you involved in any preparations for these phone

calls?

MR. KENT:  One of the phone calls, I was involved in

the preparation because Ambassador Pyatt was not there.

MR. WITTMANN:  Do you recall--I'm sorry.  What was the

date of that call?
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MR. KENT:  To be honest, I have no idea.  I mean, they

talked frequently, but I was--I prepared--I participated in

one of the pre-call sessions.

MR. WITTMANN:  Could you describe what type of

preparations went into those discussions?

MR. KENT:  Well, I would say it was a bit of a Socratic

process, where Vice President Biden took the proposed

talking points, tore them apart, asked specific questions to

his advisors, whoever was in the room, to Assistant

Secretary Nuland, who was on the line, and to whom I

deferred.  I cannot remember actually if I even

participated, but I was there in case they needed a voice

locally. 

I was very impressed by the thoroughness of the

preparation for the call, and I can tell you that the call

made him--gave him the information that he then synthesized,

and he delivered it far more effectively than everyone who

had prepared talking points.

MR. WITTMANN:  So based on that comment, it sounds like

you got some sort of read-out or memo about what was said on

the calls.  Is that accurate?

MR. KENT:  For that particular call, yes.  And again, I

apologize for not being able to identify, with specificity,

what the call or the specific content was.

MR. WITTMANN:  So that was for the call that you
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participated in the preparation.  What about the other

calls?  Were there any briefings or readouts that either you

received or that you know were distributed to others?

MR. KENT:  There were other calls, and Ambassador Pyatt

would have participated in those preparations.

MR. WITTMANN:  And would he, or other participants,

have received readouts or briefings following the phone

calls?

MR. KENT:  To be honest, I've never worked in the

Office of the Vice President so I'm not sure what the

procedures are for vice presidential calls.  But he would

have gotten some sort of substantive readout from someone.

MR. WITTMANN:  And in your preparations, you mentioned

that the preparations for this call involved working

directly with the Vice President.  Is that correct?

MR. KENT:  Right.  My recollection is that before--he

didn't just pick up the phone and pick up the call sheet. 

He had a conversation with advisors and challenged them on

why they had recommended certain points, so he could fully

understand the issue, and then he synthesized the

information to present it in his own way.

MR. WITTMANN:  And in addition to--you also mentioned

Ms. Nuland participated on the one prep that you attended. 

Were there any participants that you remember?

MR. KENT:  There were other people who represented the,
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you know, his office.  There may or may not have been

somebody from the NSC.  I honestly don't remember.

MR. WITTMANN:  Who would have been, if there was a

participant from NSC, who was that person?

MR. KENT:  Charlie Kupchan was the Senior Director for

Ukraine, and other countries, at the time, so he would have

been the person most likely.

MR. WITTMANN:  Thank you.  Josh?

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Mr. Kent, thank you for your time. 

Just a couple quick follow-up questions here.

Regarding your determination of Hunter Biden being on

Burisma's board created the perception of a potential

conflict of interest, how many times during your career have

you raised that as a concern?

MR. KENT:  Can you restate the question--raise

specifically about Hunter Biden or about a perception of--

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Well, generally during the course of

your career, how many times have you raised the perception

of a potential conflict of interest, for any certain fact

pattern that you've been exposed to?

MR. KENT:  I would say that I have a fairly high

standard of moral ethical conduct, and so I think anyone who

has worked with me knows that I hold myself to high

standards and I hold others as well.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  So you would have experience then in
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knowing what satisfies that particular standard?

MR. KENT:  Well, again, there are legal standards, and

I think that's not what we're discussing here.  We're

talking about perceptions.  One email I wrote was The

Washington Post desk, and [inaudible--audio difficulties]

people to think through, in the case of that conversation

that I was having with our Embassy staff in August of 2016,

to think through the implications, the moral hazard issue,

and whether it made sense for any U.S. Government, no matter

how many times removed, to have any association.  And that

issue is not [inaudible--audio difficulties] a company that

had been the subject of joint U.S. law enforcement action. 

And that goes back to the fiduciary responsibility.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  We're having a little audio trouble

her but I think I understood what you just said well enough.

Next question here.  So do you know why Lutsenko wanted

to meet with John Podesta?

MR. KENT:  He told me he thought Hillary Clinton was

going to win and he wanted to meet the chief of staff of the

President of the United States.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  So Lutsenko, was he friends or

acquaintances with John Podesta?

MR. KENT:  He never met him, to the best of my

knowledge.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  So he wanted to meet him for business
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purposes then.

MR. KENT:  He is a politician who spent some times as

Prosecutor General.  He made no secret of his aspiration to

run for President or be the next Ambassador.  So he wanted

to be a politician to meet politicians.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Do you know if he ever did meet with

Mr. Podesta?

MR. KENT:  To the best of my knowledge, no.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Do you know if he met with anyone

from the Hillary Clinton campaign?

MR. KENT:  He didn't go to the United States for

another two years.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  So I think Mr. Downey brought this

issue up earlier in questioning.  I just want to make sure

that we have a clear record here.

So it is correct that you had no communications with

employees at the National Security Council regarding Burisma

or Hunter Biden?

MR. KENT:  As I said, to the best of my knowledge,

besides that phone call that was a moment of opportunity

initiated by the Office of the Vice President, to talk to

the Ambassador, who was not there, that was my one shot

dance of concern.  I left the Embassy that weekend to come

back to the United States, and having registered my concern

with the Office of the Vice President I did not further
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raise the issue.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  With respect to--

MR. KENT:  To the best of my recollection.  And again,

we're talking five and a half years ago.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  I understand.  So the National

Security Council then isn't generally in the reporting chain

for you.  I don't know if "reporting chain" is the proper

term, but it sounds like the NSC is generally not in the

communication conduit for you.  Is that accurate?

MR. KENT:  It would be accurate to say that embassies

are responsive to the State Department.  There is an

interagency process, and there is a lot of communication

between the National Security Council and the State

Department.  Sometimes it's a three-way communication with

embassies.  And during the previous administration, because

Vice President Biden played an active role on Ukraine, his

staff was an active participant in the interagency process.

MR. FLYNN-BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Kent.  We appreciate

your time today.

MR. FOLIO:  Mr. Kent, this is Joe Folio.  I think

that’s all for the majority.  We want to emphasize, we

appreciate your generosity with your time.

MR. SCHRAM:  Joe, we can't hear you.  I'm really loathe

to prolong this but I do want to hear your closing words.

MR. FOLIO:  Can you hear me now?
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MR. SCHRAM:  We can hear you now, yes.

MR. FOLIO:  Great.  Mr. Kent, thank you very much.  You

have been very generous….

MR. SCHRAM:  We can't hear you now.

MR. FOLIO:  Thank you, and good night.

MR. SCHRAM:  That works.

MR. FOLIO:  Thank you very much.

Ms. Gray, thank you as well.

[Simultaneous discussion.]

MR. HARTMAN:  Joe, we'll be in contact with you about

the timing for reviewing the transcript?

MR. FOLIO:  Yes.

[Whereupon, at 6:41 p.m., the interview was concluded.]
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From:Kent, George P
Sent:Tue, 6 Sep 2016 09:55:14 -0400
To:Brink, Bridget A;Andrews, Jorgan K
Cc:Yovanovitch, Marie L
Subject:Bullying, threatening call by Blue Star's Sally Painter (Re Lutsenko)

Bridget, Jorgan:
 
Need to give you a heads up that I took a call just now from Sally Painter from Blue Star Strategies, the 
first time we have interacted.  I am confident it will be the last.  Nearly simultaneously her boss, Karen 
Tramontano, called on the other line asking to talk to the Ambassador (who is out on the run the rest of 
the day, event to event).
 
Painter adopted a hostile, aggressive tone from the outside, and was rude and accusatory throughout.  
It was unlike any conversation I have had in my 24+ years in the foreign service, and completely 
inappropriate on her part.  She ended the conversation by saying that she would take the matter up 
with “The Under Secretary.”  (NFI)
 
The topic/issue was Prosecutor General Yuri Lutsenko, and his now cancelled plans to come to 
Washington – a trip that Blue Star had apparently been arranging.
 
I wasn’t able to scribble notes to follow the specific accusations and bullying remarks.  The crux of the 
accusation was that I had allegedly damaged her/firm’s reputation to Lutsenko, and allegedly told him 
not to have anything to do with them (for the record: I did not tell him that.  Full stop).  She then 
proceeded to make rambling reference to “not representing Nikolai in the US” (I presume this is 
Zlochevsky), “because he has legal representation in the US, or Burisma” (Zlochevsky’s company), and 
that she had represented Yushchenko’s interests in the US for five years, and knew what was legal and 
what was not, and when it was required to register, that she was on the board of the Atlantic Council, 
and on a pro bono basis had been happy to arrange something with John Herbst (ie, for Lutsenko to 
speak), and that they also had offered a private dinner for Lutsenko that she and her partner 
Tramontano would have hosted for Lutsenko at no cost, to invite various people, important people, 
including Melanne Veveer, who was by the way close to former Secretary Clinton.
 
After I let her vent for close to five minutes and she reached a pause, I pointed out that we had never 
previously talked.  I noted that her tone and accusations, including outright misrepresentations of my 
conversations with Lutsenko, was an odd way of initiating a first time conversation.  I stated that the 
first time I had ever heard her name had been earlier this summer, when Dan Fried called and asked me 
if I would be willing to talk to her. I told Dan I would, and had passed my number.  Painter jumped in and 
said: “you never called back.”  I reiterated that Dan had asked me if I would be willing to talk to her; I 
had said yes, and passed him my number, and never heard anything further.
 
I told her that, given the aggressive, threatening, bullying tone she had adopted and her 
misrepresentations of what I had said in the course of diplomatic discussion, I was within norms and my 
rights simply to wish her good day and hang up.  I instead offered a partial reset, if she were interested 
(she was).  I told her that I had met the Prosecutor General to talk about his proposed trip.  I had given 
him the general advice that for a trip to Washington on which he would look to engage the USG, it made 
sense to work primarily through the US embassy here and the Ukrainian embassy in Washington.  We 
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became aware of the trip because a senior DOJ official had reached out to the embassy for our reaction 
and what we knew of the trip.  
 
Painter broke in at this point and said: “we know that.  Government to government meetings would be 
the responsibility of the Ukrainian embassy.”  This is in fact a false statement by Painter.  Blue Star, 
through an associate who traveled with Tramontano to Kyiv in July and was previously a DOJ political 
appointee, reached out to DOJ itself; Bruce Szwartz then called RLA Jeff Cole about the visit. That is how 
we learned of the trip.  I subsequently reached out to the Ukrainian acting DCM, Oksana, who indicated 
she knew nothing of the request to DOJ.
 
Beyond arranging govt-govt meetings, I continued, I had suggested to Lutsenko that the proposed timing 
of his trip (25-27 Sept)  was not the best, because of UNGA and attention on international relations 
focused on New York in the second half of September, and the election season, with key people on the 
Hill out on the stump six weeks before the general election.  That suggested an earlier or later trip.  
 Ukrainian officials had been known to have relations with third parties for other events, and that was 
their business.  Ours was bilateral relations, and that had been my focus.
 
When Painter went back into interrogative mode, asking whether I had mentioned her company, I told 
her that it would not be appropriate to share the content of my conversation with the Prosecutor 
General.  She referenced an email that Lutsenko sent “her” (Blue Star), and said I would have to answer 
if I damaged the reputation of her company, and that she would take it up with the Under Secretary 
(unspecified).
 
At that point, I told her I could not and would not presume to characterize Lutsenko’s private 
correspondence, while reminding that she had mischaracterized my conversations with Lutsenko.  I 
wished her good day, and told her the conversation was over.  And went back to my regularly scheduled 
business, since I had kept the visiting regional medical officer waiting in the meantime.
--
Footnote1: Lutsenko told me he did not know who exactly had come to Kyiv and talked to him in July 
about coming to Washington.  He said Blue Star had promised they could arrange access to high levels of 
the Clinton campaign, including someone who might lead her White House (my guess: Podesta, head of 
the campaign, for whom Tramontano worked in the last year of the Bill Clinton White House).  The 
political angle of the trip is what interested him.   I pulled up the Blue Star website on my phone and 
showed him photos of Tramantano (he said: “that’s her”).  I showed him a picture of Painter (right 
underneath); he shook his head and replied: “never seen her.”
 
Footnote 2: When Dan Fried called me in the summer, asking if I would be willing to talk to Painter, the 
subject was Zlochevsky, and allegedly the bad reputational deal he was getting.  I warned Dan this was a 
sticky wicket, that Zlochevsky was viewed as corrupt, not just in Ukraine but by the USG/FBI, that he 
almost certainly had paid a bribe to the PGO office (Yarema team) to have them close a case against 
Zlochevsky in December 2014 and issue a letter to that effect to Zlochevsky’s lawyer, who flipped it to a 
UK judge, who unfroze assets that the FBI and MI5 had spent months trying to make a case for asset 
repatriation – the first and so far only possible case, in an effort we collectively have spent hundreds of 
thousands of dollars.  Furthermore, the presence of Hunter Biden on the Bursima board was very 
awkward for all US officials pushing an anti-corruption agenda in Ukraine.   Dan then said: “Sally’s 
apparently been asked to gather information in an attempt to convince Hunter to sever the 
relationship.”  I said he was free to pass my name and number to her, and I would be as forthright about 
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Zlochevsky and Burisma as I had been to him.  I heard nothing further.  From the conversation today 
with Painter, it would appear she is on a first name basis with Zlochevsky.
 
Footnote 3: after we learned of the possible Lutsenko trip by the DOJ-RLA interaction, I discussed with 
RLA, LEGATT, and INL possible next steps.  We agreed I would SMS Lutsenko to seek confirmation of his 
plans, both to travel to DC and to use of a third party rather than embassies to arrange the trip.  He 
responded with a request to meet one on one to discuss. We did – it slipped from Friday to Saturday, 
because on Friday Lutsenko released the Illovaisk report regarding the August 2014 tragedy, and who 
was at fault (in short: the Russians, for invading/killing hundreds of Ukrainians after offering free 
passage; but “mistakes were made” by the Ukrainian general staff).
 
 
Sensitive 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 
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From:Kent, George P
Sent:Tue, 22 Nov 2016 00:46:32 -0500
To:Andrews, Jorgan K;
Subject:Fw: Meeting request from Ambassador Herbst

Meet with Herbst, to talk about zlochevsky okay.  

Meet with zlochevsky no - not under any circumstances.

I shut down the ill-advised USAID co-branding effort for precisely this perception challenge.

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
From: 
Sent: Tuesday, November 22, 2016 7:39 AM
To: Kent, George P
Cc:  Purcell, Alan S; 
Subject: FW: Meeting request from Ambassador Herbst

FYI.  We will respond on the HS.  
 
 
SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 

 

From:  
Sent: Tuesday, November 22, 2016 12:14 AM
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: RE: Meeting request from Ambassador Herbst
 
We found that he was a minister under Yanukovych & looks like Pyatt called him out by name (see NYT 
excerpt below).  On the other hand, USAID seems to have worked with Burisma on energy efficiency.  
Feel free to respond on high-side.    
 
http://www.nytimes.com/2015/12/09/world/europe/corruption-ukraine-joe-biden-son-hunter-biden-
ties.html?_r=0 
“That month, as part of an investigation into money laundering, British officials froze London 
bank accounts containing $23 million that allegedly belonged to Mr. Zlochevsky.
Britain’s Serious Fraud Office, an independent government agency, specifically forbade Mr. 
Zlochevksy, as well as Burisma Holdings, the company’s chief legal officer and another 
company owned by Mr. Zlochevsky, to have any access to the accounts.
But after Ukrainian prosecutors refused to provide documents needed in the investigation, a 
British court in January ordered the Serious Fraud Office to unfreeze the assets. The refusal by 
the Ukrainian prosecutor general’s office to cooperate was the target of a stinging attack by the 
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American ambassador to Ukraine, Geoffrey R. Pyatt, who called out Burisma’s owner by name 
in a speech in September.
“In the case of former Ecology Minister Mykola Zlochevsky, the U.K. authorities had seized $23 
million in illicit assets that belonged to the Ukrainian people,” Mr. Pyatt said. Officials at the 
prosecutor general’s office, he added, were asked by the United Kingdom “to send documents 
supporting the seizure. Instead they sent letters to Zlochevsky’s attorneys attesting that there was 
no case against him. As a result, the money was freed by the U.K. court, and shortly thereafter 
the money was moved to Cyprus.”
Mr. Pyatt went on to call for an investigation into “the misconduct” of the prosecutors who wrote 
the letters. In his speech, the ambassador did not mention Hunter Biden’s connection to 
Burisma.”
 
 
Official - Transitory 
UNCLASSIFIED
 
From:  
Sent: Monday, November 21, 2016 3:50 PM
To: 
Subject: FW: Meeting request from Ambassador Herbst
 
Any concerns?
 
Official - Transitory 
UNCLASSIFIED
 
From: Andrews, Jorgan K 
Sent: Monday, November 21, 2016 3:39 PM
To: ; 
Subject: FW: Meeting request from Ambassador Herbst
 
What do we know about Burisma and Zlochevskiy?  Should I accept this meeting or beg off?
 
Official 
UNCLASSIFIED
 
From: Geysha Gonzalez [mailto:GGonzalez@ATLANTICCOUNCIL.ORG] 
Sent: Monday, November 21, 2016 11:42 AM
To: Andrews, Jorgan K
Cc: John Herbst
Subject: Meeting request from Ambassador Herbst
 
Dear Jorgan,
 
Hope this message finds you well! Ambassador Herbst was wondering if you might have some time to 
meet tomorrow to chat about Ukraine in general, but also Mr. Nicolai Zlochevskiy, who owns Burisma, 
one of Ukraine's most significant natural gas producers. 
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Please let me know if you have any availability. 

Best,
 
Geysha 
 
 

 
Geysha Gonzalez | Assistant Director, Dinu Patriciu Eurasia Center
1030 15th Street, NW, 12th Floor | Washington, DC 20005 
T: 1.202.599.8620| Email: ggonzalez@AtlanticCouncil.org | 
www.facebook.com/AtlanticCouncil | @ACEurasia | www.AtlanticCouncil.org 
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From:
Sent:Tue, 6 Dec 2016 00:18:23 -0500
To:Kent, George P
Cc:Kyiv, Staff Assistant;
Subject:Fw: For DCM Clearance: 20161208 BCL Tramontano
Attachments:20161208 BCL Tramontano (Laitinen).docx

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
From: Kyiv, Staff Assistant <KyivStaffAssistant@state.gov>
Sent: Monday, December 5, 2016 5:42 PM
To: 
Subject: For DCM Clearance: 20161208 BCL Tramontano

 
 
Best,
 

 
Official - SBU 
UNCLASSIFIED
 
From:  
Sent: Monday, December 05, 2016 2:15 PM
To: Kyiv, Staff Assistant
Cc: 
Subject: 20161208 BCL Tramontano
 

– attached for George’s clearance.
 
Best,

 

Deputy Economic Counselor
U.S. Embassy Kyiv
4, I. Sikorsky Street 
04112 Kyiv, Ukraine
044-521-5039 w

 c

 
Official - SBU 
UNCLASSIFIED
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United States Embassy
Kyiv, Ukraine

BRIEFING CHECKLIST (BCL)
Ambassador Yovanovitch’s Meeting with 
Karen Tramontano, Blue Star Strategies

Thursday, December 8, 2016
10:30-11:00
Ambassador’s Office

Interpretation: N/A
Notetaker: 
EXT: 5365

CONTEXT

An Atlantic Council member and Washington veteran, Tramontano informally 
represents Mykola Zlochevskiy, the Burisma CEO who has long been the target of 
law enforcement proceedings in Ukraine.

WHAT DO WE WANT?
 You should hear Tramontano out on Zlochevskiy’s situation, but not suggest we 

will change our posture on his case.

WHAT DO(ES) THEY/HE/SHE WANT?
 Tramontano would like the USG to take a more positive view of Zlochevskiy 

and possibly meet with him.

KEY OBJECTIVES

1. Zlochevskiy: the former Minister of Ecology fled Ukraine in early 2014 and 
was charged with corruption and sanctioned by the European Union.  In 2014, 
British officials unfroze $23 million in his British bank accounts.  Zlochevskiy 
owns Burisma, one of Ukraine’s largest gas producers.  His official U.S. 
representatives sent a letter in September (attached) asking that the Embassy 
reconsider its position on him.

 I appreciate hearing your side of the story.  

 However, we have extensive concerns about corruption in Ukraine, and 
we believe Mr. Zlochevskiy is an example.  If he would like to clear his 
name, he should return to Ukraine to face the charges against him.
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- 2 -
WATCH OUT FOR

Burisma and USAID:  In September, USAID withdrew its Municipal Energy 
Reform Program’s (MERP’s) cooperation with Burisma on a joint program to 
award journalists for outstanding coverage of energy efficiency issues in Ukraine 
citing concerns about the appearance of a conflict of interest rewarding journalists 
with prizes paid by an energy company.  Burisma provided approximately $7,500 
in prizes for last year’s contest.  Subsequently, USAID spoke to Blue Star 
Strategies representative Sally Painter by phone and indicated that we would be 
open to discussing other forms of cooperation between USAID and Burisma, and 
agreed to meet with Burisma Government and Public Affairs representative, 
Vadym Pozharskyi.  In the November meeting, Pozharskyi briefed USAID on 
Burisma and the gas sector more broadly, but did not propose specific ideas for 
cooperation.  While keeping the lines of communication open, we do not intend to 
pursue any joint cooperation with Burisma.

 I understand that Susan Fritz and Joel Sandefur had a good meeting 
with Vadym Pozharskyi.  

 If pressed:    I encourage you to have Vadym reach out to  again 
should Burisma have further ideas.

       
PARTICIPANTS 

United States Other Country/Organization 
Ambassador Yovanovitch Karen Tramontano, Blue Star CEO 

, Econ Counsleor  

Attachment:
Biographic Information
Letter from Zlochevskiy’s representatives
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Approved:   DCM: Kent

Drafted: Econ/ , x. 5039

Cleared: Econ/  ok
AID/  ok
Legatt/Van Den Hoogen ok
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From:
Sent:Fri, 12 Aug 2016 16:47:00 +0300
To:Kent, George P
Cc:Wagner, JoAnne; ;  (EE/AA);  (KYIV/OEG);  
(KYIV/DIR); ;  (DOCS);  (ECON);Kyiv, 
EXEC;  (ECON);
Subject:Re: Chornovol - American grants go to "Yanukovychs" and against the Ukr army
Attachments:MERP MOU with Burisma 16-10-2014.pdf

Hi George,

I wanted to follow back up on this. Although we didn't do anything with Burisma on the Donetsk 
pipeline repair issue as I mentioned below, I was just informed today that we have been working 
with Burisma through our Municipal Energy Reform Program (MERP) since Oct. 2014. In fact, 
our MERP project has an MOU (attached) with Burisma which covers cooperation on some public 
information activities (e.g., contests for best mass media materials on energy efficiency, alternative and clean energy 
sources, advantages of condominiums, etc.) conducted by MERP. Burisma participation has been limited to sponsoring 
prizes/awards for the winners, and participating in the award ceremony--the last one was conducted last year and another 
contest is underway now with the award ceremony planned for Sep. 13.   

I imagine you'd like to discuss further, so pls advise and I'll set up. Thx.  

******************
, Deputy Mission Director

USAID/Ukraine, Moldova, & Belarus
U.S. Embassy Kyiv 

Follow us on:
Facebook: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://www.facebook.com/USAIDUkraine
Twitter: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://twitter.com/USAIDUkraine 
YouTube: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCVceCp4NEN5_ep
zT86xdOLg
Flickr: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://www.flickr.com/photos/usaidukraine  

On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 8:11 AM, Kent, George P < > wrote:
Thanks, 

PA team - the below translation is just a part of her screed. Apparently it in the original must 
go into defense projects based on the title. Her reputed lover Pashynsky is neck deep in 
defense sector corruption. it would be worth reviewing the whole article to see what other 
allegations against us she makes.

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
  Original Message

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE - PRODUCED TO HSGAC 
NOT FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE - PRODUCED TO HSGAC 
NOT FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 

 
STATE-2019-18-0000357

HSGAC MAJORITY STAFF EXHIBIT



From: 
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 8:01 AM
To: Kent, George P
Cc: Wagner, JoAnne; Kyiv, POL Core;  (Kyiv); Kyiv, ECON FSOs;  

 ;  (EE/AA);  (DCHA/OTI);  
 (KYIV/OEG);  (KYIV/DIR)

Subject: Re: Chornovol - Addressing FBI: American grants go to "Yanukovychs" and against 
the Ukr army

Hi George--no cooperation with them at all to my knowledge. We had
some internal conversations including with your predecessor re:
whether or not we could or should, but decided against it. There was a
possibility of linking them to the Donetsk oblast administration to
fix a pipeline with their own resources, not ours, as we didn't have
the resources to do so on our own.

-----
Deputy Mission Director
USAID/Ukraine, Moldova, & Belarus

Sent from my iPhone

> On Jul 27, 2016, at 07:50, Kent, George P < > wrote:
>
> Nasty smear here - against EuroOptimists, against Kasko, against potentially USAID.
>
> Chornovol, reputed lover of corrupt NF grey cardinal Pashynsky, is a loose cannon.
>
> But just for our background,  did Burisma ever co-sponsor a USAID activity as 
alleged?
>
> To remind: someone who joined the Burisma team is Hunter Biden. Zlochevsky is the 
corrupt ex minister of Ecology whose frozen asets were released by GPO perfidy in Dec 2014.
>
> Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
> From: lbi@lbicompany.com.ua
> Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2016 9:16 PM
> To: Kyiv, Media Alerts
> Subject: UP: Addressing FBI: American grants go to "Yanukovychs" and against the 
Ukrainian army
>
>
>
> Ukrainska Pravda:
>
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> Addressing FBI: American grants go to "Yanukovychs" and against the Ukrainian army
>
> Tetyana 
Chornovol<http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?
url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http
://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://blogs.pravda.com.ua/authors/chornovol/> Member of the 
parliament of Ukraine of the VІІІ convocation
>
>
>
> 26 of July 2016,
>
>
>
> Recently I visited two armored vehicles and artillery repair defense plants in Zhytomyr and 
Shepetivka. I am proud of the staff of the plants that are making powerful weapons literally 
from nothing, from old scrap, they got the production of parts up and running, which were 
previously purchased in Russia, they are modernizing old weapons, developing new ones, 
wonders on enthusiasm alone.
> And after that you just want to tear apart those scoundrels in Verkhovna Rada who dare to 
leave the plants that affect life at the front without money.
> MPs have been blocking the transfer of "Yanukovych's money" arrested in Ukraine to the 
state budget, although they know that under the Budget-2016 the defense plants are supposed 
to be financed from these funds.
> As a result, they are not being financed and the production, which picked up the pace last 
year, faltered significantly. Imagine that now, in the conditions of war, the defense plants in 
Ukraine are loaded only for 10-30%.
> This is a real BETRAYAL!
> However, for a year now the parliament cannot adopt a draft law that establishes the legal 
mechanism for transferring this absolutely real, hard money, of which nearly a billion dollars 
is in "cash." For example, the information on "Oshchadbank."
>
>
> A list of deputies from the group "Euro-optimists" and "UDAR," who come from the 
environment "of grant eaters," those organizations and structures in Ukraine that are living by 
Western grants, including receiving funds coming from US taxpayers, are blocking the 
adoption of the law.
>
> Which is why I appeal to the FBI asking to investigate the impact of corrupt officials of the 
era of Yanukovych - Mykola Zlochevskyi and Serhiy Kurchenko – on the grant community.
>
>
> I have strong suspicions that it was the corrupt business of Zlochevskyi and corrupt 
connections of Kurchenko that blocked the passage of the draft law on special confiscation 
through the Verhkovna Rada. I suspect that the blockade is taking place due to the efforts of 
well-known Western lobbyists who work in Zlochevskyi’s company Burisma Holdings, 
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through their impact not only on "grant eaters," but also donors working in Ukraine.
>
> A sufficient part of the evidence the FBI can work with is already in the public domain. For 
instance, on the web site of the company Burisma Holdings, which officially belongs to 
Mykola Zlochevskyi. This business empire has been definitely created for corrupt funds.
> Now, remember that no one in Ukraine had such a fierce support from all possible grant 
eaters and donors like Kasko, who had been stubbornly dragged to the post of the Anti-
Corruption Prosecutor.
> The same guard of Kasko, all "grant eaters" which cynically call themselves "Euro-
optimists," "corruption fighters," "reformers" have thrown all possible resources, even used 
lies and slander to block the passage of the draft law on "special confiscation" through the 
parliament.
>
> And now look at the "accidental" coincidence: the web site of Burisma Holdings is the 
partner of a list of events of the Ukrainian office of USAID - the American agency that 
provides grant funds primarily for anti-corruption projects.
>
> What’s curious is that after my briefing Burizma removed news about cooperation with 
USAID from its web site.
>
>
>
> 
http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://re
direct.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.st
ate.sbu/?url=http://blogs.pravda.com.ua/authors/chornovol/579729596f7a9/
>
>
> With best regards,
> LBI Team
>
> 
http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=www.lb
icompany.com.ua
>
> (044) 501 58 41
> 
> <winmail.dat>
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

 W AT C H  L I V E

House Judiciary Committee holds hearing on impeachment report



PRESIDENTIAL TRANSITION

Ukrainian efforts to sabotage Trump backfire
Kiev officials are scrambling to make amends with the president-elect after quietly working
to boost Clinton.

By KENNETH P. VOGEL and DAVID STERN | 01/11/2017 05:05 AM EST

President Petro Poroshenko’s administration, along with the Ukrainian Embassy in Washington, insists that
Ukraine stayed neutral in the American presidential race. | Getty
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Donald Trump wasn’t the only presidential candidate whose campaign was boosted by
officials of a former Soviet bloc country.

Ukrainian government officials tried to help Hillary Clinton and undermine Trump by
publicly questioning his fitness for office. They also disseminated documents implicating a
top Trump aide in corruption and suggested they were investigating the matter, only to
back away after the election. And they helped Clinton’s allies research damaging
information on Trump and his advisers, a Politico investigation found.

A Ukrainian-American operative who was consulting for the Democratic National
Committee met with top officials in the Ukrainian Embassy in Washington in an effort to
expose ties between Trump, top campaign aide Paul Manafort and Russia, according to
people with direct knowledge of the situation.

The Ukrainian efforts had an impact in the race, helping to force Manafort’s resignation
and advancing the narrative that Trump’s campaign was deeply connected to Ukraine’s foe
to the east, Russia. But they were far less concerted or centrally directed than Russia’s
alleged hacking and dissemination of Democratic emails.

Russia’s effort was personally directed by Russian President Vladimir Putin, involved the
country’s military and foreign intelligence services, according to U.S. intelligence officials.
They reportedly briefed Trump last week on the possibility that Russian operatives might
have compromising information on the president-elect. And at a Senate hearing last week
on the hacking, Director of National Intelligence James Clapper said “I don't think we've
ever encountered a more aggressive or direct campaign to interfere in our election process
than we've seen in this case.”

There’s little evidence of such a top-down effort by Ukraine. Longtime observers suggest
that the rampant corruption, factionalism and economic struggles plaguing the country —
not to mention its ongoing strife with Russia — would render it unable to pull off an
ambitious covert interference campaign in another country’s election. And President Petro
Poroshenko’s administration, along with the Ukrainian Embassy in Washington, insists
that Ukraine stayed neutral in the race.

ADVERTISING
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CONGRESS

Lawmakers broach possible Trump campaign coordination with

Russia
By AUSTIN WRIGHT and MARTIN MATISHAK

Yet Politico’s investigation found evidence of Ukrainian government involvement in the
race that appears to strain diplomatic protocol dictating that governments refrain from
engaging in one another’s elections.

Russia’s meddling has sparked outrage from the American body politic. The U.S.
intelligence community undertook the rare move of publicizing its findings on the matter,
and President Barack Obama took several steps to officially retaliate, while members of
Congress continue pushing for more investigations into the hacking and a harder line
against Russia, which was already viewed in Washington as America’s leading foreign
adversary.

Ukraine, on the other hand, has traditionally enjoyed strong relations with U.S.
administrations. Its officials worry that could change under Trump, whose team has
privately expressed sentiments ranging from ambivalence to deep skepticism about
Poroshenko’s regime, while sounding unusually friendly notes about Putin’s regime.

Poroshenko is scrambling to alter that dynamic, recently signing a $50,000-a-month
contract with a well-connected GOP-linked Washington lobbying firm to set up meetings
with U.S. government officials “to strengthen U.S.-Ukrainian relations.”

Revelations about Ukraine’s anti-Trump efforts could further set back those efforts.

“Things seem to be going from bad to worse for Ukraine,” said David A. Merkel, a senior
fellow at the Atlantic Council who helped oversee U.S. relations with Russia and Ukraine
while working in George W. Bush’s State Department and National Security Council.
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Merkel, who has served as an election observer in Ukrainian presidential elections dating
back to 1993, noted there’s some irony in Ukraine and Russia taking opposite sides in the
2016 presidential race, given that past Ukrainian elections were widely viewed in
Washington’s foreign policy community as proxy wars between the U.S. and Russia.

“Now, it seems that a U.S. election may have been seen as a surrogate battle by those in
Kiev and Moscow,” Merkel said.

•••

The Ukrainian antipathy for Trump’s team — and alignment with Clinton’s — can be traced
back to late 2013. That’s when the country’s president, Viktor Yanukovych, whom Manafort
had been advising, abruptly backed out of a European Union pact linked to anti-corruption
reforms. Instead, Yanukovych entered into a multibillion-dollar bailout agreement with
Russia, sparking protests across Ukraine and prompting Yanukovych to flee the country to
Russia under Putin’s protection.

In the ensuing crisis, Russian troops moved into the Ukrainian territory of Crimea, and
Manafort dropped off the radar.

Manafort’s work for Yanukovych caught the attention of a veteran Democratic operative
named Alexandra Chalupa, who had worked in the White House Office of Public Liaison
during the Clinton administration. Chalupa went on to work as a staffer, then as a
consultant, for Democratic National Committee. The DNC paid her $412,000 from 2004 to
June 2016, according to Federal Election Commission records, though she also was paid by
other clients during that time, including Democratic campaigns and the DNC’s arm for
engaging expatriate Democrats around the world.

A daughter of Ukrainian immigrants who maintains strong ties to the Ukrainian-American
diaspora and the U.S. Embassy in Ukraine, Chalupa, a lawyer by training, in 2014 was
doing pro bono work for another client interested in the Ukrainian crisis and began
researching Manafort’s role in Yanukovych’s rise, as well as his ties to the pro-Russian
oligarchs who funded Yanukovych’s political party.

In an interview this month, Chalupa told Politico she had developed a network of sources
in Kiev and Washington, including investigative journalists, government officials and
private intelligence operatives. While her consulting work at the DNC this past election
cycle centered on mobilizing ethnic communities — including Ukrainian-Americans — she
said that, when Trump’s unlikely presidential campaign began surging in late 2015, she
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began focusing more on the research, and expanded it to include Trump’s ties to Russia, as
well.

She occasionally shared her findings with officials from the DNC and Clinton’s campaign,
Chalupa said. In January 2016 — months before Manafort had taken any role in Trump’s
campaign — Chalupa told a senior DNC official that, when it came to Trump’s campaign, “I
felt there was a Russia connection,” Chalupa recalled. “And that, if there was, that we can
expect Paul Manafort to be involved in this election,” said Chalupa, who at the time also
was warning leaders in the Ukrainian-American community that Manafort was “Putin’s
political brain for manipulating U.S. foreign policy and elections.”

PRESIDENTIAL TRANSITION

Trump confronts firestorm over Russia allegations
By ELI STOKOLS, SHANE GOLDMACHER, JOSH DAWSEY and MICHAEL CROWLEY

She said she shared her concern with Ukraine’s ambassador to the U.S., Valeriy Chaly, and
one of his top aides, Oksana Shulyar, during a March 2016 meeting at the Ukrainian
Embassy. According to someone briefed on the meeting, Chaly said that Manafort was very
much on his radar, but that he wasn’t particularly concerned about the operative’s ties to
Trump since he didn’t believe Trump stood much of a chance of winning the GOP
nomination, let alone the presidency.

That was not an uncommon view at the time, and, perhaps as a result, Trump’s ties to
Russia — let alone Manafort’s — were not the subject of much attention. 
That all started to change just four days after Chalupa’s meeting at the embassy, when it
was reported that Trump had in fact hired Manafort, suggesting that Chalupa may have
been on to something. She quickly found herself in high demand. The day after Manafort’s
hiring was revealed, she briefed the DNC’s communications staff on Manafort, Trump and
their ties to Russia, according to an operative familiar with the situation.

A former DNC staffer described the exchange as an “informal conversation,” saying
“‘briefing’ makes it sound way too formal,” and adding, “We were not directing or driving
her work on this.” Yet, the former DNC staffer and the operative familiar with the situation
agreed that with the DNC’s encouragement, Chalupa asked embassy staff to try to arrange
an interview in which Poroshenko might discuss Manafort’s ties to Yanukovych.

While the embassy declined that request, officials there became “helpful” in Chalupa’s
efforts, she said, explaining that she traded information and leads with them. “If I asked a

HSGAC MAJORITY STAFF EXHIBIT

https://www.politico.com/story/2017/01/donald-trump-russia-damaging-233455
https://www.politico.com/WEB-INF/renderer/modules/www.politico.com/tag/presidential-transition
https://www.politico.com/story/2017/01/donald-trump-russia-damaging-233455
https://www.politico.com/staff/shane-goldmacher
https://www.politico.com/staff/michael-crowley


12/9/2019 Ukrainian efforts to sabotage Trump backfire - POLITICO

https://www.politico.com/story/2017/01/ukraine-sabotage-trump-backfire-233446 6/19

question, they would provide guidance, or if there was someone I needed to follow up
with.” But she stressed, “There were no documents given, nothing like that.”

Chalupa said the embassy also worked directly with reporters researching Trump,
Manafort and Russia to point them in the right directions. She added, though, “they were
being very protective and not speaking to the press as much as they should have. I think
they were being careful because their situation was that they had to be very, very careful
because they could not pick sides. It’s a political issue, and they didn’t want to get involved
politically because they couldn’t.”

Shulyar vehemently denied working with reporters or with Chalupa on anything related to
Trump or Manafort, explaining “we were stormed by many reporters to comment on this
subject, but our clear and adamant position was not to give any comment [and] not to
interfere into the campaign affairs.”

Both Shulyar and Chalupa said the purpose of their initial meeting was to organize a June
reception at the embassy to promote Ukraine. According to the embassy’s website, the
event highlighted female Ukrainian leaders, featuring speeches by Ukrainian
parliamentarian Hanna Hopko, who discussed “Ukraine’s fight against the Russian
aggression in Donbas,” and longtime Hillary Clinton confidante Melanne Verveer, who
worked for Clinton in the State Department and was a vocal surrogate during the
presidential campaign.

Shulyar said her work with Chalupa “didn’t involve the campaign,” and she specifically
stressed that “We have never worked to research and disseminate damaging information
about Donald Trump and Paul Manafort.”

But Andrii Telizhenko, who worked as a political officer in the Ukrainian Embassy under
Shulyar, said she instructed him to help Chalupa research connections between Trump,
Manafort and Russia. “Oksana said that if I had any information, or knew other people who
did, then I should contact Chalupa,” recalled Telizhenko, who is now a political consultant
in Kiev. “They were coordinating an investigation with the Hillary team on Paul Manafort
with Alexandra Chalupa,” he said, adding “Oksana was keeping it all quiet,” but “the
embassy worked very closely with” Chalupa.

In fact, sources familiar with the effort say that Shulyar specifically called Telizhenko into a
meeting with Chalupa to provide an update on an American media outlet’s ongoing
investigation into Manafort.
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Telizhenko recalled that Chalupa told him and Shulyar that, “If we can get enough
information on Paul [Manafort] or Trump’s involvement with Russia, she can get a hearing
in Congress by September.”

Chalupa confirmed that, a week after Manafort’s hiring was announced, she discussed the
possibility of a congressional investigation with a foreign policy legislative assistant in the
office of Rep. Marcy Kaptur (D-Ohio), who co-chairs the Congressional Ukrainian Caucus.
But, Chalupa said, “It didn’t go anywhere.”

Asked about the effort, the Kaptur legislative assistant called it a “touchy subject” in an
internal email to colleagues that was accidentally forwarded to Politico.

Kaptur’s office later emailed an official statement explaining that the lawmaker is backing a
bill to create an independent commission to investigate “possible outside interference in
our elections.” The office added “at this time, the evidence related to this matter points to
Russia, but Congresswoman Kaptur is concerned with any evidence of foreign entities
interfering in our elections.”

•••

Almost as quickly as Chalupa’s efforts attracted the attention of the Ukrainian Embassy
and Democrats, she also found herself the subject of some unwanted attention from
overseas.

Within a few weeks of her initial meeting at the embassy with Shulyar and Chaly, Chalupa
on April 20 received the first of what became a series of messages from the administrators
of her private Yahoo email account, warning her that “state-sponsored actors” were trying
to hack into her emails.

She kept up her crusade, appearing on a panel a week after the initial hacking message to
discuss her research on Manafort with a group of Ukrainian investigative journalists
gathered at the Library of Congress for a program sponsored by a U.S. congressional
agency called the Open World Leadership Center.

Center spokeswoman Maura Shelden stressed that her group is nonpartisan and ensures
“that our delegations hear from both sides of the aisle, receiving bipartisan information.”
She said the Ukrainian journalists in subsequent days met with Republican officials in
North Carolina and elsewhere. And she said that, before the Library of Congress event,
“Open World’s program manager for Ukraine did contact Chalupa to advise her that Open
World is a nonpartisan agency of the Congress.”
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Chalupa, though, indicated in an email that was later hacked and released by WikiLeaks
that the Open World Leadership Center “put me on the program to speak specifically about
Paul Manafort.”

Republicans pile on Russia for hacking, get details on GOP

targets
By MARTIN MATISHAK and AUSTIN WRIGHT

In the email, which was sent in early May to then-DNC communications director Luis
Miranda, Chalupa noted that she had extended an invitation to the Library of Congress
forum to veteran Washington investigative reporter Michael Isikoff. Two days before the
event, he had published a story for Yahoo News revealing the unraveling of a $26 million
deal between Manafort and a Russian oligarch related to a telecommunications venture in
Ukraine. And Chalupa wrote in the email she’d been “working with for the past few weeks”
with Isikoff “and connected him to the Ukrainians” at the event.

Isikoff, who accompanied Chalupa to a reception at the Ukrainian Embassy immediately
after the Library of Congress event, declined to comment.

Chalupa further indicated in her hacked May email to the DNC that she had additional
sensitive information about Manafort that she intended to share “offline” with Miranda
and DNC research director Lauren Dillon, including “a big Trump component you and
Lauren need to be aware of that will hit in next few weeks and something I’m working on
you should be aware of.” Explaining that she didn’t feel comfortable sharing the intel over
email, Chalupa attached a screenshot of a warning from Yahoo administrators about “state-
sponsored” hacking on her account, explaining, “Since I started digging into Manafort
these messages have been a daily occurrence on my yahoo account despite changing my
password often.”

Dillon and Miranda declined to comment.

A DNC official stressed that Chalupa was a consultant paid to do outreach for the party’s
political department, not a researcher. She undertook her investigations into Trump,
Manafort and Russia on her own, and the party did not incorporate her findings in its
dossiers on the subjects, the official said, stressing that the DNC had been building robust
research books on Trump and his ties to Russia long before Chalupa began sounding
alarms.
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Nonetheless, Chalupa’s hacked email reportedly escalated concerns among top party
officials, hardening their conclusion that Russia likely was behind the cyber intrusions with
which the party was only then beginning to grapple.

Chalupa left the DNC after the Democratic convention in late July to focus fulltime on her
research into Manafort, Trump and Russia. She said she provided off-the-record
information and guidance to “a lot of journalists” working on stories related to Manafort
and Trump’s Russia connections, despite what she described as escalating harassment.

About a month-and-a-half after Chalupa first started receiving hacking alerts, someone
broke into her car outside the Northwest Washington home where she lives with her
husband and three young daughters, she said. They “rampaged it, basically, but didn’t take
anything valuable — left money, sunglasses, $1,200 worth of golf clubs,” she said,
explaining she didn’t file a police report after that incident because she didn’t connect it to
her research and the hacking.

But by the time a similar vehicle break-in occurred involving two family cars, she was
convinced that it was a Russia-linked intimidation campaign. The police report on the
latter break-in noted that “both vehicles were unlocked by an unknown person and the
interior was ransacked, with papers and the garage openers scattered throughout the cars.
Nothing was taken from the vehicles.”

Then, early in the morning on another day, a woman “wearing white flowers in her hair”
tried to break into her family’s home at 1:30 a.m., Chalupa said. Shulyar told Chalupa that
the mysterious incident bore some of the hallmarks of intimidation campaigns used against
foreigners in Russia, according to Chalupa.

“This is something that they do to U.S. diplomats, they do it to Ukrainians. Like, this is how
they operate. They break into people’s homes. They harass people. They’re theatrical about
it,” Chalupa said. “They must have seen when I was writing to the DNC staff, outlining who
Manafort was, pulling articles, saying why it was significant, and painting the bigger
picture.”

In a Yahoo News story naming Chalupa as one of 16 “ordinary people” who “shaped the
2016 election,” Isikoff wrote that after Chalupa left the DNC, FBI agents investigating the
hacking questioned her and examined her laptop and smartphone.

Chalupa this month told Politico that, as her research and role in the election started
becoming more public, she began receiving death threats, along with continued alerts of
state-sponsored hacking. But she said, “None of this has scared me off.”
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•••

While it’s not uncommon for outside operatives to serve as intermediaries between
governments and reporters, one of the more damaging Russia-related stories for the
Trump campaign — and certainly for Manafort — can be traced more directly to the
Ukrainian government.

Documents released by an independent Ukrainian government agency — and publicized by
a parliamentarian — appeared to show $12.7 million in cash payments that were earmarked
for Manafort by the Russia-aligned party of the deposed former president, Yanukovych.

The New York Times, in the August story revealing the ledgers’ existence, reported that the
payments earmarked for Manafort were “a focus” of an investigation by Ukrainian anti-
corruption officials, while CNN reported days later that the FBI was pursuing an
overlapping inquiry.
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One of the most damaging Russia-related stories during Donald Trump's campaign can be traced to the
Ukrainian government. | AP Photo

Clinton’s campaign seized on the story to advance Democrats’ argument that Trump’s
campaign was closely linked to Russia. The ledger represented “more troubling connections
between Donald Trump’s team and pro-Kremlin elements in Ukraine,” Robby Mook,
Clinton’s campaign manager, said in a statement. He demanded that Trump “disclose
campaign chair Paul Manafort’s and all other campaign employees’ and advisers’ ties to
Russian or pro-Kremlin entities, including whether any of Trump’s employees or advisers
are currently representing and or being paid by them.”
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A former Ukrainian investigative journalist and current parliamentarian named Serhiy
Leshchenko, who was elected in 2014 as part of Poroshenko’s party, held a news conference
to highlight the ledgers, and to urge Ukrainian and American law enforcement to
aggressively investigate Manafort.

“I believe and understand the basis of these payments are totally against the law — we have
the proof from these books,” Leshchenko said during the news conference, which attracted
international media coverage. “If Mr. Manafort denies any allegations, I think he has to be
interrogated into this case and prove his position that he was not involved in any
misconduct on the territory of Ukraine,” Leshchenko added.

Manafort denied receiving any off-books cash from Yanukovych’s Party of Regions, and
said that he had never been contacted about the ledger by Ukrainian or American
investigators, later telling POLITICO “I was just caught in the crossfire.”

According to a series of memos reportedly compiled for Trump’s opponents by a former
British intelligence agent, Yanukovych, in a secret meeting with Putin on the day after the
Times published its report, admitted that he had authorized “substantial kickback
payments to Manafort.” But according to the report, which was published Tuesday by
BuzzFeed but remains unverified. Yanukovych assured Putin “that there was no
documentary trail left behind which could provide clear evidence of this” — an alleged
statement that seemed to implicitly question the authenticity of the ledger.

2016

Inside the fall of Paul Manafort

By KENNETH P. VOGEL and MARC CAPUTO

The scrutiny around the ledgers — combined with that from other stories about his Ukraine
work — proved too much, and he stepped down from the Trump campaign less than a week
after the Times story.

At the time, Leshchenko suggested that his motivation was partly to undermine Trump.
“For me, it was important to show not only the corruption aspect, but that he is [a] pro-
Russian candidate who can break the geopolitical balance in the world,” Leshchenko told
the Financial Times about two weeks after his news conference. The newspaper noted that
Trump’s candidacy had spurred “Kiev’s wider political leadership to do something they
would never have attempted before: intervene, however indirectly, in a U.S. election,” and
the story quoted Leshchenko asserting that the majority of Ukraine’s politicians are “on
Hillary Clinton’s side.”
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But by this month, Leshchenko was seeking to recast his motivation, telling Politico, “I
didn’t care who won the U.S. elections. This was a decision for the American voters to
decide.” His goal in highlighting the ledgers, he said was “to raise these issues on a political
level and emphasize the importance of the investigation.”

In a series of answers provided to Politico, a spokesman for Poroshenko distanced his
administration from both Leshchenko’s efforts and those of the agency that reLeshchenko
Leshchenko leased the ledgers, The National Anti-Corruption Bureau of Ukraine. It was
created in 2014 as a condition for Ukraine to receive aid from the U.S. and the European
Union, and it signed an evidence-sharing agreement with the FBI in late June — less than a
month and a half before it released the ledgers.

The bureau is “fully independent,” the Poroshenko spokesman said, adding that when it
came to the presidential administration there was “no targeted action against Manafort.”
He added “as to Serhiy Leshchenko, he positions himself as a representative of internal
opposition in the Bloc of Petro Poroshenko’s faction, despite [the fact that] he belongs to
the faction,” the spokesman said, adding, “it was about him personally who pushed [the
anti-corruption bureau] to proceed with investigation on Manafort.”

But an operative who has worked extensively in Ukraine, including as an adviser to
Poroshenko, said it was highly unlikely that either Leshchenko or the anti-corruption
bureau would have pushed the issue without at least tacit approval from Poroshenko or his
closest allies.

“It was something that Poroshenko was probably aware of and could have stopped if he
wanted to,” said the operative.

And, almost immediately after Trump’s stunning victory over Clinton, questions began
mounting about the investigations into the ledgers — and the ledgers themselves.

An official with the anti-corruption bureau told a Ukrainian newspaper, “Mr. Manafort
does not have a role in this case.”

And, while the anti-corruption bureau told Politico late last month that a “general
investigation [is] still ongoing” of the ledger, it said Manafort is not a target of the
investigation. “As he is not the Ukrainian citizen, [the anti-corruption bureau] by the law
couldn’t investigate him personally,” the bureau said in a statement.

Some Poroshenko critics have gone further, suggesting that the bureau is backing away
from investigating because the ledgers might have been doctored or even forged.
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Valentyn Nalyvaichenko, a Ukrainian former diplomat who served as the country’s head of
security under Poroshenko but is now affiliated with a leading opponent of Poroshenko,
said it was fishy that “only one part of the black ledger appeared.” He asked, “Where is the
handwriting analysis?” and said it was “crazy” to announce an investigation based on the
ledgers. He met last month in Washington with Trump allies, and said, “of course they all
recognize that our [anti-corruption bureau] intervened in the presidential campaign.”

And in an interview this week, Manafort, who re-emerged as an informal advisor to Trump
after Election Day, suggested that the ledgers were inauthentic and called their publication
“a politically motivated false attack on me. My role as a paid consultant was public. There
was nothing off the books, but the way that this was presented tried to make it look shady.”

He added that he felt particularly wronged by efforts to cast his work in Ukraine as pro-
Russian, arguing “all my efforts were focused on helping Ukraine move into Europe and the
West.” He specifically cited his work on denuclearizing the country and on the European
Union trade and political pact that Yanukovych spurned before fleeing to Russia. “In no
case was I ever involved in anything that would be contrary to U.S. interests,” Manafort
said.

Yet Russia seemed to come to the defense of Manafort and Trump last month, when a
spokeswoman for Russia’s Foreign Ministry charged that the Ukrainian government used
the ledgers as a political weapon.

“Ukraine seriously complicated the work of Trump’s election campaign headquarters by
planting information according to which Paul Manafort, Trump’s campaign chairman,
allegedly accepted money from Ukrainian oligarchs,” Maria Zakharova said at a news
briefing, according to a transcript of her remarks posted on the Foreign Ministry’s website.
“All of you have heard this remarkable story,” she told assembled reporters.

•••

Beyond any efforts to sabotage Trump, Ukrainian officials didn’t exactly extend a hand of
friendship to the GOP nominee during the campaign.

The ambassador, Chaly, penned an op-ed for The Hill, in which he chastised Trump for a
confusing series of statements in which the GOP candidate at one point expressed a
willingness to consider recognizing Russia’s annexation of the Ukrainian territory of
Crimea as legitimate. The op-ed made some in the embassy uneasy, sources said.
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“That was like too close for comfort, even for them,” said Chalupa. “That was something
that was as risky as they were going to be.”

Former Ukrainian Prime Minister Arseny Yatseniuk warned on Facebook that Trump had
“challenged the very values of the free world.”

Ukraine’s minister of internal affairs, Arsen Avakov, piled on, trashing Trump on Twitter in
July as a “clown” and asserting that Trump is “an even bigger danger to the US than
terrorism.”

Avakov, in a Facebook post, lashed out at Trump for his confusing Crimea comments,
calling the assessment the “diagnosis of a dangerous misfit,” according to a translated
screenshot featured in one media report, though he later deleted the post. He called Trump
“dangerous for Ukraine and the US” and noted that Manafort worked with Yanukovych
when the former Ukrainian leader “fled to Russia through Crimea. Where would Manafort
lead Trump?”

INVESTIGATIONS

Manafort’s man in Kiev

By KENNETH P. VOGEL

The Trump-Ukraine relationship grew even more fraught in September with reports that
the GOP nominee had snubbed Poroshenko on the sidelines of the United Nations General
Assembly in New York, where the Ukrainian president tried to meet both major party
candidates, but scored only a meeting with Clinton.

Telizhenko, the former embassy staffer, said that, during the primaries, Chaly, the
country’s ambassador in Washington, had actually instructed the embassy not to reach out
to Trump’s campaign, even as it was engaging with those of Clinton and Trump’s leading
GOP rival, Ted Cruz.

“We had an order not to talk to the Trump team, because he was critical of Ukraine and the
government and his critical position on Crimea and the conflict,” said Telizhenko. “I was
yelled at when I proposed to talk to Trump,” he said, adding, “The ambassador said not to
get involved — Hillary is going to win.”

This account was confirmed by Nalyvaichenko, the former diplomat and security chief now
affiliated with a Poroshenko opponent, who said, “The Ukrainian authorities closed all
doors and windows — this is from the Ukrainian side.” He called the strategy “bad and
short-sighted.”
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Andriy Artemenko, a Ukrainian parliamentarian associated with a conservative opposition
party, did meet with Trump’s team during the campaign and said he personally offered to
set up similar meetings for Chaly but was rebuffed.

“It was clear that they were supporting Hillary Clinton’s candidacy,” Artemenko said. “They
did everything from organizing meetings with the Clinton team, to publicly supporting her,
to criticizing Trump. … I think that they simply didn’t meet because they thought that
Hillary would win.”

Shulyar rejected the characterizations that the embassy had a ban on interacting with
Trump, instead explaining that it “had different diplomats assigned for dealing with
different teams tailoring the content and messaging. So it was not an instruction to abstain
from the engagement but rather an internal discipline for diplomats not to get involved
into a field she or he was not assigned to, but where another colleague was involved.”

And she pointed out that Chaly traveled to the GOP convention in Cleveland in late July
and met with members of Trump’s foreign policy team “to highlight the importance of
Ukraine and the support of it by the U.S.”

Despite the outreach, Trump’s campaign in Cleveland gutted a proposed amendment to the
Republican Party platform that called for the U.S. to provide “lethal defensive weapons” for
Ukraine to defend itself against Russian incursion, backers of the measure charged.

The outreach ramped up after Trump’s victory. Shulyar pointed out that Poroshenko was
among the first foreign leaders to call to congratulate Trump. And she said that, since
Election Day, Chaly has met with close Trump allies, including Sens. Jeff Sessions, Trump’s
nominee for attorney general, and Bob Corker, the chairman of the Senate Foreign
Relations Committee, while the ambassador accompanied Ivanna Klympush-Tsintsadze,
Ukraine’s vice prime minister for European and Euro-Atlantic integration, to a round of
Washington meetings with Rep. Tom Marino (R-Pa.), an early Trump backer, and Jim
DeMint, president of The Heritage Foundation, which played a prominent role in Trump’s
transition.

•••

Many Ukrainian officials and operatives and their American allies see Trump’s
inauguration this month as an existential threat to the country, made worse, they admit, by
the dissemination of the secret ledger, the antagonistic social media posts and the
perception that the embassy meddled against — or at least shut out — Trump.
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“It’s really bad. The [Poroshenko] administration right now is trying to re-coordinate
communications,” said Telizhenko, adding, “The Trump organization doesn’t want to talk
to our administration at all.”

During Nalyvaichenko’s trip to Washington last month, he detected lingering ill will toward
Ukraine from some, and lack of interest from others, he recalled. “Ukraine is not on the top
of the list, not even the middle,” he said.

Poroshenko’s allies are scrambling to figure out how to build a relationship with Trump,
who is known for harboring and prosecuting grudges for years.

A delegation of Ukrainian parliamentarians allied with Poroshenko last month traveled to
Washington partly to try to make inroads with the Trump transition team, but they were
unable to secure a meeting, according to a Washington foreign policy operative familiar
with the trip. And operatives in Washington and Kiev say that after the election,
Poroshenko met in Kiev with top executives from the Washington lobbying firm BGR —
including Ed Rogers and Lester Munson — about how to navigate the Trump regime.

Ukrainians fall out of love with Europe
By DAVID STERN

Weeks later, BGR reported to the Department of Justice that the government of Ukraine
would pay the firm $50,000 a month to “provide strategic public relations and government
affairs counsel,” including “outreach to U.S. government officials, non-government
organizations, members of the media and other individuals.”

Firm spokesman Jeffrey Birnbaum suggested that “pro-Putin oligarchs” were already
trying to sow doubts about BGR’s work with Poroshenko. While the firm maintains close
relationships with GOP congressional leaders, several of its principals were dismissive or
sharply critical of Trump during the GOP primary, which could limit their effectiveness
lobbying the new administration.

The Poroshenko regime’s standing with Trump is considered so dire that the president’s
allies after the election actually reached out to make amends with — and even seek
assistance from — Manafort, according to two operatives familiar with Ukraine’s efforts to
make inroads with Trump.

Meanwhile, Poroshenko’s rivals are seeking to capitalize on his dicey relationship with
Trump’s team. Some are pressuring him to replace Chaly, a close ally of Poroshenko’s who
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is being blamed by critics in Kiev and Washington for implementing — if not engineering —
the country’s anti-Trump efforts, according to Ukrainian and U.S. politicians and
operatives interviewed for this story. They say that several potential Poroshenko opponents
have been through Washington since the election seeking audiences of their own with
Trump allies, though most have failed to do do so.

“None of the Ukrainians have any access to Trump — they are all desperate to get it, and
are willing to pay big for it,” said one American consultant whose company recently met in
Washington with Yuriy Boyko, a former vice prime minister under Yanukovych. Boyko,
who like Yanukovych has a pro-Russian worldview, is considering a presidential campaign
of his own, and his representatives offered “to pay a shit-ton of money” to get access to
Trump and his inaugural events, according to the consultant.

The consultant turned down the work, explaining, “It sounded shady, and we don’t want to
get in the middle of that kind of stuff.”
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From
Sent:Mon, 15 Aug 2016 13:30:38 +0300
To
Cc:Kent, George P;Wagner, JoAnne;  (EE/AA);  
(KYIV/OEG);  (KYIV/DIR);  (Nairobi/EA/PDI);  
(KYIV/PCS);  (KYIV/DIR); ;Kyiv, EXEC; ;Johannes 
Vandenhoogen;Cole, Jeffrey W;Smith, Christopher W;
Subject:Re: (NO RESPONSE TIL MONDAY) USAID Cooperation with Burisma (Chornovol allegations) - 
should we have a policy of avoiding cooperation with the morally compromised?

Just to add--we've confirmed that there has been no financial relationship between our 
contractor on the MERP project and Burisma, although Burisma has provided prizes 
(purchased by them at their cost) for the winners of the 2015 and 2016 journalist 
contests organized by MERP in collaboration with the Center for Ukrainian Reform 
Education.   

******************
, Deputy Mission Director

USAID/Ukraine, Moldova, & Belarus
U.S. Embassy Kyiv 

Follow us on:
Facebook: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://www.facebook.com/USAIDUkraine
Twitter: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://twitter.com/USAIDUkraine 
YouTube: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCVceCp4NEN5_ep
zT86xdOLg
Flickr: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://www.flickr.com/photos/usaidukraine  

On Mon, Aug 15, 2016 at 1:25 PM, > wrote:
Sir,

Econ has engaged with Burisma at the working level to get information on private sector gas 
production.

Energy and ESTH Unit Chief
U.S. Embassy Kyiv
Office:  011-380-44-521-5482
Cell:  

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE - PRODUCED TO HSGAC 
NOT FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE - PRODUCED TO HSGAC 
NOT FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 

 
STATE-2019-18-0000472
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This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Kent, George P
Sent: Saturday, August 13, 2016 3:26 PM
To:  (EA/DIR)
Cc: Wagner, JoAnne;  (EE/AA);  
(KYIV/OEG);  (KYIV/DIR);  (Nairobi/EA/PDI); 

 (KYIV/PCS);  (KYIV/DIR); ; Kyiv, 
EXEC;  Johannes Vandenhoogen; Cole, Jeffrey W; 
Smith, Christopher W; 
Subject: (NO RESPONSE TIL MONDAY) USAID Cooperation with Burisma (Chornovol 
allegations) - should we have a policy of avoiding cooperation with the morally compromised?

Thanks, 

The proliferation of Ukrainian companies clearly (and not so clearly) owned/controlled by 
odious oligarchs or those who outright stole assets and absconded (like Zlochevsky) is likely a 
long one.  I do not know if we have a clear, consistent, or even informal policy for post 
engagement with such companies-properties.  I suspect not.

For instance, we don’t boycott Inter TV, even if it is controlled in part by under-indictment in 
Chicago/extradition proceedings Firtash and his equally morally compromised business 
partner Lyovochkin, or 1+1, controlled by Kolomoisky, whose sins are manifest, or TV 
Ukraina, controlled by Akhmetov, no comment needed.   We continue to engage with those 
individuals diplomatically at a high level – albeit to the distress/disappointment of U.S. law 
enforcement, it must be said.

There is, however, a moral hazard associated with publicly associating/promoting our 
assistance projects with companies/individuals seen in Ukrainian society as 
corrupt/compromised.  At the very least, embassy elements dealing with Ukrainians and 
companies with a known past need to engage on an eyes wide open, due diligence conducted 
basis.

For ECON:  how have we traditionally treated/engaged Burisma, given the Zlochevsky 
connection, but also perhaps US involvement beyond Hunter Biden?

For the wider collective: perhaps this is a topic worth teasing out as we work on a revised 
mission counter corruption strategy, with an eye to setting a standard that is higher than “at the 
very least.”  When I was in Bangkok from 2001-04, for instance, our Econ Counselor (now 
Ambassador to Malaysia) Joe Yun convinced all elements of the embassy to stop putting 
TDYers in hotel properties owned by the same billionaire who also owned the epicenter 
building for software piracy and refused to take action for years.  That was up to a $500,000 
year hit to his hotel businesses (lots of military planning conferences in Thailand).  It didn’t 
change the IPR violating epicenter, but we sent a message by our policy and our choice.
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From: ]
Sent: Friday, August 12, 2016 4:47 PM
To: Kent, George P
Cc: Wagner, JoAnne;  (EE/AA);  
(KYIV/OEG);  (KYIV/DIR);  (Nairobi/EA/PDI); 

 (KYIV/PCS);  (KYIV/DIR); ; Kyiv, 
EXEC; 
Subject: Re: Chornovol - American grants go to "Yanukovychs" and against the Ukr army

Hi George,

I wanted to follow back up on this. Although we didn't do anything with Burisma on the 
Donetsk pipeline repair issue as I mentioned below, I was just informed today that we have 
been working with Burisma through our Municipal Energy Reform Program (MERP) since 
Oct. 2014. In fact, our MERP project has an MOU (attached) with Burisma which covers 
cooperation on some public information activities (e.g., contests for best mass media materials 
on energy efficiency, alternative and clean energy sources, advantages of condominiums, etc.) 
conducted by MERP. Burisma participation has been limited to sponsoring prizes/awards for 
the winners, and participating in the award ceremony--the last one was conducted last year and 
another contest is underway now with the award ceremony planned for Sep. 13.

I imagine you'd like to discuss further, so pls advise and I'll set up. Thx.

******************
, Deputy Mission Director

USAID/Ukraine, Moldova, & Belarus
U.S. Embassy Kyiv

Follow us on:
Facebook: 
http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://
www.facebook.com/USAIDUkraine
Twitter: 
http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://t
witter.com/USAIDUkraine
YouTube: 
http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://
www.youtube.com/channel/UCVceCp4NEN5_epzT86xdOLg
Flickr: 
http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://
www.flickr.com/photos/usaidukraine
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On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 8:11 AM, Kent, George P 
< <http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=mailto:

>> wrote:
Thanks, 

PA team - the below translation is just a part of her screed. Apparently it in the original must 
go into defense projects based on the title. Her reputed lover Pashynsky is neck deep in 
defense sector corruption. it would be worth reviewing the whole article to see what other 
allegations against us she makes.

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
  Original Message
From: 
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 8:01 AM
To: Kent, George P
Cc: Wagner, JoAnne; Kyiv, POL Core; (Kyiv); Kyiv, ECON FSOs;  

 (EE/AA);  (DCHA/OTI);  
 (KYIV/OEG);  (KYIV/DIR)

Subject: Re: Chornovol - Addressing FBI: American grants go to "Yanukovychs" and against 
the Ukr army

Hi George--no cooperation with them at all to my knowledge. We had
some internal conversations including with your predecessor re:
whether or not we could or should, but decided against it. There was a
possibility of linking them to the Donetsk oblast administration to
fix a pipeline with their own resources, not ours, as we didn't have
the resources to do so on our own.

-----
Deputy Mission Director
USAID/Ukraine, Moldova, & Belarus

Sent from my iPhone

> On Jul 27, 2016, at 07:50, Kent, George P 
< <http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=mailto:

>> wrote:
>
> Nasty smear here - against EuroOptimists, against Kasko, against potentially USAID.
>
> Chornovol, reputed lover of corrupt NF grey cardinal Pashynsky, is a loose cannon.
>
> But just for our background,  did Burisma ever co-sponsor a USAID activity as 
alleged?
>
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> To remind: someone who joined the Burisma team is Hunter Biden. Zlochevsky is the 
corrupt ex minister of Ecology whose frozen asets were released by GPO perfidy in Dec 2014.
>
> Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
> From: 
lbi@lbicompany.com.ua<http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=mailto:lbi
@lbicompany.com.ua>
> Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2016 9:16 PM
> To: Kyiv, Media Alerts
> Subject: UP: Addressing FBI: American grants go to "Yanukovychs" and against the 
Ukrainian army
>
>
>
> Ukrainska Pravda:
>
> Addressing FBI: American grants go to "Yanukovychs" and against the Ukrainian army
>
> Tetyana 
Chornovol<http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?
url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http
://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redire
ct.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://blogs.pravda.
com.ua/authors/chornovol/> Member of the parliament of Ukraine of the VІІІ convocation
>
>
>
> 26 of July 2016,
>
>
>
> Recently I visited two armored vehicles and artillery repair defense plants in Zhytomyr and 
Shepetivka. I am proud of the staff of the plants that are making powerful weapons literally 
from nothing, from old scrap, they got the production of parts up and running, which were 
previously purchased in Russia, they are modernizing old weapons, developing new ones, 
wonders on enthusiasm alone.
> And after that you just want to tear apart those scoundrels in Verkhovna Rada who dare to 
leave the plants that affect life at the front without money.
> MPs have been blocking the transfer of "Yanukovych's money" arrested in Ukraine to the 
state budget, although they know that under the Budget-2016 the defense plants are supposed 
to be financed from these funds.
> As a result, they are not being financed and the production, which picked up the pace last 
year, faltered significantly. Imagine that now, in the conditions of war, the defense plants in 
Ukraine are loaded only for 10-30%.
> This is a real BETRAYAL!
> However, for a year now the parliament cannot adopt a draft law that establishes the legal 
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mechanism for transferring this absolutely real, hard money, of which nearly a billion dollars 
is in "cash." For example, the information on "Oshchadbank."
>
>
> A list of deputies from the group "Euro-optimists" and "UDAR," who come from the 
environment "of grant eaters," those organizations and structures in Ukraine that are living by 
Western grants, including receiving funds coming from US taxpayers, are blocking the 
adoption of the law.
>
> Which is why I appeal to the FBI asking to investigate the impact of corrupt officials of the 
era of Yanukovych - Mykola Zlochevskyi and Serhiy Kurchenko – on the grant community.
>
>
> I have strong suspicions that it was the corrupt business of Zlochevskyi and corrupt 
connections of Kurchenko that blocked the passage of the draft law on special confiscation 
through the Verhkovna Rada. I suspect that the blockade is taking place due to the efforts of 
well-known Western lobbyists who work in Zlochevskyi’s company Burisma Holdings, 
through their impact not only on "grant eaters," but also donors working in Ukraine.
>
> A sufficient part of the evidence the FBI can work with is already in the public domain. For 
instance, on the web site of the company Burisma Holdings, which officially belongs to 
Mykola Zlochevskyi. This business empire has been definitely created for corrupt funds.
> Now, remember that no one in Ukraine had such a fierce support from all possible grant 
eaters and donors like Kasko, who had been stubbornly dragged to the post of the Anti-
Corruption Prosecutor.
> The same guard of Kasko, all "grant eaters" which cynically call themselves "Euro-
optimists," "corruption fighters," "reformers" have thrown all possible resources, even used 
lies and slander to block the passage of the draft law on "special confiscation" through the 
parliament.
>
> And now look at the "accidental" coincidence: the web site of Burisma Holdings is the 
partner of a list of events of the Ukrainian office of USAID - the American agency that 
provides grant funds primarily for anti-corruption projects.
>
> What’s curious is that after my briefing Burizma removed news about cooperation with 
USAID from its web site.
>
>
>
> 
http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://re
direct.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.st
ate.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/
?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://blogs.pravda.com.ua/auth
ors/chornovol/579729596f7a9/
>
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>
> With best regards,
> LBI Team
>
> 
http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://re
direct.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.st
ate.sbu/?url=www.lbicompany.com.ua
>
> (044) 501 58 41
>
> <winmail.dat>
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From:Kent, George P
Sent:Thu, 1 Sep 2016 00:52:21 -0400
To:
Subject:RE: Burisma

Thanks.  For you only - if I don't raise it in the huddle (lots of ambo questions bouncing in my 
mind), please do.

My intent is to pull the plug on this so no further harm done 

From: >
Date: September 1, 2016 at 7:46:07 AM GMT+3
To: Kent, George P >, >,  

 (EA/DIR) < >
Cc:  (EE/AA) , 

 (KYIV/OEG) < , 
Purcell, Alan S < >
Subject: RE: Burisma's contribution to upcomign MERP energy efficiency event - how large is 
the potential reputational risk by association?

Agree with – there is a clear link between the company and its primary owner.  Zlochevsky is 
working very hard to clean up and “westernize” his image by hiring DC lobbyists and stacking the board 
with prominent people.  From the rumors that we hear in the energy sector, there is no sense that 
Burisima has changed how it conducts its business.  We have also heard that they have used the U.S. 
Embassy name to try to influence business transactions.  Hard to prove, but certainly concerning.  I fall 
on the side of not having anything to do with the company to avoid undermining our broader efforts to 
promote transparency and A/C.  
 
 
SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 

 

From:  
Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2016 7:15 AM
To: Kent, George P;  (EA/DIR)
Cc:  (EE/AA);  Purcell, Alan S;  (KYIV/OEG);  

Subject: Re: Burisma's contribution to upcomign MERP energy efficiency event - how large is the 
potential reputational risk by association?
 
Sir,
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Those that work in Ukraine's Energy sector definitely associate Burisma with Zlochevsky who 
has been trying to improve his image. USG cooperation on the project would make us look bad. 
Not to mention the MPs on the energy committee and others would wonder how we speak 
about anti corruption, but work with those that were associated with corrupt practices.  
 
I think Burisma will try to make a big deal about partnering with USG on a project. 
 

 
Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
From: Kent, George P
Sent: Wednesday, August 31, 2016 21:55
To:  (EA/DIR)
Cc:  (EE/AA); ; Purcell, Alan S;  
(KYIV/OEG); 
Subject: Burisma's contribution to upcomign MERP energy efficiency event - how large is the potential 
reputational risk by association?
 
+  and 
 
We took one pass through this, but I am not sure at the time we discussed that there would be an public 
event with coverage and likely co-branding with USAID and Burisma.  That raises one question: will there 
be cobranding?
 
I don’t remember all the back and forth in round one, but remind me: how much “know your partner” 
due diligence was done before this “public – private” partnership was launched this spring?  Zlochevsky 
as a corrupt mal actor was a 2014 story; his control of Burisma, and the very sticky wicket of the Hunter 
Biden connection on Burisma’s board was circulating in 2015.  Below indicates the partnership was 
rolled out in 2016.
 
I understand this line taken at face value: The main objective of the Contest was to create 
incentives for journalists to ensure responsible and unbiased coverage of information on 
energy saving, tariff policy, subsidies, condominiums, and other related clean energy 
issues. 
 
I would offer that Burisma’s incentive to support could plausibly read: The main objective of 
Burisma was to create incentives for journalists to offer sympathetic coverage of the 
company on energy issues. 
 
Which would seem to be the opposite of the contest’s purpose.
 

/ – what is the ECON take in terms of potential reputational “guilt by association” risk with 
public partnering with Burisma?  I realize I may well be wearing “overcompensating” glasses seeing 
everything through anti-corruption lenses, and having been seared by dealing the Zlochevsky asset 
freeze case; perhaps the Ukrainian public would not see the association in the same way I do.  
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On the other hand, there’s always the Washington Post test of foreign service decision making.  As in: 
would we want an article on the front page of the Washington Post (and in this case, the Kyiv Post, and 
on the FB pages of Sergiy Leshchenko and Mustafa Nayyem) commenting about this public private 
partnership with Burisma, the link to Hunter Biden, and the link to Zlochevsky, who almost certainly paid 
off the PGO in December 2014 (I had the then First deputy PG Danylenko tell me the bribe was $7 
million) to have the case against him closed and his $23 million in assets frozen in the UK unfrozen?
 

– PA views?
 
From:  
Sent: Wednesday, August 31, 2016 4:51 PM
To: Kent, George P
Cc:  (EE/AA); ; Purcell, Alan S;  
(KYIV/OEG)
Subject: Fwd: A few words on Burisma's contribution to upcomign MERP energy efficiency event
 
Hi George,
 
Just following up our earlier exchange re: engagement with Burisma. Our energy efficiency 
activity, known as "MERP", has an upcoming (Sep. 13) award contest for journalists that 
involves Burisma. Burisma would be providing up to $7,500 of its own money for these awards. 
At this late a stage, it might not be prudent to cancel the event or Burisma's contribution but we 
can do that if needed. 
 
Going forward, we can certainly have our MERP contractor disengage from their cooperation 
with Burisma.     
 
Pls see below for further details. Happy to discuss further. 
 
Thanks,
 

 
 
******************

, Deputy Mission Director
USAID/Ukraine, Moldova, & Belarus
U.S. Embassy Kyiv 
 
Follow us on:
Facebook: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://www.facebook.com/USAIDUkraine
Twitter: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://twitter.com/USAIDUkraine 
YouTube: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCVceCp4NEN5_ep
zT86xdOLg
Flickr: http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=https://www.flickr.com/photos/usaidukraine  
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---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: >
Date: Wed, Aug 31, 2016 at 10:49 AM
Subject: A few words on Burisma's contribution to upcomign MERP energy efficiency event
To: 

As requested. 
Here is requested information on the upcoming MERP 2016 Contest for 
Journalists and the extent of Burisma's involvement:
Earlier this year USAID MERP announced and conducted a contest among Ukrainian 
journalists for best published media materials covering energy efficiency, alternative and 
clean energy sources, advantages of condominiums, tariff reform and social protection 
programs.  As it was announced, the contest was conducted in cooperation with the 
Center for Ukrainian Reform Education. Since dealing with promotion of energy 
efficiency, Burisma offered to provide about $7,500 in awards to winners. The main 
objective of the Contest was to create incentives for journalists to ensure responsible 
and unbiased coverage of information on energy saving, tariff policy, subsidies, 
condominiums, and other related clean energy issues. 

Journalists from thirteen oblasts of Ukraine were invited to participate in the contest in 
the following categories:

∙ "Best material in printed and on-line media"
∙ "Best TV material"
∙ "Best radio material"
The deadline for applications was May 15, 2016. A special commission reviewed 
submitted materials and identified eight winners in the different categories. The winners 
have been notified, and an official award ceremony is currently scheduled for 
September 13, 2016.  Burisma's role is to provide the prizes for the winners 
(prizes have been already purchased - photo cameras, laptops, tablets).  The ceremony 
will be taking place at the reception hall of Podil Radisson Blu Hotel (arrangements for 
the venue have been already made by MERP).  The USAID EG office director will be 
the highest level of attendance. 
 
Canceling the ceremony or zeroing out Burisma's contribution at this stage may 
create considerable negative publicity, in particular among the journalists. 
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From:John Herbst
Sent:Mon, 29 Aug 2016 19:44:24 +0000
To:Kent, George P
Subject:RE: Dinner on the 12th

http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://www.rferl.org/content/who-would-replace-uzbekistan-karimov-
president/27952766.html
 
You probably already have this in one form or another. I have no clue who will replace Karimov, if his 
time has come, but it is interesting that the two Rustams arementioned.  They would have been 
mentioned in similar circumstances when I was in Tashkent.  Also, there is no reason to assume that any 
of these three will be the one.  In any case, I do not expect a power struggle.

 
John Herbst | Director, Dinu Patriciu Eurasia Center
Ambassador (Ret.)
1030 15th Street, NW, 12th Floor | Washington, DC 20005 
T: +1.202.778.4965 | Cell: | Email: jherbst@AtlanticCouncil.org | 
www.facebook.com/AtlanticCouncil | @JohnEdHerbst | www.AtlanticCouncil.org 
 

From: Kent, George P [http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=mailto:  
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 3:09 PM
To: John Herbst <JHerbst@ATLANTICCOUNCIL.ORG>
Subject: Dinner on the 12th
 
Sounds good.  , and what we talk about.
 

  
 

 
 

 
From: John Herbst [http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=mailto:JHerbst@ATLANTICCOUNCIL.ORG] 
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 10:04 PM
To: Kent, George P; Taylor, W
Subject: RE: PGs and Baseball, and Kyiv
 
George,
 
I’d be happy to join you for dinner Sep 12.  Let’s do this solo.  I would like to get your take on just about 
everything.  
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John
 

 
John Herbst | Director, Dinu Patriciu Eurasia Center
Ambassador (Ret.)
1030 15th Street, NW, 12th Floor | Washington, DC 20005 
T: +1.202.778.4965 | Cell: +1 | Email: jherbst@AtlanticCouncil.org | 
www.facebook.com/AtlanticCouncil | @JohnEdHerbst | www.AtlanticCouncil.org 
 

From: Kent, George P 
[http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=mailto

] 
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 2:46 PM
To: John Herbst <JHerbst@ATLANTICCOUNCIL.ORG>; Taylor, W < >
Subject: PGs and Baseball, and Kyiv
 
We just heard about Lutsenko’s interest in a US run (27-28 Sept) this evening from DOJ.  He’s asking for 
DOJ leadership.  Bruce Szwartz (the DAG for international affairs) may be what’s offered.  I’ve been the 
Lutsenko handler this year – have met him more than a half dozen times, including three before his 
appointment, and 3-4 since.  We now have former NJ Federal prosecutor (and born in Ukraine) Bohdan 
Vitvitsky as an embedded adviser.  Bohdan has started drinking a bit of the Lutsenko kool-aid the past 
week or so, in the wake of the PGO-NABU showdown, which to the rest of the outside appears like a 
straight forward old Ukraine-New Ukraine morality tale.  Bohdan thinks they all are acting like puerile 
middle schoolers.  That may be true, but it may also be true that Lutsenko ends up on the wrong side of 
history by choice.  I suspect he had terms dictated to him by P2, in terms of untouchables under him 
(who are an integral part of Team Shokin, and whom he told me initially in the spring time needed to be 
cleaned out).  Those untouchables—Stolyarchuk and Sus—before Lutsenko came on board went after 
the folk we were working with to reform the PGO in the way P2 asked VP Biden, even to the point of 
arrogantly saying in public they would summon the US Ambassador (Geoff) for an interrogation (about 
our assistance, which they felt was being skimmed by the reformers which they forced out).  Sus is the 
one who went after NABU this month.  Lutsenko unapologetically defended Sus to the hilt last week to 
me, in what was the most disappointing engagement we’ve had with him to date.
 
My honor to sit with you over coffee, or a meal – dinner Sept 12?  I have hired my Thai cook from two 
Bangkok tours to be the DCR chef; she arrived last week.  Happy to just have you over, or invite some 
Ukrainian interlocutors as well.  Alas, it’s still the old DCR.  OBO’s incompetence in managing the 
overhaul of the old Marine House and soon to be DCR knows no bounds.  They turned over the 
property/project to the embassy last summer.  But Embassy discovered over the winter that: the 
average temperature with the heat on was between 32-40F in jan/Feb; the water and sewage did not 
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meet code; and the electricity load was ¼ what a building that size needed (so they couldn’t add space 
heaters).  Same factors affected the new America House/old Consular section, which shut down last 
winter due to the cold.  So we won’t move into our new digs until October it would appear (with our 
HHE in a warehouse on the outskirts of town, and we living on suitcases and UAB).
 

 

 

 
Regards - George
 
 
From: John Herbst 
[http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=mailto:JHerbst
@ATLANTICCOUNCIL.ORG] 
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 9:05 PM
To: Taylor, W; Kent, George P
Subject: RE: former PG Yarema's trip to DC - what is his agenda, and what is his angle (and peanut 
gallery commentary)
 
George,
 
Thanks for this meaty warning.  We already agreed to host Yarema and will not change that.  But I will 
factor into our conversation the Zlochevsky Affair.  We are doing a lot of PG work in late September as 
we also host Lutsenko.  Anything that you might share on that would also be appreciated.
 
Also, I will be in Kyiv Sep 12-18 with Adrian Karatnycky and Anders Aslund.  We are formally seeking a 
meeting with Masha, but it would also be good to sit with you separately.  I am on my own the PM of 
Sep 12 and AM of Sep 13. Can I buy you a drink or coffee in that time slot?
 
Curiously, Ortiz seems to be having his best season at the tail end of his career.
 
Best,
John
 

 
John Herbst | Director, Dinu Patriciu Eurasia Center
Ambassador (Ret.)
1030 15th Street, NW, 12th Floor | Washington, DC 20005 
T: +1.202.778.4965 | Cell: | Email: jherbst@AtlanticCouncil.org | 
www.facebook.com/AtlanticCouncil | @JohnEdHerbst | www.AtlanticCouncil.org 
 

From: Taylor, William 
[http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redir
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ect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu
/?url=mailto:  
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 12:08 PM
To: Kent, George P ; John Herbst <JHerbst@ATLANTICCOUNCIL.ORG>
Subject: RE: former PG Yarema's trip to DC - what is his agenda, and what is his angle (and peanut 
gallery commentary)
 
I am not eager to help him re-emerge.  I think we’ll pull the plug.  Thanks for the heads up, George.
 

From: Kent, George P 
[http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redir
ect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu
/?url=mailto: ] 
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 12:05 PM
To: Taylor, William ; Kent, George P ; John Herbst 
<JHerbst@ATLANTICCOUNCIL.ORG>
Subject: Re: former PG Yarema's trip to DC - what is his agenda, and what is his angle (and peanut 
gallery commentary)
 
At a minimum, you should grill him about not just the lack of accountability/activity, but 
specifically the December 2014 decision by him/his team to close the case against Zlochevsky 
and issue a letter to his lawyers the same day, enabling the assets to be unfrozen.
 

Your choice whether to engage at all. I presume this trip is part of his re-emergence strategy. To 
what end, unclear. Were he to return to office under P2, it would not be a sign of progress.
 

(this spring, we had former PG Piskun trying to meet/spin us with an eye to replacing Shokin. 
Points for chutzpah if nothing else.)
 
Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
From: Taylor, William
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 6:31 PM
To: Kent, George P; John Herbst 
Subject: RE: former PG Yarema's trip to DC - what is his agenda, and what is his angle (and peanut 
gallery commentary)
 
Thanks, George – very helpful.  Should I pull the plug on his visit to USIP?  Or just grill him on his lack of 
activity?
 

From: Kent, George P 
[http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redir
ect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu
/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://
redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.stat
e.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=mailto  
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Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 11:23 AM
To: John Herbst <JHerbst@ATLANTICCOUNCIL.ORG>; Taylor, William >
Subject: former PG Yarema's trip to DC - what is his agenda, and what is his angle (and peanut gallery 
commentary)
 
Ambassadors – thank you for your joint 25th anniversary missive.  Well targeted and eloquent as 
always.  Masha is officially launched – just finished presenting credentials to P2, and now back in with 
soon to be ex Chief of Staff Lozhkin, who tendered his resignation today, with one of his proteges, 
Kharkiv governor Rainen, tapped as his replacement.
 
Kyiv POL has been fielding inquiries from former PG Yarema’s team about an upcoming trip in two 
weeks, as well as from the Ukraine desk at state (below).  Your two organizations (and at least one of 
you in person) is listed.
 
I would be interested to hear your impressions about Yarema after you see him, presuming he stays on 
both the Atlantic Council and USIP’s schedule.  Following is my gratuitous commentary, for what it may 
be worth:
 
I have never met Yarema, I should state (before continuing with my two bits).  I do wonder whose 
interests he is promoting.  I have no wonder at all that it is not Ukraine’s.  The most notable decision by 
the PGO during his tenure (and he had his whole team come in and leave with him) was not any case 
pushed to the courts/conviction during his year, despite all the manifest crimes of the Maidan and 
Yanukovych era, but was a gross miscarriage of justice that undermined months of US assistance.  After 
the FBI and MI-5 spent months and arguably millions working to try to put together the first possible 
asset recovery case (against former Minister of Ecology Zlochevsky), involving $23 million frozen in UK 
accounts, under suspicion of bribes paid for licenses issue for gas/oil permits…Team Yarema closed the 
case against Zlochevsky in December 2014 just before western Christmas day, by turning it into a case 
against the ministry rather than ex minister, returning it to the MOI/police for further investigation, and 
issuing an immediate letter to Zlochevsky’s defense lawyer team that there was no active case against 
their client; defense lawyers flipped that to the British judge, who unfroze the assets that were whisked 
out of UK jurisdiction before the UK authorities or we could learn/react.
 
When I met with Yarema’s right hand man, the jovially corpulent first Deputy PG Danylenko six weeks 
later during the first week of Feb 2015, I asked him bluntly how much was the bribe and who took it. 
Danylenko cheerfully replied: “that’s exactly what President Poroshenko asked us last month.  I told him 
$7 million and it was last May, before our team came into office (in June 2014).”  He then said that he’d 
been a friend of Zlochevsky for 20 years, had his number saved in his phone, could tell me that 
Zlochevsky was in Dubai at present, and asked if I wished to talk to him to confirm details.  I declined, 
and politely reminded him that the PG letter closing the case was issued in late December, more than 6 
months after team Yarema came into office, which means it was Yarema, Danylenko and Co who were 
responsible for the outrage.  He just smiled smugly.  They were gone within a month, replaced by Team 
Shokin, which proved even more venal in overtly preventing USG efforts to reform the justice 
system…all in response to the direct request of Poroshenko to US leaders.  Yarema has had zero public 
profile in the 18 months since he faded into the woodwork.  I presume he’s enjoying whatever the 
inducements were paid to take no action against anyone for a year.  The first post-EuroMaidan PG who 
did nothing for 5 months, Mahnytsky (affiliated loosely with Svoboda at the time), reportedly was gifted 
control of the Hyatt from Team Donetsk.  That might explain why elements of the ancient regime were 
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never put under travel ban or subject to sanctions.  I’ve never heard anyone offer such similar specificity 
of what the payoff to Yarema and Co to do nothing was, but I have no doubt such arrangements were 
made, apart from Mr. Zlochevsky (who also put Hunter Biden on the board of his Burisma Energy 
company).
 
There’s arguably a case to be made that team Yarema should be barred from eligibility to receive a visa 
to the US under Presidential Proclamation 7750 for taking actions that undermined US interests, 
specifically US assistance in asset recovering and anti-corruption efforts.  We haven’t written it up due 
to the press of other business (and team Shokin takes precedence in that regard), but that’s the reply I 
gave the desk Friday when they inquired how much access/effort they should make in offering Yarema a 
meeting/facilitating with others.
 
Caveat emptor!
 
Warm regards – George
 
From: Andrii Telizhenko 
[http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect
.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url
=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirec
t.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url
=http://redirect.state.sbu/?url=mailto:  
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 3:34 PM
To: Glaser, Stephen T
Subject: Re: Andrii Telizhenko
 
 
   Mr. Vitalii Yarema visit to Washington D.C., 11-17 September 2016. 
 
(Schedule is being updated, due to the vacation period some meeting are in the process of 
confirmation)
 
- Sunday Sept 11, 2016
06:45 - Departure from Kyiv. 
1:25pm - Arrive in Washington DC
3:30pm - Arrive at the Hotel (still to be determined) 
4:30pm - Lunch 
5:30pm - City Tour 
 
- Monday Sept. 12, 2016 
08:00 - Breakfast at the Hotel
----
1:30-2:30pm - round table at the Atlantic Council, topic "Anti-corruption and 
Police reforms in Ukraine"
3:00pm - laying flowers to the Holodomor monument. 
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- Tuesday Sept. 13, 2016
08:30 - Breakfast at the Hotel 
10:00 - Meeting with Congresswoman Marcy Kaptur (Dem. Party).
---
4:00pm - Wall Street Journal Interview 
 
- Wednesday Sept. 14, 2016
08:00 - Breakfast at the Hotel
09:00 - Foreign Policy interview 
----
4:30pm - laying flowers to the Taras Shevchenko monument.
 
- Thursday Sept. 15, 2016
08:00 - Breakfast at Hotel 
09:30 - Peace Institute Amb. Taylor
---
 
- Friday Sept. 16, 2016
---
 
- Saturday Sept. 17, 2016
09:00 - Breakfast at Hotel
10:00 - City Tour
1:30pm - Move out from Hotel
5:00pm - Flight from Washington DC
 
-----
 
Meetings that are confirmed but waiting on the time: 
 
-Senator Ted Cruz
- Senator John McCain
-Senator Durbin Office - National Security Advisor.
-Voice of America Interview 
-IRI - Stephen Nix and Mark Green 
-State Dept - Ukrainian Desk
Bohdan Futey - US Federal Judge 
 
Waiting for Confirmation on meetings:
 
Congressman Eliot Engel 
Senator Chris Murphy
National Security Council - Greg Pfleger 
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INL
 
 
Andrii
 
 
 
 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 

 

 
SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 
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From:                                 Sally Painter
Sent:                                  Mon, 13 Jun 2016 20:11:19 +0000
To:                                      Fried, Daniel
Subject:                             Fwd: Connecting

Dear Dan,
Thanks for trying. I sent the note to the DCM below but have not heard back.  Do you know if he 
has left?  Many thanks again. Warmest sally

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: <Sally.Painter@bluestarstrategies.com>
Date: June 10, 2016 at 8:26:12 AM EDT
To: <GPKent >
Subject: Connecting

Dear Mr. Kent.
Good morning.  A mutual colleague and friend, Dan Fried, suggested you might be 
available for a meeting while you are in Washington.  Are there any times that might 
be convenient for your schedule today or even this weekend. Many thanks in 
advance for your consideration.  Warmest personal regards sally painter

Sent from my iPhone
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From:Bohdan Vitvitsky
Sent:Wed, 31 Aug 2016 10:52:35 +0300
To:Kent, George P
Cc:Cole, Jeffrey W;Smith, Christopher W;Johannes Vandenhoogen
Subject:Re: Good Morning

I got the sense that they had visited within a week or so of when I learned about them, which was 
on July 29.

On Wed, Aug 31, 2016 at 10:47 AM, Kent, George P > wrote:

+ Johannes

 

Bohdan – when were the consultants here?  Just curious.

 

FYI to you all: I SMSed Lutsenko last night (after consults with Jeff and Johannes) to ask what was up 
with the trip, was it true he was using a third hand rather than working through the Ukrainian 
embassy and our embassy, which was the proper path in my view.  I also (as agreed with Jeff) FB 
messaged the Ukrainian Washington Embassy DCM (on vacation with diaspora relatives in California).  
She acknowledged awareness of Lutsenko’s planned trip and the Atlantic Council session in the 
works, the Ukrainian embassy’s intent to run the official engagements with USG officials (she was 
going to recommend Ambassador Chaliy reach out/engage Lutsenko when Chaliy got back in town), 
and that it could be challenging to work with third party trip facilitators (ie lobbyists).

 

Lutsenko responded this morning confirming a trip was in the works, and requesting a one on one 
meeting to discuss.  To be continued (I can’t keep my Blackberry in my office, and thus am not 
engaged in an ongoing discussion).

 

As Jeff, Johannes, and I discussed yesterday, engagement in Washington has the potential upside of 
allowing Washington interlocutors to deliver stiff messages and not leave us Kyiv-based folk as the 
only such voices.  We’ll see where the trip facilitators and eventually the Ukrainian embassy drive 
this.  On the State side, INL A/S Brownfield is a tough, feisty Texan who loves delivering straight 
messages with his quirky humor; EUR DAS Brink already engaged Lutsenko in May with appropriate 
tonality.  Our sense is Bruce Szwartz knows the same game.  We’ll see what else may emerge.  We will 
not offer meetings, but presuming the trip is a go regardless, we’ll see to ensure appropriate 
messaging from appropriate interlocutors.
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From: Bohdan Vitvitsky [mailto ] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 31, 2016 9:56 AM
To: Kent, George P
Cc: Cole, Jeffrey W; Smith, Christopher W
Subject: Re: Good Morning

 

Gentlemen,

Respectfully, meetings with DOJ brass needs to be a bennie that we guard very jealously.

 

On Tue, Aug 30, 2016 at 5:58 PM, Kent, George P > wrote:

Oof.  Blue Star again.  Thanks.

 

From: Bohdan Vitvitsky [mailto: ] 
Sent: Tuesday, August 30, 2016 9:37 AM
To: Kent, George P; Cole, Jeffrey W; Smith, Christopher W
Subject: Re: Good Morning

 

The two who were here are:

Karen A. Tramontano, CEO at Blue Star Strategies; '97-01 Deputy Chief of Staff to Pres. 
Clinton and counselor to Chief of Staff John Podesta (the connection?); in 01 Chief of Staf for 
Pres. Clinton's transition team.

John D. Buretta:  partner at Cravath; Principal Deputy Assistant A.G. in Crim Div Feb. '13 to 
Oct. '13; former AUSA.

 

 

On Mon, Aug 29, 2016 at 10:39 PM, Bohdan Vitvitsky > wrote:

Gentlemen,

 

Re Jeff's question about Lutsenko's apparent visit to D.C., please see my second paragraph 
below.
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---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Bohdan Vitvitsky >
Date: Friday, July 29, 2016
Subject: Good Morning
To:  (Kyiv)" <

Hello ,

Had meet with Lutsenko this morning.  He agreed with my points that everybody at IG has to 
be selected by selection commission, the majority of whose members have to be non-PGO.  
Also agreed to double the salaries of IG personnel.  I agreed that if they won't have enough 
money for testing, I'd get it either from us or the Euros.  Please share with DCM.

When I asked him whether he'd have time, if the oopportunity arose, to go to D.C. to meet 
with folks at DOJ, FBI etc. IGs, he said that he had been inivitedf yesterday by people from 
D.C. to come there to meet some Hillary people and some official people.  I was rather taken 
aback by our lack of coordination.  The two people about whom he was referring are Karen 
Tramontano and John Buretta (I'm translating from Ukrainian, so spellings might not be 100% 
accurate).  My Q is, what the blazes?  Does our right hand speak with our left hand?

Bohdan
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From:Kent, George P
Sent:Thu, 15 Sep 2016 16:06:24 -0400
To:Yovanovitch, Marie L
Subject:Zlochevsky, Cravath, Burisma (and Blue Star)

This is further to the Blue Star effort to rehabilitate the reputation of their non-client in the US, former 
Ministry of Ecology Zlochevsky, who clearly has retained the services of a blue chip law firm (Cravath), 
and his energy company Burisma, which in turn has Hunter Biden on its board.
 
I think a briefing by Johannes and Jeff Cole on the background of the Zlochevsky case and the US effort 
therein would be in order, so you can separate what the US position on this set of circumstance is, as 
opposed to paid legal counsel.
 
 
SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 

 

From: Yovanovitch, Marie L 
Sent: Thursday, September 15, 2016 7:01 PM
To: Kent, George P
Subject: Fw: Letter from John Buretta
 
 
What is this about?
Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
From: Jun Li <jli@cravath.com>
Sent: Thursday, September 15, 2016 6:10 PM
To: Yovanovitch, Marie L
Cc: John Buretta
Subject: Letter from John Buretta
 
Ambassador Yovanovitch: 

Please see the attached letter from John Buretta. 

Regards, 
Jun 

Jun Li 
Cravath, Swaine & Moore LLP
825 Eighth Avenue, New York, NY 10019
212-474-1358 | jli@cravath.com 
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Case No: RSTO/7/2014 

IN THE CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT 

 

 

Old Bailey 

London  

EC4M 7HS 

 

Date: 20/01/2015 

 

Before : 

 

THE HONOURABLE MR JUSTICE BLAKE 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Between: 

 

 SERIOUS FRAUD OFFICE Applicant 

 - and -  

 MYKOLA ZLOCHEVSKYI Defendant  

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

Mr Jonathan Kinnear QC and Mr Jonathan Lennon (instructed by) for the SFO 

Mr Hugo Keith QC (instructed by Peters and Peters) for the Defendant 

 

Hearing dates: 3.12.2014 – 5.12.2014 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

Approved Judgement as Revised 21 January 2015 
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The Honourable Mr Justice Blake:  
 

Introduction: 

 

1. On 16 April 2014, at a without notice application made to His Honour Judge 

Kramer QC sitting in private at this court, a restraint order was made against the 

defendant, who I shall refer to as MZ for short, and three third parties, Brociti 

Investments Limited, Burisma Holdings Limited and Andrii Kicha preventing 

them from dealing with assets in a number of bank accounts (the accounts) held at 

a London branch of the BNP Paribas (BNP). 

 

2. This is the hearing of the defendant’s application to discharge the order and, in the 

event that the order was to be discharged, the applicant’s application for a new 

order in similar terms. 

 

3. MZ is a national of Ukraine, he is a wealthy businessman. He is a former member 

of the Ukrainian parliament, the Rada, and has held political office. From 16 

December 2003 to 22 February 2005 he was appointed Chairman of the State 

Committee for Natural Resources, a committee overseen by the Ministry of 

Environmental Protection.  During that time two private companies owned by the 

defendant, Esko-Pivnich and Pari, were awarded licences to explore for oil 

pursuant to a new procedure for tendering established by a resolution of the 

Ukrainian Cabinet of Ministers in October 2003.  Other exploration licences were 

subsequently awarded when he was not in office as were further licences to 

commence production. 

 

4. In February 2005, the defendant was dismissed from his post when there was a 

change of government in  Ukraine. He remained out of office until March 2010 

when there was another change of government that remained in power until 

February 2014.  During this second period the defendant held the posts 

successively of Chairman of the State Committee for Material Reserves (March to 

July 2010); Minister of Environmental Protection (July to December 2010); 

Minister of the Environment and Natural Resources (December 2010 to April 

2012) and Deputy Secretary of National Security (April 2012 to February 2014).  

The first three positions were connected with the licensing of exploration and 

production of the natural resources of Ukraine. The last position was not and did 

not form part of the executive. 

 

5. In February 2006, during the period when he was out of office and his political 

opponents were in power, an executive decree cancelled the exploration licences 

granted to his companies in 2004.  The validity of this decree was successfully 

challenged in the Ukrainian courts in 2007, and the prosecutor’s subsequent 

appeals up the judicial hierarchy as far as the Supreme Court of Ukraine were all 

dismissed.  In February 2006 the Minister of Internal Affairs announced a 

criminal inquiry into the activities of the committee of which the defendant was 

chairman but no formal investigation resulted. Allegations of corruption against 

political opponents appear to have been a feature of Ukrainian political life at this 

time.  The same minister was one of those subsequently jailed for offences 

following the change of regime in 2010. 
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6. The only connection that the defendant has with the United Kingdom is that the 

two companies owned by him, Brociti Investments and Burisma Holdings, have 

held bank accounts at the BNP since about June 2013. Some US$35 million was 

paid into these accounts, of which it is estimated that $20 million was provided by 

a company owned by Mr Sergey Kurchenko. Since the change of regime in 

Ukraine in February 2014 criminal proceedings have been instituted against Mr 

Kurchenko and his name also appears on a restrictive measure directed against 

certain persons in view of the situation in Ukraine (Council Regulation (EU) No 

208/2014 effective from 5 March 2014 onwards). 

 

7. Mr Andrii Kicha is a Ukrainian commercial lawyer, the chief legal officer of 

Burisma and other companies owned by the defendant. He was the sole authorised 

signatory on the BNP accounts that are the subject to the restraint order.  On 11 

and 25 March 2014 he instructed BNP to transfer the balance of some $23 million 

held in the accounts to other accounts of the companies held in Cyprus.  In his 

witness statement of 18 June 2014, made for the purpose of these proceedings, he 

states that the reason for the transfer was that BNP had wanted, since October 

2013, to close the accounts and an end date of 4 April 2014 had been agreed in 

order to do so.  

 

8. It seems, however, that these requests may have been the trigger for a notification 

by the bank to the SFO. On 22 March 2014 the Director of the SFO authorised a 

money laundering investigation into the defendant.  On 3, 4 and 8 April 

production orders were issued to the bank pursuant to s. 345 of the Proceeds of 

Crime Act 2002 (the Act). The first two orders were complied with by 11 April 

2014. The third order resulted in much more documentation being supplied to the 

SFO between 6 May and 20 May 2014 and a special team was assembled to 

examine 6170 electronic documents. As a result of this review, on 22 August 

2014, 22 documents were produced to the defendant in pursuit of the applicant’s 

duty of disclosure.  

 

9. The SFO investigator Richard Gould made a witness statement on 14 April 2014 

in support of the without notice application. The investigation was in its early 

stages, and the information available to him comprised the product of the two 

orders that BNP had by then complied with, some information supplied by the 

NCA liaison officer in Kiev and the product of his own unspecified researches on 

the internet.  A short supplementary (unnumbered) statement by him was filed on 

16 April. This was confined to the question whether MZ had made the appropriate 

disclosure of receipt of a large dividend payment made by one of his companies, 

as he was required to do as both a public official and a taxpayer. He indicated that 

as a result of information received from Ukraine he believed that MZ had failed to 

declare the dividend of some US$4 million. 

 

10. The hearing before HHJ Kramer QC was short, some 19 minutes in length, and 

oral evidence was limited to the question of the dividend disclosure relied on as 

evidence of the defendant’s dishonesty. The substance of the case put  in the 

witness statement and supporting skeleton argument was that there were 

reasonable grounds to believe  that the defendant had engaged in criminal conduct 

in Ukraine  and the funds in the BNP account were believed to be the proceeds of 

such criminal conduct because:- 
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i.  His wealth increased when he held public office and the only 

apparent source of his private wealth was from the  exploitation of 

mineral licences awarded to his companies when he held public 

office. 

 

ii. Although no specific offence of bribery or fraud could be  identified 

at this early stage in the investigation, the potential for conflict of 

interest ‘gives rise to a clear inference  of a wilful and dishonest 

exploitation of a direct conflict of interest by a man holding an important 

public office such as to amount to an abuse of the public’s trust in him’. 

Such conduct would, if committed in this jurisdiction, amount to an 

offence of misconduct in public office. 

 

iii. The complicated pattern of off -shore holding companies 

established when he was still a serving Minister was effectively to 

conceal his beneficial ownership of Burisma and the economically 

active enterprises of which it was the holding company. The court 

could draw the inference of dishonest motive for the corporate 

structure. 

 

iv. Scrutiny of the statements of the BNP accounts shows very limited 

activity and this is an indicator that their primary purpose was to 

facilitate the transfer of criminal property. 

 

v. The recent attempt to transfer the assets was troubling evidence of 

an attempt to avoid sanctions and freezing orders by transferring the 

funds to the companies’ accounts in Cyprus. 

 

11. Since the order was made, evidence has been filed on behalf of the defendant in 

the  form of two witness statements  from Mr Kicha with numerous exhibits 

seeking to explain the origins of the defendant’s wealth,  the regulatory 

environment  in Ukraine at the time when the defendant held office, the history of 

the corporate structure of the defendant’s companies, the nature of the business 

deals that resulted in  the payments into the BNP accounts, the reasons why the 

accounts were opened in the first place and the information required by and 

provided to BNP to ensure regulatory compliance. These include a report from a 

well known international investigation agency Kress Associates into MZ’s 

business history prepared for BNP and a memorandum on relevant provisions of 

Ukraine law at the time prepared by reputable lawyers for these proceedings. He 

states that BNP had asked for closure of the accounts because the reason for 

applying to the bank in April 2013 to open the accounts in the first place, namely 

a proposed placement, was no longer going to proceed. 

 

12.  Mr Kicha also observed that Mr Gould’s second witness statement proceeded on 

a false basis about disclosure of dividend payments. As a state officer MZ had 

declared income of approximately US $2million in 2010 and 2011, $4.8 million in 

2012, and had declared on 24 February 2014 (within the relevant accounting 

period) the sum of $3 million received in late November 2013. He suggested that 

Mr Gould had erroneously looked to the date of the resolution awarding the 
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payment of a dividend on 28 December 2012 rather the date when instructions 

were given by Mr Kicha for the payment to be made even though this instruction 

was in Mr Gould’s possession and had been exhibited in his first witness 

statement (Vol 2/ 240, RG1/73). The date of payment and the February 

declaration was subsequently accepted by the applicant. There has been no 

evidence contradicting Mr Kicha’s account that earlier declarations had been 

made. 

 

13. The defendant also relied on the witness statement of Mr Boiko a defence lawyer 

and current chair of the Bar Council of Kiev and Professor Sakwa. Mr Boiko 

gives evidence both of the procedural requirements of Ukrainian criminal law and 

the fact that although the present authorities in Ukraine have been anxious to 

investigate possible criminal wrongdoing by the defendant, and a number of 

different investigations connected with him have been opened, he has never been 

named as a suspect in any criminal investigation. An embezzlement inquiry 

(investigation 155) into a procurement fraud in his department concerned others 

and related to events after MZ had left that office.  

 

14. The Ukrainian authorities had written on a number of occasions to the applicant 

giving information about inquiries that had been opened but had not progressed to 

the point where evidence of wrongdoing had been discovered such as to require 

the prosecutor to inform MZ that he was a suspect. Shortly before the hearing of 

this application a letter dated 2 December 2014 was received from the General 

Prosecutor of Ukraine  stating that in respect of five separately identified 

investigations opened between  19 December 2012 and  6 August 2014 ( including 

155  and another investigation 181) ‘allegation notification was not delivered to MZ 

due to absence of grounds  for criminal prosecution.’ It may be the case, as Mr Gould 

points out in his second witness statement, that search warrants were executed at 

his premises in April and May 2014 but that does not mean that there was 

evidence to make him a suspect.  

 

15.  Professor Sakwa gives some background evidence about the susceptibility of the 

prosecution authorities in Ukraine to political pressure as regimes change. Given 

the  state of the evidence that no investigations of criminal conduct against the 

defendant in Ukraine  have resulted in his being named as a suspect some ten 

months after the change of regime, this evidence is only  of very limited 

assistance. 

 

16.  The defendant’s solicitors have pressed for full disclosure of relevant data that 

might undermine the applicant’s case or support that of the defendant emerging 

from the product of the first two orders that were available before the hearing on 

16 April.  Mr Gould disputed that there was anything further to be disclosed in his 

second witness statement of 29 August 2013 (at [9] to [12]) and specifically 

addressed this in his third witness statement of 3 October 2014, where he again 

disputed that there was any relevant disclosure to be made from this material. This 

remained the position of the applicant in the written submissions lodged and when 

Mr Kinnear QC addressed me in response to the defendant’s application on 4 

December the second day of this three day hearing.   
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17. However, on 5 December, following overnight inquiries and a request for a short 

adjournment to consider matters, Mr Kinnear concluded that on reviewing the 

contents of the first production order, there were a small number of documents 

that should have been disclosed. Disclosure was now being made. In the interest 

of transparency the whole of the material produced would be supplied to the 

defendant’s team. As a result of these developments the applicant would not now 

oppose the defendant’s application to set aside HHJ Kramer’s order but it was 

nevertheless contended that I should make a fresh order for restraint in the light of 

all the evidence.   

 

18. As the defendant had not had the opportunity to examine the relevance of the three 

volumes of material supplied on 5 December (some of which was duplicated 

material) a time-table was set for further written submissions to be lodged before 

the end of last term. I have received those submissions and carefully considered 

them. I conclude that there is no need for this hearing to be reconvened for further 

oral submissions, nor is there any need for me to be provided with bundles of the 

newly disclosed material.  It is sufficient to note that of the 17 documents 

identified and described by the defendant in a schedule dated 11 December, the 

applicant now accepts that 10 should have been disclosed and that at least two 

mis-statements of fact were made by Mr Gould in his third witness statement, 

about the documents the applicant had in its possession.   

 

The Law 

 

19.  The parties are in broad agreement as to the governing law with respect to the 

following propositions: 

 

i. The court has the discretion to make a restraining order if the 

statutory conditions are met (s.41 (1) of the Act). 

 

ii. As the Director of SFO had authorised the commencement of a 

money laundering investigation in March 2014 the relevant 

statutory conditions are those set out in s.40((2)(b) of the Act  

namely ‘there is reasonable cause to believe  that the offender has 

benefitted from his criminal conduct’. 

 

iii. A necessary aspect of this test, in present circumstances, is whether 

there is reasonable cause to believe that the defendant has 

committed any criminal conduct in the first place. 

 

iv. Reasonable cause to believe that the defendant has committed a 

crime requires a higher threshold than a reasonable cause to suspect 

that he may have done, but at an early stage in an investigation 

there will be many uncertainties, which do not prevent the 

existence of a reasonable cause to believe (Windsor [2011] 2 Cr 

App R 7 per Hooper LJ at [53], [78], and [87]). 

 

v. The criminal conduct concerned does not have to be an offence 

punishable in  Ukraine (s.76 (1) and 340 (2) of the Act). 
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vi. It is not necessary to establish that money that is being handled is 

criminal property by identifying that it is the product of a specific 

criminal offence; it suffices if all the circumstances give rise to an 

irresistible inference that it could only be derived from crime  

(Anwoir  [2008] 2 Cr App R 36 at [21]). 

 

vii. An inference that a crime has been committed is only irresistible if 

it is the only reasonable inference that can be drawn from the 

evidence as a whole and all inferences consistent with the absence 

of criminality can be excluded. However, this is the test to be 

applied by the fact finder at the conclusion of the trial process after 

all the material evidence has been tested (Jabbar [2006] EWCA 

Crim 2694 per Moses LJ at [21]). 

 

20.  The way that the applicant advanced his case on 16 April 2014 and the primary 

way in which the case was developed in the written and oral submissions for the 

December hearing, was that the defendant’s assets were the product of criminal 

wrongdoing when he held public office, and that in the absence of any specific 

evidence of corruption or fraud, such wrongdoing is reflected in the common law 

offence of misconduct in public office.  The elements of that offence have been 

described in Attorney General’s Reference No 3 of 2003 [2004] 2 Cr App R 23. 

So far as is material to present circumstances, the prosecution must show that a 

public officer without reasonable excuse ‘wilfully neglects to perform his duty or 

misconducts himself to such a degree to amount to an abuse  of the public’s trust 

in the office holder.’ 

 

21. I accept Mr Kinnear’s submission that for present purposes it matters not whether  

Ukraine has an equivalent offence of misconduct in public office. However, in 

order to show either misconduct or a failure to perform a duty and in order to 

evaluate whether any failure is sufficiently grave to amount to an abuse of trust, 

there needs to be some breach by the defendant of a local obligation that is 

imposed with respect to the office. That means that provisions of Ukrainian law 

and the conditions of public service relating to conflicts of interests are relevant as 

a matter of fact. In my judgment, it is not sufficient that MZ was the owner of the 

shares in a holding company that owned oil and gas production companies and 

related companies that were commercially active when he held office, unless there 

was some local requirement to divest himself of all such shareholdings during the 

period of office.  

 

22. In support of the submission that, whatever their origin, the assets in the account 

were the proceeds of money-laundering, the applicant points to the complex 

nature of the commercial transactions described by Mr Kicha,  the origin of the 

venture that is said to be the source of the funds paid into the accounts, the use of 

offshore companies, the evidential gaps in the documentation produced by him, 

the absence of any evidence from the defendant himself and the other participants 

in the joint venture. 

 

23.  I accept that as a matter of law appropriate adverse inferences may be drawn from 

a defendant’s failure to explain apparently incriminating evidence consistent with 

money laundering activity. Whether it is right to draw such an inference depends 
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on all the surrounding circumstances, the evidential strength of the applicant’s 

secondary submission, and whether there is good reason to doubt what Mr Kicha 

has said on behalf of the defendant and the interested parties. 

 

24. If there is jurisdiction to make a restraint order, there is a clear legislative steer as 

to how discretion should be exercised. The application is made in the public 

interest in order to preserve from dissipation, assets that may be confiscated upon 

conviction or other order: see s. 69 (2) of the Act and the observations of the court 

in Jennings v CPS [2005] EWCA Civ 746 [2006] 1 WLR 182 at [56] dealing with 

the provisions of the predecessor legislation. 

 

25. In this case, the continued existence of an investigation is dependent on the 

restraint order being continued. If the assets are transferred to the companies’ 

accounts in Cyprus, it is improbable that resources will continue to be devoted to 

the question of whether they were the proceeds of money laundering. Further, by 

contrast with most of the cases cited by the parties, by the time of the hearing the 

British authorities had not brought any charge against anyone concerned with the 

funds in the BNP banks. It was far from clear that there would be such a charge or 

that there would be confiscation proceedings related to the accounts. 

 

26. It is clear that a public authority seeking a restraint order without notice has to 

comply with a duty of candour that goes beyond an obligation not to misrepresent.  

As Hughes LJ put it in  Re Stanford International Bank Ltd [2010] EWCA Civ 

137; [2010] 3 WLR 941at [191]: 

 

‘It consists in a duty to consider what any interested person would, if present, 

wish to adduce by way of fact, or to say in answer to the application, and to place 

that material before the judge. That duty applies to an applicant for a restraint 

order under POCA in exactly the same way as to any other applicant for an order 

without notice. Even in relatively small value cases, the potential of a restraint 

order to disrupt other commercial or personal dealings is considerable. The 

prosecutor may believe that the applicant is a criminal and he may turn out to be 

right, but that has yet to be proved. An application for a restraint order is 

emphatically not a routine matter of form with the expectation that it will 

routinely be granted. The fact that the initial application is likely to be forced into 

a busy list, with very limited time for the judge to deal with it, is yet a further 

reason for the obligation of disclosure to be taken very seriously. In effect a 

prosecutor seeking an ex parte order must put on his defence hat and ask himself 

what, if he were representing the defendant or third party with a relevant interest 

he would be saying to the judge, and having answered that questions, that is what 

he must tell the judge’. 

  

27.  If there has been a material failure of disclosure, when considering whether the 

order should be discharged, the question is not whether the order was obtained as 

a result of the misrepresentation or non-disclosure but whether the information 

was material to be taken into account in the exercise of the discretion to grant the 

relief sought, Stanford (above) per Sir Andrew Morritt C at [83]. 

 

28.  A failure of disclosure may result in an award of costs and/or a setting aside of 

the order made without notice, but it may still be in the public interest to make a 
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fresh order in the light of all the evidence now available to the court and the 

relevant issues: see Stanford at [97] to [101]; [198] to [202]. 

 

The contentions of the parties 

 

29. I do not propose to lengthen this judgment with a detailed consideration of the 

evidence relating to MZ’s period in office, the grant of exploration and production 

licences, and the regime then applicable in the Ukraine to prevent conflicts of 

interest. I have had the benefit of skeleton arguments and in addition there has 

been a contemporaneous live note record kept of the oral submissions made in 

these proceedings. 

 

30. In essence  Mr Keith submits: 

 

i. It is peculiar that the Director of the SFO decided to open a 

domestic money laundering investigation without any clear 

evidence to suggest that the assets in the accounts were criminal 

property or criminal property derived from offences committed 

when MZ held public office.  If there had been any basis for such a 

contention there could have been an external request from Ukraine 

using the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (External Requests and 

Orders) Order 2005. There has never been such a request. 

 

ii. Instead there has been political contact between Ukraine and the 

United Kingdom since the change of regime in February 2014. 

There have been high profile commitments on the English side to 

assist Ukraine to recover stolen assets and some political 

expressions of support on the Ukrainian side for the fact that the 

English authorities have taken the lead with respect to MZ.  

 

iii. It was wholly misleading of Mr Gould in his first witness statement 

at [12]  to indicate that, although MZ has no known criminal 

convictions against him, according to a letter  from the head of the 

Main Investigation Department in the Ministry of the Interior  of 

Ukraine dated 13 March 2014  (addressed to the National Crime 

Agency liaison officer in Kiev) investigation 462 opened in 

December 2013  and ‘there are sufficient grounds to suggest that MZ 

had been receiving his share of money for participating in law 

violations’. The subsequent disclaimer that as this was not the basis 

of the application as it was not a formal request for assistance did 

not cure its prejudicial effect. 

 

iv. The true position was that any investigation into embezzlement 

was against other officials in MZ’s former department and he 

appeared to have been interviewed as a witness.  The subsequent 

witness statement of Mr Boiko and the 2 December letter from the 

state prosecutor’s office written for the purposes of the present 

hearing, indicate that he was never named as a suspect for 

embezzlement or indeed any other offence, let alone one related to 
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the exercise of improper influence in the grant of exploration and 

production licences.  

 

v. It was equally misleading for the applicant to rely on Mr Gould’s 

assertion that there were well publicised allegations of abuse when 

the public allegation was that of a political opponent in 2006, who 

was himself  subsequently convicted of offences when the regime 

changed. There was no evidence at all to suggest that the oil 

production licences were improperly obtained. Indeed the decision 

of the Ukrainian courts given when MZ was out of  power indicate 

that there was no perceived irregularity with the way the licences 

had been granted before 2010. It also appeared that production 

licenses were granted from 2005 onwards when he was out of 

power. 

 

vi. If Mr Gould had properly investigated the requirements of 

Ukrainian law before relying on the allegations of corruption, he 

should have been aware that the change of the tendering system 

was not a decision taken by MZ himself but a change promoted 

before he took office. This change was not evidence of corruption 

but a move to liberalise the market. There was a system of checks 

and requirements before a licence could be issued and the decision 

was taken by people other than MZ himself, as the detailed analysis 

of Ukrainian law prepared by a Ukraine branch of a US law firm, 

Chadbourne and Parke, dated 17 September 2014 that was attached 

to Mr Kicha’s second witness statement of 23 October 2014 

confirmed.  

 

vii. The suggestion in Mr Gould’s first witness statement that the 

acquisition of MZ’s wealth coincided with his holding of political 

office was untrue, as he could (or should) have known if he had 

properly researched the topic before making the restraint 

application. A number of the documents provided to BNP Paribas 

in their regulatory compliance/Know Your Client investigation 

between April 2103 and June 2013, before the accounts were 

opened, showed the pre-2003 business history of the defendant 

indicating that he had been active in a company called Infox since 

September 1991. Notable in this respect was a Kroll Associates 

report, dated 3 August 2013 that had been commissioned by BNP’s  

clients and supplied to the bank as part of the intelligence gathering 

process. This document was disclosed by Mr Gould in his second 

witness statement 29 August as something that had been disclosed 

in the third production order effected in May 2013, but it was 

surprising that core documents from the Know Your Client process 

were not sought and obtained in the earlier production orders or 

specially sought before an inaccurate history was presented to the 

judge. 

 

viii. Mr Gould’s first witness statement gave the impression that it was 

suspicious that the accounts showed no commercial activity of the 
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sort that would be expected with an active oil exploration 

company. The inference was thereby given that the only reason for 

the accounts being opened was to launder money from tainted 

sources.  In fact the BNP disclosure material should have revealed 

that the accounts were opened in the context of a private placement 

to increase the capital base of the companies and the corporate 

structure was such that these accounts were related simply to the 

overall holding companies and not the business operational 

accounts. 

 

ix. This last point has been supported by the schedule of documents on 

which the defendant relies arising from 5 December 2014 

disclosure. Most of the  seven documents,  where concessions of 

disclosure have not been made by the applicant, related to the 

original reasons for the account being opened and the initial 

satisfaction of the bank with the results of its due diligence 

inquiries. 

 

x. Equally it was wrong for Mr Gould (and also counsel relying on 

him in the without notice application), to give weight to the request 

to withdraw the funds from the companies’ accounts in London and 

transfer them to their accounts in Cyprus as evidence of risk of 

dissipation. The closure of the London accounts had been requested 

by the bank from October 2013 as would have been known by the 

time of the without notice application. 

 

xi. There was clear and damaging misinformation provided to the 

judge with respect to a failure to declare a dividend when received. 

In addition it is now accepted that there was a failure to disclose 

documents that were in the possession of the applicant at the time 

of the without notice application and which should have been 

disclosed. 

 

xii. Taking these matters cumulatively, the misrepresentations and 

failure to disclose was sufficiently serious to set aside the judge’s 

order and not make a fresh one. The applicant should not be able to 

rely on its significant failures to now seek an order on a 

fundamentally changed case when it is recognised that their 

primary case has collapsed. 

 

xiii. If the court nevertheless evaluates today whether there is a good 

case for restraint, on any basis the evidence of Mr Kicha as to the 

good faith of the business transactions resulting in the payment in 

and payment out of the funds in the account, is un-contradicted and 

not undermined by anything the applicant has put forward.  

 

xiv. In so far as the applicant relies on documentary gaps in Mr Kicha’s 

evidence, this relates largely to documents from third parties and in 

any event does not establish a reasonable belief that the proceeds of 
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the account were criminal property the subject of money 

laundering. 

 

31. By contrast Mr Kinnear contends that: 

 

i. The failures of disclosure were innocent errors of judgment at an 

early stage of a complex investigation. Mr Gould had drawn 

attention to factors favourable to the defence in his first witness 

statement. There was no reason to doubt the good faith of the 

applicant in seeking the restraint order in the first place and its 

replacement with a fresh order today. 

 

ii. The fact remains that MZ held political office in a former regime 

now notorious for corruption and abuse of power, as the 

defendant’s own expert Professor Sakwa explains. 

 

iii. MZ has not made a witness statement detailing how he came by his 

significant wealth or the nature of his dealings with those who are 

connected to the funds in the BNP accounts, or explaining the 

source of the funds paid into the accounts. It is not sufficient for 

him to rely on the evidence of Mr Kicha and that evidence leaves 

unanswered questions. It is a reasonable inference that it involved 

criminality of one sort or another. 

 

iv. The BNP material dealing with the proposed public to private 

placement was overtaken by subsequent events when the 

possibility of a venture was brought to an end. In any event, it is 

clear that by February 2014 a senior official in the bank was 

concluding that the relationship should terminate because of 

concerns about money laundering. 

 

v. The conclusion that disclosure of the fact that the bank wanted to 

close the accounts may be prejudicial to the defendant was an 

exercise of judgment made in good faith. 

 

vi. It is not sufficient to establish reasonable grounds for belief of 

money laundering that off-shore companies are used in complex 

transactions. However, the level of complexity here and the 

involvement of Mr Kurchenko in a joint venture giving rise to the 

funds in the accounts, suffice, when combined with the other 

factors, to substantiate reasonable grounds for a belief that the 

funds represent criminal property. 

 

vii. In these circumstances the statutory steer suggests that discretion 

should still be exercised to restrain the proceeds pending the 

completion of investigations and the outcome of any possible trial. 
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Conclusions: 

 

(1) Non-disclosure 

 

32.  In giving directions for the present hearing Phillips J rejected the applicant’s 

application for cross-examination of Mr Kicha. His reasons for doing so were 

brief but were in essence that such an application is not a detailed examination of 

the facts but the exercise of a discretion on the principles set out in the legal 

authorities above. Either the applicant has established a sufficient basis for the 

grant of relief on the documents or it has not.  

 

33. At an earlier stage of the proceedings, when setting the timetable  on 27 June as to 

when the applicant should file evidence by way of response, he also said this: 

 
‘It is not acceptable that this sort of order is obtained unless the SFO has already 

sufficient evidence to satisfy the court that there is the relevant reasonable cause 

present and it is not right there should be, effectively, an initial order followed by 

a period of investigation’.  

 

34. There is common ground between the parties that there has been a significant 

failure of disclosure of relevant documents resulting from the BNP response to the 

first two production orders. On any view, 10 of the 17 documents in the 

defendant’s supplementary schedule should have been disclosed. Summarily 

reviewing the descriptions of the seven documents where the applicant SFO has 

not conceded that disclosure should have been made, it would appear to me that 

each was relevant to the exercise of the judge’s discretion within the Stanford 

criteria identified above.  The judge was left with the impression that the only 

reason for the accounts to be opened was money laundering, whereas evidence 

about the companies’ reasons for opening the accounts, the information they 

provided to the due diligence inquiries, and the bank’s initial satisfaction with 

answers in response to its information gathering before opening the accounts, 

would all be evidence that a defendant, if present at the hearing, would have 

wanted to have been before the judge.  

 

35. Taking all seventeen documents together, I am satisfied that a serious error of 

judgment was made by the applicant’s team about what should  have been put 

before Judge Kramer and in response to the defendant’s solicitors repeated 

requests for the product of the initial production orders.  

 

36. I am puzzled by the submission that Mr Gould thought it would be prejudicial to 

the defendant to inform the judge that BNP wanted the accounts closed. It seems 

to me infinitely more prejudicial to identify as the ‘most troubling aspect’ (as 

counsel’s skeleton argument did at [15]) the fact of Mr Kicha’s request for BNP to 

transfer the assets of $23 million from the BNP account to the companies’ 

accounts in Cyprus when that was what BNP had wanted the companies to do and 

had set a time table for so doing. Further, on 29 August 2014 Mr Gould exhibited 

an BNP email dated 11 February 2014 where there is a reference to the deal that is 

the source of the funds and where it said “it looks” obvious that the deal itself is 

probably a mixture of money laundering and corruption’ which might be the kind of 
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prejudice he had in mind, but this did not result in more disclosure of the product 

of the first two orders. 

 

37. Precisely what led the bank to seek to terminate the relationship established in 

June 2013 is unclear. In October 2013 it may have been simply that the 

commercial venture that had been proposed was not going to take place, or it may 

have been other concerns not communicated to the clients.  The bank’s concerns 

may have been the starting point of an inquiry into the nature of the assets in the 

accounts, but this does not amount to a reasonable belief that the assets are 

criminal proceeds either from some corrupt activity of the defendant or an attempt 

to money launder the dubious assets of others. 

 

38. In addition to the failure to disclose material documents forming part of the 

banking relationship with BNP, there was a positive inaccurate (false without any 

connotation of knowingly and dishonestly false) information about the failure to 

disclose a dividend in an accounting year before it had been paid.  Whilst this was 

only a small point, it went directly to the credibility and honesty of the defendant 

and was in fact the only issue ventilated when Mr Gould gave short evidence in a 

very short hearing. It must have played a role in the judge’s decision. 

 

(2) Criminal property from corruption in office 

 

39. In the light of the acceptance by Mr Kinnear that the judge’s order made without 

notice should be set aside for material non-disclosure, it seems to me that I do not 

have to engage in an assessment of whether the order would have been made if no 

misrepresentation had occurred and the fuller picture set out in the disclosure 

documents had been provided.  The evidential picture before me is fundamentally 

different to that before him.  

 

40. I accept Mr Keith’s submission that despite ample opportunity to do so, nothing 

has been produced by Mr Gould to undermine the reliability of Mr Kicha’s 

account of the business history and transactions or Chadbourn and Parke’ account 

of the applicable Ukrainian law. However this material along with Mr Boiko’s 

account of the state of the investigations being conducted in the Ukraine  

undermines most of the six points that I have summarised as the evidential basis 

for the earlier application at [10] above.  

 

41. I accept that very large sums of money came into the BNP accounts, US $35 

million, of which $23 million remains. I accept that the defendant held public 

office in a regime that is presently considered corrupt. I accept that Ukrainian 

domestic arrangements to prevent conflict of influence by public officials who 

were already wealthy businessmen and had substantial shareholdings in 

companies involved in the extractive industries might either be considered 

inadequate or inadequately enforced. I accept that there is always the possibility 

that, despite the existence of safeguards as to who makes decision, undue 

influence can be brought to bear.  

 

42. However, none of these general points establishes reasonable grounds for a belief 

that his assets were unlawfully acquired as a result of misconduct in public office.  

It is plain from the business history now available that MZ was already a 
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businessman of some 12 years standing before he held office.  He was declaring 

income of some US $2 million throughout his second period of office. Oil and gas 

industries can yield very large sums of money and according to the prospectus 

material in the possession of the BNP, the Burisma group of companies is the 

second largest gas producer in Ukraine at a time when demand for gas was rising, 

and its total worth is now very great. 

 

43. Mr Kinnear points out that the Kroll Associates report suggests that a career in 

politics was chosen by MZ around 2002 precisely to develop further his business. 

I do not read that as an admission of corruption, nor is it likely that BNP did so 

when agreeing to open the accounts after reading this report. The passage is 

consistent with a view that unless the regulatory regime was opened up and 

political changes made to encourage market economy, the role of the private 

sector and opportunities for economic development were limited. 

 

44. I accordingly conclude that the primary way in which the applicant puts and has 

put its case, does not support the making of a further restraint order. 

 

(3) Criminal property by money laundering the assets of others 

 

45. I  now turn to Mr Kinnear’s second submission, namely  that analysis of the 

details of the transactions provided by Mr Kicha in his June witness statement 

itself leads to the conclusion that the funds that went into the accounts were the 

product of  money laundering. If so,  whatever the source of MZ’s wealth may 

have been, in 2013 he was engaging in transactions that had no genuine 

commercial purpose but were designed to transfer money that was in someway 

tainted out of Ukraine, possibly  in anticipation of pending political turmoil in that 

country. 

 

46. For this point to be explored, it is necessary to summarise some of the transactions 

on which the applicant founds this submission.  I am conscious that Mr Keith’s 

primary response to this second limb is that the court should not consider making 

a fresh restraint at all giving the misrepresentations, the failure of disclose and the 

changes in the way the applicants puts its case. 

 

47. Mr Kicha’s account of the  source of the US $35m that was placed in the accounts 

is as follows: 

 

i. MZ owned property assets of parcels of land outside Kiev. These 

were unrelated to oil and gas industry. They were held through a 

company called Chartlux Resources Inc and its subsidiary TOV 

Kam that was founded on 1 August 2003.  In September 2013 these 

assets were valued at US $46.34 million. 

 

ii. A Latvian businessman called Andrej Kiselovs who had extensive 

experience in real estate in Ukraine was interested in developing 

the land in a joint venture with MZ and believed that they could be 

sold for more than their current valuation. 
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iii. There was an agreement to set up a joint venture entity to acquire 

and hold the assets. This was Cipriato Alliance Limited, a company 

registered in Belize. MZ and Mr Kiselovs both held a 50 per cent 

stake in Cipriato. Kiselovs was to invest US$ 17 million in the 

venture and MZ $18 million. 

 

iv. TOV Kam did not sell the assets direct to Cipriato, but a complex 

series of transactions ensued, whereby TOV Kam was sold to a 

special purpose vehicle called Seanon Limited, Seanon sold it to 

Brociti  and Brocoti sold it to Cipriato for $35 million. MZ was the 

ultimate beneficial owner of Seanon as well as Tov Kam and 

Brociti. Seanon was sold to Brociti at a nominal value because this 

was a transfer between companies all owned by MZ. 

 

v. The ultimate sale agreement between Brociti and Cipriato dated 11 

December 2013 was provided (see AK8 vol 2/442). The position 

described above is rendered more complex by the existence of 

various loans. 

 

vi. In due course, the sums representing the $35m  were paid into the 

accounts in six instalments between 19 December and 21 January 

2014. 

 

48. Thus, it is said, the payments were the product of a good faith sale of assets to a 

joint venture for value. What is not known, possibly because Mr Kicha cannot say 

and MZ has not made a statement, is:- 

 

i. Why an asset valued at $46.3 million was sold to the joint venture 

for $35 million? 

 

ii. Why MZ thought it appropriate that Mr Kiselovs should acquire 

50% of the value of this asset for US $17 million? 

 

iii. What the commercial reasons were to sell the assets through the 

chain described above? 

 

iv. Why the purchase price was paid into the BNP account at a time 

when the placement proposal was at an end and BNP was 

suggesting that the account should be closed? 

 

 

49. Mr Kicha then turns to how MZ raised his share of the funds needed by Cipriato 

to purchase Seanon.  He explains that this was achieved by the sale of an oil 

terminal and tank farm in Kherson that was owned by him through a British 

Virgin Islands registered company under his control called Kisaliano Holdings 

Limited. It is stated that US $20.03 million was transferred by Kisaliano into 

Cipriato’s bank account in Latvia. A further point is made that that payment did 

not arouse any regulatory concerns by the bank, although the footnote in the 

statement refers to regulatory compliance in Estonia not Latvia. The sum paid in 

was more than the $18 million that was due to be MZ’s share of the investment as 
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the balance was a loan to Mr Kiselovs to help him raise his share of the joint 

venture. 

 

50. Mr Kicha then explains more about Kisaliano and the sale of the oil terminal. He 

states that the property in question was owned by MZ’s  operating company Infox 

from 2002 having had a an earlier association with it when an opportunity arose to 

acquire it when its original owner became bankrupt.  The asset then went through 

various holding companies until in about September 2013 it was transferred to 

Vestorgia Holdings Limited, a company registered in Cyprus on 22 March 2012.  

 

51. Mr Kicha further explains that in mid 2013, MZ had decided to sell the asset to 

Rosseu Business Group Ltd. Rosseu was understood to be a subsidiary company 

of the Vetek Group, which is owned by Sergey Kurchenko. 

 

52. Kisaliano Holdings was therefore created as a special purpose vehicle in July 2013 

in the BVI in contemplation of the sale of the assets to Rosseu through Vestorgia.   

The sale agreement was signed on 9 October 2013 whereby Kisaliano sold 1000 

shares in Vestorgia to Rosseu for the sum of US$32 million. Payment was made 

between October and 8 November 2013, of $30.950, and a further $1million was 

held in an escrow account.  

 

53. The $20.3 million paid into Cipriato came from this $30.95 million. The Cipriato 

monies (to which Mr Kiselovs added some $15m of his own) were the source of 

the payments into the accounts that are the subject of the restraint order. 

 

54.  In his second witness statement, Mr Gould comments that, far from providing 

evidence tending to show that the funds were legitimately derived from the sale of 

assets, the explanation supports the applicant’s case that they are the product of 

money laundering.  He points out that one high risk money laundering indicator 

known to law enforcement and the financial sector is corporate entities that are 

based in one jurisdiction and operate in another. He suggests that the sequence of 

transfers of assets through different companies is suspicious in itself and 

indicative of attempts to disguise the nature of the transactions. 

 

55. He then makes the point that Mr Kicha’s June statement made no comment on the 

current status of Mr Kurchenko.  He explains that on 20 March 2014 it was 

reported in the global media sources that Mr Kurchenko was the subject of an 

arrest warrant in relation to misappropriation, embezzlement or obtaining state 

funds through abuse.  Inquiries were still pending with the Ukrainian authorities 

as to the nature of these charges. He fled Ukraine after the fall of the previous 

government. His present whereabouts are unknown.  He is the subject of a 

Treasury Sanctions notice dated 6 March 2014 freezing his assets pursuant to the 

EU Regulation.  

 

56. By way of preamble, Mr Gould also commented on the sale of a subsidiary of 

Brociti called Egeli Services to Audrinura Trade LLP Limited on 27 December 

2012. The sale price was US $6 million but the funds were not paid until 8 July 

2013. Egeli was the Cypriot corporate vehicle for the acquisition earlier in 2012 of 

two Ukrainian companies supplying specialist gas drilling products. Audrinura is 

registered in the UK but the annual returns for the accounting period ending 30 
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September 2013 made no reference to the acquisition of Egeli and its net profit 

was recorded as merely £243. All this is said to be consistent with money 

laundering, the creation of a complex series of transactions where there is little 

evidence of genuine trading or proper accounting of high value transactions. 

 

57. Mr Kicha’s response to the points about Egeli is, first, this was not raised in the 

first witness statement when it could have been; second the assets owned by Egeli 

are genuine assets and the sale was properly recorded in Brociti’s financial 

statements.  Third, he volunteers the fact that Audrinura is a company owned by 

Mr Kiselovs (who of course is the partner of MZ in the Cipriato joint venture).  

Fourth, he says if the irregularity is that Audrinura did not record the purchase in 

its trading account then that is a matter for Mr Kiselovs to comment on, not the 

defendant. It does nothing to suggest that the Cipriato monies are criminal 

property. 

 

58. In his submissions by way of reply to the points developed by Mr Kinnear orally 

on this part of [46] above:- 

 

i. Each of the transactions under consideration resulted in real assets 

being exchanged for real cash, with ownership going one way and 

cash the other. 

 

ii. Each was properly recorded in the relevant accounts that, in turn, 

were audited and accepted as a true statement by various 

professionals in a number of jurisdictions. 

 

iii. The underlying transactions were completed in the autumn of 2013 

before the dramatic events of February 2014 that led to change of 

regime and any need to transfer ill gotten gains out of the country. 

 

iv. The fact that Mr Kurchenko is now the subject of a freezing order 

does not invalidate or taint business transactions conducted with 

him some six months previously. 

 

v. It was Mr Kicha who disclosed the names of Kiselovs and 

Kurchenko as the real individuals behind the corporate entities. He 

was the person running the Brociti bank accounts and was able to 

provide credible evidence of the transactions under scrutiny. 

 

vi. Nothing is known to the discredit of Mr Kiselovs save possibly a 

failure to lodge accurate accounts but could this not make the sums 

he paid into Cipriato tainted. 

 

vii. The information that Mr Kurchenko is now under investigation for 

criminal activity is too vague and evidentially unsupported to give 

rise to any proper basis for concluding that the purchase price for 

the oil terminal was criminal property that has now come into the 

BNP accounts. 
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(4)  Decision 

 

59. I am required to perform an overall exercise of discretion as to whether relief 

should now be granted afresh having regard to the fact that the without notice 

order is to be set aside, there was material non disclosure, and the principal basis 

on which it was obtained does not justify the conclusion that there are  reasonable 

grounds to believe that MZ was engaged in criminal conduct relating to his 

companies when he held office. The burden is on the applicant to persuade me 

that that such an order should be granted, evaluating all the material as it now 

stands 

 

60. The non disclosure of the 10 or 17 documents identified in the schedule was not a 

momentary or accidental slip. It was an exercise of judgment that is now accepted 

to be flawed having regard to the issues or criteria.  It may be that the 

misrepresentation as to the dividend disclosure (noted at [38] above) was a slip, as 

it required detailed reading of the accounts for the point to be noted and there was 

undoubtedly pressure of time in preparing the first statement. 

 

61. Despite the number of documents in question, the concerns of Mr Keith at the 

nature of the communications between Ukraine and the SFO and the inappropriate 

reliance by Mr Gould in his first witness statement on information and belief from 

sources whose identity is not revealed, I do not conclude that the errors of 

judgment were such to suggest that he was not acting in good faith. 

 

62. As a result of these matters, the hearing before HHJ Kramer was unfair and the 

order made is set aside.  That does not prevent the making of a fresh order as was 

in fact done in the case of Stanford.  I do not consider that the non-disclosure and 

false representations are of such serious misconduct as to prevent a fresh order 

being made, having regard to the guidance in Jennings. An adverse costs order, 

relating to the proceedings will often suffice to address a failure of disclosure that 

falls below this threshold. 

 

63. However, eight months have passed since the original order. I have concluded that 

the basis for any fresh order rests on the suspicious inferences arising from the 

details of the transactions disclosed with particularity by Mr Kicha.  

 

64. This is a different case to that advanced in April although, I accept, not totally 

disconnected from it. Where, on a without notice application, it is  submitted that 

the known circumstances give rise to the reasonable inference of money 

laundering, and the defendant then provides a detailed account by way of 

response, the applicant’s critical comments on the evidence produced by the 

defendant are part of the continuum of the inquiry.  This is not a case of delaying 

the hearing to permit some wholly extraneous fresh investigation to yield 

forensically probative fruit.  

 

65. Nevertheless, the case now rests largely on the analysis of what has not been 

provided by Mr Kicha, whose credibility and reliability has not been undermined.  

The applicant’s principal point is that we have not heard from MZ personally to 

explain more. The question for me is whether the SFO has presented such an 
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evidentially cogent case of reason to believe that the money in the accounts were 

the product of money laundering that the absence of a response from the 

defendant personally can assume evidential significance in the balance of factors. 

 

66. I have given very anxious consideration to the written and oral submissions (the 

transcript of which I have reminded myself of) of the applicant on this aspect of 

the case. I recognise that the unexplained complexity of the transaction gives 

reasonable cause to suspect that something other than a simple commercial 

transaction may have been conducted here, but  the case remains a matter of 

conjecture and suspicion with no or insufficient concrete data on which a clearly 

founded restraint application is made. 

 

67. Whilst it is understandable why much should remain unclear and unsubstantiated 

at the first application, when only 25 days had passed since the institution of the 

investigation and a much shorter period since the receipt from the BNP in 

response to the disclosure orders, it is reasonable in the light of the passage of 

time to have expected a much clearer and evidentially supported account of why 

there had been a benefit for criminal conduct. There is nothing to suggest that Mr 

Kiselovs’s businesses are unlawful; there may well be real suspicion about Mr 

Kurchenko’s activities given his current status and investigation but no specific 

evidence of illegality has been identified to suggest that any commercial 

transaction with him was tainted. The transactions  appear to involve more 

corporate vehicles than might seem necessary, but Mr Kicha explains that special 

purpose vehicles are often the means of conducting large scale transactions in  

Ukraine and explains why foreign companies and bank accounts are preferred to 

domestic ones. There is nothing to suggest that any other inference than 

criminality is implausible.  

 

68. A restraint order is a draconian measure. It should not be made on the basis of 

suspicion and conjecture alone. The court must critically examine the evidential 

foundation for such an application, whilst recognising that there will be omissions 

in the evidence presented by both parties. In substance I prefer Mr Keith’s 

submissions on this issue summarised at [58] above.  Taking all the above into 

account I have concluded that I should set aside the restraint order previously 

made without making a new one. The applicant’s application for such an order 

accordingly fails. 

 

69.  On 8 January 2015, shortly before this draft judgment was finalised, I received a 

note from Mr Kinnear updating the court with respect to developments since the 

conclusion of the hearing. So far as material, they amounted to this: 

 

i. On 29 December 2014, in respect of investigation 

42014000000805 (805), the Ukrainian prosecutor made a decision 

to give MZ notice that he was suspected of having committed a 

criminal offence of unlawful enrichment. He could not be served 

with this notice as his whereabouts were unknown. 

 

ii. On 30 December 2014, at a without notice hearing in the same 

investigation, a judge of the Percherskyi District Court in Kyiv 

gave a decision on the prosecution’s application to seize the funds 
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in the BNP accounts, inviting the  initiation of  a mutual assistance 

request to the English authorities so as to obtain their recovery. 

 

70. These developments do not cause me to reopen this hearing or to revisit the 

provisional conclusions already reached. 

 

71. Investigation 805 was referred to in a letter from the Prosecutor General’s office 

(undated but in response to an inquiry of 14 November 2014). It was there stated 

that an investigation had been registered on 5 August 2014 into an allegation of 

unlawful enrichment as a result of receiving a large bribe and money laundering 

based on the information provided from the competent authorities in the United 

Kingdom in the course of their money laundering investigation started  on 22 

March 2014.  It was further stated in this letter that: 

 
‘the British investigation established the fact that  (MZ being a Minister of Ecology 

and Natural Resources and being the beneficial owner of a non resident company that 

owned the subsidiary companies) illegally ensured the issuance of mineral resource 

use permits to the companies’.  

 

The evidence I have seen established nothing of the sort. Disregarding the 

possibility that the applicant has supplied to the Ukrainians probative data not 

supplied to this court, there is a real risk that the effect of the without notice order 

of 16 April has been misunderstood. 

 

72. Further, investigation 805 was one of those mentioned in the 2 December 2014 

letter which stated that allegation notification had not been delivered due to 

absence of grounds for criminal prosecution. It is not known why the authorities 

subsequently changed their minds 27 days later, or whether fresh evidence has 

arisen. Equally it is not known what persuaded the judge to make a seizure order 

without notice, when of course the assets were already subject to an existing UK 

order of which the defendant had notice. 

 

73. In the event that this information suggests that a Ukrainian request for mutual 

assistance is about to be made on fresh evidence not considered in this application, 

that is a matter that can be addressed by a timetable for setting aside the existing 

order and to which the parties can give consideration following the handing down 

of this judgment.  
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LIST OF DOCUMENTS IN THE FILE 

 

1. History 

2. Copy of the extract from the resolution of the Central Criminal Court of the Royal Courts 

of Equity dated 20.01.2015 

3. Copy of the extract from the resolution of the Central Criminal Court of the Royal Courts 

of Equity dated 20.01.2015 (as amended dated 21.01.2015) 

4. Individual license of the National Bank of Ukraine No. 109 dated 25.06.2012 

5. Copy of a notification of making an investment abroad dated 26.07.2012 

6. Individual license of the National Bank of Ukraine No. 199 dated 01.11.2012 

7. Copy of a notification of making an investment abroad dated 12.11.2012 

8. Copy of an expert’s consulting opinion dated 25.12.2014 

9. Copy of biography of M.V. Zlochevskyi 

10. Copy of the certificate of the administration of the National Security and Defence 

Council of Ukraine No. 076 on awarding M.V. Zlochevskyi 

11. Copy of the certificate of Association of Kyiv Radio Engineering Academy of Air 

Defence Forces Youth NGO on awarding M.V. Zlochevskyi 

12. Copy of the certificate of the Ministry of Defence of Ukraine on awarding M.V. 

Zlochevskyi 

13. Copy of the certificate of the State Customs Service of Ukraine on awarding M.V. 

Zlochevskyi 

14. Copies of certificates of the Ministry of Internal Affairs of Ukraine on awarding M.V. 

Zlochevskyi 

15. Copy of the certificate of the State Service of Geology and Mineral Resources of Ukraine 

on awarding M.V. Zlochevskyi 

16. Copy of the certificate of the Minor Academy of Sciences – Ecology and Health and 

Safety on awarding M.V. Zlochevskyi 

17. Copy of tax return of M.V. Zlochevskyi dated 25.04.2013 

18. Copy of the bank order No. 1, dated 15.05.2013, on payment of personal income tax by 

M.V. Zlochevskyi 

19. Copy of the bank order No. 1, dated 28.04.2014, on payment of personal income tax by 

M.V. Zlochevskyi 

20. Copy of transparency return of M.V. Zlochevskyi for 2011, 2012 and 2013 

21. Copies of university diplomas of M.V. Zlochevskyi 

22. Copy of the certificate of incorporation of Burisma Holdings Limited dated 05.12.2014 
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23. Copy of the certificate of location of Brociti Investments Limited dated 28.04.2014 

24. Copy of the certificate of location of Burisma Holdings Limited dated 05.12.2014 

25. Copy of the certificate of shareholders of Brociti Investments Limited dated 28.04.2014 

26. Copy of the certificate of shareholders of Burisma Holdings Limited dated 05.12.2014 

27. Copy of the certificate of directors of Brociti Investments Limited dated 28.04.2014 

28. Copy of the certificate of directors of Burisma Holdings Limited dated 05.12.2014 

29. Certificate of shareholders of Brociti Investments Limited dated 20.08.2012 (1,000 

shares) 

30. Certificate of shareholders of Brociti Investments Limited dated 15.10.2012 (1,000,000 

shares) 

31. Email from BNP Paribas dated 25.06.2013 on accounts opening confirmation 

32. Translation of email from BNP Paribas dated 25.06.2013 on accounts opening 

confirmation. 

33. Letter from BNP Paribas on accounts opening confirmation 

34. Translation of letter from BNP Paribas on accounts opening confirmation 

35. Resolution of directors of Burisma Holdings Limited on opening the company account 

dated 13.05.2013 

36. Translation of resolution of directors of Burisma Holdings Limited on opening the 

company account dated 13.05.2013 

37. Resolution of the Director of Brociti Investments Limited on opening the company 

account dated 13.05.2013 

38. Translation of resolution of the Director of Brociti Investments Limited on opening the 

company account dated 13.05.2013 

39. Resolution of the directors of Burisma Holdings Limited on opening the company 

account with a signature sample of a person assigned to be the facility agent of the 

company dated 25.06.2013 

40. Translation of resolution of the directors of Burisma Holdings Limited on opening the 

company account with a signature sample of a person assigned to be the facility agent of 

the company dated 25.06.2013 

41. Resolution of the Director Brociti Investments Limited on opening the company account 

with a signature sample of a person assigned to be the facility agent of the company dated 

25.06.2013 

42. Translation of resolution of the Director Brociti Investments Limited on opening the 

company account with a signature sample of a person assigned to be the facility agent of 

the company dated 25.06.2013 
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43. Copy of a foreign passport of A.V. Kicha 

44. Resolution on conclusion of share sales agreement between Brociti Investments Limited 

and Cipriato dated 11.12.2013 

45. Translation of resolution on conclusion of share sales agreement between Brociti 

Investments Limited and Cipriato dated 11.12.2013 

46. Share sales agreement between Brociti Investments Limited and Cipriato dated 

11.12.2013 

47. Translation of share sales agreement between Brociti Investments Limited and Cipriato 

dated 11.12.2013 

48. Annex G. Financial reports of Seanon for the period from 04.07 until 31.10. 2013 

49. Annex H. KAM LLC equity rights assessment report dated 28.10.2013 

50. Annex I. Financial reports of KAM LLC dated 30.09.2013 

51. Annex J. Turnover balance list of KAM LLC dated 30.09.2013 

52. Annex K. Financial reports of Scientific Research Institute VECTOR PJSC dated 

30.09.2013 

53. Annex L. Turnover balance list of Scientific Research Institute VECTOR PJSC dated 

30.09.2013 

54. Annex M. Financial reports of KYIVSHCHYNA LLC dated 30.09.2013 

55. Annex N. Turnover balance list of KYIVSHCHYNA LLC dated 30.09.2013 

56.  Certificate of share transfer of Seanon between Brociti Investments Limited and Cipriato 

57. Translation of certificate of share transfer of Seanon between Brociti Investments Limited 

and Cipriato. 

58. Assignment agreement dated 11.12.2013 

59. Translation of assignment agreement dated 11.12.2013 

60. Transaction scheme between Brociti Investments Limited and Cipriato 

61. Copy of the power of attorney of Burisma Holdings Limited to A. Kicha 

62. Copy of the power of attorney of Brociti Investments Limited to A. Kicha 

63. Copy of the certificate of Brociti Investments Limited dated 09.01.2015 

64. Copy of the certificate of Burisma Holdings Limited dated 09.01.2015 

65. Copy of the certificate of Burisma Holdings Limited dated 09.01.2015 

66. Copy of the bank account statement of Brociti Investments Limited for the period from 

28.06.2013 until 03.02.2014 

67. Copy of the bank account statement of Burisma Holdings Limited for the period from 

28.06.2013 until 03.02.2014 
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68. Copy of the certificate No. 232/17-01/24227104810 of the State Tax Inspectorate in 

Shevchenko District of the Main Department of the State Fiscal Service of Ukraine in the 

City of Kyiv dated 30.06.2015 

69. Copy of the certificate No. 305/17-01/2427104810 of the State Tax Inspectorate in 

Shevchenkivskyi District of the Main Department of the State Fiscal Service of Ukraine 

in the City of Kyiv dated 17.09.2015 

Correspondence with BNP Paribas on the share sales agreement between Brociti 

Investments Limited and Cipriato dated 11.12.2013, on dividend payment, account 

balance repayment to other company’s account and notifications on accounts 

closing 

70. Email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas (P. Koval) dated 17.12.2013 in the attachment with 

the Sales agreement dated 11.12.2013 

71. Email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas (Victoria Wright) on the request for dividend 

payment amounting to USD 10 million dated 24.02.2014 and SWIFT provision in the 

letter from BNP Paribas 

72. Translation of the email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas (Victoria Wright) on the request 

for dividend payment amounting to USD 10 million dated 24.02.2014 and SWIFT 

provision in the letter from BNP Paribas 

73. Email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas (Victoria Wright) on the request for dividend 

payment amounting to USD 9,899,900 dated 11.03.2014 

74. Translation of email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas (Victoria Wright) on the request for 

dividend payment amounting to USD 9,899,900 dated 11.03.2014 

75. Email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas (Victoria Wright) on the request for transferring the 

accounts balances dated 24.03.2014 

76. Translation of the email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas (Victoria Wright) on the request 

for transferring the accounts balances dated 24.03.2014 

77. Email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas (Victoria Wright) dated 25.03.2014 

78. Translation of the email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas (Victoria Wright) dated 

25.03.2014 

79. Email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas dated 31.03.2014 on closing the accounts 

80. Translation of the email from A. Kicha to BNP Paribas dated 31.03.2014 on closing the 

accounts 

81. Email on behalf of Chadbourne & Parke to BNP Paribas dated 02.04.2014 on behalf of 

Chadbourne & Parke 
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82. Translation of the email on behalf of Chadbourne & Parke to BNP Paribas dated 

02.04.2014 

83. Email from BNP Paribas to Chadbourne & Parke dated 03.04.2014 with the attached 

official letter explaining why the bank cannot conduct the transactions 

84. Translation of the email from BNP Paribas to Chadbourne & Parke dated 03.04.2014 

with the attached official letter explaining why the bank cannot conduct the transactions 

Tax returns on the assets and income and certifying documents. Dividends 

85. Tax return on the assets and income for 2011 

86. Tax return on the assets and income for 2012 

Payment under Loan Agreement amounting to USD 2.1 million 

87. BNP Paribas account statement 

88. Loan Agreement dated 23.12.2013 

89. Letter with payment instruction 

90. Tax return on the assets and income for 2013 

Dividend payment for 2013 

91. Resolution on dividend payment amounting to USD 21 million dated 31.12.2013 

92. Resolution dated 18.03.2014 on cancelling the resolution on dividend payment 

amounting to USD 21 million dated 31.12.2013 

93. Letter with payment instruction for USD 10 million 

94. Statement of LGT Bank on receipt of USD 10 million to the account dated 25.02.2014 

Closing LGT Bank account 

95. Statement of LGT Bank for the period from 01.01.2014 until 31.03.2014 

96. Statement of LGT Bank for the period from 25.11.2013 until 24.04.2014 

97. Statement of LGT Bank for the period from 01.04.2014 until 24.04.2014 and 

confirmation of closing the account in LGT Bank 

98. Tax return on the assets and income for 2014 dated 25.04.2013 

99. Certificate of authorities of M.V. Zlochevskyi as Deputy Secretary of the National 

Security and Defence Council of Ukraine 

100. Copy of the expert’s opinion of Kyiv Independent Court Expert Authority based on the 

results of forensic and economic examination No. 1090 dated 06.02.2015 

101. Scientific opinion of Prof. P.P. Andrushko dated 12.02.2016 
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From:Kent, George P
Sent:Fri, 13 Jan 2017 09:24:05 -0500
To: ;Yovanovitch, Marie L;Smith, Christopher W
Subject:Re: Herbst heads up - Atlantic Council to take Burisma money. (SBU)

While the Interfax headline on Martynenko proved inaccurate, the Burisma tale of getting a 
court to shut down a PGO investigation noted below would amount to nearly the same 
mechanism - rich connected businessman politician seeks to use the court/judge of unknown 
reputation to close an investigation of a business with a dodgy reputation.

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
From: 
Sent: Friday, January 13, 2017 4:12 PM
To: Kent, George P; Yovanovitch, Marie L
Subject: RE: Herbst heads up - Atlantic Council to take Burisma money. (SBU)

In case you didn’t see Burisima’s extensive press release yesterday.  Matches arguments Karen made 
when she visited in December.  This and Atlantic Council support are part of a full court press by 
Zlochevskyi to clear his name.   
 
PRESS RELEASE: THE BURISMA GROUP COOPERATED WITH LAW 
ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES AND PAID IN FULL ALL OUTSTANDING FEES
 
International Energy Group Burisma with assets in Ukraine announces that all legal proceedings and 
pending criminal allegations against its President Nikolay Zlochevskyi and operating companies of 
Burisma Group are fully closed.
The decision to fully close all pending legal proceedings and criminal allegations was the result of many 
months of full cooperation between the Office of the General Prosecutor and the legal team 
representing the Burisma Group. Further, the Burisma Group agreed that should an investigation 
determine that the Burisma Group owed outstanding taxes and/or fees that it would, without appeal, 
pay any and all outstanding taxes, fines and fees.
Following the Burisma Group’s full cooperation and willingness to submit to a thorough investigation 
and its findings, the Pechersk District Court of Kiev obliged the Prosecutor General's Office of Ukraine to 
close the case against Mr. Zlochevskyi and remove him from the wanted list. As a result of the Court’s 
decision the PGO fulfilled the relevant court order. The Ukrainian court decision is fully consistent with 
the decision taken by the U.K. court on January 21, 2015 and expert’s opinion based on the results of 
forensic and economic expertise, dated February 6, 2015. After considering Nikolay Zlocheskyi's 
activities in Ukraine from 2002 to 2014, the British court ruled in favor of Nikolay Zlochevskyi and 
obliged the UK Serious Fraud Office (the SFO) to pay the defendant's costs. Moreover, as a result of the 
investigation, Burisma agreed to pay UAH180 millions of tax liabilities.
Over the last two years alone, operating companies of Burisma Group, paid more than UAH 5 bln. in tax 
liabilities to the budgets of all levels. Burisma is one of the top taxpayers of Ukraine that demonstrates 
its commitment to social responsibility and compliance with the best international business practices.
Independent Director of Burisma Aleksander Kwasniewski believes that this decision shows how far 
Ukraine has come in advancing democratic ideals, proving that politics does not affect court decisions.
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"It is reassuring that the independent Ukrainian court managed to take the decision that is fully 
consistent with the decision made by the British court. For Ukraine, the decision on Nikolay Zlochevskyi 
and Ukraine’s largest gas producer Burisma will be also instrumental in making the country energy 
sufficient, since it will allow Burisma to increase domestic gas production as well as payments to the 
state budget. Especially today, Ukraine should be united over projects enhancing its defense capabilities 
and political independence. The country has already paid a high price with the revolution and its 
aftermath," noted Independent Director of Burisma Aleksander Kwasniewski.
"The actions of the PGO and those of the Ukrainian court are clear evidence of Ukraine’s commitment to 
the rule of law and due process – twin pillars of democracy," stressed former U.S. Deputy Assistant 
Attorney General Mr. John Buretta.
The President of Burisma Group Nikolay Zlochevskyi pointed out extensive cooperation with law 
enforcement agencies and judicial authorities of different countries.
"Since all legal proceedings against Burisma Group are closed, it will allow us to increase production 
volumes and the flow of foreign investments in Ukraine, consider attracting international companies in 
the country, fulfill social and investment responsibilities, as well as duly pay in full all required tax 
liabilities to the budget. This is a big step forward for Ukraine in general and Burisma Group, in 
particular," admitted Nikolay Zlochevskyi.
 
 
Official 
UNCLASSIFIED
 
From: Kent, George P 
Sent: Friday, January 13, 2017 4:04 PM
To: Yovanovitch, Marie L; 
Subject: Herbst heads up - Atlantic Council to take Burisma money. (SBU)
 
FYI.
 
The Blue Star duo, Karen and Sally, are on the Atlantic Council roster, and are the probable 
pushers of this.
 
John had come to the old DCR on a trip last fall (before I moved) and talked thru the whole 
Burisma/Zlochevsky nexus.   At the time, he made no mention of this as a possibility.
 
So: Atlantic council's robust Ukraine program, funded by...akhmetov, pinchuk, and 
Zlochevsky/Burisma.
 
Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
From: John Herbst <JHerbst@ATLANTICCOUNCIL.ORG>
Sent: Friday, January 13, 2017 3:52 PM
To: Kent, George P; George Kent
Subject: Heads Up
 
George,
I wanted you to know before it becomes public that the Atlantic Council decided to accept support for 
its program from Burisma.  We looked at the matter closely and weighed it for over a month.  
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Information provided to us by a the Cravath lawyer for Burisma in the London case was an important 
factor, although some uneasiness remains.  Happy to discuss when I am next your way.
 
Best,
John
 

 
John Herbst | Director, Dinu Patriciu Eurasia Center
Ambassador (Ret.)
1030 15th Street, NW, 12th Floor | Washington, DC 20005 
T: +1.202.778.4965 | Cell: | Email: jherbst@AtlanticCouncil.org | 
www.facebook.com/AtlanticCouncil | @JohnEdHerbst | www.AtlanticCouncil.org
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7/19/2020 Joe Biden, His Son and the Case Against a Ukrainian Oligarch - The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2015/12/09/world/europe/corruption-ukraine-joe-biden-son-hunter-biden-ties.html 1/2

By James Risen

Dec. 8, 2015

WASHINGTON — When Vice President Joseph R. Biden Jr. traveled to Kiev , Ukraine, on Sunday for a series of meetings with the
country’s leaders, one of the issues on his agenda was to encourage a more aggressive fight against Ukraine’s rampant corruption and
stronger efforts to rein in the power of its oligarchs.

But the credibility of the vice president’s anticorruption message may have been undermined by the association of his son, Hunter Biden,
with one of Ukraine’s largest natural gas companies, Burisma Holdings, and with its owner, Mykola Zlochevsky, who was Ukraine’s
ecology minister under former President Viktor F. Yanukovych before he was forced into exile.

Hunter Biden, 45, a former Washington lobbyist, joined the Burisma board in April 2014. That month, as part of an investigation into
money laundering, British officials froze London bank accounts containing $23 million that allegedly belonged to Mr. Zlochevsky.

Britain’s Serious Fraud Office, an independent government agency, specifically forbade Mr. Zlochevksy, as well as Burisma Holdings, the
company’s chief legal officer and another company owned by Mr. Zlochevsky, to have any access to the accounts.

But after Ukrainian prosecutors refused to provide documents needed in the investigation, a British court in January ordered the Serious
Fraud Office to unfreeze the assets. The refusal by the Ukrainian prosecutor general’s office to cooperate was the target of a stinging
attack by the American ambassador to Ukraine, Geoffrey R. Pyatt, who called out Burisma’s owner by name in a speech in September.

“In the case of former Ecology Minister Mykola Zlochevsky, the U.K. authorities had seized $23 million in illicit assets that belonged to the
Ukrainian people,” Mr. Pyatt said. Officials at the prosecutor general’s office, he added, were asked by the United Kingdom “to send
documents supporting the seizure. Instead they sent letters to Zlochevsky’s attorneys attesting that there was no case against him. As a
result, the money was freed by the U.K. court, and shortly thereafter the money was moved to Cyprus.”

Mr. Pyatt went on to call for an investigation into “the misconduct” of the prosecutors who wrote the letters. In his speech, the ambassador
did not mention Hunter Biden’s connection to Burisma.

But Edward C. Chow, who follows Ukrainian policy at the Center for Strategic and International Studies, said the involvement of the vice
president’s son with Mr. Zlochevsky’s firm undermined the Obama administration’s anticorruption message in Ukraine.

“Now you look at the Hunter Biden situation, and on the one hand you can credit the father for sending the anticorruption message,” Mr.
Chow said. “But I think unfortunately it sends the message that a lot of foreign countries want to believe about America, that we are
hypocritical about these issues.”

Kate Bedingfield, a spokeswoman for the vice president, said Hunter Biden’s business dealings had no impact on his father’s policy
positions in connection with Ukraine.

“Hunter Biden is a private citizen and a lawyer,” she said. “The vice president does not endorse any particular company and has no
involvement with this company. The vice president has pushed aggressively for years, both publicly with groups like the U.S.-Ukraine
Business Forum and privately in meetings with Ukrainian leaders, for Ukraine to make every effort to investigate and prosecute
corruption in accordance with the rule of law. It will once again be a key focus during his trip this week.”

Ryan F. Toohey, a Burisma spokesman, said that Hunter Biden would not comment for this article.

It is not known how Mr. Biden came to the attention of the company. Announcing his appointment to the board, Alan Apter, a former
Morgan Stanley investment banker who is chairman of Burisma, said, “The company’s strategy is aimed at the strongest concentration of
professional staff and the introduction of best corporate practices, and we’re delighted that Mr. Biden is joining us to help us achieve these
goals.”

Joining the board at the same time was one of Mr. Biden’s American business partners, Devon Archer. Both are involved with Rosemont
Seneca Partners, an American investment firm with offices in Washington.

Mr. Biden is the younger of the vice president’s two sons. His brother, Beau, died of brain cancer in May. In the past, Hunter Biden
attracted an unusual level of scrutiny and even controversy. In 2014, he was discharged from the Navy Reserve after testing positive for
cocaine use. He received a commission as an ensign in 2013, and he served as a public affairs officer.

Before his father was vice president, Mr. Biden also briefly served as president of a hedge fund group, Paradigm Companies, in which he
was involved with one of his uncles, James Biden, the vice president’s brother. That deal went sour amid lawsuits in 2007 and 2008
involving the Bidens and an erstwhile business partner. Mr. Biden, a graduate of Georgetown University and Yale Law School, also worked
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as a lobbyist before his father became vice president.

Burisma does not disclose the compensation of its board members because it is a privately held company, Mr. Toohey said Monday, but he
added that the amount was “not out of the ordinary” for similar corporate board positions.

Asked about the British investigation, which is continuing, Mr. Toohey said, “Not only was the case dismissed and the company vindicated
by the outcome, but it speaks volumes that all his legal costs were recouped.”

In response to Mr. Pyatt’s criticism of the Ukrainian handling of Mr. Zlochevsky’s case, Mr. Toohey said that “strong corporate governance
and transparency are priorities shared both by the United States and the leadership of Burisma. Burisma is working to bring the energy
sector into the modern era, which is critical for a free and strong Ukraine.”

Vice President Biden has played a leading role in American policy toward Ukraine as Washington seeks to counter Russian intervention in
Eastern Ukraine. This week’s visit was his fifth trip to Ukraine as vice president.

Ms. Bedingfield said Hunter Biden had never traveled to Ukraine with his father. She also said that Ukrainian officials had never
mentioned Hunter Biden’s role with Burisma to the vice president during any of his visits.

“I’ve got to believe that somebody in the vice president’s office has done some due diligence on this,” said Steven Pifer, who was the
American ambassador to Ukraine from 1998 to 2000. “I should say that I hope that has happened. I would hope that they have done some
kind of check, because I think the vice president has done a very good job of sending the anticorruption message in Ukraine, and you
would hate to see something like this undercut that message.”

Follow the New York Times s̓ politics and Washington coverage on Facebook and Twitter, and sign up for the First Draft politics newsletter.

A version of this article appears in print on Dec. 9, 2015, Section A, Page 22 of the New York edition with the headline: The Vice President, His Son and the Case Against a Ukrainian Oligarch
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September 27, 2019 

VIA ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION 

The Honorable William Barr 

Attorney General 

Department of Justice 

 

Dear Attorney General Barr: 

 

 We write to follow up on Senator Grassley’s July 20, 2017 letter, which highlighted 

brazen efforts by the Democratic National Committee and Hillary Clinton campaign to use the 

government of Ukraine for the express purpose of finding negative information on then-

candidate Trump in order to undermine his campaign.1  That letter also highlighted news reports 

that, during the 2016 presidential election, “Ukrainian government officials tried to help Hillary 

Clinton and undermine Trump” and did so by “disseminat[ing] documents implicating a top 

Trump aide in corruption and suggest[ing] they were investigating the matter[.]”2  Ukrainian 

officials also reportedly “helped Clinton’s allies research damaging information on Trump and 

his advisers.”3   

At the center of this plan was Alexandra Chalupa, described by reports as a Ukrainian-

American operative “who was consulting for the Democratic National Committee” and who 

reportedly met with Ukrainian officials during the presidential election for the express purpose of 

exposing alleged ties between then-candidate Donald Trump, Paul Manafort, and Russia.4  

Politico also reported on a Financial Times story that quoted a Ukrainian legislator, Serhiy 

Leschenko, as saying that Trump’s candidacy caused “Kiev’s wider political leadership to do 

something they would never have attempted before: intervene, however indirectly, in a U.S. 

election.”5 

 The July 20, 2017 letter further noted that the Democratic National Committee 

encouraged Chalupa to work with Ukrainian embassy staff to “arrange an interview in which 

Poroshenko [the president of Ukraine] might discuss Manafort’s ties to Yanukovych.”6  In March 

2016, Chalupa met with Valeriy Chaly, Ukraine’s ambassador to the U.S., and Oksana Shulyar, a 

top aid to the Ukrainian ambassador, to share her alleged concerns about Manafort.  Reports state 

that the purpose of that initial meeting was to “organize a June reception at the embassy to 

promote Ukraine.”  However, another Ukrainian embassy official, Andrii Telizhenko, told 

                                                           
1 Letter from Hon. Charles E. Grassley, Chairman, Senate Committee on the Judiciary, to Hon. Rod J. Rosenstein, Attorney General, 

U.S. Department of Justice (July 20, 2017), available at https://www.grassley.senate.gov/sites/default/files/constituents/2017-07 

20%20CEG%20to%20DOJ%20%28Ukraine%20DNC%20FARA%29.pdf. 
2 Id. 
3 Kenneth P. Vogel & David Stern, Ukrainian efforts to sabotage Trump backfire, POLITICO (Jan. 11, 2017). 

https://www.politico.com/story/2017/01/ukraine-sabotage-trump-backfire-233446. 
4 Id.  
5 Id.  
6 Id. 
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Politico that Shulyar instructed him to assist Chalupa with research to connect Trump, Manafort, 

and the Russians.  He reportedly said, “[t]hey were coordinating an investigation with the Hillary 

team on Paul Manafort with Alexandra Chalupa” and that “Oksana [Shulyar] was keeping it all 

quiet…the embassy worked very closely with” Chalupa.7  In a May 2019 article, Telizhenko was 

quoted as saying, 

 

[Chalupa] said the DNC wanted to collect evidence that Trump, his 

organization and Manafort were Russian assets, working to hurt the 

U.S. and working with [Russian President Vladimir] Putin against 

the U.S. interests. She indicated if we could find the evidence they 

would introduce it in Congress in September and try to build a case 

that Trump should be removed from the ballot, from the election.8 

 

Reportedly, Telizhenko was instructed by the Ukrainian government to meet with an American 

journalist about Paul Manafort’s ties to Ukraine.9  In addition, in May 2016, Chalupa emailed a 

DNC official stating that she met with 68 Ukrainian investigative journalists about Manafort and 

that there would be “[a] lot more coming down the pipe.”10  Less than a month later, the “black 

ledger” identifying payments made to Manafort from Ukrainian politicians was publicly 

released.11  And finally, Nellie Ohr, the wife of Justice Department official Bruce Ohr, stated 

during a congressional interview that Fusion GPS used Serhiy Leschenko, a Ukrainian politician 

that admitted Ukraine intervened in the 2016 election, as a source for derogatory material against 

then-candidate Trump.12   

  

After two years, more than 2,800 subpoenas, approximately 500 search warrants and 

witness interviews, and $30 million in taxpayer money, Robert Mueller reported that then-

candidate Trump did not collude with the Russians or any other foreign government to interfere 

with the 2016 presidential election.13  In contrast, however, the Clinton campaign and 

Democratic National Committee hired Fusion GPS to conduct opposition research against 

candidate Trump, which included, among other efforts, the hiring of former British Intelligence 

Officer Christopher Steele to compile the “Steele Dossier” that reportedly used Russian 

government sources for information.  These facts continue to raise concerns about foreign 

assistance in the 2016 election that have not been thoroughly addressed. 

 

                                                           
7 Kenneth P. Vogel & David Stern, Ukrainian efforts to sabotage Trump backfire, POLITICO (Jan. 11, 2017). 

https://www.politico.com/story/2017/01/ukraine-sabotage-trump-backfire-233446 
8 John Solomon, Ukrainian Embassy confirms DNC contractor solicited Trump dirt in 2016, The Hill (May 2, 2019).  

https://thehill.com/opinion/white-house/441892-ukrainian-embassy-confirms-dnc-contractor-solicited-trump-dirt-in-2016 
9 Id.  
10 Id. 
11 Jack Gillum et al., Manafort firm received Ukraine ledger payout, AP (Apr. 12, 2017), available at 

https://www.apnews.com/20cfc75c82eb4a67b94e624e97207e23. 
12 Transcript of Nellie Ohr Interview, Executive Session House Committee on the Judiciary joint with the Committee on Government 

Reform and Oversight (Oct. 19, 2018), available at 

https://dougcollins house.gov/sites/dougcollins house.gov/files/10.19.18%20Nellie%20Ohr%20Interview.pdf. 
13 See generally DEP’T OF JUSTICE, OFF. OF SPECIAL COUNSEL, REPORT ON THE INVESTIGATION INTO RUSSIAN INTERFERENCE IN THE 

2016 PRESIDENTIAL ELECTION (Mar. 2019), https://www.justice.gov/storage/report.pdf. 
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 According to the Justice Department, U.S. Attorney John Durham is “exploring the 

extent to which…Ukraine, played a role in the counterintelligence investigation” during the 2016 

election.14  However, the Justice Department has yet to inform Congress and the public whether 

it has begun an investigation into links and coordination between the Ukrainian government and 

individuals associated with the campaign of Hillary Clinton or the Democratic National 

Committee.  Ukrainian efforts, abetted by a U.S. political party, to interfere in the 2016 election 

should not be ignored. Such allegations of corruption deserve due scrutiny, and the American 

people have a right to know when foreign forces attempt to undermine our democratic processes.  

Accordingly, please provide an answer to two questions from the July 2017 letter related to the 

Democrats’ collusion with Ukrainian officials: 

 

1. Are you investigating links and coordination between the Ukrainian government and 

individuals associated with the campaign of Hillary Clinton or the Democratic National 

Committee?  If not, why not?   

 

2. Why hasn’t the Justice Department required Alexandra Chalupa to register as a foreign 

agent under FARA? 

 

In addition, information has surfaced that raises new questions.  A recent report described 

a note purporting to memorialize a meeting in Kiev between the Ukrainian Acting Prosecutor 

General, Yuriy Sevruk, and Burisma’s American legal team.15  Yuriy Sevruk was the temporary 

replacement for the Prosecutor General that Vice President Biden demanded be fired, Victor 

Shokin.  The note, reportedly written by Sevruk, states that “[t]he purpose of their visit was an 

apology for dissemination of false information by U.S. representatives and public figures on the 

activities of the Prosecutor General’s Office of Ukraine [Shokin] in regards to the investigation 

of criminal activities of Zlochevshy [Oligarch owner of Burisma Holdings].”16 

The article also reports that Ukrainian prosecutors have unsuccessfully been trying to get 

information to Justice Department officials since the summer of 2018, possibly including 

“[h]undreds of pages of never-released memos and documents ... [that] conflict with Biden’s 

narrative”17 that his actions in Ukraine had nothing to do with his son’s connections to Burisma.  

In light of this reporting, has the Justice Department obtained or been offered documents from 

Ukrainian officials related to these matters?  If so, what were those documents?  

We respectfully request that you respond to all of these questions no later than October 

14, 2019. 

 

 

                                                           
14 Jeff Mordock, John Durham investigating Ukraine in Trump-Russia origins probe, The Washington Times (Sept. 25, 2019). 

https://www.washingtontimes.com/news/2019/sep/25/john-durham-probing-ukraine-as-part-of-trump-russi/ 
15 John Solomon, These once-secret memos cast doubt on Joe Biden’s Ukraine story, The Hill (Sept. 26, 2019), 

https://thehill.com/opinion/campaign/463307-solomon-these-once-secret-memos-cast-doubt-on-joe-bidens-ukraine-story. 
16 Id.  
17 Id. 
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We anticipate that your written reply and most responsive documents will be 

unclassified.  Please send all unclassified material directly to the Committee.  In keeping with the 

requirements of Executive Order 13526, if any of the responsive documents do contain classified 

information, please segregate all unclassified material within the classified documents, provide 

all unclassified information directly to the Committees, and provide a classified addendum to the 

Office of Senate Security.  Although the Committees comply with all laws and regulations 

governing the handling of classified information, they are not bound, absent their prior 

agreement, by any handling restrictions.  

 

Thank you in advance for your prompt attention to these matters.  Should you have any 

questions, please contact Joshua Flynn-Brown of Chairman’s Grassley’s staff at (202) 224-4515 

or Brian Downey or Scott Wittmann of Chairman Johnson’s staff at (202) 224-4751.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Charles E. Grassley 

Chairman 

Senate Finance Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    Ron Johnson 

    Chairman 

    Senate Homeland Security 

    and Governmental Affairs 



























July 16, 2020 

The Honorable Ron Johnson  The Honorable Chuck Grassley 
Chairman Chairman 
Senate Committee on Homeland Security Senate Committee on Finance 
and Governmental Affairs  219 Dirksen Senate Office Building 
340 Dirksen Senate Office Building  Washington, DC 20510 
Washington, DC 20510 

Chairmen Johnson and Grassley, 

We reiterate our request for a briefing for Members of our Committees from the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation’s Foreign Influence Task Force and relevant Intelligence Community members related to 
your ongoing investigation. Two weeks ago, the Washington Post reported that “a Ukrainian lawmaker 
who was once affiliated with a pro-Russian political party and has met with [Rudy] Giuliani released 10 
edited snippets of what appeared to be [Joe] Biden’s official vice presidential phone calls in 2016 with 
Petro Poroshenko.” The Post reported that this lawmaker “studied under the KGB in Moscow in the 
early 1990s” and that these efforts “suggest a new push by foreign forces to sway American voters in the 
run-up to the 2020 election.”1  

Our staff requested this briefing in December 2019. Ranking Member Peters then requested a Member 
briefing after a classified staff briefing led to the cancellation of a Committee on Homeland Security and 
Governmental Affairs (HSGAC) vote to subpoena Andrii Telizhenko. Ranking Member Peters then 
made a motion asking for this briefing at the HSGAC May 20, 2020, business meeting before a vote 
authorizing a subpoena for some of the same information Chairman Johnson first sought from the 
canceled Telizhenko subpoena vote. 

As Committees charged with safeguarding our homeland security and financial systems, we have a 
responsibility to fully understand the national security and counterintelligence implications of foreign 
election interference and your ongoing investigative work. We ask that you please formally request, 
schedule, and prioritize this briefing for the Members of our Committees as soon as possible. 

Sincerely, 

_______________________  _______________________ 
Gary C. Peters  Ron Wyden 
Ranking Member Ranking Member 
Senate Committee on Homeland Security Senate Committee on Finance 
and Governmental Affairs 

1 Paul Sonne et al., Hunt for Biden tapes in Ukraine by Trump allies revives prospect of foreign interference, THE
WASHINGTON POST (July 1, 2020), https://www.washingtonpost.com/national-security/for-months-trump-allies-hunted-for-
tapes-of-biden-in-ukraine-now-theyre-turning-up/2020/06/30/f3aeaba8-a67b-11ea-8681-7d471bf20207_story.html. 
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Democracy Dies in Darkness

Hunt for Biden tapes in Ukraine by Trump allies
revives prospect of foreign interference
By David L. Stern

July 1, 2020 at 7:02 p.m. EDT

President Trump’s allies were in pursuit of a tantalizing prospect last year: tape

recordings of Joe Biden speaking to Ukrainian officials while he was vice president,

conversations they believed could help them damage Biden’s current bid for the

White House.

Support our journalism. Subscribe today.

The previously undisclosed hunt for tapes of Biden and other recordings in

Ukraine, described by several people who were involved, came as the president’s

personal attorney, Rudolph W. Giuliani, was casting a wide net for material to

undermine Trump’s political rival — a scheme that ultimately helped set in motion

the president’s impeachment.

“We would have loved to get the recordings, but we never did,” Giuliani said in a

recent interview.

Paul Sonne, Rosalind S. Helderman, Josh Dawsey and 

https://subscribe.washingtonpost.com/acq/#/offers/promo/o24_ma
https://www.washingtonpost.com/people/paul-sonne/
https://www.washingtonpost.com/people/rosalind-s-helderman/
https://www.washingtonpost.com/people/josh-dawsey/
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Now, with just four months to go before Election Day, that material is surfacing in

Ukraine and being touted by some of the president’s backers in the United States,

including his eldest son in May.

Last week, a Ukrainian lawmaker who was once affiliated with a pro-Russian

political party and has met with Giuliani released 10 edited snippets of what

appeared to be Biden’s official vice presidential phone calls in 2016 with Petro

Poroshenko, then the president of Ukraine. It was the second cache of recordings

the lawmaker, who studied under the KGB in Moscow in the early 1990s, has

released since May.

The recordings show that Biden, as he has previously said publicly, linked loan

guarantees for Ukraine to the ouster of the country’s prosecutor general. The tapes

do not provide evidence to back Giuliani’s long-standing accusation that Biden

sought to have him fired to block an investigation of a gas company that had hired

his son Hunter.

AD
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The authenticity of the audio files, which appear heavily edited, could not be

verified. The Ukrainian government is investigating how they were obtained.

Biden’s campaign has said they are part of an effort to concoct conspiracy theories

to smear him. Poroshenko has gone further and called them fake.

Still, the material was quickly seized upon by One America News, a favorite network

of the president that has featured pro-Trump conspiracy theories and in June

debuted the first installment of what it said will be a series of reports featuring

recordings of Biden.

Both Giuliani and Lev Parnas, a Ukrainian American businessman who served as

his fixer in Ukraine, confirmed that they sought tapes of Biden last year. Giuliani

said he received assistance in his pursuit from a source within the State

Department, who he claimed pointed him to the dates of certain conversations

between Biden and Poroshenko by accessing an official U.S. government archive.

AD
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Giuliani told The Washington Post that he did not know the recently released

recordings were coming before they were posted online in May. But in a recent

interview with OAN, the former New York mayor claimed to be aware of other tapes

that were “far more damaging,” saying, “I would hope that those tapes are put out

also.”

On their own, the audio snippets that have been released do not significantly

change what was already known about Biden’s diplomacy toward Ukraine, where he

led a U.S. and European effort to back Poroshenko’s pro-Western government in

the face of a Russian invasion and destabilization campaign. And other than from

OAN, they have received little attention. 

But the efforts to promote the recordings in Ukraine and the United States — and

pledges by other Trump allies to release more in the coming months — suggest a

new push by foreign forces to sway American voters in the run-up to the 2020

election, one welcomed by the president’s personal lawyer.

The developments further illustrate Trump’s willingness to benefit from foreign

intervention in U.S. elections, even after being impeached on charges of pressuring

Ukraine to launch investigations into his political rivals. In an interview last year,

the president said that if a foreign country called offering information on his

opponent, “I think I’d want to hear it.” His former national security adviser John

Bolton alleges in a newly released book that Trump last year asked the Chinese

president to help him win reelection. The White House has denied Bolton’s account.

https://www.washingtonpost.com/politics/trump-is-impeached-by-the-house-creating-an-indelible-mark-on-his-presidency/2019/12/18/501bcab2-2105-11ea-a153-dce4b94e4249_story.html?itid=lk_inline_manual_23
https://abcnews.go.com/Politics/id-exclusive-interview-trump-listen-foreigners-offered-dirt/story?id=63669304
https://www.washingtonpost.com/politics/trump-asked-chinas-xi-to-help-him-win-reelection-according-to-bolton-book/2020/06/17/d4ea601c-ad7a-11ea-868b-93d63cd833b2_story.html?itid=lk_inline_manual_23
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Tim Murtaugh, a spokesman for the Trump campaign, declined to comment on the

Ukraine tapes. The campaign has so far not focused on the recordings in its attacks

on Biden.

Andrew Bates, a spokesman for Biden’s campaign, said, “All the president’s men,

both within our country and outside of it, have been constantly trafficking in

objectively false, malicious conspiracy theories targeting Joe Biden since before he

even entered the race. And their efforts have invariably fallen apart — because the

American people know Joe Biden, his character and his values.”

Giuliani has been interacting on and off with the Ukrainian lawmaker who has been

releasing the clips, Andrii Derkach, since meeting him in Kyiv in December, the

former New York mayor told The Post. In an interview, Giuliani described the

former member of Ukraine’s Russian-leaning Party of Regions as “very helpful” and

said that they talked many times about Ukraine.

AD
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Derkach, who is the son of a former KGB officer and says in his official biography

that he attended the now-renamed Higher School of the KGB in Moscow, also

appeared on Giuliani’s podcast in New York in February. Since then, Derkach has

said his U.S. visa was revoked.

Giuliani, who has worked as Trump’s unpaid personal attorney since 2018 and was

recently tapped by the president to negotiate with the presidential debate

commission, said he would be concerned if Derkach had obtained the tapes from

the Russians. 

But, Giuliani said, the lawmaker “doesn’t seem pro-Russian to me.”

Asked about Derkach’s background, Giuliani said: “I don’t depend on his credibility.

I depend on the credibility of his documents.”

Derkach declined to be interviewed In a statement he said allegations that he is
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Derkach declined to be interviewed. In a statement, he said allegations that he is

working in the interests of foreign intelligence services are attempts to pressure him

into stopping his activity. “There is not a single confirmed or reliable fact of my

illegal activity or wrongful connections,” he said.

Asked whether he discussed the tapes with Giuliani during their meetings, Derkach

did not answer directly. “We discussed available information on international

corruption and the need to investigate it in the United States,” he said.

Foreign interference redux

The hunt by the president’s allies for the Biden tapes and their subsequent release

have echoes of the 2016 campaign, when Trump publicly asked Russia to find

emails of his Democratic rival Hillary Clinton. Trump later said the comment was a

joke, even as GOP operatives mounted a serious but unsuccessful operation to

obtain her emails from hackers claiming to have them.

Democratic emails stolen by Russian intelligence officers were ultimately released

through WikiLeaks, as special counsel Robert S. Mueller III detailed in his report.
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The sequence of events sparked a nearly two-year investigation, multiple

congressional inquiries and federal charges against 12 Russian military intelligence

officers.

U.S. intelligence officials have warned that Russia could reprise its 2016 efforts to

influence the race for the White House in 2020.

In January, the Ukrainian gas company whose board used to include Biden’s

sonsaid that it had been hacked by Russian spies, raising fears the Kremlin could be

intending to release stolen material to sway U.S. voters in coming months.

Giuliani said he would welcome new material about Biden in Ukraine, but he said

he wasn’t aggressively seeking it, as he had been last year. Any new revelations, he

added, should not be dismissed even if Russia may be involved.

“The strange thing is what the Russians put out last time — it may have been illegal

how they obtained it, but it was all true,” Giuliani said.

Michael Carpenter, a Biden foreign policy adviser and former senior Defense

Department official called the tape snippets that Derkach is releasing “a KGB style

AD
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Department official, called the tape snippets that Derkach is releasing a KGB-style

disinformation operation tied to pro-Russian forces in Ukraine whose chief aim is

to make deceptive noise in the U.S. election campaign to advance the interests of

their oligarchic backers, the Kremlin, and the faltering Trump campaign.”

Ukrainians with a variety of competing political and personal agendas have claimed

to be releasing or publicizing the Biden tapes,moves critics say align with both

Russia’s and Trump’s interests.

In addition to Derkach, they include former Ukrainian prosecutor Kostiantyn

Kulyk, former Ukrainian diplomat Andrii Telizhenko and Ukrainian gas tycoon and

former lawmaker Oleksandr Onyshchenko, who all have interacted with Giuliani or

his associates. Some have promised more leaks are coming to help Trump later in

the year.

“This summer, there will be more release of conversations, with full transcripts,”

said Telizhenko, who said he speaks regularly with Giuliani in between aiding

various Ukrainian tycoons, some of them with Russian interests. Telizhenko said he

is working independently from Derkach, noting: “I’m going to release everything all

together when the time is right.”

Onyshchenko told The Post that the tapes that have been released are his, part of a

cache he said he obtained from Poroshenko aides.

He told the Russian state news service Sputnik in late May that his lawyers and

Giuliani’s team had “exchanged hundreds of emails,” and that he has handed over

materials about Biden, which he said Trump’s allies will make use of in the fall.

“Because of the coronavirus, they are waiting,” Onyshchenko told Sputnik. “But in

September, closer to the elections, they will begin to use them more.” He told The

Post the materials were being given to the Republican-led Senate Homeland

Security Committee which is pursuing an inquiry into Biden’s activities in Ukraine
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Security Committee, which is pursuing an inquiry into Biden s activities in Ukraine.

A spokesman for the committee did not respond to a question about whether the

panel has received such tapes or plans to use them.

Like Derkach, Onyshchenko is a former member of the now-defunct Party of

Regions, a pro-Russian political party in Ukraine. He has been waging a multiyear

campaign against Poroshenko since fleeing Ukraine on corruption charges he says

are fabricated. 

Onyshchenko has said that he has tried to tell U.S. authorities about his corruption

accusations against Poroshenko various times. Poroshenko references  -

Onyshchenko twice in the leaked calls with Biden, telling the vice president that the

exiled lawmaker holds a Russian passport and is working in Russia’s interests to

destabilize Ukraine. Biden appears in one snippet to reassure Poroshenko that the

FBI is not working with Onyshchenko.

When asked for comment on Poroshenko’s accusation that he’s advancing Russian

interests,  Onyshchenko said the former Ukrainianleader accuses everyone who is

against him of doing the Kremlin’s bidding.  Onyshchenko said he is speaking out

because the former Ukrainian president “destroyed my life.”

While the recordings released in Ukraine have received little attention in most

mainstream U.S. news outlets, they are being heavily promoted by One America

News, which has more than 700,000 followers on Facebook and some 900,000 on

Twitter.

Carpenter, the Biden adviser, has accused OAN of being “the preferred conduit for

Kremlin disinformation in the 2020 cycle.” 

One of its correspondents, Chanel Rion, traveled around Europe last year with

Giuliani to film Ukrainians who made accusations against Biden many of them
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Giuliani to film Ukrainians who made accusations against Biden, many of them

unproven or spurious.

In a program that aired last month, Rion said she had received 10 hours of

recordings related to Biden from the “Ukrainian secret service” and “a source who

was present during some of those recordings.” She said she would be pursuing the

story “well past the summer and into the fall.”

The Department of the State Guard, Ukraine’s version of the Secret Service, said in

a statement that it “does not make any recordings and has never recorded any

conversations of the state guarded public officials.”

An OAN spokeswoman did not respond to a request for comment. In its stories, the

network has suggested that accusations that Russia is promoting the allegations

against Biden are efforts to distract from the story.

'We knew about these tapes'

Biden made five trips to Ukraine during the last three years of the Obama

administration and held at least 70 phone calls with Ukrainian leaders, as The Post

previously reported. Most of his calls were with Poro shenko in an effort to shore up

the fledgling pro-Western government against Russia.

The recently released recordings, which Derkach has said he obtained from

“investigative journalists,” appear to feature conversations the two men had at the

time. But if they are authentic, it is unclear who made them.

It is possible Poroshenko aides taped the calls he had with Biden. Russian

intelligence agencies have intercepted the phone calls of U S officials in Ukraine in

https://www.washingtonpost.com/politics/inside-joe-bidens-brawling-efforts-to-reform-ukraine--which-won-him-successes-and-enemies/2019/10/19/34178618-f1cf-11e9-b648-76bcf86eb67e_story.html?itid=lk_inline_manual_72


7/19/2020 Hunt for Biden tapes in Ukraine by Trump allies revives prospect of foreign interference - The Washington Post

https://www.washingtonpost.com/national-security/for-months-trump-allies-hunted-for-tapes-of-biden-in-ukraine-now-theyre-turning-up/2020/06/30/f… 12/22

intelligence agencies have intercepted the phone calls of U.S. officials in Ukraine in

the past.

In an interview in May, Parnas said he and his colleague Igor Fruman were told by

sources in Ukraine of the Biden-Poroshenko recordings, along with a number of

other recordings Ukrainians claimed existed of Americans, including embassy

officials in Kyiv.

“We knew about these tapes,” Parnas said.

Parnas and Fruman were arrested in October and charged with making illegal

campaign contributions, including from foreign sources, to Republican candidates

and political action committees. They both pleaded not guilty and are awaiting trial.

After his arrest, Parnas turned on Giuliani and Trump, saying the president had

blessed their endeavors in Ukraine. The White House has dismissed his claims as

false.

Parnas told The Post that he and Fruman discussed the recordings with then-

Ukrainian Prosecutor General Yuri Lutsenko and Kulyk, a former Ukrainian

prosecutor who has been working with Derkach and appearing alongside him at

news conferences releasing the recordings.

In a statement, Lutsenko said he “never discussed, provided or promised to provide

any recordings to Giuliani or his colleagues.” Kulyk declined to answer directly,

dismissing the question as lacking credibility.

Parnas said that at one point during a trip to Kyiv in spring 2019, he anticipated

being provided copies of some of the recordings to bring back to the United States.

But, he said, Ukrainian officials did not ultimately hand them over at the time.
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But, he said, Ukrainian officials did not ultimately hand them over at the time.

After the trip, Parnas said, he and Fruman discussed the elusive recordings with

Giuliani at strategy sessions they held at the BLT restaurant at the Trump

International Hotel in Washington.

Victoria Toensing, a conservative lawyer who attended some of those sessions, said

she did not recall the discussions but did not dispute that Parnas may have told the

group about tapes.

“Lev is a fast talker,” she said. “He was always telling us, ‘There is Biden stuff.’ It

would go in one ear and out the other.”

Giuliani was particularly interested in obtaining tapes of calls that Biden made to

Poroshenko in early 2016 to feed his claims that the former vice president used his

office to protect the business interests of his son Hunter, according to Parnas.

Giuliani has asserted without evidence that Biden pushed for Ukraine’s prosecutor

general to be fired because Hunter Biden was serving on the board of Burisma, a

Ukrainian gas company owned by a former government minister whom Ukrainian

authorities were investigating.

In fact, at the time, Biden was serving as the lead voice in a coalition of U.S. and

European officials, including top Republicans, who were sharply critical of the

prosecutor general’s office for failing to go after high-level corruption cases and

thwarting the probe of an episode in which lower-ranking officials were found with

diamonds and cash thought to be bribes.

Among the cases that the United States argued had not received enough attention:

an inquiry into the owner of Burisma.

In late 2015, Biden delivered a blunt message to Poroshenko: Unless the

prosecutor’s office got a new leader, a $1 billion loan guarantee for the Ukrainian
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prosecutor s office got a new leader, a $1 billion loan guarantee for the Ukrainian

government wouldn’t be forthcoming. The prosecutor general agreed to resign.

In the recordings that Derkach released, Biden can be heard urging Poroshenko to

fire the prosecutor general. At one point, Poroshenko defends the top prosecutor,

saying there was “no information” he had done anything wrong, but said he asked

for the prosecutor’s resignation as part of his promise to the U.S. vice president.

In an interview with CNN’s Fareed Zakaria last month, Poroshenko said that Biden

never brought up Burisma in their many conversations. “My absolutely clear

answer: No, never,” Poro shenko said.

Ruslan Ryaboshapka, who served as Ukraine’s prosecutor general until March,

conducted a full audit of all the criminal cases in Ukraine involving the company

and told The Post he found no evidence of illegal acts by Biden or his son.

Giuliani told The Post that his pursuit of the Biden-Poroshenko calls was aided by

someone inside the State Department.

“A guy at the State Department who gave us a lot of information” consulted the

archive of conversations between American leaders and their counterparts overseas

to identify three conversations in February 2016 during which Biden mentioned the

prosecutor general’s name in conversations with Poroshenko, he said.

“He didn’t show it to us but told us they existed,” Giuliani said of the State

Department official. “He said, ‘I guarantee there are three conversations on

February 15, 17 . . . one of them is quite lengthy. It’s between Biden and Poroshenko.

There are transcripts of them, but they are classified.’ ”  

Giuliani declined to name the State Department official. A spokeswoman for the
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Giuliani declined to name the State Department official. A spokeswoman for the

State Department did not respond to requests for comment.

Giuliani said last year that he regularly kept the president abreast of his efforts in

Ukraine, but it is unclear whether Trump knew about the hunt for the tapes.

When pressed in May if he specifically mentioned the recordings to the president,

Giuliani declined to comment.

The White House did not respond to a request for comment on whether Trump

knew his lawyer was seeking tapes of Biden in Ukraine.

But one witness during the House impeachment hearings said that Trump made an

allusion to tapes of the former vice president.

Lt. Col. Alexander Vindman, a Ukraine expert who served on the National Security

Council, testified that he heard Trump refer to recordings of Biden during his

July 25, 2019, phone call with Ukrainian President Volodymyr Zelensky, the

conversation that set in motion the impeachment investigation.

According to a rough transcript of the call released by the White House, Trump told

Zelensky: “Biden went around bragging that he stopped the prosecution, so if you

can look into it.”

Vindman testified that his own notes, which he took while listening to the call, show

that Trump added, “There are recordings.”

That phrase was not included in the call’s official transcript. Vind man testified that

he notified his superiors of the omission when the transcript was circulated

internally for review, but that no changes were made.

Vindman was uncertain what Trump meant by “recordings,” his lawyer said

recently.
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At the time, his description of Trump’s mention of “recordings” on the call was

widely assumed to be a reference to the tape of a public speech Biden delivered in

2018 bragging that he had held up loan guarantees to Ukraine until the prosecutor

general was fired.

Tom Hamburger contributed to this report. Stern reported from Kyiv.

Election 2020: What to know
Updated July 19, 2020

Presumptive Democratic nominee Joe Biden has a double-digit lead over

President Trump in the latest Washington Post-ABC News poll, and the election

seems like it will be a referendum on Trump. The president faces rising

disapproval and widespread distrust on his handling of the coronavirus

pandemic.

Trump’s attacks on mail voting are turning Republicans off absentee ballots.

Rules on voting changed quickly in many states for the primaries, but the battle

for how Americans will vote in the general election is just heating up. Barring a

landslide, we may not have a result in the presidential election on Nov. 3. See

what elections are coming up and which have moved.

Who do you think Joe Biden’s VP pick should be?

Sign up: Want to understand what’s happening in the campaign? Sign up for

The Trailer and get insights and news from across the country in your inbox

three days a week.
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Projects and Programs Funded by the US Government

OPORA

B

Bardina Maryna (Sluga narodu)

Bezgin Vitaly (Sluga narodu)

Bezuhla Maryana (Sluga narodu)

Best Natalya (Golos)

Bobrovska Solomiia (Golos)

Bohutska Yelizaveta (Sluga narodu)

Borodyanskyi Volodymyr (Government)

Persons

Bulah Lada (Sluga narodu)

Buromensky Mykhaylo (NABU)

C

Vakarchuk Sviatoslav (Golos)

Vasylenko Lesia (Golos)

Vasylchenko Halyna (Golos)

Viatrovych Volodymyr (Solidarnyst)

G

Golovatenko Volodymyr (Government)

Honcharuk Oleksiy (Government)

Z

Zheleznyak Yaroslav (Golos) 

Zhmerenetskyi Oleksii (Sluga narodu)

Zablotskyi Andrii (Government)

Zagoruyko Alina (Sluga narodu)К

Kachka Taras (Government)

Kisilevskiy Dmitriy (Sluga narodu)

Kolomiets Valeria (Government) 

Krasnosilska Anastasia (Sluga narodu)

Leros Geo (Sluga narodu)

Malyuska Denys (Government)

Marikovski Oleksandr (Sluga narodu)

Mylovanov Tymofiy (Government)

Movchan Oleksiy (Sluga narodu)

Motovilovets Andrey (Sluga narodu)

Moshenets Olena (Sluga narodu)

L

М

N

Nemyrya Hryhory (Batkivshchyna)

Nefyodov Maxim (Сustoms)

Orzhel Oleksiy (Government)

Osadchuk Andrii (Golos)

Pidlasa Roksolana (Sluga narodu)Natalukha Dmytro (Sluga narodu)

Novosad Anna (Government) 

О

P

Sanchenko Oleksandr (Sluga narodu)

Umerov Rustem (Golos)

Sovsun Inna (Golos)

Т

Forsyuk Natalie (Government) S

Tretiakova Halyna (Sluga narodu)

U

Ustinova Oleksandra (Golos)

Tsabal Volodymyr (Golos)

Chernev Egor (Sluga narodu)

Yurash Sviatoslav (Sluga narodu)

Yurchyshyn Yaroslav (Golos)

Yanchenko Halyna (Sluga narodu)

Y

Yasko Yelyzaveta (Sluga narodu)

Stadny Yegor (Government)

Klymenko Yulia (Golos)

Shuliak Olena (Government, Sluga narodu)

Shkrum Alyona (Batkivshchyna)

Chemonics 

International, Inc.

Eurasia Foundation, 

etc

Pacific Northwest 

National Laboratory

Western NIS 

Enterprise Fund

#357/2-154

09.10.2019

Response: The 

investigation is ongoing

No., date Response

Prosecutor General's 

Office of Ukraine

Addressee

#357/2-3

15.01.2020
Formal response

Unit for Combating money 

Laundering (Cyprus)

#357/2-4

15.01.2020
No response

AS Privatbank (Riga)

#357/2-5

15.01.2020
Formal response

State Financial Monitoring 

Service

#357/2-8

15.01.2020
Formal response

Unit for Combating money 

Laundering (Latvia)

#357/2-25

27.02.2020

Letter regarding the 

current situation

Unit for Combating money 

Laundering (Latvia)

#357/2-26

27.02.2020

Sent repeatedly. 

No response

Unit for Combating money 

Laundering (Cyprus)

#357/2-40

23.03.2020
No response

Pechersk District Court, 

summoning witnesses

#357/2-152

09.10.2019
Refusal

No., date Response

Prosecutor General's 

Office of Ukraine

Addressee

#357/2-153

09.10.2020
Refusal

State Bureau of 

Investigation

#357/2-160

25.10.2019

Entered into the Unified 

Register of Pre-Trial 

Investigations: 

# 42019000000002323

Attorney Drozdovsky A.N.

#357/2-165

05.11.2019
Refusal

Prosecutor General's 

Office of Ukraine

#357/2-179

02.12.2019
No response

Specialized Anticorruption 

Prosecutor's Office

Chemonics 

International Inc.

David 
Sakvarelidze

Deputy Prosecutor 

General 

2015-2016

Shokin's Legal Cases

Viktor 

Shokin

Prosecutor 

General

2014-2015

Yuriy 

Lutsenko

Prosecutor 

General

2016-2019

#12013220540000400

31.01.2013

Part 1 Art. 255, Part 5 Art. 191, Part 3 Art.209 

of the Criminal Code of Ukraine

Creation of a criminal organization by Viktor 

Yanukovych. Fuel and Energy Complex 

 , дата Article

Criminal Proceedings

Mykola 

Zlochevsky
Minister of Ecology

(2010-2012),

founder of the 

hold ing

Biden`s 
son

A friend 

of John Kerry's 

stepson

Initiated 

the investigation
Was fired at 
Biden's request

Karen
Greenaway

FBI 

Representative 

in Ukraine

Accusers of international corruption in the USA

Ronald 

JOHNSON

US Senator, Wis. 

Chairman 

of the Committee 

on Homeland Security

Charles 

GRASSLEY

US Senator, Iowa, 

Chairman 

of the Senate 

Finance Committee

Lindsey 

GRAHAM

US Senator, S.C.

Chairman of the Committee 

on the Judiciary

Devin

NUNES

Congressman, Calif.

Ranking Member 

of the Intelligence 

Committee

Peter

SESSIONS

Former Congressman, Tex.

Former Chairman 

of the Rules Committee

Media

Richard 

DONOGHUE

Special Prosecutor

on Ukraine-related 

matters

Michael 

POMPEO

United States 

Secretary of State

Rudolph 

GIULIANI

Attorney

Accusers of international corruption in Ukraine

Alexander 

DUBINSKY

Member of the 

Parliament of 

Ukraine

Since 2019

Viktor 

SHOKIN

Prosecutor General 

of Ukraine

2014-2015

Yuriy

LUTSENKO

Prosecutor General 

of Ukraine

2016-2019

Andrii

TELIZHENKO

Secretary of the 

Embassy of Ukraine in 

the USA

2014-2018

Konstantin

KULIK

Military Prosecutor of 

Anti-Terrorist 

Operation 

2014-2018

Valentyn

NALYVAICHENKO

Head of the Security 

Service of Ukraine 

2006 – 2010

Volodymyr

BOIKO

Journalist

Jim 

JORDAN

Congressman, Ohio

Ranking Member 

of the Judiciary 

Committee

Shokin's Cases:

Continued the investigation 

initiated by Shokin

Adverse effects:

LLC 

Psymetrics Ukraine
42323083

Bill

BARR

United States 

Attoney General

Silisten Trading Ltd

Agalusko Investment Ltd

Melfa Group Ltd

Nasterno Commercial Ltd

Tandice Ltd

Tosalan Trading Ltd

Winter Trading Ltd

Vitaly 

Kasko

Deputy Prosecutor 

General 

2014-2016

2015 рік 2019 рік

Andriy

ARTEMENKO

Member of the 

Parliament

of Ukraine

2014-2019

# 62019000000001693

04.11.2019

Part 2, Article 387 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Disclosure of pre-trial investigation or inquiry 

data 

# 62019000000001694

04.11.2019

Part 1, Article 182 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine 

Violation of the inviolability of private 

property

# 757/10811/20-к

23.03.2020

Part 3 Article 382 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Failure to comply with the court decision

# 757/9393/20-к

14.04.2020

Part 2 Article 343 ч.2 of the Criminal Code 

of Ukraine

Interference with the conduct of a law 

enforcement officer 

 , date Article

Criminal Proceedings

#4201700000002470

01.08.2017

Part 2, Article 387 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Disclosure of pre-trial investigation data by 

NABU officials "Barn Book of the Party of 

Regions" Manafort. 

#4201800000002952
23.11.2018

Art. 111 of the Criminal Code of Ukraine

Treason. Transfer of pre-trial investigation 

data by NABU officials to the representatives 

of other countries.

#4201900000002323

01.11.2019

Part 2, Article 364 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Transfer of information under criminal 

proceedings by NABU officials to the US 

Embassy in Ukraine.

 , date Article

Criminal Proceedings

#12020800000000444

07.05.2020

Part 5 Article 191 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Misappropriation of ITA by officials of 

Psymetrics Ukraine LLC, IDLO 

PROSECUTOR OFFICE TESTS

 , date Article

Criminal Proceedings

#12020000000000130

14.02.2020

Part 5 Article 191 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Misappropriation of ITA provided to Ukraine 

by partner countries (Shabunin, Sherembey)

#12020000000000155

21.01.2020

Part 1 ст. 344 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Interference in the activities of the statesman 

by Bihus Info

#12020000000000156

21.01.2020

Part 1 ст. 351 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Obstruction of the activity of the MP of 

Ukraine by Bihus Info, and others.

 , date Article

Criminal Proceedings

#12020800600000509

21.02.2020

Part 1 ст. 190 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Fraudulent actions by Chemonics LLC and 

Triada LTD in the use of ITA

#12020800000000444

07.05.2020

Part 5 ст. 191 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Misappropriation of ITA by officials of 

Psymetrics Ukraine LLC, IDLO

#4201400000001590

18.09.2015

Part 5 ст. 191 of the Criminal Code of  Ukraine 

Regarding the sale of the property of the 

Kherson Oil Refinery by SETAM SE

#42017000000003167

05.10.2017

Part 3 ст. 191 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

On the fact of potential abuses by officials of 

Naftogaz of Ukraine, NJSC

#42019000000000611

20.03.2019

Part 5 ст. 191 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

On the fact of abuse by officials of ERU 

Trading LLC during the purchase of imported 

gas 

 , дата Article

Criminal Proceedings

#22020000000000005

#22020000000000006

09.01.2020

Part 5 ст. 191 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Embezzlement by officials of ERU Trading 

LLC during natural gas import

#12019000000001138

16.12.2019

Part 5 Art. 195 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Using shadow schemes with the help of the 

Victor Pinchuk Foundation 

 , дата Article

Criminal Proceedings

#42020000000000901

19.05.2020

Part 1 Art. 111 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

On the fact of treason by the former 

President of Ukraine Petro Poroshenko

#42020000000000902

19.05.2020

Part 2 Art. 364 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

On the fact of abuse of power by the former 

President of Ukraine Petro Poroshenko

#42020000000000903

19.05.2020

Part 1 Art. 111 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

On the fact of treason by the former 

President of Ukraine Petro Poroshenko

 , дата Article

Criminal Proceedings

 Investigation of cases of former Minister 

Zlochevsky and «Burisma»;

 Investigation of cases related to withdrawal of 

funds by Yanukovych's associates (through fraud 

with government bonds);

 The investigation into the misappropriation of ITA 

(including "the prosecutorial tests").

 Perverting the course of justice and investigation 

in high-profile cases;

 Illegal collection and transfer of personal data by 

NABU employees;

 Prohibition by G. Kent to investigate cases against 

ANTAC (Shabunin);

 Shokin's "exchange" for $1 billion in aid;

 Attempted murder and poisoning due to 

professional activities;

 Violation of the right to defense by refusing to 

register criminal proceedings.

# 757/66628/

19ц

Pechersk court 

of Kyiv

On the protection of 

business reputation, 

recognition of disseminated 

information as unreliable 

and refutation of such 

information

Case No. Claims

Plaintiff: 

Burisma Holdings Ltd

Defendants: 

MP of Ukraine Derkach 

A.L., 

Interfax-Ukraine News 

Agency LLC

Participants 

in the proceedings

Legal Cases

No. 2, November 20, 2019 

New facts about international corruption, 

Burisma and the scheme of bringing 

Ukraine to bankruptcy.

March 11, 2020 

V. Shokin's Doctor Mykola Korpan.

February 28, 2019 

V. Shokin's Lawyers: Confrontation between 

Shokin and Biden.

May 12, 2019  

V. Shokin's Lawyers: Inaction of law 

enforcement agencies in the case of V. 

Shokin and failure to execute court decisions.

Poroshenko's pressure at J. Biden's 

request to close criminal proceedings 

against Deputy Prosecutor General V. 

Kasko and D. Sakvarelidze, who as an 

organized group (together with the Security 

Service of Ukraine officers) committed a 

criminal offense under Part 1, Art. 366 of 

the Criminal Code of Ukraine.

27.03.2014 - 19.09.2014

Part 2 Art. 364, Part 5 Art. 191, Part 3 Art. 

212, Part 1 Art. 205, Part 1 Art. 358, Part 2 

Art. 191, Part 2 Art. 194, Part 2 Art. 194, 

Part 2 Art. 209, Part 1 Art. 205 КК 

Criminal operations by Pari LLC, Esko-

Pivnich LLC, First Ukrainian Gas and Oil 

Company LLC      

# 42014000000000805
06.08.2014

Part 3 Art. 212, Part 3 Art. 209, Part 3 Art. 

368-2 of the Criminal Code of Ukraine

On the fact of laundering $35 million by 

Zlochevsky M.

# 42015000000001283

26.05.2015

Part 2 Art. 191, Part. 2 Art. 364 of the 

Criminal Code of Ukraine 

Abuse of power by the Main Department of 

the State Fiscal Service in Odesa Region 

and Infox LLC

# 42018110000000407
07.11.2018

Part 3 Art. 190 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

On the fact of fraudulent actions by Trans 

Energo Alliance of Burisma Holding 

 , date Article

Criminal Proceedings

# 42014000000000181

# 42014000000000375

# 42015000000001142

# 42014100000000999

# 42014100000001095

# 32014000000000074

#357/2-72

15.05.2020

#08-46555 

від 15.05.20120

No., date Response

Prosecutor General's 

Office of Ukraine

Addressee

#357/2-73

15.05.2020
No response

International Development 

Law Organization, Ukraine

(IDLO)

Requests

# 357/2-175

26.11.19
Added by the Prosecutor's 

Office to the criminal 

proceedings  

# 42014000000001590

No., date Response

The President of Ukraine

Prosecutor General's 

Office of Ukraine

Addressee

# 357/2-2

09.01.2020

The statement was sent to 

the Prosecutor of the city 

of Kyiv

Security Service 

of Ukraine

Requests

# 357/2-23

26.02.2020
Formal responseNaftogaz of Ukraine

# 357/2-24

26.02.2020
No response

Ministry of finance of 

Ukraine

# 357/2-174
26.11.2019

Entered into the Unified 

Register of Pre-Trial 

Investigations: 

# 12013220540000400

No., date Response

President of Ukraine

Cabinet of Ministers of 

Ukraine

Addressee

Requests

# 357/2-167

13.11.2019
Refusal

No., date Response

Prosecutor General's 

Office of Ukraine

Addressee

Requests

# 357/2-168

13.11.2019

Response stating that the 

investigation is ongoing

Prosecutor General's 

Office of Ukraine

# 357/2-172

25.11.2019

The statement was sent to 

the SBI

Security Service of 

Ukraine

# 357/2-180

16.12.2019

Entered into the Unified 

Register of Pre-Trial 

Investigations: 

# 1201900000001138, 

# 1201900000001139

National Police of Ukraine

# 357/2-184

27.12.2019

Response stating that the 

investigation is ongoing
Prosecutor General's 
Office of Ukraine

RequestsRequestsRequests

#357/2-74

19.05.2020

The files are added to the 

criminal proceedings 

# 42020000000000901

# 42020000000000902

# 42020000000000903

No., date Response

Prosecutor General's 

Office of Ukraine

Addressee

Requests

#357/2-75

25.05.2020

Lindsey Graham

US Senator

Topics:

 Support from grant entities and agents of influence 

of George Soros.

 High operating costs of NABU and low KPIs;

 Interference in the US elections: assistance to 

Clinton, the Barn Book and the promotion of the 

Manafort Case;

 NABU Director is corrupt;

 Manipulation with cases of Burisma, Naftogaz and 

UkrGasVydobuvannya;

 The leak of classified information;

 Relations between the management and the 

former President Poroshenko;

State Enterprises of Ukraine

State Banks of Ukraine

Boryspil International 

Airport

National Energy 

Company of Ukraine

Ukrposhta, JSC
Ukroboronprom, 

State Concern

State Savings Bank 

of Ukraine

Privatbank, 

State Bank

Ukrgasbank, 

JSC

State Export-Import 

Bank of Ukraine

He drafted a bill that allowed ex-pats 

to be members of the supervisory 

boards of state-owned enterprises. 

The law was passed under pressure 

from Petro Poroshenko to comply 

with the instructions of J. Biden.

Aivaras
Abromavichius

Minister 
of Economic 

Development and 
Trade of Ukraine

(2014-2016) 

Leak 

of NABU documents

#763

28.01.2020

No., date Response

State Bureau 

of Investigation

Addressee

#7568

16.10.2019

Requests

George

Kent

Deputy Assistant 

Secretary 

of State

Joseph 

Biden

Vice President 

(2009-2017) 

Candidate 

for President

George 

Soros

Investor, 

Open Society 

Foundations

 

State Bureau of 

Investigation

#357/2-14

12.02.2020
No response

Nationalization of Privatbank;

Supervisory boards of state-owned 

enterprises;

Violation of laws by Petro Poroshenko;

Shokin's resignation in exchange for $1 billion 

in aid;

Resources for defense spending;

Financing the Samopomich Party;

Tariff increase.

Analytics:

Reference on the inefficient work of NABU

The organizer 

of the meeting 

in the USA with 

Yanukovych's 

criminal group

Serhiy

Kurchenko

Oligarch, 

owner of the 

SEPEK group 

Taking over 

Kherson Oil Transshipment Complex

Sheme

Participation in 

Pinchuk's 

humanitarian projects

Collection of confidential information by NABU

Curator of the 
Prosecutor's 
Office reform

Media sponsored by George Soros Funds

Zerkalo Nedeli (Mirror Weekly) «Ukrayinska Pravda» (Ukrainian Truth)

Novoe Vremya (New Times), Soros's and Fiala's Media Holding

StarLightMedia, Victor Pinchuk's Media Holding 

«Radio Svoboda» Radio Liberty (Ukraine)

«Nashi Groshi» (Our Money) with Denys Bihus

Hromadske TV

# 755/

5138/20

07.04.20

On protection of 

honor, dignity and 

refutation of 

unreliable information

Case No. Claims

Plaintiff: 

All-Ukrainian network of people 

living with HIV/AIDS, NGO 

Defendant: 

MP of Ukraine Derkach A.L.

Participants 

in the proceedings

Legal Cases

O

М

N

Kovaliv Yuliya (President`s Office)

Nechiporenko Oksana (Government)

No. 4, May 19, 2020 

New facts of international corruption and 

external governance of the country.

Ideologist
of Privatbank 
nationalization

І

 R

State Bureau 

of Investigation

Member of the 

Board at 

Shabunin's ANTAC

Opposition to return 

the money from 

Burisma & 

Yanukovych

 4, 19.05.2020 р. 

New facts of international corruption and 

external governance of the country.

No. 4, May 19, 2020 

New facts of international corruption and 

external governance of the country.

No. 4, May 19, 2020 

New facts of international corruption and 

external governance of the country.

No. 4, May 19, 2020 

New facts of international corruption and 

external governance of the country.

Scheme to derive income 

from Russian natural gas reverse 

that was passed off as European

#7569

16.10.2019

State Bureau 

of Investigation

Open criminal proceedings

# 62019000000001693

04.11.2019

Open criminal proceedings 

# 62020000000000236

24.02.2020

Open criminal proceedings 

# 62019000000001694

04.11.2019

The Prosecutor General's Office, headed 

by R. Riaboshapka, illegally destroyed 

the attestation documents of prosecutors 

who were tested under the Reform of 

Criminal Justice Project at the end of 

2019

Owner

Preferences in the world 

market of steel pipes

Mykola 

Zlochevsky

Minister of Ecology

(2010-2012)

# 42014000000001590
17.11.2014

Art. 255, 191, 256, 209 of the Criminal Code 

of Ukraine

On the fact of fraudulent actions by Trans 

Energo Alliance of Burisma Holding

 Correspondence between Ukrainian and 

Austrian law enforcement officers

In his speech at a press conference at the 

Interfax News Agency on May 19, 2020, former 

prosecutor Konstantin Kulik announced a list of 

American officials who prevented the return to 

Ukraine of funds arrested in the United States, 

which were withdrawn from Ukraine by 

Yanukovych's organized criminal group.

Documents:

 Note of the USSR KGB agent Pinchuk

#12019000000001139

16.12.2019

Part 3 Art. 209 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Legalization (laundering) of money and other 

property obtained from crime

# 62020000000000236

24.02.2020

Part 2 Article 343 of the Criminal Code of 

Ukraine

Interference with the conduct of a law 

enforcement officer

 The decision of Pechersk District Court of Kyiv

#357/2-41

25.03.2020
Formal responsePresident of Ukraine

Press Conferences

No. 2, November 20, 2019

New facts about international corruption, 

Burisma and the scheme of bringing 

Ukraine to bankruptcy.

Press Conferences

Interview 

Continued 
the investigation 

initiated by Shokin

Video blog

November 11, 2019 

New facts of international corruption.

Press Conferences Press Conferences Press Conferences Press Conferences Press Conferences Press Conferences Press Conferences

Brother of 

T. Donilon

Participation 
in Pinchuk's 
humanitarian 
projects

$29 million 

Contribution 

to the election 

campaign fund 

by V. Pinchuk

Zalishchuk Svitlana (Government) 

Contribution 

to the election 

campaign fund
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Video Blog

11.11.2019 р. 

New facts of international corruption and 

external governance of the country.

Gas Sales

 1, 09.10.2019 р. 

Publication of the facts of pressure by the 

US Embassy on Ukraine's law 

enforcement agencies to interfere in the 

electoral process in the US

No. 3, December 17, 2019 

New facts of international corruption: 

oligarch, officials, stolen billions and US 

presidential candidate

Chemonics 

International, Inc.

Internews Network

Mike 

Donilon

Counselor  to the 

Vice President 

of the USA

Mikheil 

Saakashvili

President 

of Georgia 

(2007-2013) 

Counselor

 

Advisor

Public Control 

Councils 

Provider of Georgian 

reformers to Ukraine

G.Soros`s

partner

Drik Oleksandra (Government) 

Kukhta Pavlo (Government)

Leshchenko Serhiy (Ukrzaliznyca) Nayyem Mustafa (Ukroboronprom) Poturaiev Nikita (Sluga narodu)

Joseph 
Cofer Black

Former Director 

of the CIA's 

Counterterror ist 

Center

Devon 

Archer

Chairman

«Rosemont 

Seneca Bohai»

Andrii 

DERKACH

Member of the 

Parliament of 

Ukraine 

Since 1998

No. 1, October 09, 2019 

Publication of the facts of pressure by the 

US Embassy on Ukraine's law enforcement 

agencies to interfere in the electoral process 

in the US

Media coverage Media coverage Media coverage Media coverage Media coverage Media coverage Media coverage Media coverage Media coverage Media coverage

А

All-Ukrainian Network of People Living 

with HIVAIDS (100% Life)

#357/2-76

25.05.2020
Formal response

Prosecutor General's 

Office of Ukraine

Anti-Corruption Action Center

Anti-Corruption Headquarters

Anti-Corruption Research and 

Education Center (ACREC)

Better Regulation Delivery Office

 B

Center for Civil Liberties 

C

Center for Economic Strategy

Center for Political Studies and 

Analysis (Eidos) 

Centre for Democracy and Rule of Law  

Chesno Civil Movement

Commission on Journalism Ethics

Committee of Voters of Ukraine

DEJURE Foundation 

Democratic Initiatives Foundation

D

International Development Law Organization

Institute of Legislative Ideas

Institute of Mass Information

Institute for Euro-Atlantic Cooperation  

L

Leadership Academy NGO 

Media Initiative For Human Rights

Independent Defence Anti-Corruption 

Committee (NAKO)

New Europe Center

Opora

Regional Press Development Institute

S

 Souspilnist Foundation

T

Transparency International Ukraine

StateWatch

D

F

R

Rudyk Kira (Golos)

Stefanyshyna Olga (Golos)

VH

Advisor

Nasirov's case:

Visa revocation to ex-head of the State 

Fiscal Service Roman Nasirov

Karen
Greenaway

FBI 

Representative 

in Ukra ine

#03/246 

15.06.2020

The appeal of 48 Members of the Parliament 

of Ukraine to the Constitutional Court of 

Ukraine requesting to ensure the economic 

security of Ukraine by declaring 

unconstitutional the certain provisions of the 

Commercial Code of Ukraine and the Law of 

Ukraine On Management of State Property 

allowing foreign citizens to participate in the 

supervisory boards of companies with over 

50% of the state share in the authorized 

capital and enterprises of strategic 

importance.

 , дата Article

Constitutional submission

#357/2-11

10.02.2020

Entered into the Unified 

Register of Pre-Trial 

Investigations: 

  12020000000000130

No., date Response

National Police 

of Ukraine

Addressee

#357/2-12

12.02.2020

The statement was sent to 

the Prosecutor of the city 

of Kyiv

Security Service 

of Ukraine

#357/2-13

12.02.2020

Added to the criminal 

proceedings

# 12020000000000155, 

# 12020000000000156

Ministry of Internal Affairs 

of Ukraine

#357/2-14

12.02.2020
No response

State Bureau 

of Investigation

#357/2-15

13.02.2020

The files are added to the 

criminal proceedings

  1202080060000509

Main Directorate 

of the National Police 

in Zaporizhia Oblast

#357/2-27(32)

03.03.2020
Formal response6 recipients

#357/2-33

03.03.2020
Formal response

Ministry of Foreign Affairs 

of Ukraine

#357/2-63

14.04.2020

Ministry of Foreign Affairs 

of Ukraine

#357/2-35

03.03.2020
6 recipients

#357/2-72

15.05.2020
No response

Prosecutor General's 

Office, IDLO

The statement was sent to 
the head of the National 
Police of Ukraine

A detailed letter with 
cooperation protocols was 
sent

#357/2-79

25.05.2020

Ministry for Development 

of Economy, Trade and 

Agriculture of Ukraine

No response

Combination of 

membership: 

Adomas 

Auditskas

Combination of 

membership:  

Shevki Adzhuner

Naftogaz of Ukraine, 

National JSC

Ukrainian Railways, 

JSC

Mahistralni Gazoprovody 

Ukraine, JSC

Andriy

Kicha

Chief 
Legal Officer 

of Burisma

Bribe
for closing 

the case

Закриття справи «Burisma»:

 Official statement by NABU

 Briefing of NABU and SAP leadership

 Analytical data provided by Konstantin Kulyk

Bribe
for closing the case

No. 5, June 22, 2020 

New details in the case of Burisma bribe, 

as well as new records of conversations 

testifying to international corruption and the 

external governance of Ukraine.  

2016 рік

Yevhen 

Yenin

First Deputy 
Prosecutor Gen.  

2016-2019 рр.

$7,4 mln.

2015 рік 2019 рік

Topics 2:

About the need to increase tariffs 

for citizens of Ukraine

Nationalization of PrivatBank

Approval of staff appointments to the 

Prosecutor General's Office

Control over Prime Minister Yatsenyuk 

and his government

Pressure on the Member of the Parliament 

O. Onyshchenko

Protection of Arseniy Yatsenyuk

No. 5, June 22, 2020 

New details in the case of Burisma bribe, 

as well as new records of conversations 

testifying to international corruption and the 

external governance of Ukraine.  

No. 5, June 22, 2020 

New details in the case of Burisma bribe, 

as well as new records of conversations 

testifying to international corruption and 

the external governance of Ukraine.  

No. 5, June 22, 2020 

New details in the case of Burisma bribe, 

as well as new records of conversations 

testifying to international corruption and 

the external governance of Ukraine.  

No. 5, June 22, 2020 

New details in the case of Burisma bribe, 

as well as new records of conversations 

testifying to international corruption and 

the external governance of Ukraine.  

No. 5, June 22, 2020 

New details in the case of Burisma bribe, 

as well as new records of conversations 

testifying to international corruption and 

the external governance of Ukraine.  

Protection of Andriy Kobolyev and Naftogaz 

leadership

Coordination 
of energy policy

Andriy 

Kobolyev

Head 

of the Board

Constitutional submission

#3193-1 

17.03.2020

Draft Law On Amendments to Certain 

Legislative Acts Concerning Ensuring Equal 

Rights and Opportunities for Citizens in 

Representation in Supervisory Boards and 

Governing Bodies of State Unitary 

Enterprises, Business Entities and State 

Banks and Fair Establishment and Effective 

Operation of Such Supervisory Boards 

Taking Into the National Interests of Ukraine

 , дата Draft Law

Protege 
at Naftogaz

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jB-_ELi7UYLDpWW1byz-xCT2Z40Hytnd/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jB-_ELi7UYLDpWW1byz-xCT2Z40Hytnd/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/18IFxf1znRwd4N-8exxOPaafSPF5-71eV/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/18IFxf1znRwd4N-8exxOPaafSPF5-71eV/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-zgAiLuETRvbQ3wmWEd5bw28qdiUKfBN/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-zgAiLuETRvbQ3wmWEd5bw28qdiUKfBN/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/13G47xrQrC2SCkIaapqiVMgVgr1LKGmbi/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/13G47xrQrC2SCkIaapqiVMgVgr1LKGmbi/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16GHPpNpum2zfa91WJTkuDA1kEjm2amPO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16GHPpNpum2zfa91WJTkuDA1kEjm2amPO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YtoxiKb4eETkjXZ3rdOdpqzvbsaWpZ2F/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BcdC6YPSSEwjRKO-iiBAWJn_2Gp85gFv/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YtoxiKb4eETkjXZ3rdOdpqzvbsaWpZ2F/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BcdC6YPSSEwjRKO-iiBAWJn_2Gp85gFv/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1SHSUzdpfCOYC7a86QsYxvZrVTaE-5fsb/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1SHSUzdpfCOYC7a86QsYxvZrVTaE-5fsb/view?usp=sharing
https://www.usaid.gov/ukraine/our-work
https://www.facebook.com/derkach.al/videos/2326618244333060
https://www.facebook.com/derkach.al/videos/2326618244333060/?d=n
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5JNFEKQgZO0&t=21s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4309z--JcGk&t=2s
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Sxkr-2m_neJfcAGNqpdywzG80dOePA2I/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Sxkr-2m_neJfcAGNqpdywzG80dOePA2I/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AFyu_RBo0JyjVlfBGZyTGt5IurXtBG9-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AFyu_RBo0JyjVlfBGZyTGt5IurXtBG9-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sjo-dt1yNhFq-rnaPAhEBIrCDTTSwTZx/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sjo-dt1yNhFq-rnaPAhEBIrCDTTSwTZx/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YvjgvErBtaFqFmOWVcEIHXDEqeeUlgqt/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YvjgvErBtaFqFmOWVcEIHXDEqeeUlgqt/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xtU5dW2LiS7Ko8yBer6KhMsZHkVbXthQ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xtU5dW2LiS7Ko8yBer6KhMsZHkVbXthQ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VjAIioBdaFUP1tg_gNOpjCbAbXcxqUYK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VjAIioBdaFUP1tg_gNOpjCbAbXcxqUYK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1XFXaW8EOB2vX_S-FNzoREWkVdAq9Tjv4/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1XFXaW8EOB2vX_S-FNzoREWkVdAq9Tjv4/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/192YsvMtRjUEbB75UoO810Go5mGcc1BDl/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/192YsvMtRjUEbB75UoO810Go5mGcc1BDl/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10rkCuDB57S_wm8bKoE9dI8OGCWpQXOR-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10rkCuDB57S_wm8bKoE9dI8OGCWpQXOR-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1eXZbE3OORaZ0_1XE21N0kgk5VQ0gMIqD/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1eXZbE3OORaZ0_1XE21N0kgk5VQ0gMIqD/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ggvWzv2JdpX371WXk0daB1XwkuoS9b7X/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ggvWzv2JdpX371WXk0daB1XwkuoS9b7X/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ISkOTBi4FwjKKSnjUEIcOKvFPhaAMDJS/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ISkOTBi4FwjKKSnjUEIcOKvFPhaAMDJS/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/177fPv_yURx-2ub0GttCt9UMOFNs7EpAb/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/177fPv_yURx-2ub0GttCt9UMOFNs7EpAb/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NdLCfR6Lluec5hREbnfrPLcqYIYuyOz6/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NdLCfR6Lluec5hREbnfrPLcqYIYuyOz6/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cMsuw7OuT6MMP7xLVI7BF-khQ88abSBo/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cMsuw7OuT6MMP7xLVI7BF-khQ88abSBo/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1j8ObhiPxjyj6_1i9dEfTM3m11NG8nXuk/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1j8ObhiPxjyj6_1i9dEfTM3m11NG8nXuk/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rvoqTbV21AkMA6kRwYNl_D36PdCC8CyV/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rvoqTbV21AkMA6kRwYNl_D36PdCC8CyV/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1oDHbCGTLGmUFNHpM-qE-7XNazqoqGmno/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/18qcRTdDBQTNOz68HRbdF7p6vtAGEj5BJ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1oDHbCGTLGmUFNHpM-qE-7XNazqoqGmno/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/18qcRTdDBQTNOz68HRbdF7p6vtAGEj5BJ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pGMuFKnx9g_NECJCOwxNpItJV1wnqSkS/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pGMuFKnx9g_NECJCOwxNpItJV1wnqSkS/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WrRJMMfc0NMqme0SxBsXGOL2PQZKUpf7/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WrRJMMfc0NMqme0SxBsXGOL2PQZKUpf7/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IdEwWHucFfPOswGfZ-HwDWZH-aMr65hD/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IdEwWHucFfPOswGfZ-HwDWZH-aMr65hD/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ISkOTBi4FwjKKSnjUEIcOKvFPhaAMDJS/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ISkOTBi4FwjKKSnjUEIcOKvFPhaAMDJS/view?usp=sharing
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5JNFEKQgZO0&t=21s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4309z--JcGk&t=2s
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AFyu_RBo0JyjVlfBGZyTGt5IurXtBG9-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AFyu_RBo0JyjVlfBGZyTGt5IurXtBG9-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VjAIioBdaFUP1tg_gNOpjCbAbXcxqUYK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VjAIioBdaFUP1tg_gNOpjCbAbXcxqUYK/view?usp=sharing
https://www.facebook.com/derkach.al/videos/2326618244333060
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10804
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1M9uRkGiJprxU1JFNb-fvfrKp7qSNciV0/view?usp=sharing
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/9580
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1M9uRkGiJprxU1JFNb-fvfrKp7qSNciV0/view?usp=sharing
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10497
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10BP_KE9Qsl1uP082vy_hm4zueTIrXISP/view?usp=sharing
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10378
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10394
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/9952
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10190
https://drive.google.com/file/d/13P835yyrAPsRmqGukmyGl37M4VzyGXR_/view?usp=sharing
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10833
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10856
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/9976
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10832
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1vqENTqKeNKEYfBp1yrBWGBR-AphIqtR9/view?usp=sharing
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10036
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15XMWup61p7x1pDKZFlsBIyqvET9T5Yt5/view?usp=sharing
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10544
https://www2.deloitte.com/ua/en/services/finance.html
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10792
https://www.tetratech.com/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10BP_KE9Qsl1uP082vy_hm4zueTIrXISP/view?usp=sharing
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10153
http://proaid.gov.ua/en/projects/10891
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1l4ry8TDnWB1SbcOlL15vNgWJICHk2yfh/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KqYm3Z_EeDGYZ45GExJx1A4jNgoJce7N/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mmELXYrBrwEtnxBeSmDjGDJov3-Vo1X-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1aJ5qowilfAnAnkwj3SyziCiBi7J2x51j/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1dRJMmZFpfdNFp4uXYYDNhzv9mbjBtSOy/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_HPqe08u3uqJOxcww0t1sCamlddw5Nae/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1htTq-wemDNLDqo0yAss9flPu2UyWP4ii/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1PKwq5_cav6fepcGWiMLKo9TuE5PWG_il/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1JsQpW0wjHfMyfw7WpCKBMokjhXqKBS7t/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/17eSinzAKYfykkajoiifuFjxOlQctnvCu/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1QHmTlTCir5kr1scGCmW0b7i0uH5O5xKu/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1MQGoTL7vn4j16Hc0hJMzETMbLPcDEiN0/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1I3avPCxrc74DELz2cWs-v6Rq6KTyQ8U6/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1nOgb8Ns7t7Z27-3KhzyvSyE6Ayk8u8Un/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Z3_HZve0GEacXwePCP9ED2eAhlJlRtaE/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1PDxvxDXQ08bSoRVAALIId1nvTFO_wpUp/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1B0ZkX_92AuFjCLn0u-tild6mFv58FgPB/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1nn3YTj1pSyauxxBvHNwt7dFY2YejP_-J/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11O092hDqUtj_0eFryE8oIpaR3Im5Unwv/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1iNeY4_0c5atFAJqgeWiFNnpYu1zij0ne/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1dd6xPoi6fjIuUxVhSqZwy9zhOZvXweLA/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1znMVxQgTYm76qiEH_b7q2p2nMLfCf7Nb/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1eIp1P4J3mFDyirwO0Mz9tRQEQibdfLp-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FEGM5RPur_Dhat8o5u4RnUG2cHMsKyCb/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1v1n6006T5F-GwzkKeHUCa5wSTqao99tn/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1PyZrSYDhKQMhgdJ4XrI6LjfvQeAlmSYM/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19Em8gxNnUJYT-RyfCV7WQUegndYzp7cn/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1wrldd35dAaxDvuk7iMOiEvoSUZjnjQ19/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1EncoLGF7AjFW6k9BpcQhoTWSb1S-8U7V/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1HWUbnWNpBok4OXl88GDQ2jzrpRMJMvru/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DHnBaHMSgBSzyQeFonVX2SVKdJUfRnUP/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZzhBbjri8-YB3DSfsm_gwE_jRBIcdA-c/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-zyYKUmy2qHxgeHFxHIgHvv-G9WOaGxe/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1SO1at1qY-STDXGqCpp2gcWNA64U92FvK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cHMN8RUC7B5KtzhID4QG5tS-XNy3tIOg/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15YpQ8K1-9HgZCMpQFbxWl3EcZ2DmXNE4/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1blHMIZm2RsQe5kk8_jJkvIdHOmHqpRH0/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1PLXJM7I8AWL7uGEyKck8lOe5xJhLOPuf/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_SUGtL0eNI8Wuf7--tDEyR9nfGDciUd7/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1b3w4JH-qUtUOjQN0XqcXxeguW5Klr-Aw/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rlXkpJ6tUk-N7jTxzb7kGjwc2tsbs3tp/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DDJHb5zz4YHSdxiBw7P-iY24lxNzBGD_/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1naj_EZHZpO8_0XZg9p0P49kw0hFJAUaA/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jeAVPhj4s9AlgBs5czEjUROJ0OOuD7OG/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jwO64Tdku0BiIopFTrdrbXZqM4kkbSmK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZyFhffrfhdLNFC5ezSg4Ja9rK860umb1/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VZJcLapQvQ2iLObQaBnSj2W8gvbGbxLq/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1JV34Uviz1VLKBlWKDBEUyOz47hokgX85/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yonlZD9CvEhAOzhh3Ao8RFDQojG8Q-Fr/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1E3VHuFybuQ4zr0qak0IIUU07gfryFNEO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tGG5DdLF2GQF_KAdlsb6mMV81rWl7meb/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1u7Y-RuRv3NGYitxF-UcHZ8VW2EyJQA4-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1HrTN_9MVzBmJvf0qAr77abBDXTWpOlab/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1JeBK7bbrsZP-Hn_eHZsN_HB9zw2KSVPy/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1REswkhLM9x8gbknzKYRYZYR0HeAyl8aS/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10BP_KE9Qsl1uP082vy_hm4zueTIrXISP/view?usp=sharing
https://www.eurasia.org/
https://www.pnnl.gov/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1R4hIhBJm19EWFjn-ta3nCG0n_yluRhUf/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15PA6SuZkLlGBRhmFXpmW6nsMyunuRJXJ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/12Nf91jqd96oGwyCQGB-DPlALiGT-ZI2p?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15PA6SuZkLlGBRhmFXpmW6nsMyunuRJXJ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1PlG3FhgX0NWQvhBJ2rhFG3-wSMaRhNMU/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/17mLIzEtPkInOtOhFURHqxNl3t9QsWCGc/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1PlG3FhgX0NWQvhBJ2rhFG3-wSMaRhNMU/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Y9amIOwRIAIYLHqVO7DGz4vnp8SnX8qT/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NFFKku6v6fD0nTsbxUPjSuVVXBp2VQBe/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xHOwdDADqmkFuHLx8xpDdqT8RMqeNFB3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10KWEs79FTsThsPNxKlwBYz3Kw2UtAnJ0/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xHOwdDADqmkFuHLx8xpDdqT8RMqeNFB3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NFFKku6v6fD0nTsbxUPjSuVVXBp2VQBe/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1eyIlvnYk4PdBoAIjF0AZQd2IPkQrS4wA/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Y9amIOwRIAIYLHqVO7DGz4vnp8SnX8qT/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/14BTsWmIRKrMgvF2DEoBzNH0McK0a7tHn/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Wr6tFps3fPCd4lQoBhn1vzSLb-J0IfLN/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/14BTsWmIRKrMgvF2DEoBzNH0McK0a7tHn/view?usp=sharing
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https://drive.google.com/file/d/1nlLDt86D7RPDeC-O72D7kfq7zTaQiC66/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1nlLDt86D7RPDeC-O72D7kfq7zTaQiC66/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1U0UlKmijzUQsMMvz4P1tWdXQR2ZRQt5g/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1U0UlKmijzUQsMMvz4P1tWdXQR2ZRQt5g/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AJDg4Y2S-DufhPONRgJTO2mm7IT1xdIo/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1XfyBn4_JVE8mXNe32qN4ZTQ3ufaVy2cN?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OGvhpIZjtx-ynxusCARathAeU30t8VUj/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OGvhpIZjtx-ynxusCARathAeU30t8VUj/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kyXVChg7dgISIyOc3RQ5WILix1Bzi0Xm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kyXVChg7dgISIyOc3RQ5WILix1Bzi0Xm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kyXVChg7dgISIyOc3RQ5WILix1Bzi0Xm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1A2bk_ERue4DWrYz6L1AvHsxDjbyoVCb3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1A2bk_ERue4DWrYz6L1AvHsxDjbyoVCb3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1A2bk_ERue4DWrYz6L1AvHsxDjbyoVCb3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AaD2mZrOwb1YLfPDFnAQIFAp0f_8gDz-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AaD2mZrOwb1YLfPDFnAQIFAp0f_8gDz-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AaD2mZrOwb1YLfPDFnAQIFAp0f_8gDz-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1C7W1nu6kvB-9hTRtFldAPrP4UxPvkN5n/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1C7W1nu6kvB-9hTRtFldAPrP4UxPvkN5n/view?usp=sharing
https://nabu.gov.ua/novyny/sproba-pidkupu-kerivnykiv-nabu-ta-sap-5-mln-dol-ssha-za-zakryttya-spravy-za-pidozroyu
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9W0kOIk0k4I
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qJIN4PA2bAwhBB9d3Zy16U0iq3uZMjT8/view?usp=sharing
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kOe5KKo3LUszjC70Uk-MiSPagVkj08-Q/view?usp=sharing
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1efbzrXHoWxp1b7QXijGntm-MG_JLuBDK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1efbzrXHoWxp1b7QXijGntm-MG_JLuBDK/view?usp=sharing
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=HNUr6I8Fkjg
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_rDeGAIYJcw
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=drzcIPxuAyQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZxbXJs5M3gQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YCMHxn3adVQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=HNUr6I8Fkjg
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_rDeGAIYJcw
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=drzcIPxuAyQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZxbXJs5M3gQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YCMHxn3adVQ
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kOe5KKo3LUszjC70Uk-MiSPagVkj08-Q/view?usp=sharing
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kOe5KKo3LUszjC70Uk-MiSPagVkj08-Q/view?usp=sharing
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kOe5KKo3LUszjC70Uk-MiSPagVkj08-Q/view?usp=sharing
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kOe5KKo3LUszjC70Uk-MiSPagVkj08-Q/view?usp=sharing
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kOe5KKo3LUszjC70Uk-MiSPagVkj08-Q/view?usp=sharing
https://youtu.be/Ei6O14Td89g
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1mA9MLEMQp8
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1mA9MLEMQp8
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sm7-Wfav4sl-6k0sYDkqx7RgKIcSmJr3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sm7-Wfav4sl-6k0sYDkqx7RgKIcSmJr3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1l9XM8b12yDFXpM_eu16vX5VI9E8Cnp3v/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1l9XM8b12yDFXpM_eu16vX5VI9E8Cnp3v/view?usp=sharing
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()*+*,	+*-	,*./	0+1-	*22/3/.	4566/40156	0+/	-0*)0	57	*6	168/-013*0156	+/	+*-2*964+/.	1605	:1./6	*6.	+1-	-56;	./,*6.163	)/45).-	*6.	0)*6-4)1<0-	57	:1./6=-	4*22-05	>?)*16/	0+*0	,560+@A+/	B*40	C+/4?/)	D*-	-9-<14159-	57	0+/-/	42*1,-	E/4*9-/	10	+*.	E//6	59)96./)-0*6.163	0+*0	0+/	168/-013*0156	57	F254+/8-?G	D*-	2*)3/2G	.5),*60	*0	0+/	01,/57	:1./6=-	.1<25,*4G@	H6.//.;	0+/	>@I@	*,E*--*.5)	*0	0+/	01,/	+*.	-1632/.	590,1-,*6*3/,/60	57	0+/	F254+/8-?G	4*-/	*-	*6	/J*,<2/	57	>?)*16/=-	7*12163	05	+52.45))9<0	577141*2-	05	*445960@K5)?163	D10+	59)	4522/*39/-	L14+*/2	:1)6E*9,	*6.	M*81.	N@	I0/)6;	D+5	.1-49--/.0+/	4*-/	D10+	-59)4/-	D+12/	)/<5)0163	16	OG18;	D/=8/	./0/),16/.	0+*0	0+1-	*22/3/.4566/40156	1-	E*-/.	56	*	,1-96./)-0*6.163	57	D+*0	055?	<2*4/	16	0+/	>?)*161*6459)0-@PQR	STUVWF254+/8-?G	+*.	-/)8/.	16	05<	>?)*161*6	358/)6,/60	<5-10156-	16	0+/	45960)G=-/6/)3G	-/405)	*6.	+*.	0)*6-75),/.	+1,-/27	1605	56/	57	0+/	45960)G=-	)14+/-0	,/6@	H60+/	<)54/--;	+/	+*-	7*4/.	G/*)-	57	2/3*2	0)59E2/-	*6.	*22/3*0156-	57	45))9<0156;	D+14++/	+*-	./61/.@	:)10*16	564/	7)5X/	YZ[	,122156	57	+1-	*--/0-;	E90	+/	D*-	650	4+*)3/.D10+	*6G	4)1,/-	*6.	0+/	7)//X/	D*-	/8/609*22G	2170/.@
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Ms. Karen Tramontano 
Chief Executive Officer 
Blue Star Strategies 
888 17th Street, NW, Suite 800 
Washington, DC 20006 

Dear Ms. Tramontano: 

WASHINGTON, DC 20510 

December 3, 2019 

The Senate Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs Committee and the Committee 
on Finance (Committees) are investigating whether certain officials within the Obama 
administration had actual or apparent conflicts of interest because of Hunter Biden's role in 
Rosemont Seneca and related entities, or as a board member of Burisma Holdings (Burisma). In 
addition, the Committees are reviewing whether Hunter Biden or his associates had any role in 
the formulation of the Obama administration's policies with respect to Ukraine. Recent reports 
indicate that Blue Star Strategies (Blue Star) sought to leverage Hunter Biden's membership on 
the board of directors for Burisma in its communications and meetings with various U.S. 
government officials at the same time his father, then-Vice President Joe Biden, served as the 
"public face of the administration's handling ofUkraine." 1 Accordingly, as part of the 
Committees' inquiry, we write to request information with regard to Blue Star's work for 
Burisma. 

A recent report indicates that, in November or December 2015, Blue Star officials met 
with Amos Hochstein, then-senior advisor to Vice President Biden on international energy 
affairs, and invoked Hunter Biden during a discussion of Burisma. 2 The report describes Mr. 
Hochstein as "a vocal proponent of Ukraine cracking down on Burisma," and explained that the 
purpose of the meeting was for "Blue Star Strategies [] to convince Hochstein (but [it] did not) 
that Burisma was on the level and did not warrant further investigation."3 

Additional documents demonstrate how Blue Star used Hunter Biden's board 
membership to gain access and potentially influence matters at the State Department. In a 
February 24, 2016, email with the subject line "Burisma," a State Department official wrote: 

1 Susan Crabtree, Joe Eiden emerges as Obama's trusty sidekick, Wash. Examiner, Apr. 25, 2014, 
https://www.washingtonexaminer.com/joe-biden-emerges-as-obamas-trusty-sidekick. 
2 Tiana Lowe, Joe Eiden adviser Amos Hochstein took meetings with Burisma-hired lobbying firm, Wash. Examiner, 
Nov. 7, 2019, https://www.washingtonexaminer.com/opinion/joe-biden-adviser-amos-hochstein-took-meetings­
with-burisma-hired-blue-star-strategies. 
3 Id. 
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Per our conversation, Karen Tramontano of Blue Star Strategies 
requested a meeting to discuss with [Under Secretary] Novelli [U.S. 
Government] remarks alleging Burisma (Ukrainian energy 
company) of corruption. She noted that two high profile U.S. 
citizens are affiliated with the company (including Hunter Biden 
as a board member). Tramontano would like to talk with U/S 
Novelli about getting a better understanding of how the U.S. 
came to the determination that the company is corrupt. 
According to Tramontano, there is no evidence of corruption, has 
been no hearing or process, and evidence to the contrary has not 
been considered. Would appreciate any background you may be 
able to provide on this issue and suggested TPs for U/S Novelli's 
meeting.4 

On March 1, 2016, Blue Star reportedly met with Under Secretary Novelli, and in April 
2016 Blue Star reportedly met with Ukrainian prosecutors. 5 According to what appears to be 
contemporaneous notes by one of those Ukrainian prosecutors during the April 2016 meeting, 
Blue Star apologized about allegedly "false information" promoted by the U.S. Government 
about the prosecutors' handling of the investigation of Burisma. 6 

To assist the Committees' examination of the role that Hunter Biden and individuals 
within the U.S. government may have played with regard to lobbying for Burisma, we 
respectfully request the following information: 

1. With respect to Blue Star's work for Burisma, please provide: 
a. A description of how, and through whom, Blue Star first became aware of 

Burisma; 
b. Blue Star's contract with and all other documents describing its relationship with 

Burisma; 
c. The date Blue Star began work for Burisma; 
d. The date for when Blue Star ended work for Burisma, if applicable; 
e. A description of the services Blue Star provided Burisma; 
f. The names and titles of all Blue Star employees, including contractors, that 

worked on matters relating to Burisma; 

4 John Solomon, Hunter Biden 's Ukraine gas firm pressed Obama administration to end corruption allegations, 
memos show, johnsolomonreports.com, Nov. 4, 2019, https://johnsolomonreports.com/hunter-bidens-ukraine-gas­
firm-pressed-obama-administration-to-end-corruption-allegations-memos-show/ (emphasis added). 
5 John Solomon, These once-secret memos cast doubt on Joe Eiden 's Ukraine story, The Hill, Sept. 26, 2019, 
https://thehill. com/opinion/ campaign/ 463 3 07 -so Iomon-these-once-secret-memos-cast-doubt-on-j oe-bidens-ukraine­
story; Tiana Lowe, Joe Eiden adviser Amos Hochstein took meetings with Burisma-hired lobbying firm, Wash. 
Examiner, Nov. 7, 2019, https://www.washingtonexaminer.com/opinion/joe-biden-adviser-amos-hochstein-took­
meetings-with-burisma-hired-blue-star-strategies. 
6 Id. 
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g. The names and titles of Burisma employees that worked with Blue Star 
employees or contractors; 

h. The dates and descriptions, including a list of attendees, of all meetings between 
Blue Star representatives and Ukrainian officials regarding Burisma; and 

1. The dates and descriptions, including a list of attendees, of all meetings about or 
related to Burisma between Blue Star representatives and U.S. officials. This 
includes, but is not limited to, the State Department, the Office of the Vice 
President, and the Executive Office of the President. 

2. Please provide all records7 between and among Blue Star and U.S. officials relating to its 
representation of Burisma. This includes, but is not limited to, the State Department, the 
Office of the Vice President, and the Executive Office of the President. 

3. Please describe Blue Star's document and email retention policies from 2014 to present. 

Please provide a response as soon as possible but no later than December 17, 2019. As 
part of that response, please also confirm in writing Blue Star's ongoing obligation to preserve 
all records relevant to these matters. 

Thank you for your prompt attention. Should you have any questions, please contact 
Brian Downey or Scott Wittmann of Chairman Johnson's staff at 202-224-4751 and Joshua 
Flynn-Brown of Chairman Grassley's staff at 202-224-4515. 

Chairm 
Commit e o Homeland Security 
and Gov ental Affairs 

Sincerely, 

Charles E. Grassley 
Chairman 
Committee on Finance 

7 "Records" include any written, recorded, or graphic material of any kind, including letters, memoranda, reports, 
notes, electronic data (emails, email attachments, and any other electronically-created or stored information), 
calendar entries, inter-office communications, meeting minutes, phone/voice mail or recordings/records of verbal 
communications, and drafts (whether or not they resulted in final documents). 



Statement On the Ukrainian-American Strategic Partnership 

23 May, 20:11 

Kyiv Security Forum expresses gratitude to the distinguished Ukrainian politicians, 
diplomats and civic activists for their support of the appeal to the American leaders and 
society on the importance of protecting the Ukrainian-American strategic partnership. 

  

Statement 
On the Ukrainian-American Strategic Partnership 

  

We, the representatives of Ukrainian politics, civil society, and the expert community, are deeply 
concerned to watch a campaign to involve Ukraine in the political competition in the United States 
unfold with renewed vigor. 

Ukraine greatly appreciates the steadfast support of the American people for our independence, 
security, and Western course. 

Our nations share the common values of national and human freedom. 

The combined efforts of the two largest political parties in the United States and all concerned 
Americans to defend Ukraine are a major historical contribution to the creation of a united Europe and 
a just world order. 

We call on American leaders to distinguish between the position of new Ukraine, which stands for the 
unity of the West and acts to unite democracies around the world, and those forces that seek to turn 
the political developments in our country into a toxic narrative to sow discord among our partners. 

We oppose the dishonest attempts to use the political controversies in the United States. We do not 
choose any side, but support each of them in the same way that they together help Ukraine’s 
independence. 

We call on America’s leaders to distinguish between the position of our nation from the actions of 
politicians instigated by Moscow. 

We condemn hostile provocations aimed at alienating our nations. 

We believe in the strategic partnership between Ukraine and the United States. 

Let us not allow mutual distrust and doubt to erode this great and lasting relationship. 

Let us stand together in times of great trials. 

Signed on May 22-23, 2020 

  

*        *        * 

  

Arseniy Yatsenyuk, Chairman of the Kyiv Security Forum, Prime Minister of Ukraine (2014-2016). 

Oleksandr Turchynov, acting President of Ukraine, Speaker of the Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine 
(2014), National Security Advisor (2014-2019). 

Oksana Zabuzhko, writer, National Taras Shevchenko Prize laureate. 

Joseph Zissels, member of the First of December Initiative Group, member of the Strategic Council 
of the Movement against Capitulation. 

Myroslav Marynovych, Vice-Rector of the Ukrainian Catholic University, political dissident and 
prisoner of conscience under the Soviet occupation, member of the First of December Initiative Group. 



Yevhen Zakharov, Chairperson of the Kharkiv Human Rights Group, Head of the Board of the 
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